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" Chairman’s Statement

=

The financial year ended 31 March 2019 (the “Year"”)
is a year of challenge and transformation for Chinlink
International Holdings Limited (the “Company” or
“Chinlink”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the
“Group”).

Whilst Chinlink continues to provide financial solution
in Shaanxi and other parts of the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC” or “China”) through our alternative
finance vehicles namely financial guarantee, finance lease,
factoring and supply chain finance to small and medium-
sized enterprises (“SMEs"), our further growth in this field
is facing both internal and external challenges posted by
the uncertainties over the global and domestic economies
caused mainly by the trade frictions, changes in the
market conditions, financial liquidity and the increasingly
competitive environment.

During the past two years, we have been working hard
to explore a new strategic positioning aimed to achieve
sustainable and profitable growth in the years ahead.

Chinlink’s new positioning is an innovative solution group
building a robust ecosystem that integrates government,
education, research, industry, finance, entrepreneurs
and talent resources by leveraging on our international
partnership network. This ecosystem is empowered by a
full chain of financial services, which include alternative
finance, investment banking, financial advisory, asset
management and venture funds, providing the essential
capital to the startups, fast growing companies, and
established businesses of disruptive model and innovative
technology.

Utilising our capital resources and skills as the key driver,
combines with access to global innovative partners,
Chinlink will play a critical role in the reshaping and
transformation of the industry structure and the
development of the China new economy.
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After a 40-year successful economic reform and
development, China has become the second-largest
economy in the world after the United States. It is now
in the threshold to shift its economic growth from high-
speed to high quality, eco-conscious and sustainable
progress model. China needs to transform its domestic
industry structure and financial system by creating a new
driving force that is reliant on the dynamics of technology,
innovation, brain power and entrepreneurship. This is
particularly relevant to the Chinese inland cities like
Xi'an, which has been lagging behind from the other
Chinese coastal cities in terms of economic progress
because of disadvantageous geographic location and
national priority in the past. However, Xi'an always
maintains its prominence built on historic and cultural
legacy in the Chinese civilisation and pivotal role on the
Silk Road Economic Belt and the Belt and Road Initiative
Furthermore, it has deep technology reserves and
intellectual resources in aerospace, aviation, hardware
machinery, computer science, software development,
etc., and abundant academic resources of 60+ prime
universities and research institutes. To upgrade its
economy and to capitalise on its inherited advantages,
Xi'an needs an innovative business environment to nurture
its technology achievements and research results into
viable businesses, grooming its elite talents into successful
business endeavours. Eventually, this will help the local
government to energies its backwater industries, which is
still dominated by state-owned enterprises and to provide
new growth impetus for the city to excel in the next stage
sustainable growth of the local economy and restoration
of its past glory. As a Hong Kong-listed company group
with substantial China context, a global vision, and
worldwide innovative partnerships, Chinlink is best
positioned to actively participate in this transformation

process.
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" Chairman’s Statement

Chinlink has cultivated a deep root in Xi‘an and the
nearby cities in the Shaanxi Province and fostered
good relationships with the provincial and municipal
governments. In 2018, we were appointed as the commerce
representative office in Hong Kong for the Shaanxi
Provincial Department of Commerce to connect with
prominent international capital, commercial, industrial and
enterprises resources. Besides, we are also well-connected
with the academic institutions and universities like Xi'an
Jiaotong University and the Northwest University of
Agriculture and Forestry. In early 2019, we were invited to
form a strategic alliance with the Xi'an Jiaotong University
Science Park to work in the areas of technology transfer
and commercialisation, startup funding, and incubation of
startup enterprises. Xi‘an Jiaotong University Science Park
possesses well-established innovative infrastructure and
deep research achievements and resources. Chinlink is the
first financial services partner for the Park.

On the other hand, our investment and merchant banking
arm, the MCM Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries
(collectively “MCM Group”), has been highly successful
in reaching out to arrays of innovative international
enterprises, overseas investors, and capital bases who
are vigorously searching for investment and collaboration
opportunity worldwide. Over the past few years, MCM
Group has assisted a lot of Chinese and overseas private
enterprises in their primary market fundraising through
global private equity, family offices, and venture capital
networks. Synergising on the MCM Group credential and
our established alternative finance products like financial
guarantee, finance lease, and factoring, Chinlink is able to
offer comprehensive, innovative financial solutions to all
our clients in China and overseas, through direct access to
Hong Kong and international capital markets.

This year, we made a strategic investment in an United
States Silicon Valley-based innovative platform company,
the GSVlabs, specialises in incubation and acceleration of
startup technology. Through this strategic partnership with
GSVlabs, we can bring its successful Silicon Valley model
incorporated with this leading international acceleration
programs, venture capitals and growth-oriented
enterprises to China.
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By working closely with the People’s Government of Xi‘an
Municipality and Xi‘an Jiaotong University, Chinlink will
launch the first GSVlabs innovation centre in Xi‘an soon.
The centre will incorporate the Silicon Valley accelerate
program with local contents targeted at Chinese startups
with a global vision. To align with the acceleration goals,
MCM Group will partner with government-initiated
funds and top tier international early-stage venture
capital firms to invest in the high-quality startup teams.
MCM Group will also provide advisory for their ongoing
funding requirements and guidance to eventual initial
public offerings. We have the plan to establish the same
innovation platform ecosystem in other Shaanxi regions
and replicate it across China in the coming two years.

Meantime we are working closely with People’s
Government of Hanzhong City, also in the Shaanxi
Province, on a vertical industry upgrading programme
to build a Chinese herbal medicine industry base. Such
programme is a government-initiated Chinese herbal
medicine industrial park and trading market to be located
inside our ChinlinkeWorldport Integrated Logistics Park
("ChinlinkeWorldport”). Hanzhong has more than a
thousand-year history as a significant plantation base
for traditional Chinese herbal medicine. It is also the
homegrown base for a large variety of herbal species
of highest quality. However, its industrial infrastructure
and supply chain is still in the primary stage, making
it difficult for the city to enjoy the full benefits of this
natural endowment. Chinlink is commissioned to develop
an ecosystem providing innovative solutions to integrate
the city’s Chinese herbal medicine industry. Initially, a
trade and distribution centre will be set up and operated
by Chinlink in the ChinlinkeWorldport to accommodate
the relocation of small wholesale markets scattered in the
city, complements with processing plants, warehouses
and logistics facilities and an online system for trade
and data collection under an aggregated market place.
Through Chinlink’s university partnership program, a
research and development centre and inspection and
certification laboratory will also be set up with the support
by renowned university at later stage. MCM Group will
participate with the the People’s Government of Hanzhong
Municipality to introduce industry vertical venture capital
funds to support the industy’'s continuous development,
whilst Chinlink will assist the government that will provide
a range of policy incentives, to promote international co-
operation and export of Chinese herbal medicine.

Chairman’s Statement /
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" Chairman’s Statement

Later this year, we will move in our self-owned new
headquarter building in Xi'an, the Chinlink International
Centre (the "CIC"). Apart from the building’s convenient
location, advanced and eco-friendly facilities and imposing
outlook, it also stands out as a new outlet of the world-
renowned sharing economy unicorn — WeWork. There
must be good reasons for WeWork to choose our building
as their flagship outpost in Xi'an, but one thing for sure
is that Chinlink’s positioning is well-fitted with WeWork's
as an innovative group to serve the potentially disruptive
businesses and the bright mind entrepreneurs in Xi'an.
CIC is a landmark achievement for the Group, projecting a
sharp image as an innovative solution provider serving the

enterprising community of Xi‘an.

With a global vision and proven ability to integrate
and manage a diversified mix of international strategic
partners, Chinlink is in a highly advantageous position to
enjoy the longterm benefits by applying our government,
academic, industry and innovation resources, together
with our comprehensive financial platform, in the
empowering of industry upgrade and transformation of
the local economy in the developing cities in China.

While we take pride of the transformation of our new
strategic positioning, we have to express our deepest
gratitude to partners and colleagues who have been so
supportive and committed to Chinlink in all these years.
As we are about to celebrate the inauguration of the
landmark China headquarters in Xi‘an, let us take this as a

milestone of future successes in the years to come.

Li Weibin
Chairman
Hong Kong, 4 July 2019
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* Financial Summary

For the year ended 31 March 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
BE=A=1t-RLEE —E-NF ZF-0\% ZE-tF ZERF —T-1%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FEL T TR T
Revenue KA 1,750,286 1,257,726 518,834 201,297 252,393
Gross profit ES 216,229 147,203 93,636 51,331 55,790
Profit (loss) before taxation BREADRR (FE) 71,588 (5,461) 53,303 166,988 (76,158)
Income tax (charge) credit FEH (RX) &% (54,432) (23,665) (28,479) (7,928) (4,031)
Profit (loss) for the year KEEZRH (BR) 17,156 (29,126) 24,824 159,060 (80,189)
Profit (loss) before non-controlling BEERERARR
interests (F8) 17,156 (29,126) 24,824 159,060 (80,189)
Non-controlling interests FERES (1.7131) 48,751 23,487 1,397 -
Profit (loss) attributable to KRREBARELERN
owners of the Company (B8) 18,887 (77,877) 1337 157,663 (80,189)
Dividends paid 2RE - - - - -
(Restated) (Restated)
(ZE3) (E35)
Basic earnings (loss) per share SREFER (F#B) HK1.38 centiBfll  HK(11.44) centi& L HK0.42 cent’ Il HK139.76 centsi Il HK(84.25) centsi& 1l
Diluted earnings (loss) per share SREEEA (FB) HK1.38 centiB{ll  HK(11.44) centi& L HK0.42 cent’ Il HK139.47 centsiE L N/A i
At 31 March 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
RZA=1-H —E-NE —Z-N\F —E-tF TR —T-R%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$"000 HK$"000
TER Ti#En TER Tin Fin
Non-current assets FRBEE 4,295,830 4,080,508 2,875,043 2,751,848 340,028
Current assets hBEE 922,224 1,071,446 704,081 401,366 571,948
Bank balances and cash BAEFERAE 83,138 193,082 95,988 48,975 67,145
Current liabilities hBaE 1,891,028 1,183,206 1,103,149 1,131,653 479,943
Net current (liabilities) assets HE (BB EERE (968,804) (111,760) (399,068) (730,287) 92,005
Non-current liabilities FRBAE 1,241,310 2,117,319 911,028 909,751 203,680
Net assets EEFE 2,085,716 1,851,429 1,564,947 1,111,810 228,353
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Management Discussion and Analysis

T LE i B A

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the Year under review, the Group remained active
in providing financial services that included financial
guarantee, finance lease, factoring, and supply chain
finance to SMEs in China, with special focus on the
Shaanxi Province where the licences are granted. Besides,
the Group has also been expanding into merchant
banking business through MCM Group, which became
our subsidiaries since November 2017, specialising in
helping international clients in asset management, cross-
border investment and fundraising in the primary markets
in China, Hong Kong and overseas. In addition, the Group
also enjoyed substantial growth in international trading,

and steady incomes from its investment property.

As a result, the Group recorded a total revenue of
HK$1,750.3 million for the Year, represented a rise
of 39.2% compared with the year ended 31 March
2018 (the “Previous Year”). The revenue growth was
brought together by the continuous good performance
of international trading and property investment and
the additional contribution from the two new segments,
namely finance lease services and financial advisory
services, both of which began to provide revenues in the
second half of the Previous Year. Whilst there were also
modest growth in the financial guarantee and investment

property segments.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

VL V¥ i

Overall speaking, the Group’s financial services
performance is on a healthy trend during the Year with
satisfactory revenue and gross profit growth. We were
able to capture the favourable market opportunity, riding
on the above average economic growth in the market,
mainly Xi‘an and the nearby regions in Shaanxi Province.
Moreover, our consistent growth was driven by the high
demands for different types of financing products, like
what we are offering, by the large number of SMEs who
are still not getting enough support from traditional
banks. As usual, we are committed to stringent credit
criteria and risk management practices across all financial
services business units. Together with our experienced
management team and our deep knowledge of the local
market, we are proud to report that there were minimum
delinquent cases recorded on the entire financial services
portfolio throughout the Year.

Segmental Performance
International Trading Business

For the Year, the international trading recorded a 39.0%
increase in revenue to HK$1,551.0 million, being the
largest income generator for the Group. Gross profit was
HK$48.8 million, a 38.5% increase from the Previous Year.
The gross profit margin was stable at around 3.1%. Major
trading products during the Year are those highly popular
critical electronic components such as IC and NAND
flash memory chips widely used in smartphones, tablets
and data storage and servers. Despite the worldwide
smartphone market growth began slowing down from
early 2018, affecting the overall consumption of flash
memory, it was largely offset by the increasing demand
from the computer industry as a substitution for the hard
drives because of its increasing storage capacity, compact
size, speed and power efficiency. The Group maintains its
competitive advantage and enjoyed substantial growth
in this trading business because of its deep market and
product knowledge, and a reliable supply and customer
bases.
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Logistics

For the Year, the logistics services segment generated the
revenue of HK$0.3 million. This segment is ancillary to
the Group's international trading and financial services
businesses. Therefore, it only operated in a minimal scale

and does not constitute as a material profit centre.

Financial Guarantee Services Business

The Group generated the revenue of HK$18.9 million
during the Year represented a modest increase of 11.3%
compared with the Previous Year. The gross profit margin
remained high at 97.7% during the Year. The total
outstanding guarantee amount was RMB403.5 million as
of the end of the Year as compared with RMB322.5 million
for the Previous Year. On 17 August 2018, Hanzhong
City Investment Holdings Group Limited* (“Hanzhong
Investment”), the investment vehicle controlled by
People’s Government of Hanzhong Municipality, injected
RMB120.0 million to Shaanxi Chinlink Financial Guarantee
Limited* (the “Financial Guarantee Company”), (an
indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company),
as a result, the Hanzhong Investment holds 35.0% equity
interest in the Financial Guarantee Company. During the
Year, the Financial Guarantee Company still faced difficulty
in further expanding the portfolio as Chinese domestic
banks imposed tighter credit policy to SMEs.

* For identification purpose only

v
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Finance Lease Services Business

Finance lease services business recorded a 268.9%
increase in revenue to HK$32.6 million, and a gross
profit of HK$32.5 million. The significant growth was
due to the revenue of finance lease service business in
the Previous Year only captured 7 months contribution
since the business commenced in September 2017. Total
outstanding lease balance as of 31 March 2019 was
RMB277.4 million, all are sale and lease back transactions
with a diversified industry mix that included natural gas
pipelines, power generating equipment, oil exploration
and drilling machineries, medical equipment and school
facilities, etc., with a tenor of three to five years. Most
of the cases are supported by underlined machinery or
equipment with sufficient cashflow for the lease payment.
Overall portfolio performance is satisfactory with no

delinquent record.

Property Investment Business

The property investment business reported a 12.0%
rise in revenue to HK$104.0 million and was solely
contributed by Daminggong Construction Materials and
Furniture Shopping Centre (Dongsanhuan Branch)* (the
“Commercial Complex”) located in Xi'an. The average
occupancy rate recorded around 97.0% in the Year which
showed a slight increase of approximately 1.0% compared
with the Previous Year. As a matter of fact, the occupancy
throughout the Year has been consistently high due to
its established status and successful promotion and sales
program jointly organised with the tenants on regular
basis.

* For identification purpose only
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Financial Advisory Services Business

This is a new business segment for the Group. For the
Year, MCM Group generated HK$24.5 million revenue
in the form of commission and management fees, which
represented an increase of 329.8% over the Previous Year.
MCM Group’s core businesses include financial advisory
and asset management licensed under types 1, 2, 4 and 9,
and regulated by the Securities and Futures Commission
of Hong Kong (“SFC”). MCM Group experienced a year
of further growth and expansion, establishing its first
corporate presence in China, and applying for a private
equity licence with aim to start operations in 2019. MCM
Group is building a strong brand associated with leading
international financial services and innovation across
China.

MCM Group closed over US$34.5 million in capital raised
for its corporate clients, working with companies across
North American and Asia, and sourcing capital in China,
Hong Kong, Korea, Mexico and Singapore. It advised
corporate clients across various innovative industries,
including artificial intelligence, cybersecurity, fintech
solutions, healthcare and software business solutions.
In addition, it facilitated secondary transactions in many
late stage global technology enterprises, an area that
it's growing into 2019, assisting existing shareholders
find liquidity through its global network of institutional

investors.

B EERSER
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MCMEEBEL B RERBRATERNE £ K
A24,500,000/8 7T ' 8 & F1Z )1329.8% °
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An exciting milestone was crossed as MCM Group
launched its asset management business through its
subsidiary, namely MCM Investment Partners Limited
("MCMIP"”) which in turn raised over US$75.0 million
in investor assets to deploy across a series of private
investments. With this business launched, MCM Group
can now provide our international investors golden
investment opportunities. MCM Group has established key
relationships with distinguished asset management firms
such as CMB International Asset Management Limited,
allowing MCMIP to establish meaningful dialogues with
large pension funds and investors globally that are looking
to deploy capital in Asia. We also managed to participate
in landmark transactions like the pre-IPO placement of
Xiaomi and investments into Da-Jiang Innovations and
Grab.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Profitability Analysis

For the Year, the Group's revenue was HK$1,750.3
million, reflecting a significant increase of 39.2% from
HK$1,257.7 million in the Previous Year. Revenue
contribution by segments comprised of: international
trading of HK$1,551.0 million (2018: HK$1,115.9 million),
property investment of HK$104.0 million (2018: HK$92.8
million), finance lease service of HK$32.6 million (2018:
8.8 million), financial advisory services of HK$24.5 million
(2018: HK$5.7 million), financial guarantee services of
HK$18.9 million (2018: HK$17.0 million), logistics services
of HK$0.3 million (2018: HK$0.9 million) and other
revenue of HK$19.0 million (2018: HK$16.6 million).

BEMCMEERZBEMBRARAMCM
Investment Partners Limited ([MCMIP | ) #E
HTEEBEREL SEEFEMCMERE
MEZMNER - MCMIPREREEEESEST
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MCMIPEEERTE NS KL B E A 2 IR AR
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HEARS WP KNERAAFEERRLE -
& KEBAIFT K Grab% o
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300,000/ 70 (==& — /A% : 900,000/ 7T )
K H b U A 19,000,000/ 7T ( —ZF — )\
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Gross profit for the Year increased significantly to
HK$216.2 million, up 46.9% from HK$147.2 million in the
Previous Year. Also, gross profit margin increased slightly
t0 12.4% from 11.7% in the Previous Year.

The increase in both overall revenue and gross profit was
mainly due to (i) a surge in contribution from international
trading business; (ii) an increase in revenue from finance
lease business and financial advisory business which
commenced contribution to the Group since the second
half of last financial year; and (iii) an increase in revenue
generated from property investment business as there
was a noticeable increment in per-unit rental and building
management fee recorded by the Commercial Complex
during the Year.

Other income, gains and losses recorded a gain of HK$7.5
million (2018: HK$70.4 million) for the Year, mainly
attributable to interest income from bank deposit and
amounts due from former subsidiaries and also write back
of payables, which partially offset by the exchange loss
arising from depreciation of Renminbi ("RMB”) against
Hong Kong dollars during the Year.

Gain on fair value change of investment properties
amounted to HK$224.5 million (2018: HK$161.0 million)
for the Year. It was mainly attributable to a fair value
change of the Commercial Complex, the CIC and the
ChinlinkeWorldport.

Impairment losses on financial assets in the Year mainly
represented provision made for the amounts due from
former subsidiaries.

B B Wl B o A
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Administrative expenses amounted to HK$132.8 million
for the Year, representing an increase of HK$29.4 million
as compared with HK$103.4 million of the Previous Year.
The increase was mainly due to business expansion of the
Group, for instance, through acquisition of MCM Group in
the second half of the Previous Year.

Finance costs amounted to HK$199.5 million for the Year,
representing a significant increase of HK$31.9 million
as compared with HK$167.6 million in the Previous
Year. The increase was mainly due to (i) the non-cash
imputed interest expenses of HK$42.4 million (Previous
Year: HK$23.0 million) in total arising from the non-
interest bearing loan from related companies and an
obligation under a put option granted to a non-controlling
shareholder of a non-wholly-owned subsidiary for the
Year; (ii) interest in relation to 12.0% coupon bonds
which were issued in December 2017; and 9.0% coupon
bonds (“9.0% Coupon Bonds”) with principal amounts
of HK$200.0 million and HK$150.0 million, which were
issued in July 2017 and August 2017 respectively; (iii)
interest related to a long-term loan of US$41.0 million
drawn down in April 2018; (iv) increase in trade finance
costs owing to the expansion of international trading
business; and (v) interest related to the fixed return on
capital injection by Hanzhong Investment.

In respect of goodwill arising from the acquisition of MCM
Group, after taking into accounts of the uncertainty of
the capital market impacted by China-US trade war which
emerged in May 2018, an impairment of HK$10.2 million

was made for the Year after thorough consideration.

RAFE - (TR ¥ 4132,800,0005 7T © 88
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Despite the increase in finance costs and administrative BENEBERBIZPIHBRARITHRAZ
expenses during the course of business expansion and the EMAREERE AEERAFE DR
impairment of goodwill, the Group managed to make a B 717,200,000 70 T 2HNIKARE
profit for the Year of HK$17.2 million, primarily owing to MR EHETS (CHEPERAS
the increase in revenue and gross profit, and a significant ALEMEERMBEERETIREMER
gain on fair value change of investment properties due TFEEZFHNEA WD - REF AKEEEE
to the steady growth of real estate market, especially in $629,100,0008 0 T ZAMERWERE
Xi‘an City and Hanzhong City of Shaanxi Province, the LTEFSEBEROHMB AT RAEBEREE
PRC. For the Previous Year, the Group recorded a loss of FEREBMEITHN3.0% A HERES (FER
HK$29.1 million mainly due to a one-off non-cash loss T MEEEEN —REIER S FIETE-

arising from the valuation of 3.0% Convertible Bonds
(as defined below) issued as consideration for acquisition
of subsidiaries which hold the CIC and the associated
shareholder’s loan.

Liquidity and Financial Resources MEEZ RYBEER

As at 31 March 2019, the bank balances and cash, ﬁ“‘ﬁ—ﬂiiﬂ:+—ﬂ RITHEGT MR
pledged bank deposits and restricted deposits amounted CEEBRTHEREIRETRERAE
to HK$553.7 million in total, representing a decrease of 553,700,000;%75'Fi£¢2703,600,0007%§
HK$149.9 million from HK$703.6 million in the Previous JUR42149,900,000/8 7T © %R 2 Jh £ 2 B
Year. The decrease was mainly due to repayment of term REEEETHERAE -

loans during the Year.

As at 31 March 2019, the bank and other borrowings RZE-—NF=A=+—H KAEEXZEN
of the Group which were mainly denominated in United EZn([Ex]) BIRAREFEZERITR
States dollars (“US$"), HK$ and RMB amounted to Hih B A1,460,100,000/8 0 (—ZZE— )\F

HK$1,460.1 million (31 March 2018: HK$1,095.7 million),
representing an increase of HK$364.5 million from that —N\F =8 =+—H1#N364,500,000/&
of 31 March 2018, of which HK$1,010.6 million and » # #11,010,600,000/% JT 5&2449,500,000
HK$449.5 million were repayable within one year and two BRI ER—FAR_ERAFRNEER-

to five years respectively.

A=+—H:1,095,700,000/& 1) » & —

Pll M II\
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The increase was mainly due to (i) a secured 2-year
loan facility of US$41.0 million with interest rate 10%
per annum being drawn down for refinancing certain
loan granted by a related company, for the purpose
of acquisition of non-controlling interest in certain
subsidiaries which hold the Commercial Complex; and
(i) loan of RMB120.0 million from Hanzhong Investment
but in the form of capital injection in Financial Guarantee

Company. Details of which are set out below:

On 1 March 2017 and 26 April 2017, Chinlink Alpha
Limited (“Chinlink Alpha”) (a non-wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company) and Hanzhong City Hantai
District Hanjiang Industrial Park Construction Investment
Development Company Limited* (“Hanjiang”) (being an
investing vehicle of Hantai District government) entered
into a non-legally binding letter of intent and a co-
operation agreement (“Co-operation Agreement”),
respectively, in relation to the possible capital injection of
RMB100.0 million (equivalent to approximately HK$125.0
million) into the Financial Guarantee Company. As a result,
the Financial Guarantee Company will be held directly as
to approximately 67.0% by Chinlink Alpha (approximately
34.2% held indirectly by the Company) and approximately
33.0% by Hanjiang.

* For identification purpose only
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M H B 3 e E41,000,0005 L E T it
B - DA URES 3 T 0B A R M R AR ez R
BE—MBEERRABELNETER  MzSHE
NAFERMERE RGNVERRELNTER
NABMEERATNERARE 120,000,000
T BRAFBHIMT

RZE—ttF=ZA—BkR=-ZZFT—tFHNA
ZtRBE-EREEAERAR([EHEE])
(KRB ZEZERBRAR)HERMES
REIEXREREERAZERAR (&
Tl RZEEBBRF2EERR)DRIET L
BERORNERNEREIEHZ ([
B NAEHTRERNBREERABNEEA
ER #100,000,0007T (48 & 7 #9125,000,000
BIL) ot MEERAFAKHEERTIE
BEERFBN67T.0%EE (AARIBMERELN
342% M%) BT FEEHI33.0% 5 °

CHINLINK INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 3%k H 4 [ B £ )1t 7 it 4 7] | Annual Report 2019 3§



Management Discussion and Analysis

Subsequently, Hanzhong City government decided to
carry out the capital injection into the Financial Guarantee
Company through Hanzhong Investment and therefore the
Co-operation Agreement was terminated on 17 May 2018.
On the same date, Chinlink Alpha, Hanzhong Investment
and the Financial Guarantee Company entered into a new
financial guarantee co-operation agreement (the “New
Co-operation Agreement”) in relation to the capital
injection of RMB120.0 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$150.0 million) into the Financial Guarantee Company.
In August 2018, Hanzhong Investment has fully injected
capital of RMB120.0 million to the Financial Guarantee
Company and the shareholding structure of the Financial
Guarantee Company is held directly as to approximately
65.0% by Chinlink Alpha (approximately 33.2% held
indirectly by the Company) and approximately 35.0%
by Hanzhong Investment. Considering Hanzhong
Investment is entitled to a fixed-5.0% annual return on
its capital injection amount, the capital injection has the
characteristic of loan. As confirmed with the auditor of the
Company, it was classified as loan of the Group and the
Financial Guarantee Company remains to be accounted for
as a subsidiary of the Company and its financial results will
continue to be consolidated into the financial statements
of the Group.

Details of the above transaction were set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 1 March 2017, 26
April 2017 and 17 May 2018 respectively.

B B Wl B o A
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3.0% convertible bonds (“3.0%

Convertible Bonds”) with principal amount of

During the Year,

HK$362.25 million were fully converted to the shares
of the Company. The carrying amount of such 3.0%
Convertible Bonds as at the conversion date amounted to
HK$287.8 million, together with the relevant convertible
bonds equity reserve of HK$317.4 million and deferred
tax liabilities of HK$12.7 million were transferred to share
capital or share premium of the Company.

As at 31 March 2019, the Group recorded net current
liabilities of HK$968.8 million (31 March 2018: HK$111.8
million) and the current ratio of the Group calculated
as the Group’s current assets over its current liabilities
was 0.49 (31 March 2018: 0.91). The setback in the
current ratio of the Group was mainly attributable to (i)
the significant increase in current liabilities as a result
of reclassification of certain liabilities which were non-
current liabilities as at 31 March 2018 as current as they
will be due within twelve months after 31 March 2019.
Such liabilities were 9.0% Coupon Bonds and loan from
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited
amounted to HK$277.5 million as at 31 March 2018; and
(ii) loan of RMB120.0 million from Hanzhong Investment
but in form of capital injection in Financial Guarantee

Company.

Share Capital

As at 31 March 2019, the authorised share capital of
the Company was HK$625.0 million (31 March 2018:
HK$625.0 million). There was no change in the authorised

share capital of the Company during the Year.
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As at 31 March 2019, the number of issued shares of RZE—NF=ZA=+—H KRAIB%ET
the Company was 1,461,609,692 (31 March 2018: DB A1,461,609,69020% (ZE—N\F=
683,719,250). A=+—H :683,719,2508%) -

On 18 April 2018, an aggregate principal amount of RZE-NFOAT+NA XeHBER
HK$362.25 million of 3.0% Convertible Bonds were fully 362,250,000 7L 23.0% A MR EH B &
converted into 641,150,442 shares at the conversion price EHESREBRRH0565E TEHE R A
of HK$0.565 per conversion share. The carrying amount 641,150,442 AX 15 - REBHR B B - 5%2553.0%
of such 3.0% Convertible Bonds as at the conversion AR E S 2 BRE 18 /287,800,000 7T « 3&
date amounting to HK$287.80 million, together with the [ AARE PT R AR (B 5 e 2 #5317,400,00078 7T
relevant convertible bonds equity reserve of HK$317.4 N FEFR T8 B (512,700,0008 70 D EEE
million and deferred tax liabilities of HK$12.7 million, RARIBRASIBRODEE - R_T—/\FNHA
were transferred to share capital or share premium of ZHEA RERZZE-N\FAATZHITY
the Company. On 27 September 2018, an aggregate of 73 5] M BB W s eV 15K - & ££136,740,000
136,740,000 placing shares were allotted and issued & Bl & R fh B 1R B S B 5 RELE R1H0.80/8
under general mandate to not less than six placees who TRE —MEBEERET T ALORAEE
are independent from the Company at the placing price of YR RBIRERA -BEESHIBEFEL
HK$0.80 per placing share in accordance with the terms £#9106,000,0008 T L BEHAREELRE
of the placing agreement entered into by the parties on &5 o

12 September 2018. The net proceeds from the placing
amounted to approximately HK$106.0 million and was
fully utilised for repayment of debts of the Group.

Except for the above mentioned, there was no other br Bt EIN ARF 2B BITRHEERA
change in the number of issued shares of the Company FEWMmEAMEE -

during the Year.
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Gearing Ratio

The Group's gearing ratio as at 31 March 2019 was 0.60
(31 March 2018: 0.64) which was calculated based on the
Group's total liabilities of HK$3,132.3 million (31 March
2018: HK$3,300.5 million) and the Group's total assets of
HK$5,218.1 million (31 March 2018: HK$5,152.0 million).
The slight improvement in the gearing ratio was mainly
due to gain on fair value change of investment properties
during the Year.

Foreign Currency Exposure

The Group's revenue and expenses were mainly
denominated in HK$, RMB and US$. The pledged bank
deposits were denominated in US$, RMB and HK$. Other
bank deposits were dominated in HK$, RMB, Macau
Pataca ("MOP") or US$. Other monetary assets and
liabilities were mainly denominated in HK$, RMB and
US$. During the Year, the exchange rate of RMB to HK$
depreciated slightly and MOP to HK$ was stable. As HK$ is
pegged to US$, the Directors considered that the foreign
currency risk of the Group was relatively low.

Contingent Liabilities and Charge on Assets

Save as disclosed in note 46 on page 306 of this annual
report, the Group did not have any significant contingent

liabilities.

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had pledged (i) bank
deposits of HK$470.5 million to certain banks as securities
in return for the banks’ provision of loans to the Group's
financial guarantee services customers and to support
the Group's international trading business; (ii) assets with
carrying value of HK$3,177.6 million to secure obligations
under finance leases and banking facilities; and (iii) equity
interest of certain Group's wholly-owned subsidiaries to
secure obligation under other borrowings amounted to
HK$329.6 million.
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Capital Commitments

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had capital commitments
contracted but not provided for amounting to HK$127.4
million in respect of the development of ChinlinkeWorldport
and the CIC. Details of the commitments are set out in
note 49 on page 309 of this annual report. The Group will
fund the capital commitments through cash generated from
operations, bank and other borrowings and borrowings
from the controlling shareholder of the Company.

Events after the reporting period

The Group has no significant events after the reporting
period.

Final Dividend

The Directors do not recommend the payment of final
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2019 (2018: Nil).

Major Risks

The major risks that may affect the Group’s business are

outlined below:

Economic Risk

The Group's core businesses and properties are located
in Hong Kong and China. As such, the general policies
and politics, and fiscal and monetary policies of the
governments of Hong Kong and China may have a direct
or indirect economic impact on the Group. The Group
closely monitors the economic environment, evaluates the
situation and adjusts its strategy as needed to mitigate
these risks.
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Credit Risk

The Group's exposure to credit risk results from trade
debtors and loan receivables arising from the sale of
goods, rendering of services to customers and providing
loans to customers, and the provision of guarantees to
lending banks in favour of customers obtaining loans
provided by the lending banks. The Group has a credit
policy in place and credit risk is monitored on an on-going
basis. Individual credit assessments are carried out to
determine the credit limits and terms which are reviewed

on a regular basis.

Liquidity Risk

The Group manages its liquidity risk by closely monitoring
its current and expected liquidity requirements, ensuring
that there is sufficient liquid cash, committed bank
facilities and/or loans from its controlling shareholders
to meet its funding needs. In addition, the Group

continuously monitors its compliance with loan covenants.

Compliance Risk

The Group recognises the risks of non-compliance with
regulatory requirements. The Group conducts on-going
reviews of laws and regulations affecting its operations

and provides relevant training and guidance to staff.
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Relationship with Employees, Customers and Suppliers

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had 48 employees in
Hong Kong, 235 employees in China and 5 employees in
the United Kingdom (31 March 2018: 50 employees in
Hong Kong and 261 employees in China). Employees are
remunerated based on their performance and relevant
working experiences, taking into account the prevailing
market conditions. Discretionary performance bonus may
be awarded to employees with reference to the financial
performance of the Group. Other employee benefits
include contributions to mandatory provident funds,
medical insurance and professional development and

training.

The Group is dedicated to fostering close working
relationships with customers and suppliers. The
maintenance of good relationship with customers and
suppliers is fundamental to the Group’s operational

performance and ongoing financial success.
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Prospects

In the early part of 2018, the Chinese central government
maintained its tight liquidity policy, applied stringent
control on capital outflow and overseas investment aiming
to rectify the massive drain on foreign exchange as a
result of indiscriminate acquisitions of overseas assets in
the previous years. However, from the second quarter of
2018, there was notable changes in the government'’s
monetary policy as witnessed by the cut in the banks’
reserve requirement ratio and lower benchmark interest
rate to aim to release additional liquidity to China’s
banking system. Moreover, People’s Bank of China also
required the financial institutions to use the extra funding
to provide loans to the SMEs. These measures are meant to
retain the growth momentum of the economy, in response
to the threats the Chinese economy is facing — investment
slowdown, shrinking exports and declining GDP growth
at home and the rising tension between China and the
United States over trade and technology issues abroad.
Besides, China also introduced fiscal stimulus program
like tax cuts to encourage consumer spending and
corporate investments. All in all, China is implementing
more relaxing financial policies to counter the challenging
external environment and declining growth in the local
economy. Despite that, China is still cautious about the
management of financial risk associated with the high
leverage, asset inflation and speculative investment

activities like real estates.
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On the economic structure, China is undergoing a supply
side structure reform with focus on elimination of excess
capacity and seeking new imputes for the future economic
and social development. Throughout the past 40 years of
reform and modernisation, China has enjoyed a year-on-
year high GDP growth rate of double digits, which was
heavily depended on mass production and exports of low
costs, labor intensive, high energy wastes, environment
hazard, low value-added manufactured goods. China
has come to accept a new normal of a medium growth
based on new technology, new industry and new business
model, employing green, renewable and recycled energies
and resources, and manufacturing activities driven by
automation, artificial intelligence and internet-of-things.
To achieve such transformation of growth model, China
has to strengthen its technological capabilities and places
great emphasis on research and development, innovation,
talents and entrepreneurship.
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In response to the above challenges, risk and opportunity,
the Group is adopting new strategies to modify its
business positioning for the long-term substantiable
growth. Chinlink is to become an integrated financial
services and innovative solutions group, serving both
the fast growing companies, like the SMEs, and the
technology startups. Chinlink is devoted to building
an ecosystem to foster the development of innovative
business environment and entrepreneurship, and to
help upgrade and transformation of the traditional local
economies and industries. This is to be accomplished
by offering a portfolio of financial services, including
alternative finance, investment banking, financial advisory
and asset management, and strategic partnerships with
the provincial and municipal governments across China,
the research and academic resources in China and
overseas, and to bring in the Silicon Valley experiences
to China through partnering with GSVlabs. GSVlabs is a
Silicon Valley-based company in the United States with
diversified interests in direct investment, private equity
and startup incubation and acceleration. In March 2019,
the Group became a strategic investor of GSVlabs,
an incubator and accelerator that houses startups,
provides acceleration programs and connections with big

corporations, universities and investors.
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For the financial services in China, Chinlink will focus
more on taking advantage of a financial solution platform
that is comprised of financial guarantee, finance lease,
factoring and supply chain finance. It enables the Group
to offer innovative and customised financial products and
services to the SMEs in China. This is a key differentiation
factor in front of strong competition and changing
market condition. Although it is divided into business
units according to different types of licences, they share
the common credit control and risk management under
the same customer management system. Only the
business development units are separated by product
lines but still under the same senior management team
overseeing the entire financial group who has the overall
portfolio management and bottom-line responsibility. This
organisation structure facilitates the flow of information
and sharing of business resources. Moreover, it encourages
cross-selling financial products customised to clients’
needs to achieve business synergy amongst the units. In
the development of new business, the Group will be more
focusing on companies and industries that are relevant
to China’s development strategy, including infrastructure,
public utilities, advanced manufacturing, healthcare,
hospital and medical and consumer products, etc. We have
strong confidence on the continuing expansion of the
Group's financial service businesses because of its unique
positioning in providing comprehensive and innovative
solutions to SMEs’ needs, and China’s emphasis on the
importance of SME's contribution to the new development

model of Chinese economy.
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On the merchant banking area, MCM Group has
diversified its business to lessen any dependency on
Chinese capital outflows, responding to the strict capital
controls in the country, but also looking to leverage
increased global interest into China from other regions,
as capital seeks to participate in the country’s growth.
We are re-directing some of our international investments
back into China, reflecting this new reality. With greater
political and economic uncertainty in the United Kingdom
and United States, we expect to refocus our time and
effort towards building our presence in China. With our
application in process for a local private equity licence in
China, which would be granted and regulated by the Asset
Management Association of China, we will soon have the
opportunity to extend our asset raising and management
capabilities into RMB, focusing on supporting innovative
enterprises across China. Finally, our recently signed
partnership with GSVlabs will set the base for our focus
on building and supporting the growing ecosystem of
innovative startups in China, bringing best practices
from Silicon Valley along with capital. We are greatly
encouraged by the opportunities that lie by partnering
with enterprises, municipal and provincial governments
and investors to build platforms that support the
innovation ecosystem in China.
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Property Investment

Chinlink will continue to enjoy reliable income streams
from its investment property portfolio. The Commercial
Complex will continue to provide the Group with stable
incomes in the years ahead because of established
market position and successful operation. We can expect
a reasonable year-on-year increase in total income and
gross profit in line with the market trend but it would
not be very significant. The Group has not decided on
the development of the second phrase. One more piece
of investment property will commence business and
contribution to the Group by the fourth quarter of 2019.
It is an office and commercial complex named as CIC.
Situated at the heart of Xi'an Economic and Technological
Development Zone (“XET Development Zone"), an
important central business district of Xi‘an other than
Xi'an Hi-Tech Industries Development Zone, there are
more and more financial companies as well as large
foreign enterprises setting up offices in XET Development
Zone. CIC enjoys unique location advantage. It is highly
accessible to the adjacent People’s Government of
Xi'an Municipality, XET Development Zone Management
Committee, Xi‘an North Railway Station (one of the largest
railway stations in China), domestic and international
airport and China (Shaanxi) Pilot Free Trade Zone. CIC
has a total gross floor area ("GFA") of approximately
55,000 square metres that comprises of 25-storey high
quality office tower with 34,000 square metres, 4-storey
commercial complex with 8,000 square metres and
car park space of 13,000 square metres. CIC will be
available for occupation by the fourth quarter of 2019.
Four office floors will be occupied by the Group’s China
regional headquarters and its finance services companies
including the new private equity company setting up
by MCM Group. Rest of the area are opened for lease.
In May 2019, WeWork, the world’s leading community,
space and service provider, had signed a 10-year lease
with CIC to take up GFA of approximately 6,648 square
metres. This is the largest and second WeWork location
in Xi'an so far aimed to provide Xi'an startups, SMEs
and large corporations with collaborative workspace to
its international standard. WeWork claims that CIC's
international image, its design uniqueness, high-quality
construction and the environmentally friendly and modern
facilities all match perfectly with WeWork’s positioning
and image. This is a very strong validation of CIC as a
quality property of the Group, projecting the Group's
commitment to Xi‘an and substantially enhanced the
Group's image.
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Since the soft opening of the Daminggong (Hanzhong)
Building and Construction Materials Wholesale Centre in
the ChinlinkeWorldport in Hanzhong in March 2019, the
Group is still recruiting new tenants with attractive offers
aiming to boost up occupancy in short period of time.
On the other hand, the Hanzhong Municipal government
has designated ChinlinkeWorldport as the location for
the city’s Chinese herbal and agriculture exchange (the
“Exchange”). Chinlink will provide the land and be
responsible for the operation and management of the
Exchange while the municipal government will provide
with the capital investment. Details of the co-operation
terms and business operation model will be finalised by
the end of 2019.

International Trading

The Group's international trading business has been very
successful in the past years, especially in the trading of
key electronic components. It is the key growth driver
of the Group. Nevertheless, the mounting trade and
technology disputes between China and the United States
are disrupting the global supply chain, casting uncertainty
over major international component manufacturers and
their buyers in China. The Group has reservation on the
prospect of this trading business and the possible risk
involved. We will adopt a cautious approach to this line of
business.

Also, this type of trading business is very much relying
on the availability of sufficient banking facility. Should
the economic situation continue to deteriorate as a result
of external factors as mentioned, banks may become
conservative in their credit policy which may eventually

affect our ability to maintain the trading level as previous.
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Innovative Solution Ecosystem BIFTRE R TT 5 A RE

In December 2018, Chinlink was appointed by Shaanxi RZE-—NF+ZR LTEASERELEH
Provincial Department of Commerce to be the Commerce BREZIREETEABRRE - LEDHAR
Representative Office in Hong Kong. This is a recognition SEBRATESRNMESRAEEEAMH
of the Group's past efforts in promoting the business FMEREHEEN -—KREE - AKEE_Z
and financial connections between the Shaanxi Province —tFR EEMNTRN T WEBRAEE S
and Hong Kong. For two consecutive years since 2017, EXrpnRESREEIRNE BFIRE
the Group initiated two Shaanxi-Hong Kong financial EAENEBReREEE LUAKRART RS
co-operation forums hosted by the Shaanxi Provincial BMEBERCERG SFHRAUNZIRE R
Department of Commerce, and attended by many Hong RIVAERLT  RREABIFTER - 18I
Kong and international financial heavyweights and BleRERIEEREE EEBHDBEMRER
personalities as well as Shaanxi banking and financial RISEE Y EERE - MCMEE K GSViabs
institutions and corporations. This year, similar type of H A 3

forum will be held in coming September, but this time
it will focus on innovation and technology, startup
incubation and venture capital, still to be held by the
Shaanxi Provincial Department of Commerce and Chinlink

being the co-organiser, together with MCM Group and

GSVlabs.

Xi‘an, the capital of the Shaanxi Province, is regarded HELERAEEe BREEFS R XLEE
as a special place for its history and culture legacy, its e —m ERUEZESHEG A
location as the spearhead of the Belt and Road Initiative, — R EEMRBEE - AR BIR R A R E
and its future as a model city in China — a vibrant city MeALFTMENOEREEWIETAED
designated as an experimental national reform driven by BRI A BBl R AR E S B o U EE R 7
an innovation-oriented economy. This western Chinese city HomLE@R LEERASERT SERE
has traditionally lagged its coastal peers, but it is catching MR BRERMRY EAFRFEFE
up on the back of its strategic position on the Silk Road NER UEEREANABERNES FHIE
and its strengths in innovation, research and development, MR b o

and vast intellectual capital.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Xi'an is a home to over 60 universities and higher
education institutions, many of them enjoyed high global
and national ranking. In January 2019, Chinlink entered
into a strategic co-operation agreement with the Science
Park of the Xi'an Jiaotong University, a top university in
Xi‘an, to work together in the areas of incubation and
acceleration, technology transfer and startup funding.

China is now entering the next stage of economic
development building on intellectual capital and
innovation, technology readiness, entrepreneurial and
startup environment, and international linkage. Integrating
a network of international innovation partners, Chinlink is
set to build a bottom-up ecosystem to provide innovative
solutions for early stage fast growing companies and
established businesses in Xi‘an and across China by stages.
Working closely with municipal governments, Chinlink
is ready to help foster the development of innovative
business environment and entrepreneurship, and upgrade

traditional local economies and industries.

With the support of the Shaanxi Provincial and Xi'an
Municipal authorities, and the academic and research
resources of Xi‘an Jiaotong University Science Park,
Chinlink will partner with GSVlabs to set up the first
GSVlabs innovation centre in Xi‘an to introduce the
Silicon Valley acceleration model. This is part of GSVlabs
global expansion plan, the Group’s strategic investment in
GSVlabs entitled the Group to participate in all GSVlabs’
future China project. MCM Group on the other hand
will offer fundraising, venture capital, private equity and
corporate finance services to the ecosystem. This will
become a strategic business positioning for Chinlink, we
envisage to set up other innovative centres across China in
the years ahead.
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Directors and Senior Management /,

EHRLEHRBHANE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. LI Weibin (“Mr. Li”), aged 49, joined the Group as
an executive Director since 27 January 2012 and was re-
designated as Chairman and Managing Director of the
Company on 18 February 2012. Mr. Li holds a Bachelor’s
degree in Applied Electronics from Xi‘an Technological
University and an Executive Master in Business
Administration from Xi'an Jiaotong University. Since early
2000, Mr. Li has been engaged in research, production and
sales of electronic components and materials, computer
software and hardware as well as research and sales of
computer related equipment. He has also been engaged in
property development, planning and sales, management,
and other property related investments, cultural and
entertainment businesses. His businesses are present in

Beijing, Xi‘an and Hong Kong.

Mr. SIU Wai Yip (“Mr. Siu”), aged 63, joined the Group
as an executive Director since 27 January 2012. Mr. Siu
holds a Bachelor of Arts degree from The University
of Hong Kong. He has over 10 years’ of experience in
banking and financing and previously held executive
positions at various major international banks, with
specialization in trade financing and corporate banking.
Prior to joining the Group, he was appointed as an
executive director of Matsunichi Communication Holdings
Limited (now known as Goldin Properties Holdings Limited,
stock code: 283) from January 2005 to February 2006. He
was an executive director of Vincent Intertrans (Holdings)
Limited (now known as Shanghai Industrial Urban
Development Group Limited, stock code: 563) from July
1998 to May 1999. The shares of these two companies are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
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Directors and Senior Management

EHRAMABHEANE

Mr. LAU Chi Kit (“Mr. Lau”), aged 74, joined the Group
as an independent non-executive Director since 18
February 2012, and he was re-designated as an executive
Director on 18 September 2013. Mr. Lau retired from The
Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
("HSBC") in late December 2000 after more than 35
years’ of service. Amongst the major positions at HSBC,
he served as Assistant General Manager and Head of
Personal Banking Hong Kong and Assistant General
Manager and Head of Strategic Implementation, Asia-
Pacific Region. Mr. Lau is a Fellow of the Hong Kong
Institute of Bankers (the “Institute”). He served as the
Chairman of the Institute's Executive Committee (from
January 1999 to December 2000) and is currently the
Honorary Advisor of the Institute’s Executive Committee.
He has served as a Member on a number of committees
appointed by the Government of Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region, including the Advisory Council
on the Environment (from October 1998 to December
2001), the Advisory Committee on Human Resources
Development in the Financial Services Sector (from June
2000 to May 2001), the Corruption Prevention Advisory
Committee of the Independent Commission Against
Corruption (from January 2000 to December 2003),
the Environment and Conservation Fund Committee
(from August 2000 to October 2006), the Innovation
and Technology Fund (Environment) Projects Vetting
Committee (from January 2000 to December 2004) and
the Law Reform Commission’s Privacy Sub-committee
(from February 1990 to March 2006). Mr. Lau also served
as a Chairman of Business Environment Council Limited
(from September 1998 to December 2001). Currently, he
is also an independent non-executive director of Century
Sunshine Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 509), Royale
Furniture Holdings Limited (stock code: 1198), Leoch
International Technology Limited (stock code: 842), Hin
Sang Group (International) Holding Co. Ltd. (stock code:
6893) and Janco Holdings Limited (Stock code: 8035),
and was an independent non-executive director of Hang
Pin Living Technology Company Limited (previously known
as Hua Long Jin Kong Company Limited and Highlight
China 1oT International Limited and Ford Glory Group
Holding Limited, stock code: 1682) from September 2010
to September 2017. Except for Janco Holdings Limited
with its shares listed on the Growth Enterprise Market
of the Stock Exchange, all the shares of the companies
mentioned above are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange.
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Directors and Senior Management

EHRLEHRBHANE

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Ms. FUNG Sau Mui (“Ms. Fung”), aged 63, joined the
Group in 1976. Ms. Fung was an executive Director,
director of Finance and Administration as well as Chief
Financial Officer of the Group and resigned from her
positions and was re-designated as a non-executive
Director with effect from 18 February 2012. Ms. Fung has
over 30 years’ of experience in financial management,
accounting, costing, material sourcing and purchasing, and
personnel management.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Dr. HO Chung Tai, Raymond (“Dr. Ho"), aged 80,
joined the Group as an independent non-executive
Director since 17 December 2013. Dr. Ho is a former
member of the Legislative Council (1996-2012), a
former Hong Kong Deputy to the 10th & 11th National
People’s Congress and the past President of the Hong
Kong Institution of Engineers (1987-1988). He holds a
Doctorate in Civil Engineering from City University of
London, United Kingdom; an Honorary Doctorate of Laws
from The University of Manchester, United Kingdom; an
Honorary Doctorate of Business Administration from City
University of Hong Kong; a Bachelor of Science degree
in Engineering from The University of Hong Kong; and a
Postgraduate Diploma in Geotechnical Engineering from
The University of Manchester, United Kingdom. Currently,
Dr. Ho is the Chairman of the Advisory Committee for the
Guangdong Daya Bay Nuclear Plant and LingAo Nuclear
Plant Safety Consultative Committee (2005-present) and
Professional Advisor to The Ombudsman of Hong Kong
(Engineering and Surveying) (1995-2013, 2015-present).
He has served as a Board Member of the Airport Authority
Hong Kong (2008-2014), the former Chairman of the
Hong Kong Trade Development Council Infrastructure
Development Advisory Committee (2009-2013) and the
Founding Council Chairman of City University of Hong
Kong (1992-1994). He is also an independent non-
executive director of GCL-Poly Energy Holdings Limited
(stock code: 3800), Deson Development International
Holdings Limited (stock code: 262) and AP Rentals
Holdings Limited (stock code: 1496); and the chairman
and non-executive director of SCUD Group Limited (stock
code: 1399). He was an independent non-executive
director of China State Construction International Holdings
Limited (stock code: 3311) from June 2005 to June 2019.
The shares of these five companies mentioned above are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
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Directors and Senior Management

EHRAMABHEANE

Ms. LAl Ka Fung, May (“Ms. Lai"), aged 53, joined the
Group as an independent non-executive Director since
18 February 2012. Ms. Lai obtained a Master of Arts in
International Accounting from City University of Hong
Kong in 2001. She has been a Member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants since 1999
and is a Fellow of The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants since 2003. She is the sole proprietor of May
K. F. Lai & Co., Certified Public Accountant and has been
engaged in the audit field for more than 20 years. She is
also an independent non-executive director of Emperor
Entertainment Hotel Limited (stock code: 296) and was
an independent non-executive director of Emperor Watch
& Jewellery Limited (stock code: 887) from June 2008 to
May 2017. The shares of these two companies mentioned

above are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Ms. CHAN Sim Ling, Irene (“Ms. Chan”), aged 56,
joined the Group as an independent non-executive
Director since 18 February 2012. She graduated with a
Bachelor of Laws degree from The University of Hong
Kong in 1985. Ms. Chan is a retired solicitor with over
20 years’ of experience serving as an independent
non-executive director of listed companies. She is an
independent non-executive director of Emperor Culture
Group Limited (previously known as See Corporation
Limited, stock code: 491) and Emperor Watch & Jewellery
Limited (stock code: 887). She was also an independent
non-executive director of Emperor Entertainment Hotel
Limited (stock code: 296) and New Media Group Holdings
Limited (now known as Evergrande Health Industry Group
Limited, stock code: 708), and retired in August 2013
and March 2015 respectively. The shares of these four
companies mentioned above are listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange.
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Directors and Senior Management /,

EHRLEHRBHANE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. LAM Suk Ling, Shirley (“Ms. Lam”), aged 52,
joined the Group since 27 January 2012 and is currently
in the role of Chief Financial Officer of the Group. She
was an executive Director and Company Secretary of the
Group from 18 February 2012 to 4 April 2019 and from
27 January 2012 to 4 April 2019 respectively. She holds a
Master in Business Administration from The University of
Adelaide, Australia and a Bachelor of Science degree from
Murdoch University, Western Australia. She is qualified
as a Certified Public Accountant of Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and a Certified Practising
Accountant of CPA Australia. Ms. Lam has over 20 years’
of experience in auditing, accounting and financial
management, and also worked for various international
audit firms and listed companies. Prior to joining the
Group, Ms. Lam was an executive director of Jackin
International Holdings Limited (now known as AMCO
United Holding Limited, stock code: 630), a company
whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock

Exchange, from February 2010 to December 2011.

Ms. Lau Wai Har (“Ms. Lau”), aged 50, has been the
legal counsel of the Group since 1 February 2018 and was
appointed as the Company Secretary of the Company on
4 April 2019. She holds a Bachelor of Laws degree and
Postgraduate Certificate in Laws from The University of
Hong Kong and is a practising solicitor currently serving
as a consultant practicing commercial laws at a well-
known law firm in Hong Kong. Ms. Lau has over 25 years’
of experience in the legal industry and previously held
senior legal positions at major international and local
conglomerates, specializing in telecommunications, media
and technology. Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Lau was
the in-house lawyer for CSL (a subsidiary of the Australian
Telstra Corporation), FOX (a subsidiary of US News
Corporation), Hong Kong Productivity Council and Kader
Holdings Company Limited (Stock Code: 180), a company
whose shares have been listed on the Main Board of the

Stock Exchange ever since 1985.
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. Directors and Senior Management

EHRAMABHEANE

Ms. LEE Wing Yan, Joanne (“Ms. Lee"”), aged 43, joined
the Group on 17 October 2011. She is currently the
Corporate Development and Communications Director and
is responsible for the Group’s strategic planning, corporate
communications and investor relations. Ms. Lee holds
a Master in Business Administration from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong. She also obtained a Bachelor’s
degree in Business Studies from City University of Hong
Kong and graduated with first class honors. Ms. Lee has
over 10 years’ of marketing and business development
experience in consumer electronics and IT industries. Prior
to joining the Group, Ms. Lee served as a Visiting Fellow
at City University of Hong Kong, Department of Marketing
from July 2008 to October 2011. Her teaching areas
included Strategic Marketing, Relationship Marketing and

Services Marketing.

Mr. MAG Chiu Fai (“"Mr. Mag”), aged 45, joined the
Group on 26 March 2012. He is the Financial Controller
and is responsible for the Group's financial management
and accounting matters. Mr. Mag holds a Bachelor’s
degree in Accountancy from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University and is qualified as a Certified Public Accountant
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and is a Fellow of The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants. Mr. Mag has over 15 years’ experience in
auditing, accounting and financial management. He also
worked for two international audit firms. Prior to joining
the Group, Mr. Mag was a Senior Accounting Manager of
Nan Hai Corporation Limited (stock code: 680), a company
whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, from November 2005 to July 2010.
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The Company is dedicated to maintaining good standard
of corporate governance as it believes that corporate
governance practices are fundamental to the smooth
and effective operation of a company and can enhance
shareholders’ value as well as safeguard shareholders’
interests.

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has
complied with all code provisions set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “"CG Code”) in Appendix 14 of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”) on the Stock Exchange for the Year, save as
certain deviations disclosed herein.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) is collectively
responsible for the oversight of the management of the
business and affairs of the Group with the objective of
enhancing shareholders’ value. Major responsibilities
include approving the Company’s overall business,
financial and technical strategies, setting key performance
targets, approving budgets and overseeing the
performance of management.

The Board currently comprises seven Directors including
three executive Directors, a non-executive Director and
three independent non-executive Directors. The number
of independent non-executive Directors represents
over one-third of the Board as required by Rule 3.10A
of the Listing Rules. The list of the Directors and their
biographical details are set out in the “Directors and

Senior Management” section of this annual report.

The Board meets regularly four times a year, i.e. at
approximately quarterly intervals. During the Year, the
Board convened a total of four regular meetings and the
attendance of the Directors are set out as below section
headed “Attendance Record of the Meetings”.

Corporate Governance Report /,
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For all such meetings, notice of each regular Board
meeting is given to all Directors at least 14 days before
the meeting and all Directors are given the opportunity
to include matters in the agenda for discussion at the
Board meetings. The agenda and meeting materials are
normally sent to all Directors at least three days before the
regular Board meeting to ensure that they have sufficient
time and attention to the affairs of the Company. In
addition to regular Board meetings, the Chairman of the
Board met with the non-executive Directors (including the
independent non-executive Directors) without the presence
of the executive Directors.

All Directors have direct access to the company secretary
of the Company who is responsible for advising the Board
on corporate governance and compliance issues, ensuring
that Board procedures are followed, as well as taking
the minutes of the Board and committee meetings. Such

minutes are open for inspection by the Directors.

To the best knowledge of the Company, there is no
financial, business and family relationship among members
of the Board.

Ms. Fung Sau Mui, a non-executive Director, and Ms.
Lai Ka Fung, May and Ms. Chan Sim Ling, Irene, the
independent non-executive Directors, have letters of
appointment with the Company for a specified period of
one year. Dr. Ho Chung Tai, Raymond, an independent
non-executive Director, has a letter of appointment with
the Company for a fixed term of service for three years.
All of them are subject to retirement and rotation at the
annual general meeting of the Company in accordance
with the Company’s bye-laws (the “Bye-Laws"”).

Pursuant to bye-law 87 of the Bye-Laws, at each annual
general meeting of the Company, one-third of the
Directors for the time being shall retire from office by
rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years. All
retiring Directors shall be eligible for re-election.
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Bye-law 86(2) of the Bye-Laws provided that (i) any
director appointed by the Board to fill a causal vacancy
shall hold office only until the next following general
meeting of the Company, and (ii) any director appointed
by the Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold
office only until the following annual general meeting of
the Company, and shall then be eligible for re-election at

that meeting.

The emoluments payable to Directors are determined
by the Board with reference to the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee’s recommendation as well as
the Directors’ duties and responsibilities and the prevailing
market conditions.

The Company has received annual written confirmations
of independence from all independent non-executive
Directors in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Board considers them to be independent in

accordance with the Listing Rules.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its
own code of conduct regarding securities transactions
by the Directors and the relevant employees. Before
the Company’s result announcement, notifications are
sent to the Directors and the relevant employees of the
Company to remind them not to be involved in dealing
with the Company’s securities during the blackout period.
Having made specific enquiry of the Directors, all Directors
confirmed that they have complied with the required
standards set out in the Model Code for the Year.

Corporate Governance Report /,

S

RAEIABAIEBERMRE  (VMEEEZTE R
EFUNERGERERIEZTERNEERARAT
ERRERAE R RVEMEESEEEIM
ABEESEZESIHEEARARA TER
RBERERL ERHEBNEEBRRELE
BB

BNTEZEZHMES D AESTSIRIESR KM
ZEGZHBRINNESTZRENEER
AT I MEETE °

RARCEETBBYIFNTEEFRIELT
MRAEIBGRER ZFER I EERE &
ERAEREMRA FEAR/BILIAL

ETESXZNERESTA

ARBERA TR BN ER10FT 8 LT 87T
AEFETESXINEETA ([RESF
B - fREAGARESREBEEE
TEFRXDZITRTR -NARBTEEE
DRl ARABAEFERARAHREES %
HAEH REREIEREEHL2ERQT
MEFEE KRAEEEHARSHE 28
EEHARFRAFEACHERETRIM
MEZFRE-

Annual Report 2019 % | CHINLINK INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED % [ tf 4 [ B £ Jit 47 Bt 24 )

L

45



46

Corporate Governance Report

1B 5% 16 ol

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
Mr. Li Weibin is the Chairman and Managing Director of

the Company.

For the Year, the Company deviates from the code
provision A.2.1 of the CG Code.

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code requires the roles
of chairman and chief executive should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual. Mr. Li
Weibin is the Chairman and the Managing Director of the
Company (the Company regards the role of its Managing
Director to be the same as that of chief executive under
the CG Code). The Board considered that the non-
segregation would not result in considerable concentration
of power in one person and has the advantage of a strong
and consistent leadership which is conducive to making

and implementing decisions quickly and consistently.

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

The Board has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to
the executive Directors and senior management of the
Company who perform their duties under the leadership
of the Managing Director. The Board has also delegated
specific roles and responsibilities to its committees,
having specific terms of references to define their powers,

authorities, and duties.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Audit Committee with
written terms of reference in compliance with the Listing
Rules. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are
available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.

The Chairman of the Audit Committee, Ms. Lai Ka Fung,
May, possesses appropriate professional qualifications
in finance and accounting and meets the requirements
of Rules 3.10(2) and 3.21 of the Listing Rules. All of the
members of the Audit Committee are independent non-
executive Directors and none of them are members of the

former or existing auditors of the Company.
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The Audit Committee has reviewed with management
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group and discussed the risk management and internal
control and financial reporting matters and made
recommendations to the Board. The Audit Committee
meets at least twice a year with management and external
auditor and reviews their reports.

Members of the Audit Committee and the attendance of
members during the Year are set out in the section headed
"Attendance Record of the Meetings” of this report.

During the Year, the Audit Committee performed the

following duties:

(a) reviewed the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended
31 March 2018 and the unaudited interim
consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the six months ended 30 September 2018 with
recommendation to the Board for approval,

(b) reviewed reports on risk management and internal
control systems covering financial, corporate
governance, internal control and operational

functions;

(c) considered the independent auditor’s independence
and fee in relation to the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2018, the unaudited interim
consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the six months ended 30 September 2018 and non-
audit related services; and

(d) proposed revision to the terms of reference of the
Audit Committee in light of the CG code.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the Year, the audit and non-audit fees payable/
paid to external auditors was made up of an audit fee of
approximately HK$2.92 million and a non-audit related
service fee of approximately HK$1.54 million. The latter

included taxation service and professional service.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee with written terms of reference
in compliance with the Listing Rules. The terms of
reference of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and

the Company.

The Company seeks to achieve board diversity and has
a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”)
considering a range of objective diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, professional qualification,
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service and
any other factors the Board considers relevant in alignment
with the strategic objectives of the Company and the

environment in which it operates.

Realising the benefits of gender diversity, the Company
targets that the Board will always maintain a female

representation of at least 30% of its composition.

The ultimate decision on Board member appointments will
be based on merits and contributions that the selected

candidates will bring to the Board.

The Board has maintained a balanced composition in terms
of gender, age, professional qualification, experience, skills
and knowledge. It has performed effectively by providing
sound judgment on strategic issues and effective oversight

of and guidance to management.
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Having reviewed the implementation of the Board Diversity
Policy and the structure, size and composition of the
Board, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
considered that the measurable objectives of the Board
Diversity Policy had been met.

The Board adopted a Directors’ nomination policy (the
“Nomination Policy”) on 31 January 2019 to formally
set out the criteria and process on the selection,
nomination and appointment of Directors. According
to the Nomination Policy, the ultimate responsibility for
appointment and re-appointment of Directors rests with
the entire Board or the shareholders of the Company
(the “Shareholders”) in general meeting as the case
may be. The Board has delegated the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee the responsibility to evaluate
and assess the optimal structure, size and composition
of the Board, as well as to assess, select and nominate
a suitable candidate for directorship. In assessing the
suitability of the proposed candidate(s), the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee takes into consideration
the candidates’ personal ethics, reputation and integrity,
industry or professional knowledge and experience, skills,
expertise, educational qualifications, background and
other relevant personal attributes, his/her commitment
to devoting sufficient time, interest and attention to the
Company’s business, potential and/or actual conflict of
interest of the candidate(s), fulfilment of the independence
requirements for independent non-executive Directors as
set out in the Listing Rules and the diversity objectives
as described in the Board Diversity Policy. If the process
yields one or more desirable candidates, the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee will rank them by order
of preference based on the evaluation conducted. After
reaching its decision, the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee nominates the relevant candidate(s) to the
Board for approval and appointment. As said above,
all Directors appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as an
addition to the existing Board shall hold office only until
the first general meeting after his or her appointment
and shall be eligible for re-election. The Board will make
recommendation to the Shareholders in respect of the
proposed re-election of Directors at the general meeting.
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Members of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
and the attendance of members for the Year are set out in
the section headed "Attendance Record of the Meetings”
of this report.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee performed
the following duties:

(a) reviewed the structure, size and composition of
the Board, including diversity (including without
limitation, gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional qualification, experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service) of the
Board and made recommendations to complement
the Company’s corporate strategy;

(b) assessed the independence of all independent non-
executive Directors;

(c) reviewed the remuneration packages or fees
(including salary adjustments) of the executive
Directors, the non-executive Director, the
independent non-executive Directors and the senior
management with recommendations to the Board
for approval.

Details of the remuneration paid to Directors and members
of senior management of the Company by band for the
Year are disclosed in the note 12 to the consolidated
financial statements on page 234 of this annual report.
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ATTENDANCE RECORD OF THE

MEETINGS
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Individual attendance of each Director at the Board

meetings, the Audit Committee meetings, the Nomination

and Remuneration Committee meetings,

the annual

general meeting ("AGM") of the Company held for the

Year is as follows:

SR HERLE

REFE BUEEEALRF

.
SN

HEBRAESIT

Attendance/Number of meetings

HE/EERY

RITZEFE
= A A

EvZBeeR RELkFHEESS
- BRRBAFERE ((RRBFKE]) ZE5

Nomination and
Audit Remuneration

Board Committee Committee
Name Meeting Meeting Meeting AGM
EH RER
#H Ezges ZEE8E ¥MzEEER BRRBEFAE
Executive Directors HiTEZE
Mr. Li Weibin FEWAE 24 N/A N/A 11
(Chairman and Managing Director) (FREHFEEHHE) TEA TEA
Mr. Siu Wai Yip BEEXE 4/4 N/A 111 (Note) 11
A (Hrit)
Ms. Lam Suk Ling, Shirley Rk Rt 44 N/A N/A 11
(resigned on 4 April 2019) (RZF-NF TER TER
AP A E )
Mr. Lau Chi Kit ARG EE 414 N/A N/A 11
T TEA
Non-executive Director FHTEE
Ms. Fung Sau Mui BAEERL 4/4 N/A N/A 1/1
TER TEH
Independent Non-executive Directors — # F# 772 E
Dr. Ho Chung Tai, Raymond MEREL 44 313 1/1 (Note) 11
(Hit)
Ms. Lai Ka Fung, May BREZT 4/4 33 11 (Note) n
(Hit)
Ms. Chan Sim Ling, Irene BRER T 4/4 33 1/1 (Note) 171
(Hrit)

Note: For administrative reason, members of the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee deferred their prescribed
meeting for the Year to 3 April 2019 where the duties
as mentioned on page 50 of this annual report were

performed.
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DIRECTORS’ INDUCTION AND
CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

During the Year, the Company provided regular updates
on the business performance of the Group to the
Directors. The Directors are continually updated on the
latest development regarding the Listing Rules and other
applicable statutory requirements to ensure compliance

and upkeep of good corporate governance practices.

The Directors are encouraged to participate in continuing
professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.
The Company has maintained a training record in order
to assist the Directors to record the training they have
undertaken and they are asked to submit a signed training

record to the Company on annual basis.
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During the Year, each individual Director has attended
training courses or workshops or reading materials
relevant to his/her professional and/or duties as Director. A
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summary of the training they have received for the Year is BIFEMT
as follow:
Name Type of trainings
i HEHE R
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Li Weibin FEBESE

(Chairman and Managing Director) (FREFEFHL B
Mr. Siu Wai Yip RIEELE AB
Ms. Lam Suk Ling, Shirley MOREL 2+

(resigned on 4 April 2019) (RZFE—NFFHYHFTE) AB
Mr. Lau Chi Kit 2B A B
Non-executive Director HHTEFE
Ms. Fung Sau Mui HHEE L B
Independent Non-executive Directors BUIHITEE
Dr. Ho Chung Tai, Raymond fEFRIE + AB
Ms. Lai Ka Fung, May RRBE L A,B
Ms. Chan Sim Ling, Irene PRI 2+ AB
A: attending course/seminars and/or conferences and/ A B2INEEBBIRE R 2REH

or forums provided/accredited by professional HEk/HEERHTARE
bodies

B: reading materials relevant to the directors’ duties B: MENSFBENAECTHBZEH

and responsibilities
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION
The Board is responsible for performing and has performed
the corporate governance duties during the Year as set out

below:

(a) to develop and review the Company’s policies and

practices on corporate governance;

(b) to approve the Nomination Policy, the Board
Diversity Policy and revision to the terms of
reference of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee in light of the amendment of the CG

code;

(0) to review and maintain effective risk management

and internal control systems;

(d) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior

management;

(e) to review and monitor the Company's policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory

requirements;

(f) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to

employees and Directors; and
(9) to review the Company’s compliance with the CG

Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance

Report.
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DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS' LIABILITY
INSURANCE AND INDEMNITY

The Company has arranged insurance cover to indemnify
Directors and officers of the Company against all costs,
charges, losses, expenses and liabilities incurred by them in
the execution and discharge of their duties or in relation

thereto.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for maintaining
good corporate governance practices and a sound systems
of risk management and internal control as well as for
the review of effectiveness of these systems. To achieve a
more effective control environment, the Company’s risk
management framework is designed to be an integral part
of the Company's corporate governance framework as
well as strategic and business planning processes, and it

also embeds into each key activity and/or function.

Risk Management

The Company adopts a risk management approach that is
systematic and forward-looking to evaluate and manage
current and emerging risks related to the achievement of
the Company's strategic and operational objectives.

The risk management framework provides our key decision
makers and management team with better understanding
of risks faced by the Group so that potential issues are
flagged before they occur. The benefits of the framework

are:

o Improve business performance and reduce

operational surprises and associated costs or losses;
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. Integrate risk management to corporate governance . HRREEBHEPEEREHRES
practices;
. Provide assurance to the Board that significant risks . MEFERREZSEEEANA

are being appropriately managed;

o Enhance capability to reach consensus regarding

potential risks and the appropriate responses;

o Define accountabilities and assign roles and
responsibilities; and

T
7o

. e B E e K8 E e AR AR = K
HEBHEED

. PRI IEESH K

. Establish risk awareness across the organization . ERARIASRER (BFEA) BLRER

involving people at every level.

Risk Management Process

The risk management process is a continuous process.
After the initial assessment, risks are re-evaluated and
updated on an on-going basis to reflect new information
and changes to circumstances so that all relevant risks,
including new ones, are appropriately identified and
addressed. The steps of an on-going monitoring process is
illustrated in the diagram below.

1.
Establish Context
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Reporting Risk Identification
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Monitoring
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Risk Response 3.
and Action Risk Assessment
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Establish Context

Risks are to be managed through active collaboration
from all levels within the Group, as such, this step involves
establishing the overall risk management governance
structure which defines the designation and enactment
of responsibility for the risk management process. Roles
and responsibilities are defined at the first time of the risk
management process being initiated, and will be revisited
as required.

Risk Identification

Identification of risks occurs on an on-going basis for
existing processes and on an ad hoc basis as required
when there is any change to existing businesses and
processes such as new services/products and projects, or
to the external environment such as changes in laws and

regulations.

Risk Assessment

The purpose of risk assessment is to determine significant
risk which are risks that are material and will have an
impact on the business goals and objectives. The judgment
on significance and material involves the consideration
of likelihood and impact of the risk. In this stage, the
risk rankings of all risk events will be identified, and all
significant risks should be addressed in the next stage: Risk

Response and Action.

Risk Response and Action

Risk response and action plans should be formulated for
each of the significant risk event identified during the risk
assessment stage.
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A risk treatment, being part of the response and action

plans, is to be selected for each significant risk event.

o Acceptance of Risk: No action is taken to reduce
the risk. The risk is accepted.

o Mitigation: The risk is accepted but risk mitigation
controls and action plans will be established to
minimise the negative impacts. The mitigation
should be new measures instead of existing

controls.

o Transfer: Transfer the risk by the sharing it with
third parties.

o Avoidance: Adopt risk avoidance measures by

ceasing the activity associated with the risk event.

Reporting

Management will submit risk reports to the Board or its
designated Audit Committee regularly, at least on an
annual basis. Management who owns and manage risks
on a day-to-day basis will, on an annual basis, provide a
confirmation to the Board of Directors on the effectiveness

of the risk management and internal control systems.

On-going Monitoring

The Risk Management Working Group revisits the
Group's risk exposure regularly and will provide advices
on additional risk mitigation plans accordingly. The
internal audit is an independent monitoring function
responsible for reviews of adequacy and effectiveness
of risk management and internal control systems using
a riskbased assessment methodology. Audits will be
performed to evaluate the proper functioning of these

systems.
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ik Risk Management Governance Structure B B HE R FELE I

All personnel in the Group has the responsibility in REEMEABSMEEAHZERITNARE
maintaining good risk management and internal control EE%DW*B@&&A, TFIEABSBEKRAEAS
systems, collectively all personnel in the Group forms the EmEREIEAEERE W TE-
risk management governance structure which is illustrated
below.

Risk Owners

(Own and Manage Risks)
[E R EEA
(REREERR)

The specific roles and responsibilities of each party E2EFTHNAEACRBEFRET

involved are described in details below:

Board of Directors EFE

. Determine the nature and extent of the risks . e TE AN S E AT DABE 60 R B 60 1 AN
willing to take in achieving the Group's strategic BENER ELEEEE:
objectives;

. Through the Audit Committee, oversee the . BREZZES LEEEEHER
design, implementation and monitoring of risk BIBNMAIEZERFORT B
management and internal control systems by the RESET
management;

° L
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o Foster the maintenance of an effective risk culture
and risk management and internal controls
throughout the Group; and

o Being reported on the Group's overall risk exposure,
including the status of any significant current and
emerging exposures and trends, relevant mitigation
strategies and the effectiveness of implementation
of risk management framework.

Risk Management Working Group

° Composes of Directors, c-suite, senior executives
and led by the Managing Director of the Group
(regarded as the same as chief executive), advise
the Board on risk appetite, risk principles and risk

management framework;

o Identify and evaluate significant strategic, business

and process-level risk exposures of the Group;

o Monitor risk responses and mitigation strategies

executed by risk owners and/or their delegates;

o Maintain documentation of risks on the risk register
and prepare risk reports for submission to the

Board; and

° Represent management to provide a confirmation
to the Board on the effectiveness of the risk

management and internal control systems.
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Risk Owners

o Heads of departments and business units,
operational level units and managerial individuals
collectively assume the ownership of risks within
their functional areas and all responsibilities

associated with managing such risks;

J Implement risk mitigation measures and internal

controls that embed into day-to-day activities; and

o Report to the Risk Management Working Group on
any changes or developments regarding risks.

Internal Audit

o Independently monitor and review the adequacy
and effectiveness of functionality of the risk

management and internal control practices;

o Facilitate the Risk Management Working Group
with the risk identification, assessment and

reporting processes; and

o Utilise results of risk assessments to compile a

riskbased internal audit coverage plan.

Internal Control System
Control Environment and Monitoring Activities

The Group’s internal control systems include an
organizational structure with clearly defined delegation of
authority and responsibility. Policies and procedures were
established to govern business operations and internal
controls to be implemented as management intends.
The Group’'s company secretary, internal and external
legal advisors and other management together oversee
adherence to relevant laws and regulations including the
Listing Rules, Companies Ordinance and the Hong Kong

Financial Reporting Standards, etc.
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Budgeting and performance measuring criteria were
established by the management for its day-to-day
monitoring of business operations. Heads of departments
and business units regularly meet to review business
performance, the risks associated with their operational
activities and the relevant internal control measures to be
embedded in the processes to mitigate the risks the Group
is facing. The management also regularly prepares monthly
reports to the Board on the Group's performance.

The Group conducts business based on the principles
of fairness, honesty and integrity and is committed to
the highest level of standards of ethical behavior and
accountability. Its code of conduct sets out the important
principles and expectations of appropriate business
conduct to ensure the Group's employees’ compliance
with the code. The Group also actively prevents and
takes measures to guard against being used as a medium
for money laundering activities and terrorism financing
activities and any other activity that facilitate money
laundering or the funding of terrorist or criminal activities
by adopting its anti-money laundering and counter-
terrorism financing policy and procedure across the Group.
In addition, the Group's whistleblowing policy enables a
transparent working environment and provides channels
and guideline to all employees the procedures to disclose
any misconduct, malpractice or irregularity of which they
become aware. The Group did not receive any report of
whistleblowing incident during the Year.
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The Company’s policy and procedures on disclosure
of inside information provides guidelines in relation to
handling and dissemination of inside information of the
Group to ensure inside information is disseminated to the
public in an equal, timely and effective manner. The policy
outlines the internal procedures for the identification
and reporting of actual or potential inside information,
the obligations of the Group and duties of officers in
accordance with the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the "SFO"), Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong.
Specifically, inside information is disseminated via the
electronic publication system operated by the Stock
Exchange before the information is released via other
channels, such as the press, wire services or posting
announcements on the Company’s website. As soon as
an employee of the Company becomes aware of actual
or potential inside information, or when any director,
officer or employee of the Company becomes aware
of any disclosure of non-public insider information or
breach of this policy, he/she must promptly report to his/
her respective departmental in-charge, who will further
communicate with the Group’s company secretary. The
matter will be assessed and the appropriate course of
actions will be determined by the Board. Audit trail of
meetings and discussions concerning the assessment of

inside information will be maintained.

The inside information policy makes specific references to
the SFO, guidelines issued by the Securities and Futures
Commission and the Model Code issued by the Stock
Exchange. It also echoes the code of conduct for how
confidential information or inside information of the
Group should be handled.
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Review of Effectiveness of Risk Management and Internal

Control Systems

During the Year, the Audit Committee, with the delegated
authority from the Board, has conducted annual review
of the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group including the relevant
financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management procedures to provide reasonable but not
absolute assurance against failure to achieve business

objectives and material misstatement or loss.

Management has provided confirmation to the Board that
the Group's risk management and internal control systems

are effective.

Based on (i) meetings with executive Directors to discuss
risks and internal controls concerning the Group’s
business operations and financial reporting process,
(ii) review of internal audit and external audit reports,
(iii) review of reports on the implementation of the
Group’s risk management system, (iv) the monitoring of
significant issues and material internal control defects
through reviews conducted by the internal audit, and
(v) conformation provided by the management on the
effectiveness of the Group's risk management and internal
control systems, the Audit Committee concluded that the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems
are effective. There were no significant control failings,
weaknesses or significant areas of concern identified

during the Year.

The Audit Committee also reviewed and was satisfied with
the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience,
training programs and budget of the employees of the
Group’s accounting, internal audit and financial reporting

functions.
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Internal Audit Function A EE B 5T B 58

The internal audit function’s main responsibilities include NEETBE 2T EBRERRETISE
the followings:

(a) independently review and evaluate the adequacy, (a) BUBEAFHEBYE AR 28
effectiveness and efficiency of risk management REREERBESIFECRARERR
and internal control systems regarding the financial, NEBESE RSB B M B M R
compliance and operational performance and =

safeguarding of assets;

(b)  facilitate management in identification of risks, by FREREREBR X5 HYE
and development of risk mitigation and monitoring 1 RE 5 RN R R K il 5E R B AT 4 e e LA
strategies as part of the risk management NESVER B
framework;

() monitor operational compliance with the Group’s () ESBERLAMNEAAEBE B EBR
established policies and procedures; and S EES

(d)  provide advices to the management and conduct (d RNEREREERLABRIANNEZ
special reviews in specific areas concerned by the EENIN B f@%ﬁ 7 R IR SR
management in addition to the planned audit THEERES -
activities.

The internal audit function carries out assessment based NBETBEREEZZEGHECANBE

on the internal audit annual plan approved by the Audit AEERERTTG YRAEETEETEX

Committee, and reports to the Audit Committee of ZESTHERCHT 2 B8l MR ITHE

the Board periodically on status of implementation of ERERIEXRER - BIa MR E - BE

agreed audit plan and any significant risk exposures and FE SRR AL b o

governance and control issues including fraud risks.

° L
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for
preparing the consolidated financial statements of the
Group in accordance with statutory requirements and
applicable accounting standards. The Directors, having
made appropriate enquiries, are not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions which may
cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. Accordingly, the Directors
have prepared the consolidated financial statements on a

going concern basis.

The responsibilities of the auditor to the Shareholders are
set out in the “Independent Auditor’s Report” from pages

100 to 109 in this annual report.

DIVIDEND POLICY

On 29 January 2019, the Board adopted a dividend policy
("Dividend Policy”) in order to provide guidelines for the
Company to consider its dividend distribution decision.
Under the Dividend Policy, the Company may consider to
declare and pay dividends to the Shareholders provided
that the Group is profitable and without affecting the
normal operations of the Group. In deciding whether
to propose a dividend and in determining the dividend
amount, the Board shall take into account, among others,

the following factors:

o The Group's operating results and financial
position;

o Key financial metrics such as liquidity;

o The Group's capital requirements and future

commitments;
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o External factors including state of economy and

capital market conditions;

° Taxation considerations;

. Interim dividend paid, if any;

. Interests of the Shareholders;

o Statutory and regulatory restrictions; and
J Other factors the Board deem relevant.

Distribution of dividend shall remain to be determined
at the sole discretion of the Board and subject to any
restrictions under Hong Kong Laws, the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda (the "Companies Act”) and the Bye-

Laws of the Company.

COMPANY SECRETARY
Ms. Lam Suk Ling, Shirley had been the company secretary
of the Company since 27 January 2012 and resigned on
4 April 2019. According to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules,
Ms. Lam has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training for the Year.

Ms. Lau Wai Har has been appointed as the Company
Secretary of the Company with effect from 4 April 2019.
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COMMUNICATION WITH
SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS
The Board endeavours to communicate with Shareholders

through annual and other general meetings directly.

The Board is committed to providing clear and full
information of the Group to Shareholders through the
publication of announcements, circulars, interim and
annual reports. Updated information of the Group is also

available to Shareholders through the Company’s website.

Shareholders are encouraged to attend general meetings
of the Company at which Directors are available to answer

Shareholders’ questions.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHT

Procedures for convening a special general meeting by
Shareholders

Shareholders shall have the right to request the Board
to convene a special general meeting (“SGM") of the
Company. Shareholders holding in aggregate of not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
may send a written request to the Board to request for the
SGM.

The written requisition, duly signed by the Shareholders
concerned, must state the purposes of the meeting and
must be deposited at the Company's head office and
principal place of business in Hong Kong at Suites 5-6,
40/F., One Exchange Square, 8 Connaught Place, Central,
Hong Kong or at the Company’s branch share registrar
and transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor Standard Limited,
at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Hong Kong.
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The Company would take appropriate actions and make
necessary arrangements, and the Shareholders concerned
would be responsible for the expenses incurred in giving
effect thereto in accordance with the requirements under
Section 74 of the Companies Act once a valid requisition is
received.

Procedures for Shareholders to put forward proposals at

general meetings

The following Shareholders are entitled to put forward a
proposal (which may properly be put to the meeting) for
consideration at a general meeting of the Company:

(a) any number of members representing not less than
one-twentieth of the total voting rights of the

Company on the date of the requisition; or

(b) not less than 100 members holding shares in the

Company.

The requisition specifying the proposal, duly signed by the
Shareholders concerned, together with a statement of not
more than 1,000 words with respect to the matter referred
to in the proposal must be deposited at the Company's
head office and principal place of business in Hong Kong
at Suites 5-6, 40/F., One Exchange Square, 8 Connaught
Place, Central, Hong Kong or at the Company’s branch
share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor
Standard Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong. The Company would take
appropriate actions and make necessary arrangements,
and the Shareholders concerned would be responsible
for the expenses incurred in giving effect thereto in
accordance with the requirements under Sections 79
and 80 of the Companies Act once valid documents are

received.
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If a shareholder wishes to propose a person other than
a retiring Director for election as a Director at a general
meeting, the shareholder should follow the “Procedures
for shareholders to propose a person for election as a
Director of the Company”, which can be found on the

website of the Company.

Procedures for directing Shareholders’ enquiries to the
Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and

concerns to the Board in writing via the following channel:

The Company Secretary

Chinlink International Holdings Limited
Suites 5-6, 40/F., One Exchange Square
8 Connaught Place

Central, Hong Kong

E-mail: nicolelau@chinlinkint.com
Telephone: 2126 6333

Facsimile: 2126 6399

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at

the general meetings of the Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

There was no significant change in the Company’'s

constitutional documents during the Year.
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The Directors present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. The principal activities and other particulars of
the subsidiaries are set out in note 54 to the consolidated

financial statements.

The analysis of the principal activities and geographical
locations of the operations of the Company and its
subsidiaries during the Year are set out in note 6 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 110 of this annual report.

The Board does not recommend the payment of final
dividend (2018: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the Year is provided
in the Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion
and Analysis from pages 11 to 36 of this annual report.

ANALYSIS OF MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND
SUPPLIERS

The sales to the top five customers for the Year amounted
to HK$1,562.7 million, representing an increase of 40.3%
from HK$1,114.0 million for the year ended 31 March
2018.
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The top five customers in the Year represented
approximately 89.3% of the total revenue as compared
to approximately 88.6% for the year ended 31 March
2018. The largest customer in the Year which is from
international trading segment accounted for approximately
40.5% of the total revenue in the Year as compared to
the largest customer in last year of approximately 58.6%
of total revenue for the year ended 31 March 2018 which
was from international trading segment. Four out of the
top five customers are located in Hong Kong and Macau
and one is located in the PRC.

The purchases from the top five suppliers amounted to
HK$1,520.9 million, representing an increase of 44.0%
from HK$1,056.4 million for the year ended 31 March
2018.

The top five suppliers in the Year represented
approximately 99.1% of the total purchases as compared
to approximately 95.1% for the year ended 31 March
2018. The largest supplier in the Year which is from
international trading segment accounted for approximately
50.8% of the total purchases in the Year as compared to
the largest supplier in last year of approximately 63.9% of
total purchases for the year ended 31 March 2018 which
was from international trading segment. Four out of the
top five suppliers are located in Hong Kong and Macau
and one is located in Singapore.

Maintaining good relationships with customers and
suppliers is fundamental to the Group’s operations and
success. The Group is keen to foster a satisfactory and
balanced demand and supply and maintains close relations
with its customers and suppliers.

RAFEERN  AREFPIHBIRALISI.3%
HE-_Z-N\E=ZA=+—-BLEEHNNA
88.6% ANFELEAEFPIRBEKRES
DEBEANFELWALNL05% MEFZ &
AEEDREBBESEH  EHEZZT—N
FZA=+—BLFEBWALSE6% R
AAREFFR WEMRESRRBRFAUE—%
IR E o

M A A E R 2 £ 88 %8 41,520,900,00078
T REE T N\F=ZA=+—8BILtFE
2 1,056,400,00078 JT 1 h144.0% °

REAFEN AAHREFGRAKEED
V1% mMEBEE—_FT—N\F=A=+—HI
FEALAEIN% AFE 2 ANHERTD
REBEBRESHI HAFERAREEY
50.8% MEFz&AMEETIREEEE
SoE EEHEZE—-NF=-A=+—HL
FEBRBFENG63.9% - RAAXEEREF - Y
BRI EE OB P A B — B AL A 5T IR -

MEEEP MR RFBERY AN EEN
EEMKNEBEZ -AKEHETLK—E
BRmMBOENETSEE THFEETFR
HEBNETREE-

CHINLINK INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 3%k H 4 [ B £ )1t 7 it 4 7] | Annual Report 2019 3§



PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The principal risks and uncertainties facing the Company
are set out in the section headed “Major Risks” in the
Management Discussion and Analysis from pages 11 to
36 of this annual report and notes 4, 50 and 51 to the

consolidated financial statements.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

A separate environmental, social and governance report
complying with the disclosure requirements under
Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules will be published by
the Company separately, in any event no later than three
months after the publication of this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the Year are set out in note 16 to the

consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of movements in the share capital of the Company
during the Year, together with the reasons therefor are set

out in note 43 to the consolidated financial statements.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS
Details of movements in the convertible bonds of the
Company during the Year are set out in note 39 to the

consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY

The Company has no reserves available for distribution to
the Shareholders as at 31 March 2019.
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Under the Companies Act, the contributed surplus account
of the Company is available for distribution. However, the
Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a
distribution out of contributed surplus if:

(a) it is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay

its liabilities as they become due; or

(b) the realisable value of its assets would thereby
be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its

issued share capital and share premium accounts.

DIRECTORS
The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this

report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Li Weibin

Mr. Siu Wai Yip

Ms. Lam Suk Ling, Shirley (resigned on 4 April 2019)
Mr. Lau Chi Kit

Non-executive Director

Ms. Fung Sau Mui

Independent non-executive Directors

Dr. Ho Chung Tai, Raymond
Ms. Lai Ka Fung, May
Ms. Chan Sim Ling, Irene

In accordance with bye-law 87 of the Bye-Laws, Mr. Siu
Wai Yip, Mr. Lau Chi Kit and Dr. Ho Chung Tai, Raymond
shall retire from the Board by rotation at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company. Being eligible,
the abovementioned Directors shall offer themselves for

re-election.

RIBRBLE  NRABZBABBRERAHOIK
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The directors who have served on the boards of the

subsidiaries of the Company during the Year and up to the

date of this report were:

Mr. Li Weibin
EMW T E

Mr. Lau Chi Kit
BB A

Mr. Wong Kam Hong
BEELE

Ms. Guo Li Na
= e

Mr. Wang Hong Li
FRNFEE

Mr. Dong Wen Bin
BEXWRE

Ms. Zhang Yu Mo
RRAR L

Ms. Fu Hang
Bt

Ms. Gao Ya Qing
¥ 2k

Mr. Ding Jia Qi
THREEE

Mr. Siu Wai Yip
mEXELE

Ms. Fung Sau Mui
HEELE

Mr. Kwan Kam Ming
Fakcnt i

Mr. Tang Yi Feng
E—IgsEAE

Ms. Wang Hong
FTaxt

Ms. Duan Shan Shan
R I 3 22 &=

Mr. Rachid Bouzouba
Rachid Bouzouba?t 4

Mr. Tian Jin
B L E

Mr. Li Hao
FE2HRE

Mr. Zhou Aimin
Zhou Aimin%t 4

RAEERRBEARE BHRARANE
AEFRERIESMT
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Ms. Lam Suk Ling, Shirley
MR ¥ 2+

Mr. Tai Wing Wah
BoKELE

Mr. Loo Chi Kwan
EEELAE

Ms. Zhao Ying
et

Mr. Liu Shu Li
23t 3R S A

Mr. Adrian Valenzuela
Adrian ValenzuelaZt 4

Ms. Wen Lin
Pk

Mr. Yang Zhao
BEEE

Mr. Zhang Ting Ze
REERE

° L
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the three executive Directors, Mr. Li Weibin, Mr.
Siu Wai Yip and Mr. Lau Chi Kit, has entered into a service
agreement with the Company for no fixed term which may
be terminated by one month’s notice in writing by either

party respectively.

The non-executive Director, Ms. Fung Sau Mui, and each of
the two independent non-executive Directors, Ms. Lai Ka
Fung, May and Ms. Chan Sim Ling, Irene have entered into
a letter of appointment with the Company for a fixed term

of one year commencing on 18 February 2019 respectively.

The independent non-executive Director, Dr. Ho Chung Tai,
Raymond, has entered into a letter of appointment with
the Company for a fixed term of three years commencing
on 17 December 2016.

No Director being proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has an unexpired
service contract which is not determinable by the
Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year without
payment of compensation, other than normal statutory

obligations.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND
ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 March 2019, the interests and short positions
of the Directors and the chief executive of the Company
and their respective associates in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company and its associate
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the Laws
of Hong Kong (the “SFO")), as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of
the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code of Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies, were as

follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares of HK$0.3125 each and

underlying shares of the Company

Directors’ Report /,
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Approximate
percentage of

the total
Number of number of
Number of underlying issued shares of
Name of Directors Capacity ordinary shares shares Total the Company
EARRRE BT
ROEH 2
EEns 5% EERYE HERGHE Bt BAES
(Note 1)
(Hizt1)
Mr. Li Weibin (“Mr. Li") Beneficial owner 66,505,600 778,018 67,283,618
TEREE ([FEE]) ERBEBA (Note 2)
(Krit2)
Interest of controlled 824,763,200 - 824,763,200
corporation (Note 3)
REHERER (H1523)
892,046,818 61.03%
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Approximate
percentage of

the total

Number of number of

Number of underlying issued shares of

Name of Directors Capacity ordinary shares shares Total the Company

EEARCRT

R EE

EEpE &% EEREE HBERGEE @t BARS

(Note 1)

(Hist1)

Mr. Siu Wai Yip Beneficial owner - 542,804 542,804 0.04%
BRELE EREBA (Note 2)
(Hi5t2)

Ms. Lam Suk Ling, Shirley Beneficial owner - 542,804 542,804 0.04%
(resigned on 4 April 2019)  BEEBA (Note 2)
WHK Lt (Hi5t2)

(RZF-NEAATAEF)

Mr. Lau Chi Kit Beneficial owner 200,000 361,869 561,869 0.04%
BEAEE EEBBA (Note 2)
(Hi5t2)

Ms. Fung Sau Mui Beneficial owner - 180,935 180,935 0.01%
BEERL EEBBA (Note 2)
(Hi5t2)

Dr. Ho Chung Tai, Raymond Beneficial owner - 361,869 361,869 0.02%
ERET EEBBA (Note 4)
(Hrita)

Ms. Lai Ka Fung, May Beneficial owner - 180,935 180,935 0.01%
RREL T EEBBA (Note 2)
(Hi5t2)

Ms. Chan Sim Ling, Irene Beneficial owner - 180,935 180,935 0.01%
gL+ EEBBEA (Note 2)
(Hi5t2)
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Notes:

1. Based on 1,461,609,692 ordinary Shares of the Company
issued as at 31 March 2019.

2. These underlying shares are share options at an exercise
price of HK$6.41 per share granted on 24 April 2013
(subject to adjustment).

3. These shares are held by Wealth Keeper International
Limited (“Wealth Keeper”), the entire issued share
capital of which is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr.
Li. Accordingly, Mr. Li is deemed to be interested in the
entire 824,763,200 shares held by Wealth Keeper by
virtue of the SFO.

4. These underlying shares are share options at an exercise
price of HK$7.5175 per Share granted on 17 December
2013 (subject to adjustment).

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2019, none of
the Directors or chief executive of the Company or any of
their associates had any interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debenture of the Company or
any associated corporations.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 21 September 2012, the Company adopted a share
option scheme (the “Scheme”), which was approved by
the Shareholders at the annual general meeting of the

Company held on the same date.

The purpose of the Scheme is to enable the Company
to grant share options to the eligible participants as

incentives or rewards for their contributions to the Group.
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According to the Scheme, the Board may grant share
options to the eligible participants as defined in the
Scheme to subscribe for such number of shares as the
Board may determine. Share options granted should
be accepted within 28 days from the date of the letter
of grant. Upon acceptance of the share options, the
grantee shall pay HK$1.00 to the Company by way of
consideration for the grant. Subject to the terms of the
Scheme and all applicable laws, the Board has the power
to determine the period within which payments or calls
must or may be made.

The exercise price of share options shall be determined
by the Board, which shall be at least the highest of (i) the
closing price of the shares as stated in the daily quotations
sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of the grant,
which must be a business day; (ii) the average closing price
of the shares as stated in the daily quotations sheets of
the Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of the grant; and (iii) the nominal value
of a share.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon the exercise of all share options to be granted under
the Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of the
Company must not exceed 10% of the total number of
shares in issue of the Company on the date of approval
and adoption of the Scheme provided that the Company
may at any time seek approval from its Shareholders to
refresh the limit to 10% of the shares in issue as at the
date of approval by the Shareholders in general meeting
where such limit is refreshed. Share options previously
granted under any share option schemes of the Company
(including those outstanding, cancelled, lapsed in
accordance with such schemes or exercised options) will
not be counted for the purpose of calculating the limit as
refreshed.

REZAE EFSARAZEMRAEZA
ER2EEREBRENZBESSUEE
ZEBENDEE R OBEREEANE DK
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The total number of shares which may fall to be issued
upon exercise of the share options granted under the
Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of the
Company (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding
options) to each eligible participant in any 12-month
period up to and including the date of grant shall not
exceed 1% of the shares in issue as at the date of grant
unless such grant has been duly approved by ordinary
resolution of the Shareholders in general meeting at
which the relevant eligible participant and his associates
abstained from voting. Share options granted to
substantial shareholders or independent non-executive
Directors or any of their respective associates in any
12-month period in excess of 0.1% of the Company’s
issued share capital on the date of grant and with a value
in excess of HK$5,000,000 must be approved in advance
by the Shareholders.

The period during which a share option may be exercised
will be determined by the Board at its absolute discretion,
save that no share options can be exercised more than
10 years after it has been granted. There is no general
requirement that a share options must be held for any
minimum period before it can be exercised. The Scheme
will expire on 20 September 2022.

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on
14 September 2018, the Company was authorised to
refresh the scheme mandate limit to issue a maximum
of 132,486,969 shares options under the Scheme.
Notwithstanding the forgoing, the shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted
and yet to be exercised under the Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company at any time shall
not exceed 30% of the shares in issue from time to time.
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: During the Year, no share options were granted, exercised RAEAFE WHEBREERLD TE R ~= ]
and cancelled and a total of 452,336 share options $ & H£452,3361% B M Ko B AR
were lapsed. As at the date of this report, the total SHE ZAHBETUHBEITZRMNDESE
number of shares available for issue under the Scheme is 141,135,643 - BERAAG R ZE
141,135,643, which represents approximately 9.66% of —NFLtAWEBZEEHTRMOGBE (R
the total number of shares in issue of the Company as at 4 1,461,609,692% ) < 499.66% °

July 2019 (i.e. 1,461,609,692 shares).

The movements in the share options granted under the RAEFE  REZTERE CBREZS T
Scheme during the Year are shown below: Ny U

Number of share options

BREYE
Date of Validity Exercise
Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed At31  grantof period price
At during during during during March share of share of share
Name or category of participants 1 April 2018 the Year the Year the Year the Year 2019 options options options
RZB-NE KEER KEER KEER REER  R-B-AE BREZ BREZ
SREZHENE BA-H i [y il %%  ZBZt-8  BHBH BREZEXNS RE
HK$
BT
per share
=1
Executive Directors
BES
Mr. Li Weibin 778,018 - - - - 778,018 24-04-13 24-04-14 to 6.4100
TRERE —Z£mA 23-04-23 (Note 1)
~tEA “MEMA-TWAZE
ZZEMAZT=ZH
(K1)
Mr. Siu Wai Yip 542,804 - - - - 542,804 24-04-13 24-04-14 to 6.4100
BEERE —Z5mA 23-04-23 (Note 1)
~+mEA -MEMAZTEAZ
Z=¥mA-t=H
(K1)
Ms. Lam Suk Ling, Shirley 542,804 - - - - 542,804 24-04-13 24-04-14 to 6.4100
(resigned on 4 April 2019) —ZEmA 23-04-23 (Note 1)
Lyt es it itz -REMA-TMAZE
(R=E-NERFBAFE) ZZEMAZT=ZH
(K1)
Mr. Lau Chi Kit 361,869 - - - - 361,869 24-04-13 24-04-14 to 6.4100
BpLE —Z£WA 23-04-23 (Note 1)
—+mA “REMAZtNAZE
ZZERMAZT=R
(K1)
° °
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" Number of share options

BRE#A
Date of Validity Exercise
Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed At 31 grant of period price
At during during during during March  share of share of share
Name or category of participants 1 April 2018 the Year the Year the Year the Year 2019 options options options
RIB-NE REER REER AEER REER RZB-7E  BREZ BREZ
SREZBEARA BA-H it Eix:d il F3:d ZBZt+-B BHAH BREZEHNS o4}
HK$
BT
per share
B
Non-executive Director
FUTER
Ms. Fung Sau Mui 180,935 - - - - 180,935 24-04-13 24-04-14 to 6.4100
BAERL —ZEMA 23-04-23 (Note 1)
—+mA “REMAZTNAZE
Z=¥mMA-t=H
(Hit1)
Independent Non-executive Directors
BUFHTES
Dr. Ho Chung Tai, Raymond 361,869 - - - - 361,869 17-12-13 17-12-14 to 7.5175
HEREL -Z£+Zf 16-12-23 (Note 3)
++tA -REFZATtRZE
ZZE+ZATRR
(Hit3)
Ms. Lai Ka Fung, May 180,935 - - - - 180,935 24-04-13 24-04-14 to 6.4100
BEELL —Z%mA 23-04-23 (Note 1)
ZtEA -MEMAZTEAZE
Z=EMAZt=H
(1)
Ms. Chan Sim Ling, 180,935 - - - - 180,935 24-04-13 24-04-14 to 6.4100
Irene —ZEMmfA 23-04-23 (Note 1)
RERLT —+mA -REMA-TRAZR
Z=¥mA=t=H
(Hit1)
Sub-total 3,130,169 - - - - 3,130,169
I
Others
H
Employees 2,352,148 - - - - 2,352,148 24-04-13 24-04-14 to 6.4100
E8 —ZEMA 23-04-23 (Note 1)
—+mA “REMA-TNAZE
Z=¥mA=t=H
(Hit1)
1,085,608 - - - (361,869) 723,739 29-11-13 29-11-14 to 7.7375
—Z%+-4 28-11-23 (Note 2)
—thB -BET-AZTABEZ
ZZE+-AZ+NR
(Hi2)
Other eligible participants 2,533,085 - - - (90,467) 2,442,618 24-04-13 24-04-14 to 6.4100
ARk aE —Z4£mA 23-04-23 (Note 1)
—+mA “REMA-TNAZE
Z=¥mA=t=H
(Hit1)
Sub-total 5,970,841 - - - (452,336) 5,518,505
At
Total 9,101,010 - - - (452,336) 8,648,674
st

° L
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The validity period of the share options are vested into
five tranches with (i) the first 20% of the share options
shall become exercisable from 24 April 2014 until 23 April
2023 (both days inclusive); (ii) the next 20% of the share
options shall become exercisable from 24 April 2015 until
23 April 2023 (both days inclusive); (iii) the next 20% of
the share options shall become exercisable from 24 April
2016 until 23 April 2023 (both days inclusive); (iv) the
next 20% of the share options shall become exercisable
from 24 April 2017 until 23 April 2023 (both days
inclusive); and (v) the remaining 20% of the share options
shall become exercisable from 24 April 2018 until 23 April
2023 (both days inclusive).

The validity period of the share options are vested into
five tranches with (i) the first 20% of the share options
shall become exercisable from 29 November 2014 until
28 November 2023 (both days inclusive); (ii) the next
20% of the share options shall become exercisable from
29 November 2015 until 28 November 2023 (both days
inclusive); (iii) the next 20% of the share options shall
become exercisable from 29 November 2016 until 28
November 2023 (both days inclusive); (iv) the next 20%
of the share options shall become exercisable from 29
November 2017 until 28 November 2023 (both days
inclusive); and (v) the remaining 20% of the share options
shall become exercisable from 29 November 2018 until 28
November 2023 (both days inclusive).
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3. The validity period of the share options are vested into
five tranches with (i) the first 20% of the share options
shall become exercisable from 17 December 2014 until
16 December 2023 (both days inclusive); (i) the next
20% of the share options shall become exercisable from
17 December 2015 until 16 December 2023 (both days
inclusive); (iii) the next 20% of the share options shall
become exercisable from 17 December 2016 until 16
December 2023 (both days inclusive); (iv) the next 20%
of the share options shall become exercisable from 17
December 2017 until 16 December 2023 (both days
inclusive); and (v) the remaining 20% of the share options
shall become exercisable from 17 December 2018 until 16

December 2023 (both days inclusive).

The closing price of the Company’s shares immediately
before the date on which the share options were granted,
i.e. 23 April 2013, 28 November 2013 and 16 December
2013, were HK$0.56, HK$0.68 and HK$0.68 per share,

respectively.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed above in “DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY AND ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS”, at
no time during the Year was the Company, its holding
company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,

the Company or any other body corporate.
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Ll SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND FERREREMA ARG REER

OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND BzEERER

SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2019, the Shareholders (other than RE—NF=ZA=1+—B BER(EFFHAK
Directors or chief executive of the Company) who had NAEEITHRABRIN RARGF 2 KRMHK
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying HERNDT HEEEELZRARFRERS
shares of the Company as recorded in the register required MHABIRPIEIB6IEFE 2 BELMA  ES
to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of THEARRNE S EEES T :
the SFO, or otherwise notified to the Company are set out
below:
Long positions in ordinary shares and underlying shares of REARREBREREERNO 2 KA
the Company
Approximate
percentage of
Number of the total
ordinary Interest in number of
Name of shares of underlying shares in issue
substantial Shareholders Capacity HK$0.3125 each shares Total of the Company
EXRAT
SREE 2RTRH
0312582 R Y
TERRER B2 5% EEREE a3 @t BAES
(Note 1)
(HaE1)
Wealth Keeper Beneficial owner 824,763,200 - 824,763,200 56.43%
ERBEBA
Ms. Cao Wei (“Ms. Cao”) Interest of spouse 891,268,800 778,018 892,046,818 61.03%
(Note 2) (Note 3) (Note 4)
Beat ([Exxl) (Mi#2) BEER (H1323) (Hiit4)
Notes: Bt it -
1. Based on 1,461,609,692 ordinary Shares of the Company 1. BARNRR_TE—NF=ZA=+—HE%#
issued as at 31 March 2019. #11,461,609,692 % I AR5+ #

—o .
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2. Ms. Cao is the spouse of Mr. Li.

3. These shares comprise (i) 66,505,600 shares personally
held by Mr. Li, and (ii) 824,763,200 shares held by Wealth
Keeper, the entire issued share capital of which is wholly
and beneficially owned by Mr. Li. Mr. Li is the spouse of
Ms. Cao. Accordingly, Ms. Cao is deemed to be interested
in the said number of shares respectively held by Mr. Li
and Wealth Keeper by virtue of the SFO.

4. These 778,018 underlying shares comprise 778,018
share options held by Mr. Li, the spouse of Ms. Cao.
Accordingly, Ms. Cao is deemed to be interested in these
778,018 underlying shares by virtue of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2019, no other
persons had any interests or short positions in the shares
or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under Section
336 of the SFO, or otherwise notified to the Company.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Continuing Connected Transactions

Pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, the
Company discloses the following continuing connected

transactions incurred during the Year.
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4, Z5778,018 AR M BEERE LT 2
BERLEEE 2778018 BEARE - F it -
BIEEHFLBERD S LHEARNZE
778,018 FE B AR 0 ¥ A M A
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EX i

On 30 March 2018, the Financial Guarantee Company, (as
at the date of this annual report, an indirect non-wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company) and Xi'an Dewantong
Commercial Operation and Management Company
Limited* (“Dewantong”) entered into a financial
guarantee contract ("“Dewantong FG Contract”),
pursuant to which the Financial Guarantee Company has
agreed to provide financial guarantee to the lending bank
in favour of Dewantong for procuring Dewantong in
obtaining the bank loan. At the even date, as 50% of the
equity interest of Dewantong was held by Mr. Li, the
transactions pursuant to the Dewantong FG Contract
constituted continuing connected transactions for the

Company under the Listing Rules.

The principal terms of the Dewantong FG Contract are set

RZFE-NF=ZA=1T8 BEERFRRF (R
AERBHPRARAHEEFEZEMNBRR)
HAZEERNEELERARAR ([RE8
BRI DREERAO ([ REERER
REWN]) B REZER2FACRAENRE
BREARMARMERRITREBEER AR
EESBESRITER-RA ARNEEEZ
50%RETHFEERE WRERSER
BRERANETZIRSBH EMRAET A
REIZFHERERS -

REBABEERANIEZGRIIWT

out below:
Approximate
Guaranteed guarantee  Guarantee

Contract Date of Contract amount income  service period
CEd) AHBH kreHE BORRKA BREBHE

(RMB in million) (RMB in million)

(AR®REL) (AR®AEETL)
Dewantong FG Contract 30 March 2018 4.000 0.100 30 March 2018 to
REAREERAN —Z2-\$=A=+H 25 March 2019

By 24 October 2018, Mr. Li disposed all of his equity
interest in Dewantong. Accordingly, Dewantong ceased
to be an associate of Mr. Li and the transactions between
Dewantong and the Financial Guarantee Company were
no longer the continuing connected transactions of the
Company under the Listing Rules as from 24 October
2018.

*  For identification purpose only

—E-\EZA=1HZ
—E-NE=A=-+HH

RZE-N\F+AZ+EAR FEELE
ERfeE8RazemikE-Fit 88 TH
REFEZHEAL BRESBERBERZR
RAETZRSE_E-N\F+A=-+HEA
EABAEMRUBATNARRZFERER
5o
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For the period in the Year while Dewantong remained
as the connected party of the Company, approximately
RMB54,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$63,000)
(2018: approximately RMB141,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$167,000)) was received/receivable from
Dewantong. Further details of the Dewantong FG Contract
are set out in the announcement of the Company dated
30 March 2018.

On 28 September 2018, the Financial Guarantee Company
and Xi‘an Hui Jing Zhuo Yuan Information Technology
Company Limited* (“Zhuo Yuan") entered into a financial
guarantee contract (“ZY FG Contract”) and a consultancy
services contract (“ZY CS Contract”), pursuant to which
the Financial Guarantee Company has agreed to provide
financial guarantee to the lending bank in favour of Zhuo
Yuan for procuring Zhuo Yuan in obtaining the bank loan
and the Financial Guarantee Company has also agreed to
provide logistics consultancy services to Zhuo Yuan in
return for services income.

*  For identification purpose only
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RZZB-NFAAZTNA BEERAF
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The principal terms of the ZY FG Contract and ZY CS ETREERGAORETHZARBEDOZE
Contract are set out below: ZIRFHEINAT
Approximate
guarantee fee/
Guaranteed consultancy  Guarantee/consultancy
Contract Date of Contract amount service fee  service period
BOERE/
CL RHNBH EReE RARBRE EBR/FARBHE
(RMB in million) (RMB in million)
(AR%BERL) (AR®AEETRL)
ZY FG Agreement 28 September 2018 5.000 0.125 28 September 2018 to
ETREERED ZE-N\FNA 27 September 2019
—+AR ZE-NFAAZTN\BE
“E-AFAAZTLR
ZY CS Agreement 28 September 2018 Not applicable 0.225 28 September 2018 to 27
ETEARBEH ZZ-NENA TER September 2019
s AN = ZZ-N\FAAZTN\BE
“E-AFAAZTLR

MRETT Z56%RETI M F L Z BB
B MET/ARRZEEATBREETH
BRERANWRETLEARBTEOETIRS
B ETRAUNETRARRZHEBEER S -
ERELTREEREORETHEAREEH
ZE-FHFBERARABHRAR/R T -NF
NANAZtTNRZR A -

As 56% of the equity interest of Zhuo Yuan is held by
the relatives of Mr. Li, Zhuo Yuan is a connected person
of the Company and the transactions pursuant to the ZY
FG Contract and ZY CS Contract constituted continuing
connected transactions of the Company under the Listing
Rules. Further details of the ZY FG Contract and ZY CS
Contract are set out in the announcement of the Company
dated 28 September 2018.

RAFE AEEBK B ETERE
h#FABAEHEHARM167,0000T (HER
#9195,000%8 L) (ZZ2E—N\F-HARK
303,0007T (#H5 K 4358,000/87T) ) ©

During the Year, the Group has received/receivable from
Zhuo Yuan the guarantee fee and consultancy fee of total
approximately RMB167,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$195,000) (2018: approximately RMB303,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$358,000)).

—o .
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On 28 March 2018, the Financial Guarantee Company and
Shaanxi Gun Shi Xin Tian Di Cultural Investment Company
Limited* (“Gun Shi”) entered into a new financial
guarantee contract (“GS FG Contract”), pursuant to
which the Financial Guarantee Company has agreed to
provide financial guarantee to the lending bank in favour
of Gun Shi for procuring Gun Shi in obtaining the bank
loan. At the even date, as 68.13% of the equity interest
of Gun Shi was held by the relative of Mr. Li and the
remaining 31.87% of the equity interest of Gun Shi was
owned by an entity which is controlled by Mr. Li, the
transactions pursuant to the GS FG Contract constituted
continuing connected transactions for the Company under
the Listing Rules.

The principal terms of the GS FG Contract are set out

Directors’ Report
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RZZE-NEF=ZAZ+N\B BEERARHR
PREER AR LR EBR AR ([RAD)
VT RMEEREN(ERARMERR
e Bt BEERAREBERENEA
AZm ARMBERRITRHEBEERAREER
HESETER BB BARNEAZ68.13%
BREDEZTEEZHRBREREAZHART
31.87% B TIHFT AL 2 ERBES W
BEEOMEERENETZIRIEX LT
MABEBTARRZIHFERER S -

BOMERRANIEZGRIIMAT

below:
Approximate
guarantee/
Guaranteed consultancy  Guarantee/consultancy
Contract Date of Contract amount service income  service period
BOER/
CE) AHBH BRERE BARBUA  BR/ZAREHE
(RMB in million) (RMB in million)
(AR¥EERL) (AR%ABEL)
GS FG Contract 28 March 2018 4.00 0.1 28 March 2018 to
BORERREH “E-N\F 15 March 2019
ZA=-t+ANB —E-NF=ZAZtN\RBE
ZE-NF=A+EA

By 8 February 2019, Mr. Li and his relative disposed all
of their equity interest in Gun Shi. Accordingly, Gun Shi
ceased to be an associate of Mr. Li and the transactions
between Gun Shi and the Financial Guarantee Company
were no longer the continuing connected transactions of
the Company under the Listing Rules as from 8 February
2019.

*  For identification purpose only

RZE—NFZANBR ZHREREBRE
PERENRAZZEHRE-ALL - BEATH
BEEEZHBBEBAL BRAEMEERA
RETZRSEE—NLEF_ANBETE
BEMRBBINARBZEERER S -
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For the period in the Year while Gun Shi remained as
the connected party of the Company, approximately
RMB84,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$98,000)
(2018:
approximately HK$126,000)) was received/receivable from
Gun Shi.

approximately RMB106,000 (equivalent to

Further details of the GS FG Contract are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 28 March 2018.

On 19 September 2017, the Finance Lease Company and
Xi'an Hao Hua Zhi Ye Company Limited* (“Hao Hua")
entered into the asset purchase agreement and the
finance lease agreement (together, the “Sales and Lease-
back Agreements”), pursuant to which the Finance Lease
Company agreed to purchase certain assets (being lifts
and escalators) from Hao Hua and thereafter lease back
the assets to Hao Hua for a lease payment.

The principal terms of the Sales and Lease-back

Agreements are set out below:

RAFERANABARRZHBEALHRE K
SEBE W EUCE A LB ARKESSL0007T (48
Z04998,0008 L) (ZE—NF HARK
106,0007T (& 49126,00087L) ) °

ERROREERGOZE-—FHBINAK

RAERA-E-NF=ZA-FTNAZAM

WO

R-ZZE—tFHLATILBE BMEHEQAHR
AREEEXERRARF ([FEETLEER

Bz hkpEHE R (RHEL SR EET
B Bt REHEQARRSMEERE
ETEE(AARBERKFER) ARER
# & E m A T OEE ARERE E 5K

EROMBHEZ 2GRN T

Total
Agreement Date of Agreement Consideration lease payment  Lease period
165 % 1% B 4 RE BEENR HEHH
(RMB in million) (RMB in million)
(AR¥EERL) (AR¥ABEL)
Sales and Lease-back Agreements 19 September 2017 16.0000 17.2000 19 September 2017 to
ERERRE —E-+FNATNA 18 September 2018
—tEAATHIRE
—N\EAATNR

*  For identification purpose only
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In addition to the above principal terms, the Finance
Lease Company charged Hao Hua a handling fee of
approximately RMB320,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$380,800) over the terms of Sales and Lease-back
Agreements which is equivalent to 2% of the principal
amount of the lease under the Sales and Lease-back
Agreements. The obligation of Hao Hua under the Sales
and Lease-back Agreements is also secured by personal
guarantee provided by Mr. Li and the corporate guarantee
provided by Shaanxi Songri Zhi Ye Company Limited*, a
company owned as to 50% by Mr. Li.

The transactions pursuant to the Sales and Lease-back
Agreements constituted continuing connected transactions
of the Company, as 60% of the equity interest of Hao Hua
is owned (directly and indirectly, in aggregate) by Mr. Li.
Further details of the Sales and Lease-back Agreements are
set out in the announcement of the Company dated 19
September 2017.

During the Year, the Group has received/receivable
from Hao Hua the lease payment of approximately total
RMB8.6 million (equivalent to approximately HK$10.03
million) (2018: approximately RMB8.6 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$10.20 million)), which included
interest income and handling income of RMB350,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$408,000) (2018:
approximately RMB1,120,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$1,326,000)) pursuant to the Sales and Lease-back

Agreements.

The guarantee amount and financial guarantee services
income charged to Dewantong, Zhuo Yuan and Gun Shi
were based on the credit risk assessment to respective
parties and the prevailing market bank loan rate in the
PRC. The consultancy services income charged to Zhuo
Yuan was based on the scope of services provided. The
lease payment from Hao Hua was based on prevailing
market rates and terms for similar finance lease

arrangements.

*  For identification purpose only
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Pursuant to the Listing Rules, the independent non-
executive Directors have reviewed the above continuing
connected transactions and confirmed that the
transactions were entered into:

(i) by the Group in the usual and ordinary course of
business;

(ii) on normal commercial terms or on terms no less
favourable to the Group than terms available to or
from independent third parties;

(iii) in accordance with the terms of the relevant
agreements and the contracts mentioned above
governing them on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the Company and
its shareholders as a whole; and

(iv) have not exceeded the relevant maximum amount
capped in accordance with the announcements of

the Company as mentioned above.

The Company’s auditor were engaged to report on the
Group's continuing connected transactions in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements
3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or
Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with
reference to Practice Note 740 "Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. The auditor of the Company
has issued an unqualified letter containing his findings
and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions disclosed by the Group in accordance with
Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s
letter will be provided by the Company to the Stock

Exchange.

REBE LR BUFRATESSH L F
BUHERXSIEHEERERWT

(i) ZEXSGTIHAEBRN —REFER
BIER ST

(i ZRERZDE—REEEIITER
AREBABYLE =T REIBLE=

FRAREBIRME 2 EFRET

(i) ZEXSHREANLEBEBENED
ZAEFREIT MEEHE 2K E%
NELRE - IHFEAEARNRREREZ
BNz &

(iv) REXRZALEEBRELEXHAAARL
AZAMAE AR ERBE-

AARZEMERZERBEESSHMAE
Mz BB ZBZLIEAERZE30005 [F&£a
FEHFELYBFER NN ZELZE] R2R
B ERBE 7405 [ BIREE L i 4RI AT At #
EBHESL G REAMF ) REAEB 2
%@Lx%o$@ﬂV%%Emﬁtmﬁw
FIAASOKRBELERBER MG EFHE
ERASEMBERCHERERSI 2 AEE
RREER - ARNAKE AT ZZEAM
B RIS o
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

On 5 May 2017, the Financial Guarantee Company and
Xi'an Fu Ri Hotel Property Management Company Limited*
("Fu Ri") entered into a financial guarantee contract,
pursuant to which the Financial Guarantee Company has
agreed to provide financial guarantee to the lending bank
in favour of Fu Ri for procuring Fu Ri in obtaining the bank
loan amounting to RMB17.0 million. Mr. Li Weibin, the
chairman and managing director of the Company, is one
of the directors of Fu Ri.

During the Year, the Group has received/receivable from
Fu Ri the financial guarantee services fee of approximately
RMB105,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$122,000)
(2018: approximately RMB1,159,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$1,373,000)). Mr. Li is one of the

directors of Fu Ri.

On 28 November 2017, CLI Design Limited, a subsidiary
of the Company entered into a tenancy agreement (the
“Tenancy Agreement”) with Golden Life Investment
Limited (“Golden Life"”) for the lease of Workshops Nos.
1 to 8 19 to 21 on the 2nd Floor (with an aggregate
gross floor area of about 6,149 square feet) and the Car
Parking Space Nos. P9 and P10 on the Ground Floor of
Decca Industrial Centre, 12 Kut Shing Street, Chai Wan,
Hong Kong at a monthly rental of HK$78,650 and monthly
building management fee of HK$10,616 for a term of
three years from 1 December 2017 to 30 November 2020.
Ms. Fung Sau Mui, a non-executive Director, is one of the

directors of Golden Life.

During the Year, the Group paid rental and building
management fees in an aggregate amount of
approximately HK$1,071,000 (2018: HK$1,006,000) to
Golden Life pursuant to the Tenancy Agreement.

*  For identification purpose only
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The significant related party transactions entered into by
the Group during the Year, including the above mentioned,
are set out in note 53 to the consolidated financial
statements which include transactions that constitute
continuing connected transactions for which the disclosure

requirements under the Listing Rules have been complied.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed “CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS” and “RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS”
above, no contracts of significance to which the Company,
its holding company or any of its subsidiaries was a party
and in which a Director had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year or at

any time during the Year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Group were entered into or in existence
during the Year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed

securities during the Year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices
are set out in the "Corporate Governance Report” from
pages 43 to 70 of this annual report.
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RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES

The employees of the Group are one of the most
important assets and stakeholders of the Group and
their contribution and support are values at all times.
The Group regularly reviews compensation and benefits
policies according to industry benchmark as well as
the individual performance of employees. Other fringe
benefits, mandatory provident fund and share options are
provided to retain loyal employees with the aim to form
a professional staff and management team that can bring

the Group to different levels of success.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for disclosed in the section headed "“FINANCIAL
REVIEW” in the Management Discussion and Analysis
from pages 11 to 36 of this annual report and the section
headed “SHARE OPTION SCHEME" from pages 79 to 85 of
this annual report, the Company has not entered into any

equity-linked agreements during the Year.

PREMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Bye-Laws, the Directors, secretary and
other officers and every auditor for the time being of the
Company shall be entitled to be indemnified and secured
harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company
from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which they or any of them, shall
or may incur or sustain by or by reasons of any act done,
concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their
duties in their respective offices or otherwise in relation
thereto.

The Company has taken out insurance against all losses
and liabilities associated with defending any proceedings
which may be brought against Directors and other officers
of the Company.

Directors’ Report
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the Year, the Company was not aware of any non-
compliance with any relevant laws and regulations that
had a significant impact on it.

EMOLUMENTS POLICY

The emoluments policy of senior management of the
Group is set up by the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications and
competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are reviewed and
recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee, having regard to the Company's operating
results, individual performance and comparable market
statistics.

The Company had adopted the Scheme as an incentive to
Directors and eligible employees. Details of the Scheme
are set out in the section headed “Share Option Scheme”
above.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his/
her independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Company considers all of the independent non-
executive Directors are independent.

CHANGE IN DIRECTOR’S INFORMATION
Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the change
in information of the Director during the period from 1
April 2018 to the date of this report is set out below:

Dr. Ho Chung Tai, Raymond was appointed as the
chairman and non-executive director of SCUD Group
Limited (stock code: 1399) with effect from 27 September
2018. He retired as an independent non-executive director
of China State Construction International Holdings Limited
(stock code: 3311) on 3 June 2019. The shares of the
above two companies are listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange.
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Save for the above change, there is no other information
that is required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1)
of the Listing Rules.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Bye-Laws of the Company, or the laws of Bermuda, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-
rata basis to existing Shareholders.

DONATIONS

During the Year, the Group made donations amounting to
approximately HK$0.5 million.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, at
least 25% of the Company’s total issued share capital was
held by public as at the date of this annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management
of the Company the consolidated financial statements
of the Group for the Year and discussed with the
management of the Company on auditing, risk
management, internal control and financial reporting
matters. Information on the composition of the Audit
Committee is set out in the Corporate Governance Report
from pages 43 to 70 of this annual report.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting for the re-appointment of Messrs.
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Li Weibin
Chairman
Hong Kong, 4 July 2019

Directors’ Report
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B W

Deloitte

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
CHINLINK INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
EEFTSEKRZRERATF

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Chinlink International Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the
Group”) set out on pages 110 to 383, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
March 2019, and the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a

summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 31 March 2019, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

B EETSEEBERAERQIARRE

(RERZZME L BRI A])

=R

NZEE (ATHBEIRMEEZ&HIR
FI0EEFE383B 2 EERSBBFEIZERER
ARl (ATEHEIEAT]) RERBAR (B
TeHIBEE] ) 2HFeVBmE e
BHRRBERA_ZE—AF=ZA=+t—HZ
REVBRAREABEEZALFE 2 FEE
HmREMEEKER SERRZHERNG
EHeRER URKEMBHRENTE 215
FESHHREHE-

BMRBR SEMBRRCREFTE S
~g ([BEREEAE]) AR ZEBHBER
SEA([BEBMBREEN ) EEMAFi
R EEER-_ZT-NAF=A=+—-HZ
REMBRARBEZALFE a0
RARGEABEERE YERBREFB QMK
Iz BREEERB

CHINLINK INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 3% I H 4 [ B £ )it 5 it 4 7] | Annual Report 2019 3§



Independent Auditor’s Report

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our

opinion.

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO
GOING CONCERN

We draw attention to note 1 to the consolidated financial
statements, which indicates that the Group’s current
liabilities exceeded its current assets by HK$968,804,000
at 31 March 2019. As stated in note 1, the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern is dependent on the
ongoing availability of financial support by the Group's
ultimate controlling shareholder and chairman, as well as
successfully obtaining new credit facilities and the issuance
of new 9.0% coupon bonds. However if the financial
support were not available, or the new financing is not
successfully obtained, the Group would be unable to meet
its financial obligations as and when they fall due. These
conditions indicate the existence of a material uncertainty
which may cast significant doubt about the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern. Our opinion is not
modified in respect of this matter.

B W

RRE®
BHERETESHMASRM 2 ELE
ZH ([BERFHEY]ETEZ EELE
AT B2 EESEARETZBEIREZ
REMBHMRAAEZEEPE - FFd-
REBFERMAGZEXRS AR TR
(BEIFA) HMBIN E£E IE
ERTABTEMAERERET HAMEE"
B EGZERBRESACMEE R
Mz B RIZHER-

FRASFECENERTHBARER

BME BT EEREGVBRENT &
FERNR_Z—AFE=ZA=+—H &%
E 2B & & A H R E) & ZE968,804,000
BT I i - BEEEES
EZRENBANESHERS E£ERK
TIRIRER R EER B AR DIEE
FEEMEREITHIONESESH - Rin
i RIS I 245 S EER T BUS 3T At
& BEEREEIRTEINHBCHMBES-
ZEBRBRTEEATHIARE S8
¥ BEEEEERELENENIERENR
BB MERNEHMZFEIELIER -

&+t 458 4T
BRFEL

Annual Report 2019 % | CHINLINK INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED % [ 1 4 [ B £ )bt 47 Bt 24 )

o

101



Independent Auditor’s Report

B 7B W

FAREXEE

RERFMZEFZHE BREZEESLM
BERAPGEEMBRRPREEZIFE It
EFFENBMEBZERBREMBREMNE
HERRATRE MERMATEMUEFSER
BERERER - BRLAABRKELENERX

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial

- e

102

statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion

thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

THEERRETBBNAREZFR-

these matters. In addition to the matter described on the

Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern section, we

have determined the matters described below to be the

key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

Key audit matter

BRELKEE

Valuation of investment properties

REYXRIGE

We identified the valuation of investment properties
as a key audit matter due to the significance of the
balance to the consolidated financial statements
and the significant unobservable inputs and
judgments involved in determining the fair value.
BB EREMELEZRNLSBAREZEE RAR
ERHEAVBRAMSFEEZEREE R FER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RMzBRnMEERgERER

Our procedures in relation to the valuation of
investment properties included:

BZHEBAREMEGEIREFERE:

o Evaluating the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the independent qualified
professional valuer;

PSRz BRTAIER & A B K26 - . B EREXLEMZEN BOIR
FEMN

As set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial

statements, the carrying amount of the Group's e Obtaining an understanding from the

investment properties as at 31 March 2019
amounted to HK$3,942 million which is stated
at fair value as determined based on valuation
performed by an independent qualified professional
valuer.

BN e M BHREMEFI17ME EBESE 2%
BWMER_ZT—NF=ZA=+—Bz2EHEEAR
3,942,000,000/ 7T - HIRB U S BB B XMERME
AREEREEZATFERZY -

independent qualified professional valuer of
the valuation methodology, the performance
of the property markets, significant
assumptions adopted and key inputs and
data used in the valuation;

. MBIAEAREEGEMTREEREZ Y
EmSERL - HERMERAZEBRREMMA
KAZEFEZRABEREE:
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Key audit matter (continued)

BERERSE (&)

Valuation of investment properties (continued)
REYFILE (&)

The valuation of investment properties requires
the application of significant judgment and
estimation in determining the appropriate valuation
methodology, adoption of significant assumptions
and use of various unobservable inputs in the
valuation models. The valuation is sensitive to the
underlying assumptions and inputs such as the
market comparables and discount rate used which
can have a significant impact on the valuation.
REVEZHEEREETESEHES X EHE
BEXARMERABREREAZETAER B ABER
FERERFE K- HERSXINEBEKRE RS
BAIEHNBRRGRARBBERXERABLITE
MmZzEw ABrHHEEKNERTE-

Valuation of trade and loan receivables

EWE ZREREXNELZ151E

We identified the valuation of trade and loan
receivables as a key audit matter due to the
significance of the balances to the consolidated
financial statements and significant judgments
involved by management in the valuation process.
BPKEKE 5 RIE R EWE R 2 (HEZ R AR
EREH RERAEKEGRAMBEHREAMNSIETE
EREREBEMERIZT T M2 EXRHE -

B W

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

(continued)

BEMzERNNEEREEREE (&)

o Assessing the appropriateness of valuation
methodology, the significant judgments and
assumptions applied, including the market
comparables used and adjustment factors
adopted based on our knowledge of the
industry; and

. REBEHRFEITRZ TR SHEEETTE IR
REXRAGRBR (BEMRBZHHAITE
HRZGREMZABRRR)ZERRE

o Checking the arithmetical accuracy of the
valuation calculations and, on a sample
basis, the key inputs and data to available
market data and evidence.

. BRREEZBLEFSE R A Bl ER T
NATATSBELBE 2R AEREUE -

Our procedures in relation to the valuation of trade
and loan receivables included:

BPEEREKEZRBENEREREEZREFELE:

o Understanding the key controls as to how
the loss allowance for trade and loan
receivables is estimated by the management;

. THRERBINEAEEKE SHRERERE
R BREEZ T2EH

o Testing the accuracy of the ECL adjustment
made by the Group as at 1 April 2018 on
initial adoption of HKFRS 9;

. AR BEEERERRMBFENBREED
FORENR T N\FHA—BIELZTEHIE
EBEAREEL ER:
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Key audit matter (continued)

BREXEE (&)

Valuation of trade and loan receivables (continued)
JEWE ZIRIAREWE 1518 (&)

As disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group estimates the loss allowance
for trade and loan receivables using expected
credit loss (“ECL”) model in accordance with
HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”. Under the model,
the Group assesses lifetime ECL individually for
debtors with significant balances or credit impaired
and/or collectively using a provision matrix with
appropriate age groupings for the remaining
debtors. For loan receivables, the Group measures
the loss allowance equal to 12-month ECL, unless
when there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition in which case the Group
recognises lifetime ECL. The management takes
into consideration, inter alia, the historical default
rates, past due status, general economic conditions
and an assessment of both the current conditions
at the report date as well as the forward looking
information specific to the debtors.

WA E M MR FATERE - BEEERESRE
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As set out in notes 28 and 26 respectively, the
Group has trade receivables of HK$25.6 million (net
the allowance for credit losses of HK$2.5million)
and loan receivables of HK$87.1 million as at 31
March 2019.

BB E28 K260 RIFAE, EBEHEBR-T—NF
ZA=1t—BZEWE FIRIER25600,000/%8 7T
(HIBR 1= B E518 52,500,000 L) R IEWRE R A
87,100,000/ 7T °

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
(continued)

RMZERNMEERREREE (£)

o Testing the accuracy of the aging analysis
of the trade receivables to the sale invoices
and/or goods delivery notes on a sample

basis;

. HHERRR /X EERMEEENHE
WE FERIAZ Rk DT 25 &M

o Evaluating the reasonableness and

appropriateness of historical default rates,
past due status, current conditions at the
report date as well as the forward looking
information specific to the debtors used in
determining estimated loss rates applied in
calculation of the loss allowance;

. AR ECTEEREEMERMER
EZRELBHE -BERR REBHRZER
MARBEBEAZEEANEEENEETEER

yoropln .
N

o Assessing whether the disclosures
regarding the impairment assessment of
trade receivables and loan receivables in
the consolidated financial statements are
sufficient and appropriate; and

. AR E M BREAANE BREWE 5 RERE
AT HEBREARANLEE R

o Testing subsequent settlements of credit
impaired trade receivables, on a sample
basis, to source documents.

. HRX M EmEEEAA LR EEREZE
WEZRBEZHEREREBR -
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report, but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our

auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to

report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued
by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud

or error.
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In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for

overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR

THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents
of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control
relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the

Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the
directors.
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o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to

continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that

achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the Group to express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

We also provide those charged with governance with
a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the
independent auditor’s report is Stephen C. L. Yuen.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong
4 July 2019
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. Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income "_;."

L4

/ For the year ended 31 March 2019 B E —F—UFE=H =+ —H IL4FFE

2019 2018
—E—hEF —E-NF
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
iz FET FAT
Revenue WA 5
Goods and services Emk R 1,670,571 1,205,187
Rental itk 28,145 27,172
Interest e
— Interest from finance lease —F&“H&ﬁﬁé{iﬁ%%’ﬂ
receivables F 8 32,568 8,829
— Other interest revenue —ﬁﬂﬂﬂ%”ﬁ)\ 19,002 16,538
Total revenue BTN 1,750,286 1,257,726
Cost of sales 55 K R (1,534,057) (1,110,523)
Gross profit EH 216,229 147,203
Other income, gains and losses Ha A - Wz & g5 18 7 7,521 70,435
Gain on fair value change of investment & ¥ %~ A FHEH
properties g 17 224,546 161,017
Loss arising from acquisition of WiE—MNE AR EE
a subsidiary ZE1E 45 = (101,654)
Impairment losses on financial assets, & @& E 2 MEEIE
net of reversal R & [E 9 (24,518) 245
Impairment loss on goodwill BE 2 R EE 18 (10,161) =
Selling and distribution costs HE KA AR (9,777) (11,703)
Administrative expenses THAX
— equity-settled share-based payments — —I&#E 25 45 & AR D
RER 2 K (265) (1,882)
— other administrative expenses —H TR X (132,526) (101,524)
(132,791) (103,406)
Finance costs B 7% B A 8 (199,461) (167,598)
Profit (loss) before tax MR (EE) 71,588 (5,461)
Income tax expense T8 ®i X 10 (54,432) (23,665)
Profit (loss) for the year AEE&F (FBE) 11 17,156 (29,126)
Other comprehensive (expense) HihZ2m®E (BxX) A
income
Item that may be subsequently HEAJEFTIEE
reclassified to profit or loss: BmoHE -
Exchange difference arising on R E iGN ETE
translation of foreign operations EEZELZEZR (187,262) 270,037
Total comprehensive (expense) AEEE2AE (AX)
income for the year W A 4858 (170,106) 240,911
o o
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

B 48 ai B Bl B 1A WL 4k R

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # % —F—JUE=H =+ —H L4 &

2019 2018 —

—E-hEF —E-N\F
NOTE HK$'000 HK$'000
izt FERT FAT
Profit (loss) for the year EAAEEZAN (FE) :
attributable to:
Owners of the Company ZIN/NECIE7 ¥ =N 18,887 (77,877)
Non-controlling interests FE1Z IR A 2 (1,731) 48,751
17,156 (29,126)
Total comprehensive (expense) EBhAAEE2E (BX)
income for the LON L
year attributable to:
Owners of the Company ZIN/NEIEZF =IN (157,628) 141,378
Non-controlling interests FEFERR M A (12,478) 99,533
(170,106) 240,911
Earnings (loss) per share SREF (&HHE) 15
— Basic —HEHAK HK1.38 HK (11.44)
centsi& 1l cents 71U
— Diluted -8 HK1.38 HK (11.44)
centsi& 1l cents 71U

a o
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/ At 31 March 2019 A ZF—NFE=ZA=+—H

"\ Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
NOTES HK$'00_0 HK$ZOO_O
Bz FExT T T
Non-current assets EREBEE
Property, plant and equipment ER e 16 53,064 24,378
Investment properties HEME 17 3,941,746 3,871,563
Goodwill Bk 18 32,555 42,716
Deposit for land auction THHEE S 21 10,495 =
Financial assets at fair value through BT EFAABRZ®
profit or loss BMEE 23 15,880 -
Available-for-sale investment AHEEIRE 19 = 1,239
Payment for a life insurance policy ASREBRE 2 AR 20 - 12,215
Deposits and prepayments e RIBN I 28 21,450 3,128
Finance lease receivables R B E R 24 220,640 125,269
4,295,830 4,080,508
Current assets REEE
Inventories 7E 25 12,992 872
Trade receivables JEW Z 5 BR1E 28 25,635 100,277
Trade receivables from related U EEARICE SR
companies | 28 - 269
Loan receivables FEWE K 26 87,067 130,986
Finance lease receivables FE W & & IR 24 103,243 76,531
Factoring receivables FEY P SR IE IR 27 106,520 =
Other receivables, deposits and HibEWERTE ik & &k
prepayments TE{S FRIE 28 33,110 37,647
Amounts due from former subsidiaries & U5 A fff & A A1 B8R 1H 22 - 21,305
Restricted deposits X PR %1% 3K 29 = 61,927
Pledged bank deposits SRR ITER 30 470,519 448,550
Bank balances and cash RITEENMRS 31 83,138 193,082
922,224 1,071,446
Current liabilities REAE
Deferred revenue AT A - 2
Trade payables EE 58R1E 32 14,832 74,345
Other payables and accruals H b e ARIE 2
s EA 32 68,206 76,471
Loans from staff STER 33 23,891 30,857
Construction costs accruals FEETIEEER A 34 139,970 164,576
Receipts in advance B8 WG IE 36 17,057 46,147
Contract liabilities SHBE 35 27,722 =
Deposits received from tenants MEPEEFPRE 2
and customers e 24,559 19,623
Amounts due to related companies B EE R RRIEA 37 166,431 68,186
Amounts due to directors JENESERIE 37 7,182 43
Amounts due to former subsidiaries FERTRIHM B A~ A BRTE 22 9,164 8,365
Provision for warranty RERE 126 126
Financial guarantee contracts MEERED 46 4,409 3,180
Tax payable JENMIE 10,119 7,042
Bank and other borrowings HR1T R E A B R 38 1,010,649 683,494
9.0% coupon bonds 9.0% X2 B &5 40 366,656 =
Obligations under finance leases BhE A0 E R 55 749
1,891,028 1,183,206
Net current liabilities RBaEFHE (968,804) (111,760)
Total assets less current liabilities BWEERRBER 3,327,026 3,968,748
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position //

Bt 45 B AR L

At 31 March 2019 M=% —JE=ZA=+—H

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-)N\F
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
H it FHET T T
Non-current liabilities FREBEMF
3.0% convertible bonds 3.0% AT R & 5 39 - 287,802
9.0% coupon bonds 9.0%REEEH 40 - 355,967
12.0% coupon bonds 12.0% R BfEH 40 120,321 119,099
Obligation arising from a put option M) FE 1 AR IR SR HE 5RO
to a non-controlling shareholder BAMEEE & 2 AR 41 87,089 81,049
Deferred tax liabilities FEEFIBE & 42 295,145 276,511
Receipts in advance TE U RIR 36 6,254 24,026
Contract liabilities EHEE 35 8,297 =
Bank and other borrowings RIT R E A B 38 449,522 412,180
Amounts due to related companies B EERRREA 37 274,593 560,541
Obligations under finance leases A& T B AEE 89 144
1,241,310 2,117,319
2,085,716 1,851,429
Capital and reserves BEXR#E
Share capital & 4 43 456,753 213,662
Reserves & 1,565,223 1,560,282
Equity attributable to owners of KARHE AEGZ
the Company W= 2,021,976 1,773,944
Non-controlling interests IR = 63,740 77,485
2,085,716 1,851,429
The consolidated financial statements on pages 110 to EFERE-NEFLATABERIRE
383 were approved and authorised for issue by the Board 1M0BE 23838 2ir e M B HER K& T
of Directors on 4 July 2019 and are signed on its behalf ZEoWHNATFTRERES:
by:
LI Weibin SIU Wai Yip
E WmEX
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
o EF
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*\ Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity SEE i
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' For the year ended 31 March 2019 # % ~F—JUFE=H =+ —H IL4FFEZ i |4

Notes: Bfat -

- e

The entities established in the People’s Republic of China
(the "PRC") are required to appropriate 10% of its
net profit, as determined under the China Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises (2006) and other
relevant regulations issued by the Ministry of Finance of
the PRC, to the statutory surplus reserve until the balance
reaches 50% of the registered capital.

Subject to the approval of equity holders of the entities
established in the PRC, statutory surplus reserves may be
used to net off with accumulated losses, if any, and may
be converted into capital, provided that the balance of
statutory surplus reserve after such capitalisation is not
less than 25% of the registered capital.

Pursuant to the Interim Measures for the Administration
of Financial Guarantee Companies issued at 1 September
2010 by the Shaanxi Province government authorities
in the PRC, companies providing financial guarantee
services shall establish unearned premium reserve equal
to 50% of guarantee premium recognised during the year
and indemnification reserve of no less than 1% of the
outstanding guarantee balances.

Other reserve represents (i) the difference between the
amounts by which the non-controlling interests were
adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid that
was recognised directly in equity which arose from equity
transaction in prior year and (ii) the deemed contribution
from the controlling shareholder of the Company.

R EARKAE ([HE])RINERA
H EAE R #910% (AR ¥ B B K AR 28 Y
PEMEEER (ZTTRF) REMA
MRPIEE) BB EERNREHE BEER
FRIZBIRE B A AI50% o

EERPEKT B ENEDRA ALE
MWERT EERBFRBAARBHERE
B(nA) TABREEN EEZER
EREERRFERHRERTISENEMER
#925% °

REPERAEBRFHRIR_Z—FFAH
A—BZMe (MEEERIABDERET
WE) RE REBBEUMERRBE 2 ARA
RIAIAEFEEFED GBERF AR
EERIARS0% ) - AREREEEES
(TERARBBEREHRNI%) ©

HifFERIEOFFERES 2 ARSHER
BEFEIEDXZIMERNERER
ENREZAFEZEZZ8 RI)RAFEK
BARBERERZEE -
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BB eREE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 B % —F —UFE=H =+ — H IL4FFEE

embedded in convertible bonds

AFEBE N

2019 2018
—E-hE —ZT-)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FHET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REXEK
Profit (loss) before tax SRR A (EE) 71,588 (5,461)
Adjustments for: FHEIEE :
Interest income from money lending BB F B U A (14,107) (16,538)
Interest income from finance leases MEHERBRLA (32,568) (8,829)
Interest income from factoring P EREF BWA (4,895) =
Bank interest income RITH B WA (9,487) (8,669)
Finance costs B 75 B X 199,461 167,598
Loss arising from acquisition of WE—RNEARESE
a subsidiary ZIEE — 101,654
Premium charge on life insurance ASRBREZRE
policy - 28
Imputed interest income from amounts FEU BT & A A7 BRIE 2
due from former subsidiaries HEFR B WA (2,172) (1,905)
Depreciation of property, plant and W WEREZHEITE
equipment 4,453 3,308
Adjustment on carrying amount of JERT— B EEATIRIE
amount due to a related party 2 REERAE - (47,780)
Equity-settled share-based payments HEREEURN A
EHE 2 R 265 1,882
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HE&¥WE - BE &
equipment R W (273) (3)
Write-off of payables i 5 FE 1< BR 18 (8,132) =
Gain on fair value change of BAFEFAERZ
financial assets at fair value through EHMEEZATE
profit or loss BE R (853) -
Amortisation of intangible assets M EE#E = 1,756
Impairment losses on financial assets, & RIEE ZBEEIE
net of reversal 1Bk # O 24,518 (245)
Impairment loss on goodwill EEZREEE 10,161 =
Gain on fair value change of WEMEZ N FEEE)
investment properties W 2= (224,546) (161,017)
Gain on fair value change of AT BRES 2
conversion option derivative BRETET A

(121)
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"\ Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

/ For the year ended 31 March 2019 B E —F—UFE=H =+ —H IL4FFE

2019 2018
—E-NF —ZZE-)N\F
NOTE HK$'000 HK$'000
k=3 THEx FHET
Operating cash flows before LEESEFAIZ
movements in working capital KERERE 13,413 25,658
(Increase) decrease in inventories FE (Em)md (12,992) 1,971
Decrease (increase) in trade receivables &Y E 5 B 18 5 >
(1) 72,729 (62,173)
Increase in finance lease receivables JE Y it & HH & FRIE G AN (135,651) (197,050)
Decrease (increase) in trade receivables [EUWRIE N7~ & 5 KR1E
from related companies A (38 0) 269 (216)
Decrease (increase) in other receivables, H b fEUERIE 124 &
deposits and prepayments TE IR A (35 40) 5,271 (10,325)
Decrease in loan receivables JE U B R 41,087 10,955
Increase in factoring receivables JE LS 7 S5 ORI SR IR N (104,915) =
Decrease in deferred revenue R FE U AR - (2,734)
(Decrease) increase in trade payables ERESEKRE (i)
N (53,720) 35,680
Increase (decrease) in receipts in TE YR IEE i CRl4)
advance 2,891 (134)
Decrease in contract liabilities EREERD (5,942) =
Increase in deposits received from M = U EY 2 =2 1 0
tenants 4,936 4,046
(Decrease) increase in other payables HEMEMAERIE R
and accruals FEEtER R ) m (13,720) 15,794
Utilisation of provision for warranty REREER = (19)
Increase (decrease) in BB RS KGN
financial guarantee contracts (R ) 1,410 (83)
Net cash used in operations KEBRREFE (184,934) (178,630)
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid ENEAFEH (14) (614)
PRC income tax paid B RS (4,594) (2,986)
Interest received B U F & 53,387 17,218
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING REXBERZ
ACTIVITIES BHEFHE (136,155) (165,012)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BABERRE/

For the year ended 31 March 2019 B % —F —UFE=H =+ — H IL4FFEE

2019 2018
—B-hEF —E-N\F
NOTE HK$'000 HK$'000
B aE THEx FHET

INVESTING ACTIVITIES REXK
Net cash inflow on acquisition EREWE—HEREARZ

of a subsidiary BE&RAFEE 45 — 111,450
Proceeds from disposal of property, LEVE BEREZEZ

plant and equipment Fr1S 3K 18 276 11
Interest received 2 U F & 9,487 8,509
Purchase of property, plant and BEYWE BE K&E

equipment (8,643) (3,062)
Additions of investment properties RNETEBRREMER

under construction and leasehold land & 1t b (121,146) (32,389)
Placement of pledged bank deposits FEDHEMRITER (795,614) (572,691)
Placement of restricted deposits FEXRAITFR (17,511) (61,927)
Placement of deposit for GFEASRBRREZIEZS

life insurance policy - (12,084)
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits 4z [6] & K 3 $R 1717 K 749,901 505,964
Refund of deposit paid for land auction RELTHIAE 2 2 HiLE - 28,220
Purchase of financial assets at fair value EEZEAFEFAEBZREZ

through profit or loss TREE (2,361) =
Withdrawal of restricted deposits 1 [51 2 PR 1l 77 =X 75,881 =
Deposit paid for land auction THHECENES (10,237) =
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING REXBEAZREFH

ACTIVITIES (119,967) (27,999)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

A B AR RE

/ For the year ended 31 March 2019 B E —F—UFE=H =+ —H IL4FFE

2019 2018
—E-hEF —N\E
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
FINANCING ACTIVITIES S
Proceeds from issue of 12.0% 1712, O%E—EE\%%
coupon bonds Frig 3 - 117,176
Expenses on issue of 12.0% ??TﬂZ.O%%E—EE\%#Z
coupon bonds 5 = (3,515)
Proceeds from issue of 9.0% BEIT9.0%EEESH
coupon bonds FriS sk 18 - 350,000
Expenses on issue of 9.0% BIT9.0%ZEEHZ
coupon bonds 2 = (21,000)
Proceeds from issue of 3.0% E173.0% ] IR E 5
convertible bonds Fr S sk 18 = 58,000
Acquisition of additional interests WERKE AR Z
in subsidiaries RESIME 2 - (366,536)
Interest paid ENFIE (135,406) (84,605)
New other borrowings raised #rig /\m%ﬁi 710,254 259,620
New bank borrowings raised I RITE R 1,599,267 907,102
Repayment of other borrowings BEEMER (228,784) (197,802)
Repayment of bank borrowings BEIRTEXR (1,718,801) (937,881)
Loans from staff BETEX 5,660 6,610
Advances from related companies REBERG ZERK 375,752 412,323
Repayment of advances from BERBBERR 2K
related companies (558,778) (52,535)
Advance from a director RKE—BREZ 2B 296,749 148,993
Repayment to a director BE—REEHNE (289,610) (149,979)
Repayment of advance from BEREBREERARZ
ultimate holding company 2R - (844)
Repayment of obligations under BEmEREEAE
finance leases (749) (803)
Repayment of loans from staff BEEBIEX (11,385) (749)
Bank overdraft raised FIGSRITIE X 11,615 15,447
Repayment of bank overdraft BERTEX (11,535) (10,540)
Repayment of 10.0% convertible bonds 1&3#&10.0% A] # A% (& % - (77,071)
Repayment of 7.5% coupon bonds EB7IS%NEBEH - (206,688)
Proceeds from placing of shares Bic & AR 17 Fr 15 5118 109,392 =
Expenses on issue of shares RHBEITRX (3,280) =
Capital injection from a non-controlling R B IEZRBZE 2T E
shareholder 50 108,201
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 March 2019 B % —F —UFE=H =+ — H IL4FFEE

BABERRE/

2019 2018
—E-hF —E—)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH& T FAETT
NET CASH FROM FINANCING MEXEKMB2ELSEHE
ACTIVITIES 150,411 272,924
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN BERBELEEER
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (RA)EmFEEE (105,711) 79,913
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ROB—RBAzBEER
AT 1 APRIL REEEEHE 193,082 95,988
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE IEERSEH 2 ZE
RATE CHANGES (4,233) 17,181
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R=ZA=+—HzZzHER
AT 31 MARCH, HEEEER
represented by bank balances RERTEFLRRS
and cash 83,138 193,082
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. Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

| 5 A A R R

-

L

/ For the year ended 31 March 2019 B E —F—UFE=H =+ —H IL4FFE

- e

GENERAL AND BASIS OF
PREPARATION

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an
exempted limited liability entity and its shares
are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Its immediate
and ultimate holding company is Wealth Keeper
International Limited (“Wealth Keeper”),
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and the
ultimate controlling shareholder of Wealth Keeper
is Mr. Li Weibin (“Mr. Li"), the chairman and
managing director of the Company. The addresses
of the registered office and principal place of
business of the Company are disclosed in the

“Corporate Information” to the annual report.

The Company is an investment holding company.
The principal activities of the subsidiaries are
trading of electronic products and consumer goods,
property investment, financial advisory, provision of
financial guarantee services, finance lease services,

factoring services and logistic services in the PRC.

The presentation currency of the consolidated
financial statements is Hong Kong dollars ("HKS$"),
which is also the functional currency of the

Company.

KRB EFETMAK B ER
REREARA EROHEFTEBRS
REmMBMR AT ([BEXHR]) Emeo
HERABRERQARDNABR#
B R B B i Ak 32 2 Wealth Keeper
International Limited ([Wealth
Keeper |) ' iffWealth KeeperzZ & #&
TRBRERAFTERLEE ([FEXE])
(KRB FEFHREFHKIRE) - XA T
AR EEREEEEMBMIE
RERZ [ARIER] AEE -

ARADREZEBRAR -MERAFZ
ITEXBOINREESFERLRBRHEE
mE % WEREE MBERARRS
BtERHBEERRE REEE
RS B ERIE RS MR RS -

RANBHRERC2IEERAET ([
) HENMBARBZNEEH -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Bk 13 B B e A M R

For the year ended 31 March 2019 B % —F —UFE=H =+ — H IL4FFEE

GENERAL AND BASIS OF
PREPARATION (continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements,
the directors of the Company have given careful
consideration to the future liquidity of the Group
in light of the facts that, as of 31 March 2019,
the Group’s current liabilities exceeded its current
assets by approximately HK$968,804,000 and
as further described in note 38, the Group has
defaulted in respect of a repayment of a bank loan
amounted to HK$255,876,000 subsequent to the
end of the reporting period.

The directors of the Company have performed an
assessment of the Group’s future liquidity and cash
flows, taking into account the following matters:

(i) the expected availability of credit facilities
of approximately HK$575,000,000 pursuant
to a term sheet entered into by the
Company, Mr. Li and a financial institution
subsequent to the end of the reporting
period which is not legally binding on the
parties thereto. The relevant loan facility is
currently undergoing the internal approval
procedures of the financial institution which,
based on the best estimation of the directors
of the Company, the approval for the
loan agreement will be obtained from the
financial institution in the near future. Part
of the credit facilities will be utilised to repay
the defaulted loan as mentioned above;

—RENREREE (F)

RRBGETBERRFE ERAEE
HE_ZT-—NWFEFZA=Z+—HZRK®
B fEHBE H R e & & £968,804,000
7T M AR KT sE38H — ATl A E
RBEHREEHEREERITER
255,876,000 T2 E15 AR A E
EEBEEZERAESEZIRRES R
1o

ARBESFE RN FHREHAE
BMARRRBDES KRR ELETTH
i

(i) BEARR - FTRER—HEE
B RE R RS B R B PR AL ¥
BRI AW EERLR I 2K
HEEHIESZEEREL
575,000,000/ 7t - 487 B 3k @
BB RETRREEALEL
B ERAQBESENHEE
EEr AR AR AR KA
ZeRmEBRNESERBEN
EoHHEEREBKANEES
LR E K
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BB e =

' For the year ended 31 March 2019 #=ZE—F —JUFE=H =+ — H IL4FE i \ -i.

1. GENERAL AND BASIS OF 1. —RERRFEHREE (&)

PREPARATION (continued)

(i) the expected extension of HK$100,000,000 iy WEARAQR =4 (ERE
9.0% coupon bonds due on 25 July 2019 RAR—BEERERBRE
for a period of one year and the issuance ARG ZH BT H I
of a new 9.0% coupon bonds of maximum BEREORNZERE R
amount of HK$300,000,000 in August 2019 2? —NFLtAZ=-Z+HAHH
pursuant to a term sheet entered into by 2.100,000,000/% 7£9.0% % &
the Company, Mr. Li (as guarantor) and a BEHEBEHREH-—FER_-ZE
placing agent subsequent to the end of the —NENAETEEES R
reporting period which is not legally binding 300,000,000/ 7T 2 ¥19.0% =
on the parties thereto; BEH:

(i) the written consent obtained from a lender (i) B—RBEARIFSTEKRLANE
for not demanding immediate repayment of i 1 K {8 38 B 3/329,628,000
the outstanding loan of HK$329,628,000; BRLZREE &
and

(iv)  Mr. Li has provided facilities of HK$450,000,000 vy ZFRAECAAEERHBER
to the Group to enable the Group to meet {£450,000,0008 JT ' A £ &
its financial obligations as and when they SENAITER K RETHR
fall due for the foreseeable future, and BHET TREBRSHR
agreed not to demand any of the amounts EHEE MR FEEMBRE
due to him by the Group in the next twelve ZBERRT-—BAARNTEE
months from the date of approval for issue SRS 5 [ 858 FE N 18 2 AR AT K
of these consolidated financial statements T °

subsequent to the end of the reporting
period.

e o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fk 7 U 5 AR B

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # % —F—JUE=H =+ —H L4 &

GENERAL AND BASIS OF
PREPARATION (continued)

the directors of the Company consider that the
Group will have sufficient working capital to
finance its operations and to meet its financial
obligations as and when they fall due for the
foreseeable future. On this basis, the consolidated
financial statements have been prepared on a
going concern basis. However, should the above
refinancing plan not be able to implement
successfully, or the existing facilities provided by Mr.
Li are no longer available to the Group, the Group
may not have sufficient funds to operate as a going
concern, in which case adjustments might have
to be made to the carrying values of the Group's
assets to their recoverable amounts, to reclassify
the non-current assets and non-current liabilities
as current assets and current liabilities, respectively
and to provide for any further liabilities which

might arise.

—RENREREE (F)

ARAEERR AEERHEERRE
EEETMEERBABRETER
AEE BRI FBEEE - RE U
B -SFEMBRRDIEFELER
RSB AW L B R E FT 81K BE
RINEW XASETHEARGSFE
EREZRERERE AKE A
VERHESETHELE RItE
AT ARABAEBREEZREE
HAEZHAKOESEHE KERBDEE
EERBBEIHNERSBRRDE
ERRBAB URBAIGEELEZE
fo] B B (B 1F H A -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

| B B U R R B RE

- e

/ For the year ended 31 March 2019 B E —F—UFE=H =+ —H IL4FFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs")

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are

mandatorily effective for the current year

The Group has applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") for the first time in the current year:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and the related
Amendments

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions

and Advance Consideration

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and
Measurement of Share-
based Payment Transactions

Amendments to HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts

Amendments to HKAS 28 As part of the Annual
Improvements to HKFRSs
2014-2016 Cycle

Amendments to HKAS 40 Transfers of Investment
Property

Except as described below, the application of the
new and amendments to HKFRSs in the current
year has had no material impact on the Group's
performance and financial positions for the current
and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in
these consolidated financial statements.

ERAHIERYHEREER
(BEBMBREERA]) REHR
Bt 35 3R 5 2E A 2B FT A

WA R 8 B A B2 ¥ a] &8 R 53
SEA R BB BHRELERZETA
RAFEE AEEDEHERERTIMA
BEGFHIMAE ([EREFWAE])
B 2B BRE L REE
B HmE LR ZAEFTA

BEMBHRE SRIE
A RI| 8B 9%

EREVBRE BEPAHZUEK
R 55155 BEEET

R (BRMBR IR RBEHNE
EREZEE)

—-REFE2%

ERRBERE  UABRNDAERZHZX
B FE 25 SGZNBERETE
(EFTA)

EBRBRE  RASEUKEREEL
#8545 FAFRBA DB
CHES) —HEREBHS

2 % A 2B o5
SWMITA

BB G EN (EADRBUBKEREEL
2£285% —E-NERE
CHES) —T-RERB2

FEREZ B
BEBGITEN BRENEER
B405%
(ERTA)

BRI RANFERAHMATE
AUMBERELANRBE AU B HRES LA
AT EHARNEERAFEE LB
EFEZRARMBIMRRRRZEF
REMBRRMBZHBEEREFE

S/ 480
REE-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Bk 13 B B e A M R

For the year ended 31 March 2019 B % —F —UFE=H =+ — H IL4FFEE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 for the first time
in the current year. HKFRS 15 superseded HKAS 18
Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and the
related interpretations.

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 retrospectively
with the cumulative effect of initially applying
this Standard recognised at the date of initial
application, 1 April 2018. Any difference at the
date of initial application is recognised in the
opening accumulated losses (or other components
of equity, as appropriate) and comparative
information has not been restated. Furthermore,
in accordance with the transition provisions in
HKFRS 15, the Group has elected to apply the
Standard retrospectively only to contracts that are
not completed at 1 April 2018. Accordingly, certain
comparative information may not be comparable as
comparative information was prepared under HKAS
18 Revenue and HKAS 11 Construction Contracts
and the related interpretations.

The Group recognises revenue from the following
major sources which arise from contracts with

customers:

° international trading

o property investment (rental income and
management fee income)

o financial guarantee services

o interest income from money lending

business, factoring business and finance
lease services
o financial advisory services

o logistics services

ERAHTEEMBREER
(BEEMBREERN]) RER
B HEER ZERTA (F)

BEREVBREERFISHRERTS,EL
Z Wz

RAFE AEEEHAEATBY
BIREEREISH - BFEUBHREE
Al 155E MR BB ERIE 185
Yo BESTHENENREZS L
RiBERE-

AEECDEWEBEEVE RS ER
155 M B XERAZEANRFTF
ERERERAH (N _F—-N\FMO
A—H) R - BRERAHNERZE
BNV R EE (A MBS AN
o Em) ERRL BB LLEE
Frottdh RIEFEMBHRELENS
1557 B @R IR 3 AR EIEZEHR
“E-N\FHA-HHEARTROE L
EWEAZER - ARELEREH TR
BEEEEMNF1BRUAENE LS
RAENFNREZZS I N BHERER
SORANETHREMATENARLL
o

AEEB TNEERRHERAETESE
w2 Mg

. E=

. MERE(BEBRAREEE
WA

. BEERRE

. EEX BEREXHLRE
BERE RS E WA

. 5o 765 FEEL ) AR 755
. Wim R
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/ For the year ended 31 March 2019 # % ~F—JUFE=H =+ —H IL4FFEZ i \ -i.

- e

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(continued)

Rental income of investment properties and interest
income from finance lease services will continue
to be accounted for in accordance with HKAS 17
Leases and interest income from money lending and
factoring businesses will be accounted for under
HKFRS 9; whereas revenue from other sources will
be accounted for under HKFRS 15.

Information about the Group's performance
obligations and the accounting policies resulting
from application of HKFRS 15 are disclosed in notes
5 and 3 respectively.

Summary of effects arising from initial application
of HKFRS 15

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue on
a gross basis only if it controls the specified good
or service before that good or service is transferred
to a customer and HKFRS 15 has removed the
consideration of the credit risk. Based on the terms
of agreements entered into between the suppliers
and the Group regarding the sales of grain and oil
products, the Group determined that it does not
control the goods before that good is transferred to
the customer. As such, the Group has changed the
basis of recognition of revenue for sales of grain
and oil products in the trading business from a
gross basis to a net basis.

The Group has performed an assessment on
the impact of the application of HKFRS 15 and
concluded that except for the revenue from sales
of grain and oil products as mentioned above, it
does not have a material impact on the timing and
amounts of other types of revenue recognised in
the respective reporting periods, and therefore no
adjustment to the opening accumulated losses at 1
April 2018 was recognised.

ERAHTERYBEREER
(BEBMBREER]) REHR
MBHREERZIERTX (&)

ERMBHRELENBISHERTSEL
Z Wz ()
REMEZHSBARBERERSE
FERAKEBREESSHELE
17RAENER BEREEREBER
FEBRABBES ST BERELELE
95 ARR « T M 2R 2 WA B RIBEE
P B T S AR RIS 1558 ARR o

BRASENBONEERERETEY
BREENFISRELNSAHRERZ
BRI DRI WBER M ES R3

BRI BB B ERE 155 E
LT ERE
RIEESMHREENFISH FE
BEETEMIMBEBRERFP ZH
EHZERIRE EEBHBERS
HAFISHEAEREERR AZE
BRAREERIBA -REHER
B 7K £% [t 1 e 7E A 85 BT MLV 1R
ZHEFAEEBEERERERE
BEP MY REHIZEm - Htt - N&
BEKEZEKFTRAERHEENK
SEREENCELE HFE-

AEBEREREBMBERELRE
1SS EETTRHE - LRS- R
BHEmMBENRAN BHEERS
18 B R 5 B B R L A 2 ) e s A B
MhkeHBEEATE AU RERY
R-ZZE-NFOA - BN RTE
BIELAR-
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 # % —F—JUE=H =+ —H L4 &

APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. ERHITEBMKEREEA
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG (IERAMBERSEA])RESR
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS MERELER BT (F)
("HKFRSs") (continued)
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers BAPBEHRELENE15RERTSE A
(continued) 2 Wk (&)
Summary of effects arising from initial application BRIERE B BHREERE 155 E
of HKFRS 15 (continued) LT EME (F)
The following adjustments were made to the RZZE—)\FWA—HWNEE B
amounts recognised in the consolidated statement MRERNSBECSFELATHAR-T
of financial position at 1 April 2018. Line items that XEHTENABLEBTEN-
were not affected by the changes have not been
included.
Carrying Carrying
amounts amounts
previously under
reported at HKFRS 15 at
31 March 1 April
Notes 2018 Reclassification 2018*
BREEBHHK
£8
RZZ-N\F e nJ
—p=+-g Z15%
T RZEB-N\E
REFEH A—AH
Hir REE EHNE REE*
HK$"000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
TER TER TER
Current assets RBEE
Inventories 5& () 872 (872) =
Other receivables, deposits and Hi BRI R R
prepayments LR (a) 37,647 872 38,519
Current liabilities nEEE
Receipts in advance BUE (@)(b) 46,147 (35,414) 10,733
Other payables and accruals Hib (T BRIA R ERT 2 A () 76,471 7,792 84,263
Contract liabilities AHERE (b) = 27,622 27,622
Non-current liabilities FREBERE
Receipts in advance BUE (b) 24,026 (14,339) 9,687
Contract liabilities AHERE (b) = 14,339 14,339
& The amounts in this column are before the * AREBARFTREREAVBRSE

adjustments from the application of HKFRS 9.

ERIFBISRPAIEH A -
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| B B U R R B RE

/ For the year ended 31 March 2019 B E —F—UFE=H =+ —H IL4FFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial application
of HKFRS 15 (continued)

(@) In relation to certain previously completed
contracts regarding the sales of grain and oil
products which would have been accounted for
on a net basis under HKFRS 15, the inventories
of HK$872,000 and receipts in advance of
HK$7,792,000 at 31 March 2018 were reclassified
to other receivables and other payables
respectively at 1 April 2018.

(b) At the date of initial application of HKFRS
15, receipts in advance from customers of
HK$27,622,000 and HK$14,339,000 respectively
related to consideration received for international
trading, property management services, financial
guarantee services and logistics services previously
included under current liabilities and non-current

liabilities were reclassified to contract liabilities.

FERAHTEEMBREER
(BEBMBREERA]) REHR
P |REER BT A (&)

BB BHREERFEISFERTRE L
ZWEs (&)
BHAERE B B EERE 155 E
LECHEGE (F)

(a) BRETARNRES BN B HREE
B E155RLUFE R AR E A
ERBEEAN R_T—N\F=A
=+ — A1 &872,000/% T & 18 UK
FKIET7,792,0008 TER =T —AN
FHA—BHREHDBEEHAME
W AR T8 R H ftb FE A BRI o

(b) RERERBEBIERELENES
SE A EAORFARDAEBR
FERBEEHWF S UEZ FBUK
1827,622,0007% 7T K 14,339,000/
T(EERBEERES WEEER
5 BB YRR IR 7% K W AR 755 YO ER
MREB)ENDEEANEE-

———o L
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 B % —F —UFE=H =+ — H IL4FFEE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial application
of HKFRS 15 (continued)

The following table summarises the impacts of
applying HKFRS 15 on the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position at 31 March 2019,
its consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the current year for
each of the line item affected. Line items that
were not affected by the changes have not been
included.

Impact on the consolidated statement of
financial position

£ 47 W s R

ERAHIERYHEREER
(BEBMBREERA]) REHR
P |REER BT A (&)

HEMBERELRYNFBISHRETSEH
2 (&)
BREHEEY B HEERE 155 E
Lo HERE (E
TRBAERRFBMEHREELE1S
FHAEER _FT-NF=ZA=1+—
BREaMBIRAR ERAFEZ
HeBakEtEEEERANES
ReREXANEXTERENTE-
VTEXINEHZENHERBEERE
7 o

HEREUBRARNBE

Amounts
without
application of
As reported  Adjustments HKFRS 15
YERERES
B # R & 22 Al
FEResE HAB  F15%ceE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TER TR
Current assets REEE
Inventories e 12,992 2,129 15,121
Other receivables, deposits HmpElRE ek
and prepayments B RIE 33,110 (2,129) 30,981
Current liabilities REEE
Receipts in advance B RIE 17,057 30,460 47,517
Other payables and accruals H R ARIE R
fE5H & R 68,206 (2,738) 65,468
Contract liabilities GHBE 27,722 (27,722) =
Non-current liabilities E(REBEAE
Receipts in advance B RIE 6,254 8,297 14,551
Contract liabilities GHBE 8,297 (8,297) =
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ERAHIERYHEREER
(BEBMBREERA]) REHR
P |REER BT A (&)

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2.
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers BAPBEHRELENE15RERTSE A
W (&)
BXERE BB WG ERE 155 E
HZEEGE (F)

HECESERAM2ARERNZE

(continued)
Summary of effects arising from initial application
of HKFRS 15 (continued)

Impact on the consolidated statement of profit

and loss and other comprehensive income

Amount
without
application of
Note As reported  Adjustments HKFRS 15
WEEREE
) HEHEE
iz FEHeR RBE F15%HzeE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER
Revenue ON (@) 1,670,571 24,409 1,694,980
- Goods and services - EmER%
— Rental ~fie 28,145 = 28,145
- Interest —HE 51,570 - 51,570
Total revenue LN 1,750,286 24,409 1,774,695
Cost of sales HEKR (@) (1,534,057) (24,409)  (1,558,466)
Gross profit EF 216,229 = 216,229
Others with no adjustments HEEAEIER (386,335) (386,335)
Total comprehensive expense ~ AEEZEHXAE
for the year (170,106) - (170,106)
(@) Under HKAS 18, the Group recognised sales of (a) BIEEES KRS89 AEFH

grain and oil products on a gross basis, i.e. the
Group was considered as a principal, mainly
due to its significant exposure to credit risk of
customers and has discretion in establishing
prices. Upon application of HKFRS 15, the Group
is considered as an agent, the performance
obligation is to arrange for the provision of grain
and oil products as the Group did not obtain
control of goods before the goods are sold
to end customers. This change in accounting
policies resulted in a reduction of revenue by
HK$24,409,000 for the year ended 31 March
2019.

NpdmRehEREE T2/
AEEARXBEAEFPEERR R
BIERI L ERMBEERETEAE
EREBUBREEDFEISH A
SERRAREA BEERET
BimE PRI ARE L RS E miE
Bl MEBROBE T RBHEMRIE
HER HEFABRREHETHE
“E-NAF=ZA=T+—HIEFEZ
W AR 24,409,000 7T ©

———o L
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 B % —F —UFE=H =+ — H IL4FFEE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. ERHITEBMKEREEA
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG (IERAMBERSEA])RESR
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS MERELER BT (F)
("HKFRSs") (continued)
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers BB ELENFISHRETEELH
(continued) 2 Wk (&)
Summary of effects arising from initial application BHAERE B B EERE 155 E
of HKFRS 15 (continued) ML (4 )
Impact on the consolidated statement of cash HEAEERERND S
flows
Amounts
without
application of
As reported Adjustment HKFRS 15
VEERES
B
FERe%E AR FE15%ceE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FET TET
Operating activities REEK
Increase in inventories FEEM (12,992) (1,257) (14,249)
Decrease in other receivables, HiEWERE - Ze Rk
deposits and prepayments B FIERE D 5,271 1,257 6,528
Decrease in other payables and Hh e BRIE &
accruals FEEt & AR (13,720) 5,054 (8,666)
Decrease in contract liabilities EHEaERD (5,942) 5,942 -
Increase (decrease) in receipts in BUGRIEE N ORA)
advance 2,891 (10,996) (8,105)
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments BB BHREENFIRERMIA
In the current year, the Group has applied HKFRS 9 RAFE RAEBDERBELYH®R
and the related consequential amendments to other HAERFOR R EM B AN BmELE
HKFRSs. HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for AlER B BRAMAEIEE] - BB B
1) the classification and measurement of financial HEAFORS|IEFBNEMEER
assets and financial liabilities, 2) expected credit TRABNSENGTE  2)eMEER
losses (“ECL") for financial assets and other items HMBEEMEHREESE ([HHEE
and 3) general hedge accounting. B8] R3) —MEAGTEENIR
;,_\E o
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 in accordance
with the transition provisions set out in HKFRS 9,
i.e. applied the classification and measurement
requirements (including impairment under ECL
model) retrospectively to instruments that have
not been derecognised as at 1 April 2018 (date
of initial application) and has not applied the
requirements to instruments that have already been
derecognised as at 1 April 2018. The difference
between carrying amounts as at 31 March 2018
and the carrying amounts as at 1 April 2018 are
recognised in the opening accumulated losses and
other components of equity, without restating
comparative information.

Accordingly, certain comparative information may
not be comparable as comparative information was
prepared under HKAS 39 Ffinancial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement.

Accounting policies resulting from application of
HKFRS 9 are disclosed in note 3.

ERAHIERYHEREER
(BEBMBREERA]) REHR
P |REER BT A (&)

EEMBRELENFIRESHMITA
(%)
AEBEEREBWBHHRE LA FEINR
PR BR IR ER B W wEE
AIE9% I AR —F—N\FOA
—H(AXREABRH) R EEANTA
EPEAOBLEFAERTE (BEES
EEEERABBTIORME)  TAY
ER-F- N\FOA-—B&LERDN
TAERREBRRE - —T—N\F=H
=t+—BZEFREEE-_T-/N\FHEA
—HzHEREEZBERIDNHI R
BREEEMESEKD ER BA
EILLERER -

HRLLBEMREE S S ERIF39
ST A ERARTERE FAibE
THERERATETAERLLE-

BRE SN B EE LR EIOREENS
SBT3 -
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 # % ~F—JUF=H =+ —H IL4FEZ

APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. ERHITEBMKEREEA
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG (IERAMBERSEA])RESR
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS MERELER BT (F)
("HKFRSs") (continued)
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued) EEUKHRELEANNFERESMT A
(#&)
Summary of effects arising from initial application BRIEFE B &R E o E
of HKFRS 9 TEHE
The table below illustrates the classification and TERHEFREXERBBH-_Z—N\F
measurement of financial assets and other items MA—BIRBEE SV BWmEELFEIHR
subject to ECL under HKFRS 9 and HKAS 39 at the MBEBGTEREIRZIEREERS
date of initial application, 1 April 2018. BRENEMEEREMIBANS
RitE-
Amortised
cost Financial
Payment (previously assets
for a life Available- classified at FVTPL Non-
insurance for-sale asloans and  required by Accumulated  controlling
policy  investment receivables) HKFRS 9 losses interests
ERMERE
BHEAK 8595
(%H2E BRERLTAE
AERR AREE REFR  HABREH
REZMH RE W RE) SREE RFR  FERER
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i3 THT TR TR TEx TR TR
Closing balance at R-Z-N\%=A
31 March 2018 =t-HWEARER
- HKAS 39 -BEEHER
$E39%% 12,215 1,239 990,987 - (72,228) 77,485
Effects arising from BREREERBRE
initial application of EREIRELN
HKFRS 9: ¥e:
Reclassification ENPE
From available-for-sale RA & (@) - (1,239 - 1,239 - -
From payment for a AASRBREZ
life insurance policy [OE: () (12,215) = = 12,215 = =
Remeasurement EfiE
Impairment under EHEEER
ECL model BAETHE (© = - (1,900) - (969) (931)
From cost less impairment AXARREERZ
to fair value A (@) = = = 2 1 1
From amortised cost to HEEREE
fair value ATHE (b) = = - (790) (403) (387)
Opening balance at R-Z-\EWMA—-H
1 April 2018 WAL 5 5 989,087 12,666 (73,599) 76,168
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¢ 2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. FERAHIERMBEREEA
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG (IERAMBERSEA])RESR
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS MR ELER ZIERTA (&)
("HKFRSs") (continued)
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued) EEUKHRELEANNFERESMT A
(#)
Summary of effects arising from initial application BRIEHE B &R E o5 E £
of HKFRS 9 (continued) CHEME ()

(a) Available-for-sale (“AFS") investment (a) AEEHE ([ATHEE])KRE

At the date of initial application of HKFRS 9, the
Group's equity investment of HK$1,239,000 was
reclassified from AFS investment to financial asset
at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL").
The fair value gain of HK$2,000 relating to
this investment previously carried at cost less
impairment was adjusted to financial assets at
FVTPL, accumulated losses and non-controlling
interests as at 1 April 2018.

Loans and receivables

Payment for a life insurance policy of
HK$12,215,000 previously classified as loans and
receivables was reclassified to financial asset at
FVTPL upon the application of HKFRS 9 because
its cash flows do not represent solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding. The related fair value loss of
HK$790,000 was adjusted to financial assets at
FVTPL, accumulated losses and non-controlling
interests at 1 April 2018.

Impairment under ECL model

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measure ECL which uses a lifetime
ECL for all trade receivables and lease receivables.
To measure the ECL, trade receivables with
significant balances or credit impaired and
lease receivables are assessed individually and
the remaining trade receivables are assessed
collectively using groupings based on shared risk

characteristics.

RERERESY SRS %A
FORER AEBEBHESKRE
1,239,000 T B AT HEREE
HOBERATENABE ([RA
FEFTABR]) ZERMEE- KAl
TR RREARRNEZIEE R B
A FEWZE2,0008TTERN-F
—N\ENA—BAEERAFER
AB#zopEE - R EER3E

AR A o

(b) B Kk EWARIE
EREAMIBSHREERFEINE it
D EAERKEWERENASR
KRB 3012,215,0008 L2 &
HOBEERAFEFABZZ R
BE RARER SRS WIFMAR
ABYNAERAEERSHELT
B - AR A F(EEE790,0008 T E
RZZ—N\FHA—BRABEBER
FEFABZZEHEE  B5E
BRI -

(c) BHEEBBEEXBRTRE

AEEEREBMBEHREERF
SR A ERBEEER
LAY E 5 IRE K KA E R
BERA2HEBEEEBE - Rt E
BHREEEE BREAGEFRE
BEERENEKRE 5RIEARER
HEFETETERIFE AT’
WE 5 RBET R R G BRI
TEH B D AT R BB AT A -

———o L
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 # % ~F—JUF=H =+ —H IL4FEZ

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial application
of HKFRS 9 (continued)

(c)

Impairment under ECL model (continued)

Loss allowances for other financial assets at
amortised cost mainly comprise of restricted
deposits, pledged bank deposits, bank balances,
other receivables, amounts due from former
subsidiaries and loan receivables are measured on
12-month (“12m") ECL basis since there had been
no significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition.

All of the Group’s bank balances and restricted/
pledged bank deposits are placed with banks
of high credit ratings. Therefore, these financial
assets are considered to be low credit risk
investments and the loss allowance is measured
on 12m ECL basis.

For outstanding financial guarantees, the Group
considers there has been no significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition and hence the
loss allowance is measured on 12m ECL basis.

As at 1 April 2018, the additional credit loss
allowance of HK$1,900,000 has been recognised
against accumulated losses and non-controlling
interests. The additional loss allowance is charged
against trade receivables.

ERAHIERYHEREER
(BEBMBREERA]) REHR
P |REER BT A (&)

FAMBHREEFIREMTA

(%)

BRIER BB B R E IR ELE

ZHERE (F)

(© BHEEBREXRTRE (&)
REERAFTEZ MBS REER
EBEREBIZEBREIRHER
BRBOER RTEFT EME
W AR IR - 1 g A BT B 2 B RRIR R R
WE R Thiz12f8 A (T128 A 1)
BHEEBREREEFE ARERE
BR R B 15 R IA R ERRE G
e

AEBENMBRITETRZRS,
EEARTERERNEETRS
HIRTT - Bt R FERMEBERG S
BEERRIRE BRI12EAEH
EEBEEEGEFERER-

HRAREENBEERFR AEER
REVTERARERERRIL ER
EFm BAitR2EARREES
BEEFEBEREE-

M-Z—N\FMNA—H BRI
BB MR ESEREIMEEE
18 481,900,0007% 7T - 28 HME; 18 B
BREKRE ZEBNR -
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial application
of HKFRS 9 (continued)

() Impairment under ECL model (continued)
Loss allowance for trade receivables as at 31
March 2018 reconciled to the opening loss
allowance as at 1 April 2018 is as follows:

/' For the year ended 31 March 2019 # % _Z—JUFE = =+—H L4

2. ERHITEEMBHREER
(BEBMBREERA]) REHR
P |REER BT A (&)

FAMBHREEFIREMTA

(%)
BRIER BB B R E IR ELE
ZHERE (F)

(c) BHEEBEEXIATRE (&)
RIE-NF=ZA=+—HEKRE
SEBANBREERN T \F
M9 A — B A HR R 18 6 B 4

T

Trade
receivables
EWE S RE
HK$’000
FHET

At 31 March 2018 RZFE—N\FE=A=+—H
- HKAS 39 — BB G ERE395 567
Amount remeasured through ECL model SFABHEEEREANENESHE 1,900
At 1 April 2018 RZZT—N\FHA—H 2,467
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 # % —F—JUE=H =+ —H L4 & I"-L

APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2.
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

Impacts on opening consolidated statement of

financial position arising from the application of all

new standards

As a result of the changes in the Group's
accounting policies above, the opening
consolidated statement of financial position had
to be restated. The following table shows the

adjustments recognised for each of the line item

affected.

FERAHTEEMBREER

(BEBMBREERA]) REHR

P |REER BT A (&)

F& P 8 3 5] 28 RIS R A1 4R & B 551K
MERLZTE

HRASESHRRN LA ES 8
IR EMIBRRKRATES - TR

=

THEERHEE-

31 March 1 April
2018 2018
(Audited) HKFRS 15 HKFRS 9 (Restated)
—E-N\E BERE EBEB —E-N\§
=ZA=t+-8 REER REER mA—-H
(BER) F158 L (€<3:7))
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER
Non-current assets FRBEE
AFS investment AHHERE 1,239 - (1,239) -
Financial assets at FVTPL BRAFE;AEBSZ¢REE - = 12,666 12,666
Payment for a life ASRBRE 2T
insurance policy 12,215 - (12,215) -
Others with no adjustments HinERAEIER 4,067,054 = = 4,067,054
4,080,508 - (788) 4,079,720
Current assets RBEE
Trade receivables [EWE 5518 100,277 - (1,900) 98,377
Other receivables, deposits HiEKEE Re Rk
and prepayments BRRE 37,647 872 S 38,519
Inventories T8 872 (872) = =
Others with no adjustments HipEAEIER 932,650 - - 932,650
1,071,446 - (1,900) 1,069,546
Current liabilities hEBaE
Receipts in advance BYEE 46,147 (35,414) = 10,733
Other payables and accruals Hi e RIERE B R 76,471 7,792 = 84,263
Contract liabilities aNafE - 27,622 - 27,622
Others with no adjustments Hih A 1,060,588 - - 1,060,588
1,183,206 - = 1,183,206
Net current liabilities TBEETFE (111,760) = (1,900) (113,660)

Annual Report 2019 % | CHINLINK INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED % [ 1 4 [ B £ )bt 47 Bt 24 )

o

139



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

| &k B B 55 R W RE

Tm——

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # % ~F—JUF=H =+ —H IL4F

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. ERAFITERMBHEED

AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG (IERAMBERSEA])RESR
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS MR ELER ZIERTA (&)
("HKFRSs") (continued)

Impacts on opening consolidated statement of P& FR P B 3R] 2E R Y HA W) 47 & B 7% AR
financial position arising from the application of all MK ZE (E)

new standards (continued)

31 March 1 April
2018 2018
(Audited) HKFRS 15 HKFRS 9 (Restated)
—E-N\% EHBAE EBUHE —EB-N\fE
=A=t+-8 HEEA HwEER mA-A
(BE%) #155 9% (ZE50)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FHAT TR TR
Total assets less current BEEARBAE
liabilities 3,968,748 - (2,688) 3,966,060
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Receipts in advance BT 24,026 (14,339) - 9,687
Contract liabilities BHaE = 14,339 = 14,339
Others with no adjustments HipERAEER 2,093,293 = = 2,093,293
2,117,319 - - 2,117,319
Net assets HERE 1,851,429 = (2,688) 1,848,741
Capital and reserves BARfRE
Share capital fig A% 213,662 = = 213,662
Reserves i@ 1,560,282 - (1,371) 1,558,911
Equity attributable to owners KA FAEHE AEML 2 EH
of the Company 1,773,944 - (1,371) 1,772,573
Non-controlling interests FERER 77,485 = (1,317) 76,168
Total equity ERERE 1,851,429 - (2,688) 1,848,741
Note: For the purposes of reporting cash flows from Hit: sREEREEREE T —NF
operating activities under indirect method for A=+ —BLFENKEEBAHN
the year ended 31 March 2019, movements in RHREREMS 2ELESNES
working capital have been computed based on TIRE EXETE 2 —F—N\FNA
opening consolidated statement of financial — BBV E M BIKARETE -

position as at 1 April 2018 as disclosed above.

—o .
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 # % ~F—JUF=H =+ —H IL4FEZ

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

("HKFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not

yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new
and amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued

but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 16 Leases'
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts?
HK(IFRIC)-Int 23

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments'

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business*

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation'
Amendments to HKFRS
10 and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material®

and HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment

or Settlement!

Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in
Associates and Joint
Ventures'

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to

HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle!

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after

1 January 2019.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after

1 January 2021.

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after

a date to be determined.

4 Effective for business combinations and asset
acquisitions for which the acquisition date is on
or after the beginning of the first annual period

beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after

1 January 2020.

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

ERAHIERYHEREER
(BEBMBREERA]) REHR
P |REER BT A (&)

B BRI R R AR 2 3R] BB B 15 3R
SEA R BB BHRELERZETA
AREEEARRT R THIE 8 M
REMZ BB RELE RE
BB E LR ZERIA:

EEMKHEEN HE

£16%

EREMBHREEN RRAL

£17%

E5 (BRGBHRE MEREBR TR
REZES)

—2EE23%

EREUBEHREELN EBZTHR

£3% (B R)

ERMEREEN REENEUERAME
E9% (BFTK)

BENBREEN HEFRARELZEER
FI0RRBEEG SLRRATAERFLZ
R 2857 R B ES
(BFTK)

EREENE 1S BEAMCERS
REB G A

E8% (7T A)

BEESENE195% FEBT BRILEE
(BFTK)

BBGFERNEH RBENRRAERRZ

CHES RHED
BREMBREERN BEMBHREEU-T
CHEY: —RFE-T—+F
B F R

R-ZZE—NF—A—BR2EHRA
2 F MR-
RZBE-_—F—AF—B=xz%&RAK

ZEEHE A
: REEEZBHMX 2 RAKRZFE
HR AR

4 HKERSHANR T _TF—A—
Bz &k 2 B8 FEME S
I BRNEBAHREEREBE

o
° R-B-TFE—A—Hk2%&MEA
2 EE R
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not

yet effective (continued)

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs
mentioned below, the directors of the Company
anticipate that the application of all other new
and amendments to HKFRSs will have no material
impact on the consolidated financial statements in
the foreseeable future.

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model
for the identification of lease arrangements and
accounting treatments for both lessors and lessees.
HKFRS 16 will supersede HKAS 17 and the related
interpretations when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts
on the basis of whether an identified asset is
controlled by a customer. In addition, HKFRS 16
requires sales and leaseback transactions to be
determined based on the requirements of HKFRS
15 as to whether the transfer of the relevant asset
should be accounted as a sale. HKFRS 16 also
includes requirements relating to subleases and

lease modifications.

Distinctions of operating leases and finance leases
are removed for lessee accounting, and is replaced
by a model where a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability have to be recognised for all
leases by lessees, except for short-term leases and

leases of low value assets.

ERAHIERYHEREER
(BEBMBREERA]) REHR
P |REER BT A (&)

AR5 1 14 ok 2 3 5T BB B T 38
o5 o B % VS B 7 R o o B S ET AR
(%)

5 TRk 2 37 3T v B 7 3 o 2 )
RE SIS BE R 2 BT AN A
ARESHET  ERFEL LTS
B BRE R RE BB HSER
ZEITARETERTRRRYHA Y
BRRELTAEADE.

BB B G BRI E 16 HE
HEMBHREERE 165 SH R LA
AREBANEERZ R G5 EIES
A—ERERA - BEEEHHREE
AIE165E A IR EB G E
AE175R R BRI -

&8 M % RIS 1 657 AR IR A 8 A
BERGHETEPEHREYHEE KR
BaK - WIN BEMBHRELERIF16
FREERELORZARBEETBMB
BEEAFISRAAEREHAEER
CRESHEARNRAEMEE &
B BREEREIGRTEEREDY
HEEEETORE -

BRERESREEEEESN K&
HERMEMENZERGAHAGSR
REPBGR WHAHAEARHAER
EmREREEERERABNRA
B
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 B % —F —UFE=H =+ — H IL4FFEE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not

yet effective (continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost
and subsequently measured at cost (subject to
certain exceptions) less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, adjusted for any remeasurement
of the lease liability. The lease liability is initially
measured at the present value of the lease payments
that are not paid at that date. Subsequently, the lease
liability is adjusted for interest and lease payments,
as well as the impact of lease modifications, amongst
others. For the classification of cash flows, the Group
currently presents upfront prepaid lease payments
as investing cash flows in relation to those classified
as investment properties while other operating lease
payments are presented as operating cash flows.
Under the HKFRS 16, lease payments in relation to
lease liability will be allocated into a principal and an
interest portion which will be presented as financing
cash flows in accordance with the nature. Upfront
prepaid lease payments will continue to be presented

as investing cash flows in accordance to the nature.

Under HKAS 17, the Group has already recognised
an asset and a related finance lease liability for
finance lease arrangement where the Group is a
lessee. The application of HKFRS 16 may result in
potential changes in classification of these assets
depending on whether the Group presents right-of-
use assets separately or within the same line item
at which the corresponding underlying assets would

be presented if they were owned.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not

yet effective (continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

Other than certain requirements which are also
applicable to lessor, HKFRS 16 substantially carries
forward the lessor accounting requirements in
HKAS 17, and continues to require a lessor to
classify a lease either as an operating lease or a

finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
HKFRS 16.

As at 31 March 2019, the Group has non-
cancellable operating lease commitments of
HK$12,828,000 as disclosed in note 48. A
preliminary assessment indicates that certain of
these arrangements will meet the definition of a
lease. Upon application of HKFRS 16, the Group will
recognise a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability in respect of all these leases unless they

qualify for low value or short-term leases.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective (continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

In addition, the Group currently considers
refundable rental deposits paid of HK$2,990,000
and refundable rental deposits received of
HK$19,189,000 as rights and obligations under
leases to which HKAS 17 applies. Based on the
definition of lease payments under HKFRS 16, such
deposits are not payments relating to the right to
use the underlying assets, accordingly, the carrying
amounts of such deposits may be adjusted to
amortised cost. Adjustments to refundable rental
deposits paid would be considered as additional
lease payments and included in the carrying amount
of right-of-use assets. Adjustments to refundable
rental deposits received would be considered as
advance lease payments.

The application of new requirements may result
changes in measurement, presentation and
disclosure as indicated above. The Group intends to
elect the practical expedient to apply HKFRS 16 to
contracts that were previously identified as leases
applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining
whether an Arrangement contains a Lease and
not apply this standard to contracts that were not
previously identified as containing a lease applying
HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4. Therefore, the Group
will not reassess whether the contracts are, or
contain a lease which already existed prior to the
date of initial application. Furthermore, the Group
intends to elect the modified retrospective approach
for the application of HKFRS 16 as lessee and will
recognise the cumulative effect of initial application
to opening accumulated losses without restating
comparative information.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not

yet effective (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business

The amendments clarify the definition of a business
and provide additional guidance with the objective
of assisting entities to determine whether a
transaction should be accounted for as a business
combination or an asset acquisition. Furthermore,
an optional concentration test is introduced
to permit a simplified assessment of whether
an acquired set of activities and assets is not a
business. The amendments will be mandatorily
effective to the Group prospectively for acquisition

transactions completed on or after 1 April 2020.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 Definition of
Material

The amendments provide refinements to the
definition of material by including additional
guidance and explanations in making materiality
judgements. The amendments also align
the definition across all HKFRSs and will be
mandatorily effective for the Group’s annual period
beginning on 1 April 2020. The application of the
amendments is not expected to have significant
impact on the financial position and performance
of the Group but may affect the presentation and

disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 B % —F —UFE=H =+ — H IL4FFEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and by
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except
for investment properties and certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair values at the
end of each reporting period, as explained in the
accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of
the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price
is directly observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of
an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account
the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement
and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis,
except for share-based payment transactions that
are within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based
payment, leasing transactions that are within the
scope of HKAS 17, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value,
such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 /nventories or
value in use in HKAS 36 /mpairment of assets.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset
takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in
its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.

For financial instruments and investment properties
which are transacted at fair value and a valuation
technique that unobservable inputs is to be used
to measure fair value in subsequent periods, the
valuation technique is calibrated so that at initial
recognition the results of the valuation technique

equals the transaction price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair
value measurements are categorised into Level 1,
2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements are observable
and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as

follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the entity can access at the

measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted
prices included within Level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liability, either

directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for

the asset or liability.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 B % —F —UFE=H =+ — H IL4FFEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

For financial instruments and investment properties
which are transacted at fair value and a valuation
technique that unobservable inputs is to be used
to measure fair value in subsequent periods, the
valuation technique is calibrated so that at initial
recognition the results of the valuation technique

equals the transaction price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair
value measurements are categorised into Level 1,
2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements are observable
and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as

follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted
prices included within Level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liability, either

directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for

the asset or liability.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and
entities controlled by the Company and its
subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the

Company:
o has power over the investee;
o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns

from its involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that
there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the
Group obtains control over the subsidiary and
ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year
are included in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income from the
date the Group gains control until the date when
the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 B % —F —UFE=H =+ — H IL4FFEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-

controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with the Group’s

accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in
full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are
presented separately from the Group’s equity
therein, which represent present ownership
interests entitling their holders to a proportionate
share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries upon
liquidation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group's interests in subsidiaries
that do not result in the Group losing control
over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group's
relevant components of equity and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the
changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries,
including re-attribution of relevant reserves
between the Group and the non-controlling
interests according to the Group’s and the non-

controlling interest’s proportionate interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the
non-controlling interests are adjusted, and the
fair value of the consideration paid or received
is recognised directly in equity and attributed to

owners of the Company.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for
using the acquisition method. The consideration
transferred in a business combination is measured
at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred
by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to
the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. Acquisition related costs are

generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations (continued)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised
at their fair value, except that:

o deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets
or liabilities related to employee benefit
arrangements are recognised and measured
in accordance with HKAS 12 Income Taxes
and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits respectively;

o liabilities or equity instruments related
to share-based payment arrangements
of the acquiree or share-based payment
arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements
of the acquiree are measured in accordance
with HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment at the
acquisition date (see the accounting policy
below); and

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified
as held for sale in accordance with HKFRS
5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations are measured in
accordance with that standard.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations (continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum
of the consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and
the fair value of the acquirer’'s previously held
equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net
amount of the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed as at acquisition date. If, after
re-assessment, the net amount of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the
sum of the consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree
and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously
held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain

purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the relevant subsidiary’s net assets in
the event of liquidation are initially measured at
the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share
of the recognised amounts of the acquiree's
identifiable net assets or at fair value. The choice
of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-

transaction basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Acquisition of a subsidiary not constituting a
business

When the Group acquires a group of assets and
liabilities that do not constitute a business, the
Group identifies and recognises the individual
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
by allocating the purchase price first to the financial
assets and financial liabilities at the respective fair
values, the remaining balance of the purchase price
is then allocated to the other identifiable assets and
liabilities on the basis of their relative fair values at
the date of purchase. Such a transaction does not
give rise to goodwill or bargain purchase gain.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business
is carried at cost established at the date of the
acquisition of the business less accumulated

impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating
units (“CGUs") or groups of CGUs that is expected
to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
which represents the lowest level at which the
goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes and is not larger than an operating

segment.

b £ A5 WA I

TESBER (&)
WA ERER KB LA

EAKBRBIERER 2 —HEE
REER AEEEEAKREEE
BEBZAFESETEREERS
A E - BRI & R AT YRR 2 (8 R
AHEMNEERAAEZEE 2R B
BRREXBEZEAZHE QX FEKE
EESRE I ETHMARNEEKA
BE-AARZUTELERMELZRELK
fB et o

k5
BEXRBELEZHEDNERRBRS
BHIREE 2 AN RETBUE R 1R (10
B

AREANAME BEOIEERHEA
BHOBRIRENS DO AEEZR
CEAEN ((REEEEM])H—A
ReELBEU MREELEBEMLRT
N EEAZERBRENTARES
7 H#BZ AR AR -

Annual Report 2019 % | CHINLINK INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED % [ 1 4 [ B £ )bt 47 Bt 24 )

o

155



"\ Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

|5 A T R M R HEq

- & 1
L s L

/ For the year ended 31 March 2019 # % ~F—JUFE=H =+ —H IL4FFEZ i \ -i.

- e

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Goodwill (continued)

A CGU or group of CGUs to which goodwill has
been allocated is tested for impairment annually or
more frequently when there is indication that the
unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an
acquisition in a reporting period, the CGU or group
of CGUs to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment before the end of that
reporting period. If the recoverable amount is less
than the carrying amount, the impairment loss is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill and then to the other assets on a pro-rata
basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in
the unit or group of CGUs.

On disposal of the relevant CGU or any of the CGU
within the group of CGUs, the attributable amount
of goodwill is included in the determination of the
amount of profit or loss on disposal. When the
Group disposes of an operation within the CGU
or a CGU within a group of CGUs, the amount of
goodwill disposed of is measured on the basis of
the relative values of the operation or the CGU
disposed of and the portion of the CGU or the
group of CGUs retained.

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon
application of HKFRS 15 in accordance with

transitions in note 2)

Under HKFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue
when (or as) a performance obligation is satisfied,
i.e. when “control” of the goods or services
underlying the particular performance obligation is

transferred to the customer.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon
application of HKFRS 15 in accordance with

transitions in note 2) (continued)

A performance obligation represents a good or
service (or a bundle of goods or services) that is
distinct or a series of distinct goods or services that
are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is
recognised over time by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following
criteria is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the
Group's performance as the Group performs;

o the Group's performance creates and
enhances an asset that the customer controls
as the Group performs; or

o the Group’s performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the Group
and the Group has an enforceable right to

payment for performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the distinct

good or service.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for
which the Group has received consideration (or an
amount of consideration is due) from the customer.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon
application of HKFRS 15 in accordance with

transitions in note 2) (continued)

Over time revenue recognition.: measurement
of progress towards complete satisfaction of a

performance obligation

Output method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of
a performance obligation is measured based on
output method, which is to recognise revenue on
the basis of direct measurements of the value of
the goods or services transferred to the customer
to date relative to the remaining goods or services
promised under the contract, that best depict the
Group's performance in transferring control of

goods or services.

Input method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of
a performance obligation is measured based on
input method, which is to recognise revenue on
the basis of the Group's efforts or inputs to the
satisfaction of a performance obligation relative
to the total expected inputs to the satisfaction of
that performance obligation, that best depict the
Group’s performance in transferring control of

goods or services.

The Group uses time-elapsed output method for
property management services, financial guarantee
services and asset management services and
cost-based input method for logistics services
in measuring the progress of the performance

obligation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon
application of HKFRS 15 in accordance with

transitions in note 2) (continued)
Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing goods
or services to a customer, the Group determines
whether the nature of its promise is a performance
obligation to provide the specified goods or services
itself (i.e. the Group is a principal) or to arrange for
those goods or services to be provided by the other
party (i.e. the Group is an agent).

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified
good or service before that good or service is
transferred to a customer.

The Group is an agent if its performance obligation
is to arrange for the provision of the specified good
or service by another party. In this case, the Group
does not control the specified good or service
provided by another party before that good or
service is transferred to the customer. When the
Group acts as an agent, it recognises revenue in
the amount of any fee or commission to which it
expects to be entitled in exchange for arranging for
the specified goods or services to be provided by
the other party.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (prior to 1 April 2018)

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the

consideration received or receivable.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue
can be reliably measured; when it is probable that
future economic benefits will flow to the Group and
when specific criteria have been met for each of the
Group's activities, as described below.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when

the goods are delivered and titles have passed.

Revenue from provision of financial guarantee
services is recognised on a straight-line basis over

the guarantee period.

Revenue from provision of logistic services is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the contract

period.

Revenue from provision of financial advisory
services is recognised when services are provided.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

The Group's policy for the recognition of revenue
from interior decoration work is described in the
accounting policy for interior decoration contracts
below.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 B % —F —UFE=H =+ — H IL4FFEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition (prior to 1 April 2018)

(continued)

The Group's policy for recognition of revenue from
finance leases and operating leases is described in
the accounting policy for leasing below.

Interior decoration contracts

Where the outcome of an interior decoration
contract can be estimated reliably, revenue and
costs are recognised by reference to the stage
of completion of the contract activities at the
end of the reporting period, measured based on
the proportion of the value of work certified by
independent surveyors relative to the total contract
sum, except where this would not be representative
of the stage of completion. Variations in contract
work, claims and incentive payments are included
to the extent that they have been agreed with the

customers and its receipt is considered probable.

Where the outcome of an interior decoration
contract cannot be estimated reliably, contract
revenue is recognised to the extent of contract
costs incurred that it is probable will be recoverable.
Contract costs are recognised as expenses in the

period in which they are incurred.

When it is probable that total contract costs will
exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss is

recognised as an expense immediately.

3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition (prior to 1 April 2018)

(continued)
Interior decoration contracts (continued)

Where contract costs incurred to date plus
recognised profits less recognised losses exceed
progress billings, the surplus is shown as accrued
revenue in the consolidated statement of financial
position. For contracts where progress billings
exceed contract costs incurred to date plus
recognised profits less recognised losses, the surplus
is shown as deferred revenue in the consolidated

statement of financial position.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other

leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases
are recognised as receivables at the amount of the
Group's net investment in the leases. Finance lease
income is allocated to accounting periods so as to
reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the
Group’s net investment outstanding in respect of

the leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised
in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset. Other than investment properties
measured under fair value model, such costs are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis

over the lease term.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. TESEHEK (#)

POLICIES (continued)

Leasing (continued) ME (&)

The Group as lessor (continued) AKEBIEALHFANA (&)

Interest and rental income which are derived REREEBAEXEKBRENFE KA
from the Group’s ordinary course of business are STWATIZ2Y BIWA -

presented as revenue.

The Group as lessee KEBEZFEBA
Assets held under finance leases are recognised REEHERANEEREERAR
as assets of the Group at their fair value at the WATEIRFERENROREAE
inception of the lease or, if lower, at the present (HAREE ) BRAREAEEEE R
value of the minimum lease payments. The HHEANEEEGENGS BRI E
corresponding liability to the lessor is included in SIVER B E A

the consolidated statement of financial position as

a finance lease obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance HEMNFIRL IR E S RHEE
expenses and reduction of the lease obligation so TR 2EEH SR & &R
as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the BHNEEETF MEMBANER
remaining balance of the liability. Finance expenses NHER BRIFEEEENREEKEE -
are recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless RZBERATRERBRASREERKARZ
they are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in —BRBERBEREARA (2R TXEHR
which case they are capitalised in accordance with R e

the Group’s general policy on borrowing costs (see

the accounting policy below).

Operating lease payments are recognised as an KERENFIRAEBEE NN ERERE
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. REAX KEREMEEZHAN
Contingent rentals arising under operating leases eRELXPHABRRARFAX -

are recognised as an expense in the period in which

they are incurred.

° *~—————————
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leasing (continued)
Leasehold land and building

When the Group makes payments for a property
interest which includes both leasehold land
and building elements, the Group assesses the
classification of each element separately based on
the assessment as to whether substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of each
element have been transferred to the Group, unless
it is clear that both elements are operating leases
in which case the entire property is accounted
as an operating lease. Specifically, the entire
consideration (including any lump-sum upfront
payments) are allocated between the leasehold
land and the building elements in proportion to
the relative fair values of the leasehold interests
in the land element and building element at initial

recognition.

When the property payments cannot be allocated
reliably between the leasehold land and building
elements, the entire property is generally classified
as if the leasehold land is under finance lease.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each
individual group entity, transactions in currencies
other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates
of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.
Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign

currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement
of monetary items, and on the retranslation of
monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in

the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of
the Group's operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong
dollars) using exchange rates prevailing at the end
of each reporting period. Income and expenses
items are translated at the average exchange rates
for the period. Exchange differences arising, if any,
are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity under the heading of
translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling

interests as appropriate).

3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a
disposal of the Group's entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control
over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation),
all of the exchange differences accumulated in
equity in respect of that operation attributable to
the owners of the Company are reclassified to profit
or loss.

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a
subsidiary that does not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiary, the proportionate
share of accumulated exchange differences are re-
attributed to non-controlling interests and are not

recognised in profit or loss.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets until such time as the assets are substantially

ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from

the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or

loss in the period in which they are incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
and state managed retirement benefit scheme
in the PRC are recognised as an expense when
employees have rendered service entitling them to
the contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at
the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected
to be paid as and when employees rendered the
services. All short-term employee benefits are
recognised as an expense unless another HKFRS
requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit in
the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to
employees (such as wages and salaries, annual
leave and sick leave) after deducting any amount

already paid.

Share-based payment arrangements

Equity-settled share-based payments to directors,
employees and consultants providing similar
services are measured at the fair value of the equity

instruments at the grant date.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payment arrangements (continued)

The fair value determined at the grant date of the
equity-settled share-based payments is expensed
to profit or loss on a straight line basis over the
vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of
equity instruments that will eventually vest, with
a corresponding increase in equity (share options
reserve). At the end of the reporting period, the
Group revises its estimates of the number of
options that are expected to ultimately vest. The
impact of the revision of the original estimates
during the vesting period, if any, is recognised in
profit or loss such that the cumulative expense
reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding
adjustment to the share options reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in the share options reserve
will be transferred to share premium. When the
share options are forfeited after the vesting date or
are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in the share options reserve
will be transferred to accumulated losses.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax

currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit/loss
before tax because of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and items that
are never taxable or deductible. The Group's liability
for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the

end of the reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 B % —F —UFE=H =+ — H IL4FFEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the consolidated financial statements
and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition of

goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that
there will be sufficient taxable profits against which
to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences
and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Taxation (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of the reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to

allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liability is settled or the asset is
realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and
assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets
and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
investment properties that are measured using the
fair value model, the carrying amounts of such
properties are presumed to be recovered entirely
through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted.
The presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially
all of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment property over time, rather than through
sale.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Taxation (continued)

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit
or loss, except when they relate to items that
are recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case, the current
and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax
arises from the initial accounting for a business
combination, the tax effect is included in the

accounting for the business combination.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings
and leasehold land (classified as finance leases)
held for use in the production or supply of goods
or services, or for administrative purposes (other
than construction in progress) are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at
cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Construction in progress includes property, plant
and equipment in the course of construction for
production, supply or administrative purposes are
carried at cost, less any recognised impairment loss.
Costs include professional fees and, for qualifying
assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance
with the Group’s accounting policy. Construction in
progress is classified to the appropriate categories
of property, plant and equipment when completed
and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these
assets, on the same basis as other property assets,
commences when the assets are ready for their
intended use.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the
cost of assets other than construction in progress
less their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated
useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated
over their expected useful lives on the same
basis as owned assets. However, when there is
no reasonable certainty that ownership will be
obtained by the end of the lease term, assets are
depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and
their useful lives.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from
the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in
profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn
rentals and/or for capital appreciation (including
properties under construction for such purposes).
Investment properties include land held for
undetermined future use, which is regarded as held

for capital appreciation purpose.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investment properties (continued)

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are measured at their fair values. All of
the Group's property interests held under operating
leases to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation
purposes are classified and accounted for as
investment properties and are measured using
the fair value model. Gains or losses arising from
changes in the fair value of investment properties
are included in profit or loss for the period in which
they arise.

Construction costs incurred for investment
properties under construction are capitalised as part
of the carrying amount of the investment properties
under construction.

An investment property is derecognised upon
disposal or when the investment property is
permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposals.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
property (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset) is included in the profit or loss in the

period in which the property is derecognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment on tangible assets other than goodwill
(see the accounting policy in respect of goodwill

above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible assets
with finite useful lives to determine whether there
is any indication that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated
in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of tangible assets are
estimated individually, when it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the CGU to which the asset belongs. When a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can
be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to
individual CGUs, or otherwise they are allocated to
the smallest group of CGUs for which a reasonable
and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset (or a CGU) for which
the estimates of future cash flows have not been
adjusted.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment on tangible assets other than goodwill
(see the accounting policy in respect of goodwill

above) (continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU)
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset (or a CGU) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. In allocating the
impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
(if applicable) and then to the other assets on a
pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit. The carrying amount of an
asset is not reduced below the highest of its fair
value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value
in use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of
the impairment loss that would otherwise have
been allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to
the other assets of the unit. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset (or CGU) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset (or a CGU) in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs of inventories are determined
on a weighted average method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories
less all estimated costs of completion and costs
necessary to make the sale.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has
a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that the Group
will be required to settle that obligation, and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the

obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the
best estimate of the consideration required to
settle the present obligation at the end of the
reporting period, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When
a provision is measured using the cash flows
estimated to settle the present obligation, its
carrying amount is the present value of those cash
flows (where the effect of the time value of money

is material).

Warranties

Provisions for the expected cost of assurance-
typed warranty obligations under the relevant sale
of goods are recognised at the date of sale of the
relevant products, at the directors’ best estimate
of the expenditure required to settle the Group’s

obligation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised when a group entity becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument. All
regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases
or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by

regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables
arising from contracts with customers which are
initially measured in accordance with HKFRS 15
since 1 April 2018. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL)
are added to or deducted from the fair value
of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset
or financial liability and of allocating interest
income and interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
and payments (including all fees and points paid
or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life
of the financial asset or financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying

amount on initial recognition.

Interest income which are derived from the Group’s
ordinary course of business are presented as

revenue.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 in

accordance with transitions in note 2)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions

are subsequently measured at amortised cost:

. the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is to collect

contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal

amount outstanding.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"):

o the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is achieved by both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling;

and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal

amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently
measured at FVTPL, except that at the date of
initial application/initial recognition of a financial
asset the Group may irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes in fair value of an equity
investment in other comprehensive income (“OCI")
if that equity investment is neither held for trading
nor contingent consideration recognised by an
acquirer in a business combination to which HKFRS

3 Business Combinations applies.
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POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued) cRmITAE (&)

Financial assets (continued) TEEE (&)

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if: MESATRE MERMEESIRAR

FEER:

. it has been acquired principally for the . BAZEMNEZARIHAL
purpose of selling in the near term; or &8k

. on initial recognition it is a part of a . R P ERRFBR A B ERE
portfolio of identified financial instruments FEzAHeMmTAAS 2
that the Group manages together and has —& o WERAABEEE
a recent actual pattern of short-term profit- Mz BERER 3k
taking; or

. it is a derivative that is not designated and . BIFFEERBRIERLEHRT
effective as a hedging instrument. BEZTHETA-

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a b AN - 7K 2 B A] S B] EE Mb A 2R dR

financial asset that are required to be measured at HRARSIEATFEFAEMEE A

the amortised cost or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL FEZEMEEETERKEATEGA

if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an BRstE AIRRRLBIERIEE

accounting mismatch. WA BB

- °
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

(1)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the
effective interest method for financial assets
measured subsequently at amortised cost.
Interest income is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of a financial asset, except
for financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired (see below). For
financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired, interest income is
recognised by applying the effective interest
rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset from the next reporting period. If the
credit risk on the credit impaired financial
instrument improves so that the financial
asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset from the
beginning of the reporting period following
the determination that the asset is no longer

credit impaired.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

(i) Financial assets at FVTPL
Financial assets that do not meet the
criteria for being measured at amortised
cost or FVTOCI or designated as FVTOCI are
measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured
at fair value at the end of each reporting
period, with any fair value gains or losses
recognised in profit or loss The net gain or
loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any
dividend or interest earned on the financial
asset and is included in the “other income,
gains and losses” line item.

Impairment of financial assets (upon application

HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with note 2)
The Group recognises a loss allowance for
ECL on financial assets which are subject to
impairment under HKFRS 9 (including trade and
other receivables, amounts due from former
subsidiaries, loan receivables, pledged bank
deposits, bank balances and factoring receivables),
lease receivables and financial guarantee contracts.
The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting
date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial

recognition.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 B % —F —UFE=H =+ — H IL4FFEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application
HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with note 2)
(continued)

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result
from all possible default events over the expected
life of the relevant instrument. In contrast, 12m
ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL that
is expected to result from default events that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting
date. Assessment are done based on the Group's
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the current
conditions at the reporting date as well as the
forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for
trade receivables and lease receivables. The ECL
on trade receivables with significant balances or
credit impaired and lease receivables are assessed
individually and the remaining trade receivables are
assessed collectively using a provision matrix with

appropriate age groupings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the
loss allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when
there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, the Group recognises
lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime
ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default

occurring since initial recognition.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application

HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with note 2)

(continued)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk
In assessing whether the credit risk
has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk
of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with
the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition. In making this assessment,
the Group considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information
that is available without undue cost or
effort.

In particular, the following information is
taken into account when assessing whether

credit risk has increased significantly:

o an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial
instrument’s external (if available) or

internal credit rating;

o significant deterioration in external
market indicators of credit risk, e.g.
a significant increase in the credit
spread, the credit default swap prices
for the debtor;
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application
HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with note 2)

(continued)
(i) Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

o existing or forecast adverse changes
in business, financial or economic
conditions that are expected to cause
a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations;

o an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results
of the debtor;

o an actual or expected significant

adverse change in the regulatory,
economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that
results in a significant decrease in
the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that
the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past
due, unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information that demonstrates

otherwise.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application
HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with note 2)
(continued)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk (continued)
Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes
that the credit risk on a debt instrument
has not increased significantly since
initial recognition if the debt instrument
is determined to have low credit risk at
the reporting date. A debt instrument is
determined to have low credit risk if i) it has
a low risk of default, ii) the borrower has a
strong capacity to meet its contractual cash
flow obligations in the near term and iii)
adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will
not necessarily, reduce the ability of the
borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow
obligations. The Group considers a debt
instrument to have low credit risk when
it has an internal or external credit rating
of ‘investment grade’ in accordance with

globally understood definitions.

For financial guarantee contracts, the
date that the Group becomes a party to
the irrevocable commitment is considered
to be the date of initial recognition for
the purposes of assessing the financial
instrument for impairment. In assessing
whether there has been a significant increase
in the credit risk since initial recognition of
a financial guarantee contract, the Group
considers the changes in the risk that the

specified debtor will default on the contract.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 # % ~F—JUF=H =+ —H IL4FEZ

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application

HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with note 2)

(continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)
The Group regularly monitors the
effectiveness of the criteria used to identify
whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk and revises them as appropriate
to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk
before the amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the
Group considers an event of default occurs
when information developed internally or
obtained from external sources indicates that
the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors,
including the Group, in full (without taking
into account any collaterals held by the
Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group
considers that default has occurred when
a financial asset is more than 90 days past
due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate
that a more lagging default criterion is more

appropriate.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application

HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with note 2)

(continued)

(iii)  Credit-impaired financial assets
A financial asset is credit-impaired when
one or more events of default that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future
cash flows of that financial asset have
occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is
credit-impaired includes observable data

about the following events:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the

issuer or the borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a

default or past due event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for
economic or contractual reasons
relating to the borrower’s financial
difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that the
lender(s) would not otherwise

consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the
borrower will enter bankruptcy or

other financial reorganisation; or
(e) the disappearance of an active market

for that financial asset because of
financial difficulties.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 # % —F—JUE=H =+ —H L4 &

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application

HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with note 2)

(continued)

(iv)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when
there is information indicating that the
counterparty is in severe financial difficulty
and there is no realistic prospect of recovery,
for example, when the counterparty has
been placed under liquidation or has entered
into bankruptcy proceedings. Financial
assets written off may still be subject to
enforcement activities under the Group's
recovery procedures, taking into account
legal advice where appropriate. A write-
off constitutes a derecognition event. Any
subsequent recoveries are recognised in

profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of
the probability of default, loss given default
(i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a
default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and
loss given default is based on historical data
adjusted by forward-looking information.
Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased
and probability-weighted amount that is
determined with the respective risks of

default occurring as the weights.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application

HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with note 2)

(continued)

(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL
(continued)
Generally, the ECL is estimated as the
difference between all contractual cash flows
that are due to the Group in accordance
with the contract and the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted
at the effective interest rate determined at
initial recognition. For a lease receivable,
the cash flows used for determining the ECL
is consistent with the cash flows used in
measuring the lease receivable in accordance
with HKAS 17.

For a financial guarantee contract, the
Group is required to make payments only
in the event of a default by the debtor in
accordance with the terms of the instrument
that is guaranteed. Accordingly, the expected
losses is the present value of the expected
payments to reimburse the holder for a
credit loss that it incurs less any amounts
that the Group expects to receive from the
holder, the debtor or any other party.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application

HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with note 2)

(continued)

(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL
(continued)
For ECL on financial guarantee contracts
for which the effective interest rate cannot
be determined, the Group will apply a
discount rate that reflects the current market
assessment of the time value of money and
the risks that are specific to the cash flows
but only if, and to the extent that, the risks
are taken into account by adjusting the
discount rate instead of adjusting the cash

shortfalls being discounted.

Where ECL is measured on a collective
basis or cater for cases where evidence at
the individual instrument level may not yet
be available, the financial instruments are

grouped on the below basis:

. Nature of financial instruments;

° Past-due status;

° Nature, size and industry of debtors;
and

° External credit ratings where
available.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application
HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with note 2)
(continued)
(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL
(continued)
The grouping is regularly reviewed by
management to ensure the constituents of
each group continue to share similar credit
risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the
gross carrying amount of the financial asset
unless the financial asset is credit impaired,
in which case interest income is calculated
based on the amortised cost of the financial

asset.

For financial guarantee contracts, the loss
allowances are recognised at the higher
of the amount of the loss allowance
determined in accordance with HKFRS 9; and
the amount initially recognised less, where
appropriate, cumulative amount of income

recognised over the guarantee period.

Except for financial guarantee contracts, the
Group recognises an impairment gain or loss
in profit or loss for all financial instruments
by adjusting their carrying amount, with
the exception of trade receivables where
the corresponding adjustment is recognised

through a loss allowance account.

TESBER (&)

ERMIA (&)

EHEE (&)

EAEEZBE (RRIER F22 8K

XX JEH BB &R FEIH 1K)

(&)

(v, BHEEBRNERER
(&)
BREIHTREET SR
PATE (R & #0048 0 2 1R
UE BRI

MEBWATIREEBEENR
REEME KRIFETREEH
BEERE EHERLT  FE
WARIE S B & 2 H #H AR

| Ay
Al = °

HRBEERAN BIRERE
BREBM B RS EREIRE
THEREEEREN TR
MERME (IER ) EERE
MR R WASE ZHH
B EER -

BRREERGAON AEEAE
BAEREERESRERAA
TR T AR EKRDKERE
1640 /8 38 B 53 30 5 1R B A AR T
TR FE I E 5 BRIARR S ©

CHINLINK INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ¥ I th 4x |3 B £ )it % B 24 %] | Annual Report 2019 % #




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # % —F—JUE=H =+ —H L4 & \

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (before application of HKFRS 9 on 1
April 2018)

The Group's financial assets are classified into
the following specified categories: AFS financial
assets and loans and receivables. The classification
depends on the nature and purpose of the financial
assets and is determined at the time of initial

recognition.

(i) AFS financial assets
AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that
are either designated as AFS or are not
classified as (a) loans and receivables, (b)
held-to-maturity investments or (c) financial
assets at FVTPL.

AFS equity investments that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and
whose fair value cannot be reliably measured
are measured at cost less any identified
impairment losses at the end of each
reporting period (see accounting policy in
respect of impairment loss on financial assets

below).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of

financial assets (before application of HKFRS 9 on 1

April 2018) (continued)

(ii) Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Subsequent to initial recognition,
loans and receivables (including payment
for a life insurance policy, trade receivables,
trade receivables from related companies,
loan receivables, other receivables and
deposits, amounts due from former
subsidiaries, restricted deposits, pledged
bank deposits and bank balances and
cash) are measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less
any impairment (see accounting policy on

impairment loss on financial assets below).

Interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate, except for short-term
receivables where the recognition of interest

would be immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets (before application of
HKFRS 9 on 1 April 2018)

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are
assessed for indicators of impairment at the end
of each reporting period. Financial assets are
considered to be impaired when there is objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the
financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of
the financial assets have been affected.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (before application of
HKFRS 9 on 1 April 2018) (continued)

For all other financial instruments, objective

evidence of impairment could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or

counterparty; or

o breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal

payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or financial re-

organisation.

Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio
of receivables could include the Group's past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in
the number of delayed payments in the portfolio
past the average credit period and observable
changes in national or local economic conditions

that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
amount of the impairment loss recognised is the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective

interest rate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (before application of
HKFRS 9 on 1 April 2018) (continued)

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of
the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for
a similar financial asset. Such impairment loss will

not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is
reduced by the impairment loss directly for all
financial assets with the exception of trade
receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. Changes
in the carrying amount of the allowance account
are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade
receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are

credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost,
if, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount
of the investment at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost
would have been had the impairment not been

recognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FXEGHEEK (#)

POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued) cRmITAE (&)

Financial assets (continued) TEEE (&)

Derecognition of financial assets R TER T FEE

The Group derecognises a financial asset only EREERSRENGLVENE R
when the contractual rights to the cash flows from B A HEHEeRmEERZEERAGRE
the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial MBRHoREARLKEREY TS5 —F
asset and substantially all the risks and rewards BR AREFERIEEREMEE -
of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the 1h$$llﬂ$ﬂ§&1% BEERE R
Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all RNE o BB K Bl ¥ - I 48 48 2= 6 2 3
the risks and rewards of ownership and continues EZBEE AAEEEHAEANREE
to control the transferred asset, the Group HRBERNAGEEEINMEREA
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an ERE - MAEERBAEECHE
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. EREBRENBRI SRR KB ®H K
If the Group retains substantially all the risks and SESHERRZBESMEE W
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial BREKAEREBELABEFEE -

asset, the Group continues to recognise the
financial asset and also recognises a collateralised

borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference REIEREREER EEREE
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum HERERERREZNBENZRE R
of the consideration received and receivable is BR AR

recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity ZHEERER
Classification as debt or equity DB EE
Debt and equity instruments issued by a group HEEERRTNESRERTIAR
entity are classified as either financial liabilities or BENLTHENBEERNAReRBER
as equity in accordance with the substance of the BRTENTEEDEASR B EIE

[

B

contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (continued)

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Company are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade payables, other
payables and accruals, loans from staff, amounts
due to former subsidiaries, amounts due to related
companies, amounts due to directors, construction
cost accruals, coupon bonds, obligation arising
from a put option to a non-controlling shareholder
and bank and other borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that
requires the issuer to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.
Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group
are initially measured at their fair values and, if not
designated as at FVTPL, are subsequently measured
at the higher of:

(i) the amount of the loss allowance
determined in accordance with HKFRS 9
(since 1 April 2018)/HKAS 37 Provisions,
contingent liabilities and contingent assets
(before application of HKFRS 9 on 1 April
2018); and

(i) the amount initially recognised less, where
appropriate, cumulative amortisation
recognised over the guarantee period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (continued)

Convertible bonds contain liability and equity
components

The component parts of the convertible bonds are
classified separately as financial liability and equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument. A conversion
option that will be settled by the exchange of a
fixed amount of cash or another financial asset
for a fixed number of the Company’s own equity
instruments is classified as an equity instrument.

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability
component is estimated by measuring the fair value
of similar liability that does not have an associated
equity component. The liability component is
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

The conversion option classified as equity is
determined by deducting the amount of the
liability component from the fair value of the
compound instrument as a whole. In the case
where convertible bonds were issued to acquire
non-financial assets, the conversion option
would be initially recognised at fair value. These
conversion options are recognised and included in
equity, net of income tax effects, where applicable,
and is not subsequently remeasured. In addition,
the conversion option classified as equity will
remain in equity until the conversion option is
exercised, in which case, the balance recognised
in equity will be transferred to share premium.
Where the conversion option remains unexercised
at the expiry date of the convertible bonds, the
balance recognised in equity will be transferred to
accumulated losses. No gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss upon conversion or expiration of the
conversion option.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (continued)

Convertible bonds contain liability and equity
components (continued)

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the
convertible bonds are allocated to the liability and
equity components in proportion to the allocation
of the gross proceeds. Transaction costs relating
to the equity component are charged directly to
equity. Transaction costs relating to the liability
component are included in the carrying amount of
the liability portion and amortised over the period
of the convertible bonds using the effective interest

method.

Convertible bonds contain liability component and
conversion option derivative

A conversion option that will be settled other than
by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or
another financial asset for a fixed number of the
Company’s own equity instruments is a conversion

option derivative.

At the date of issue, both the liability component
and conversion option derivative are recognised
at fair value. In subsequent periods, the liability
component of the convertible bonds is carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.
The conversion option derivative is measured at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in profit

or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (continued)

Convertible bonds contain liability component and
conversion option derivative (continued)

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the
convertible bonds are allocated to the liability
and derivative components in proportion to their
relative fair values. Transaction costs relating to
the derivative components are charged to profit
or loss immediately. Transaction costs relating to
the liability component are included in the carrying
amount of the liability portion and amortised over
the period of the convertible bonds using the

effective interest method.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at
the date when derivative contracts are entered
into and are subsequently remeasured to their
fair value at the end of the reporting period. The
resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
immediately unless the derivative is designated
and effective as a hedging instrument, in which
event the timing of the recognition in profit or loss
depends on the nature of the hedge relationship.

Embedded derivatives (before application of HKFRS
9on 1 April 2018)

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host
contracts are treated as separate derivatives when
they meet the definition of a derivative, their risks
and characteristics are not closely related to those
of the host contracts and the host contracts are not
measured at FVTPL.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Derivative financial instruments (continued)

Obligation arising from a put option on shares of a
subsidiary written to a non-controlling shareholder
Put option written to a non-controlling shareholder,
which will be settled other than by exchange of
fixed amount of cash for a fixed number of shares
in a subsidiary is treated as a derivative financial
instrument and is recognised at fair value upon
initial recognition. Any changes of fair value in
subsequent reporting dates are recognised in profit

or loss.

The gross financial liability arising from the put
option is recognised when contractual obligation
to repurchase the shares in a subsidiary is
established even if the obligation is conditional
on the counterparty exercising a right to sell
back the shares to the Group. The liability for the
share redemption amount is initially recognised
and measured at present value of the estimated
repurchase price with the corresponding debit
to the non-controlling interests. In subsequent
periods, the remeasurement of the present value
of the estimated gross obligation under the written
put option to the non-controlling shareholders is

recognised in profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities
when, and only when, the Group’s obligations
are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable is recognised in

profit or loss.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting
policies, which are described in note 3, the directors
of the Company are required to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered
to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these

estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects

both current and future periods.

Critical judgments in applying accounting policies
The following are the critical judgments that
the directors of the Company have made in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies
and that have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.
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AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Critical judgments in applying accounting policies
(continued)

Principal versus agent consideration (agent)

Under HKAS 18, the Group recognised sales of
grain and oil products on a gross basis, i.e. the
Group was considered as a principal, mainly due to
its significant exposure to credit risk of customers.
Upon application of HKFRS 15, the Group is
considered as an agent, the performance obligation
is to arrange for the provision of grain and oil
products, as the Group did not obtain control of

goods before the goods are sold to end customers.

Principal versus agent consideration (principal)

The Group engages in trading of electronic
products. Upon application of HKFRS 15, the Group
reassessed whether the Group should continue
to recognise revenue on gross basis based on the
requirements in HKFRS 15. The Group concluded
that the Group acts as the principal for such
transactions as it controls the specified good
before it is transferred to the customer after taking
into consideration indicators such as the Group
is primarily responsible for fulfilling the promise
to provide the electronic products and the Group
has inventory risk with respect to the electronic
products as evidenced by the terms of the contract.
If there is any quality problem with the product,
the customer has the right to return the electronic
products to the Group.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Critical judgments in applying accounting policies
(continued)

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred taxation
arising from investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model, the directors
of the Company have reviewed the Group's
investment property portfolios and concluded
that the Group’s investment properties are held
under a business model whose objective is to
consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment properties over time,
rather than through sale. Therefore, in measuring
the Group's deferred taxation on investment
properties, the directors of the Company have
determined the presumption that the carrying
amounts of investment properties measured using
the fair value model are recovered entirely through
sale is rebutted. Accordingly, deferred taxation in
relation to the Group’s investment properties has
been measured based on the tax consequences of
recovering the carrying amounts entirely through

use.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning
the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
may have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and

liabilities within the next financial year.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT 4., BREGHERESTIREZ

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Valuation of investment properties

The Group's investment properties are stated at
fair value based on the valuation performed by
an independent qualified professional valuer. In
determining the fair value, the valuer has applied
significant judgment and estimation in determining
the valuation methodology, adoption of significant
assumptions and use of various unobservable
inputs in the valuation models, including prices
realised on actual sales or asking prices or market
rent of comparable properties. Comparable
properties are analysed and carefully weighed
against various factors, such as location, building
age and development scale of each property in
order to arrive at a fair comparison of market
values. As at 31 March 2019, the carrying amount
of investment properties was HK$3,941,746,000
(2018: HK$3,871,563,000) as disclosed in note 17.

EFERR (&)

M NEEZEERIR (&)
KREY R 1FE
REBZIREMERBEREE LG ER
BEHEMETZ2HESEZATE
PR - REEATER  [HEMEEE
EHELFE EHERXNARHEKR
BEREAZET B RE ABRFE
REXRAEG KRG BEATELERY
XERLEMER 2 ERIMENXT
HHe HAEALBRYEETONL
BHEEZHERR (NEVEZILE -
BRIEERE) NEBMEZAF
LEE o AN TR E R — A
FZRA=+—RH REMEZEREAE
#$3,941,746,0008 7T (=& — )\ F:
3,871,563,000/& 7T ) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2019 B % —F —UFE=H =+ — H IL4FFEE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Valuation of trade and loan receivables

The Group estimates the loss allowance for trade
and loan receivables using ECL model in accordance
with HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”. Under the
model, the Group assesses lifetime ECL individually
for trade debtors with significant balances or credit
impaired and/or collectively using a provision matrix
with appropriate age groupings for the remaining
debtors. For loan receivables, the Group measures
the loss allowance equal to 12-month ECL, unless
when there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition in which case the Group
recognises lifetime ECL. The management takes
into consideration, inter alia, the historical default
rates, past due status, general economic conditions
and an assessment of both the current conditions
at the report date as well as the forward looking

information specific to the debtors.

The Group has trade receivables of HK$25,635,000
net the allowance for credit losses of HK$2,480,000
(2018: HK$100,277,000, net of allowance for
credit losses of HK$567,000) and loan receivables
of HK$87,067,000 (2018: HK$130,986,000) as at
31 March 2019 as disclosed in notes 28 and 26

respectively.

4.

£ 47 W s R
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BN 28 K260 RIFTHETE - KN F
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BB E#%2,480,00008 L) (==&
— )\ :100,277,000/8 7T (A=
B 188 567,0000870) ) M EWE
K 487,067,000 L (=& — N\ F:
130,986,000/ 7T ) °

Annual Report 2019 % | CHINLINK INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED % [ 1 4 [ B £ )bt 47 Bt 24 )

o

207



"\ Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

|5 A T R M R HEq

- & 1
L s L

/ For the year ended 31 March 2019 # % ~F—JUFE=H =+ —H IL4FFEZ i \ -i.

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT 4., BREGHERESTIREZ

- e

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Fair value measurement of financial instruments

The Group's payment for a life insurance policy
and unquoted equity instruments amounting to
HK$15,880,000 as at 31 March 2019 are measured
at fair values with fair values being determined
based on unobserved inputs using valuation
techniques. Judgement and estimation are required
in establishing the relevant valuation techniques
and the relevant inputs thereof. Changes in
assumptions relating to these factors could affect
the reported fair values of these instruments. See

note 51c for further disclosures.

Provision for financial guarantee contracts

The Group makes estimate on costs required to
fulfil the relevant obligation of guarantee contracts
when the guaranteed amount is claimed by the
counterparty to the guarantee. Such estimation is
based on the available information as at reporting
date and is determined by the Group’s practical
experience, the default history, the collateral
held and financial position of relevant customers
assessed on an individual basis in the industry and
taking into consideration of industry information
and market data. Where the actual obligation the
Group requires to fulfill is more than expected, a
material provision may arise. Amount of corporate
guarantee provided by the Group is disclosed in
note 46.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fk 7 U 5 AR B

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # % —F—JUE=H =+ —H L4 &

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment of goodwill

The carrying amount of goodwill at 31 March 2019
was HK$32,555,000 (2018: HK$42,716,000) (net
of accumulated impairment loss of HK$10,161,000
(2018: nil)). The Group is required to carry out an
impairment assessment of goodwill at the end of
the reporting period by comparing the recoverable
amount with carrying amount of the relevant CGU.
In determining the recoverable amount, the Group
assesses the value in use of the CGU to which the
goodwill has been allocated by discounting the
estimated future cash flows expected to arise from
the CGU to the present value. Significant judgment
and assumptions were required in the process such
as the use of discount rate and growth rate during
the forecast period. Where the actual future cash
flows are less than expected, a material impairment
loss may arise. Details of the recoverable amount
calculation are disclosed in note 18.

4.

BRI HERMETTEEZ
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/ For the year ended 31 March 2019 # % ~F—JUFE=H =+ —H IL4FFEZ i \ -i.

5. REVENUE 5. WA
A. For the year ended 31 March 2019 A.  E-T-NF=A=1+—H
HFE
(i) Disaggregation of revenue from (1) HEF A2 WA 757

contracts with customers

For the year

- e

ended
31 March
2019
BE-ZE-1F
=A=+—A8
LEE
HK$°000
TET
Types of goods and services: EmRRBER:
Revenue from international trading B E 5 WA
- grain and oil products —EHEMD 182
— electronic products —BFEm 1,550,844
Revenue from property management services %%%ﬁﬁﬁfﬁ%%)\ 75,819
Revenue from financial guarantee services MEERRBBRA 18,919
Revenue from financial advisory services B R R R WA
- financial advisory services — SRR R 22,240
— asset management services —BEBTERS 2,218
Revenue from logistics services W AR A U A 349
Total revenue from contracts with customers BEPEH 2B A 1,670,571
Add: m:
Rental income under HKAS 17 BERGHEAEITRET
MAS WA 28,145
Interest income under HKFRS 9 EREMBREEMERET
B YA 19,002
Interest income under HKAS 17 BB EMFEITRET
HF WA 32,568
Total revenue B 1,750,286
Geographical markets: 35, T 45
Hong Kong and Macau BB RRM 1,575,302
PRC a3 95,269
Total st 1,670,571
Timing of revenue recognition: WARZ R :
A point in time — {IET B P 1,573,266
Over time —BKHE 97,305
Total st 1,670,571
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£ 47 W s R

5. REVENUE (continued)
A. For the year ended 31 March 2019

(continued)

(i)

For the year ended 31 March 2019 B % —F —UFE=H =+ — H IL4FFEE

Disaggregation of revenue from

contracts with customers (continued)

Set out below is the reconciliation

of the revenue from contracts with

customers with the amounts disclosed

in the segment information.

5. WA (&)
A. HE-_Z—NWF=A=+—H
IEFE (&)
(i) HEF AL KA Z IR
(#&)

UTEIEEFAENZ
WA 73 BB & AP 4 R

TRZHEK-

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE-E-NFZAZ+-HLFE

Revenue
Revenue from
disclosed Adjustment Adjustment contracts
in segment of rental  of interest with
information income income  customers
PHER HEWA FISWA HEHEFEH
BEZBA HE RE ZBA
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TER TER TER
Segment 2
International trading HEE 5 1,551,026 - - 1,551,026
Property investment MERE 103,964 (28,145) - 75,819
Financial guarantee BEERRSE
services 18,919 - - 18,919
Finance lease services MERERK 32,568 - (32,568) =
Financial advisory services 871 75 B I IR %5 24,458 - - 24,458
Logistics services W R 349 - - 349
Revenue for reportable A 2R A HMRA
segment 1,731,284 (28,145) (32,568) 1,670,571
Unallocated revenue AARBA 19,002 - (19,002) =
Total @it 1,750,286 (28,145) (51,570) 1,670,571
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g i 2 HEil &

- &
L4 ]

/ For the year ended 31 March 2019 B E —F—UFE=H =+ —H IL4FFE AL Jil

5. REVENUE (continued) 5. WA ()

—————o .

revenue is recognised at a
point in time when control of
the goods has transferred to
customers, being when the
goods have been shipped to
the customer’s specific location
(delivery). The normal credit
term is 7 to 30 days upon
delivery. The Group requires
a 15%-50% deposit of the
contract amount on acceptance
of orders from some of the
customers. When the Group
receives a deposit before the
delivery of products, this will
give rise to contract liabilities
at the start of a contract, until
the revenue recognised on the
relevant contract exceeds the

amount of the deposit.

A. For the year ended 31 March 2019 A. BHE-ZT-NEF=A=+—H
(continued) WFE (E&)
(i) Performance obligation for contracts (i) HEEFENIELEE
with customers
(1) Revenue from international (1) EBBREZRIHE
trading and financial advisory JEE ] R A
services (revenue recognised at (R — 15 [E7 % i
a point in time) WA )
For sales of electronic products, MEFERHEE

mE WARE
on 2 P2 ) R e S
EXF (AER
EEZrERFIE
E M B (R E)
W) 2 B [ B
Re—HREEH
RRRXEELE
=tH-AEH
REZBHEP
WA ERERE
HEHNEEN
15% 250 % %
EoMAEBER
22 A5F 72 dm AT HER
e WERER
BHFRELES
HNBE BEER
HE & AR
KWABLEZES S
AL
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A% 1 B 055 i R B

5.

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # % ~F—JUF=H =+ —H IL4FEZ

REVENUE (continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2019

A.

(continued)

(i)

Performance obligation for contracts

with customers (continued)

(1)

Revenue from international
trading and financial advisory
services (revenue recognised at
a point in time) (continued)
For sales of grain and oil
products, the Group is
considered as an agent and
revenue is recognised at a
point in time when control of
the goods has transferred to
customers, being when the
goods have been delivered. The
Group requires customers to pay
in advance. When the Group
receives payment in advance
before delivery of goods, this
will give rise to other payables
and contract liabilities until the
goods have been delivered to

the customers.

Revenue from financial
advisory services is recognised
at a point in time when control
of the services has transferred
to customers, being when the
services have been provided.
The normal credit term is 90
days.

5.

WA (%)

A.

BE_T-NF=A=t+—H

B (&)

(i) HBEFEXNZIEHNEE

(%)
(1) BEREZRYF

BREIRFUA (R
— 115 2] FE A
ZHA) (&)
B E mIHE
mE A& EK
BERER M
WARE a2 &
HEEBERP
(MEXNEM
) 2 By [ B B
BoAKHEEK
BRI R
(ERNE SN S N)
& an AT W BR T8 A
RE EBREL
H o e BRIE I
EHNAEBE - BEE
EmERATTE
FRIE-

B % R P AR 75 10
NS FEL
EWBEERF
(EVE 12 6% R 3
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 11

g i 2 HEil &

- &
L4 ]

/ For the year ended 31 March 2019 B E —F—UFE=H =+ —H IL4FFE AL Jil

5. REVENUE (continued) 5. WA ()

A. For the year ended 31 March 2019 A. HE_ZT—-—NF=H=+—H
(continued) IEFEE (&)
(i) Performance obligation for contracts (i) BEFEKZIBHIET
with customers (continued) (#&)
(2)  Revenue from property 2) YEREERE

—————o .

management services, financial & B EIR IR
guarantee services, asset EBEEEERER
management services and B IR MA

logistics services (revenue
recognised over time)

For property management
services, the Group satisfies
the performance obligation
by providing services such as
cleaning and security on a daily
basis. As the directors of the
Company considered the Group
has fulfilled its performance
obligation in a pattern which
approximates to time elapsed,
revenue is therefore recognised
over time by output basis. The
Group receives six months to
one year property management
fee in advance from certain
tenants of the investment
properties at the start of
the property management
contract. This gives rise to
the contract liability which
will be recognised as revenue
throughout the period of
services.

(R —ER b ETHERR
ZHA)

B X E B R
mE  AEHEE

BEBRRMHZER
kxR & ERB
ERBENEE-
HRARBIES
RARAEEER
B B FR] OB A AR A
MEATREE
WEMF WA
R 2 ERER
RER - AKH
RYEEERND
B 4R B 12 A [A) 5
THREMEMRF
YELN B A = —
FHWEEEE-
HERELEGHEA
& # & R
145 B ] fE 2R B MR
Ao
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A% 1 B 055 i R B

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # % ~F—JUF=H =+ —H IL4FEZ

5. REVENUE (continued)
A. For the year ended 31 March 2019

(continued)

(ir) Performance obligation for contracts

with customers (continued)

)

Revenue from property
management services, financial
quarantee services, asset
management services and
logistics services (revenue
recognised over time)
(continued)

For financial guarantee services
and asset management services,
the Group provides the relevant
services throughout the period
of time. As the directors of
the Company considered
the customer simultaneously
receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the
Group's performance as the
Group performs the services,
revenue is therefore recognised
over time by output basis. The
Group normally receives one
year financial guarantee fee in
advance from certain customers
at the start of the financial
guarantee contract. This gives
rise to the contract liability
which will be recognised as
revenue throughout the period
of services.

WA (%)

BE_ZT-NF=A=+—H

FE (&)

(i) HBEFEXNZIEHNEE

(%)

)

YR EFERE -
HEERIRE
BEERRER
Y IR HA
(R —ER b ETHERR
ZHA) (&)

R & R RS
NEEEERE
mE AEER
B {E B HA 4R 1 4R
B BR 75 - B X AR
NRAEERRE
FPRASEBEREH
PR 75 iy &) B Us ER
MERAEERE
Ol A
7w AR
H B E B RS RS A
R-AEEBE
REBEERED
7 45 I 1R Al @) &
TEF KB —
FRELERE-
HRELEANE
f& - 15 7 A R
75 HA [ 1 32 /5 I
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:

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # % ~F —JUF = =+ —H L4 WAL Ji.

5. REVENUE (continued) 5. WA ()

—————o .

logistics services (revenue
recognised over time)
(continued)

For the logistics services, the
Group uses cost-based input
method in measuring the
progress of the performance
obligation and revenue is
recognised over the period of
services. The Group requires
a 25%-50% deposit of the
contract amount on acceptance
of orders from some of the
customers. When the Group
receives a deposit before the
provision of services, this will
give rise to contract liabilities
at the start of a contract, until
the revenue recognised on the
relevant contract exceeds the
amount of the deposit.

A. For the year ended 31 March 2019 A. HE_ZT—-—NF=H=+—H
(continued) WEFE (&)

(i) Performance obligation for contracts (i) BEFEKZIBHIET
with customers (continued) (#&)

(2)  Revenue from property 2) YEEERE-
management services, financial BB IERRT
guarantee services, asset BEEERBELR
management services and B IR MA

(R —ER b ETHERR
ZHA) (&)

B ORRB M
T AEBERE
ERHNEMHE
T B BR A LA AR A
BEEN B A
%+ 30 R BR 75 8P
W R A o AR
SEREZIS
BEEMITERE
kZfHEHEE
#125% Z£50% 1%
EoMAEBER
12 4 AR 75 A1 4 ER
BRe HBRER
BHFRBELESR
HaE EEHR
HEEHERZ
WABLEZESS
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fk 7 U 5 AR B

5.

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # % —F—JUE=H =+ —H L4 &

REVENUE (continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2019
(continued)

A.

(i)

Transaction price allocated to the
remaining performance obligation for
contracts with customers

The transaction price allocated to the
remaining performance obligations
(unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) as

5.

WA (&)
A. BHe—_Z—h&E=A=+—H
IEFEE (&)
(i)  SHEEHEHEFELZE
TEHNEEZXZER

R-—ZF-AF=H
=t—HOKREHRTE
MEBEECREKSLED

at 31 March 2019 and the expected REK) 2R HEER
timing of recognising revenue are as TR U A 2 T8 AR B [ 40
follows: ™
Financial Property
guarantee management
services services
RMEERRYE YEEERB
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FERT
Within one year —F R 14,270 40,222
More than one year but BB — FETEBIEMF
not more than two years 995 14,252
More than two years B 38 W 31 4,519
15,296 58,993
Except for the property management BRYMEBEERSE R@E
services and financial guarantee ERRBIHN HEPET
services, all the other contracts with NZBEMENEE

customers are for periods of one year
or less. As permitted under HKFRS
15, the transaction price allocated
to these unsatisfied contracts is not
disclosed.

H—F AT -REE
B A LR F 155
PRt DEEEZER
BITAHNZRZERY
BT ARE-
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/ For the year ended 31 March 2019 B E —F—UFE=H =+ —H IL4FFE s i |

5. REVENUE (continued) 5. WA ()

B. For the year ended 31 March 2018 B. HE_Z - N\F=H=+—H
IEFE
2018
—E-N\F
HK$'000
T T
Revenue from interior decoration work EREMITIERA 114
Revenue from international trading B E 5 A 1,115,887
Revenue from financial guarantee services B PR AR TS A 17,001
Revenue from logistics services W7 AR 75 A 874
Revenue from financial advisory services B 75 8 A AR 75 M A 5,690
Revenue from property investment MERBEWA
—Rental income —HEHBA 27,172
—Management fee income —EBEBIWA 65,621
Interest income from money lending BEF EHRKA 16,538
Interest income from finance leases MEHERNBHA 8,829
1,257,726
6. SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. DWEHR
Information reported to the executive directors of RIEFEHERSERFTEHBREAMZ
the Company, being the chief operating decision WMTYARAPTES (NEELER
maker ("CODM"), for the purposes of resource XE([EEEEREKE|) ) 2EFR
allocation and assessment of segment performance EENAEEHRECEmzERRIE
focus on the types of goods supplied and services M2 AR o

provided by the Group.

———o L
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%ok 13 B B e 3 M R

For the year ended 31 March 2019 B % —F —UFE=H =+ — H IL4FFEE

SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group
considered the financial advisory business acquired
in last year as a new operating and reportable
segment reported to the CODM. Prior year segment
disclosures have been represented to conform
with the current year's presentation. Since revenue
from interior decoration work business is no longer
separately reviewed by the CODM and therefore
it is not separately presented. Revenue from this
business is presented as unallocated revenue and
comparative figures have been represented to

conform with the current year’s presentation.

The Group’s operating and reportable segments
under HKFRS 8 “Operating segments” are as

follows:

(i) International trading — trading of consumer

goods and electronic products

(ii) Property investment — leasing of property
and provision of property management

services

(iii) Financial guarantee services — provision of
corporate financial guarantee services and

related consultancy services

(iv) Finance lease services — provision of finance

lease services

(v) Financial advisory services — provision of
financial advisory and asset management

services

(vi)  Logistics services — provision of logistics

services

DEEFR (&)

HE—

—NE=ZA=1+—BL*F

- K%lﬂﬁiiﬂﬁlﬁﬁz,ﬁﬁ%%ﬁfﬁ%

7}’9%%7%

MEBLERREZRZIHE

BRAIZHRD M- BEFE 270 #8BH
BETEINNEAFEZZY-H

R=ER
BIBIR

KM TREEBRATEHRTIE
REEBEEN Rt WEEF

20 -ZEBWATIZIN ARSI
A B BEFELREINAERNERE

ZE25|—

REEE

o

B RS RIZERSR [ & B 5

B AKEZEENR]ZHD A0

T

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

BREZ - HERMETER
B

MERE-HEMERERY
XEERY

MEERRG - REHEERE
YEOR AR TS I A BE o o AR 7%

MEHERG - REHBREMEE
HR 755

5 765 B ) B 755 — 12 41 B 5 R
kEEEERE

VIR AR 7% — B i AR 75
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/ For the year ended 31 March 2019 B E —F—UFE=H =+ —H IL4FFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

The revenue streams and results from these
segments are the basis of the internal reports
about components of the Group that are
regularly reviewed by the CODM in order to
allocate resources to segments and to assess their

performance.

Money lending and factoring businesses are not
separately reviewed by the CODM and therefore

they are not separately presented.

The CODM makes decisions according to operating
results of each segment. No analysis of segment
asset and segment liability is presented as the
CODM does not regularly review such information
for the purposes of resources allocation and
performance assessment. Therefore, only segment

revenue and segment results are presented.

7 ERE KL (&)
REDHZMATRREE DA EE
BHONPME L ER THEES

BRRETEHEN BAHZDED

RERLFHEERSE -
EEMBAERERBERETZZER

REBBEMN Huit - Iﬁ%?%zﬂ °

LERRERBEEDH < EER
%L TAR - HREBZERREL
ERERIEERETHBENEHRRE
&ﬁ“*ﬁﬁ?&’“ﬂﬁﬁz%ﬂ B
B2 HEERDHEEIN-H
It E25 0 F A R AR A

CHINLINK INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ¥ I th 4x |3 B £ )it % B 24 %] | Annual Report 2019 % #



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2019 B % —F —UFE=H =+ — H IL4FFEE

SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

Segment revenue and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s

revenue and results in by operating and reportable

segments:

b £ A5 WA I

6. ZDHEEMR (A)

2 EB A R R

Year ended 31 March 2019

REBIZEBERTZH D ME D 2
ARZEEDHTMT

Year ended 31 March 2018

BE-E-1% BE-2-N\F
ZA=t-HLEE ZA=t-HL%E
Segment Segment
Segment  profit (loss) Segment profit (loss)
revenue  for the year revenue for the year
REEDH KEE D
AHEA  EF (FB) AHEA R (EE)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TR TET TET
(Restated) (Restated)
(&=5)) (&=35)
International trading BRE 5 1,551,026 35,805 1,115,887 22,134
Property investment MERE 103,964 227,796 92,793 183,542
Financial guarantee services ~BI B &R R 18,919 13,392 17,001 13,302
Finance lease services RERERE 32,568 8,987 8,829 3,955
Financial advisory services — Bf i AR AR TS 24,458 (32,214) 5,690 (8,816)
Logistics services i B 7% 349 (1,444) 874 (2,261)
Revenue and result for AERDBRARER
reportable segment 1,731,284 252,322 1,241,074 211,856
Unallocated revenue AABEWA 19,002 16,652
Total st 1,750,286 1,257,726
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/ For the year ended 31 March 2019 B E —F—UFE=H =+ —H IL4FFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. ToHEH (&)
(continued)
Segment revenue and results (continued) DEWARELE (&)

Year ended 31 March 2019 Year ended 31 March 2018

BE-B-1E BE-2-N\F

ZAET-HLERE ZRA=t+-HILEFE
Segment Segment
Segment  profit (loss) Segment profit (loss)
revenue  for the year revenue for the year
EEEDH KEEHHB
2HEA EFN (BR) AHBA & (ER)
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER THET THT THT

(Restated) (Restated)
(RE5) (mE5)

Unallocated revenue A BERA 19,002 16,652
Unallocated income, AABRKBA - WEREE

gains and losses 7,248 70,311
Unallocated impairment losses A DB € BEE 2 MEF B

on financial assets (23,147) -
Unallocated equity-settled ~ RABZEZLEEURH B

share-based payments B ARE (154) (1,365)

2

Unallocated gain on fair APEREMEZ
value change of investment A F{EZ &z

properties 60,172 26,011
Loss arising from acquisiton WE—HNBAREELZ
of a subsidiary BB - (101,654)

Gain on fair value change of ATEEEHFZITET AR S
the derivative components 2 A FEZEH

of convertible bonds - 121
Unallocated corporate APBEEERY

expenses (44,394) (59,795)
Finance costs B T X AN (199,461) (167,598)
Profit (loss) before tax BEiana s (EE) 71,588 (5,461)

PY rs
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 # % —F—JUE=H =+ —H L4 &

SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)
Segment revenue and results (continued)

The accounting policies of the operating segments
are the same as the Group’s accounting policies as
described in note 3. Segment profit/loss represents
the profit earned by/loss from each segment
without allocation of central administration costs,
equity-settled share-based payments in relation to
central administrative staff, unallocated impairment
losses on financial assets, gain on fair value change
of investment properties (except for gain on fair
value change of certain investment properties),
loss arising from acquisition of a subsidiary, other
income, gains and losses, directors’ emoluments
and finance costs. This is the measure reported to
the CODM for the purposes of resources allocation

and performance assessment.

N

DEER (H)

N

DERA R B (&)

EED AR ST BUR M 3Pt AR &
BraitBEER D EF B
TI&EDWERED P RITHAA
BRTPRITERABNIZESEE AR
MRERZNFR ROEERMEEZ
WMEER REMEZAFEEHR
@ (TERETREMEZATESE
Bls) KE-HNBARAELZ
BE-EMRA - sk EiE EEM
ERMBRAZAEENFELE
BN EHRTEIELERRENES
DEEREFERR B 2T

Wy
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 # % —F—JUE=H =+ —H L4 &

SEGMENT INFORMATION 6.

(continued)

Geographical information

The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong,
Macau and the PRC. All the Group's revenue from
external customers are based on locations of the
customers.

The Group’s revenue from external customers

and information about its non-current assets by

TEHEFR (&)

o 150 Ry
AEBRKEEBLUNESE B RSP
cAKBERBIFELZABERA
BREFREBES D -

AEBERAIBEPZBARREE
PRl 2 ERBEEERFRN

geographical location of the assets are detailed ™~
below:
Revenue from external
customers Non-current assets (note)
RENMBEEZBA kRBEE (W)
2019 2018 2019 2018
“E-hE 2N\ ZEBE-hE Z-N\%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER TEL THET FAEL
Hong Kong and Macau B MR 1,585,364 1,066,657 49,685 62,248
The PRC e 164,922 191,069 4,228,399 4,001,678
1,750,286 1,257,726 4,278,084 4,063,926

Note: Non-current assets excluded financial instruments.

Wit FRPEETEEERIA-
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 # % ~F—JUF=H =+ —H IL4F

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

Information about major customers

Revenue from customers contributing over 10% of
the total revenue of the Group are as follows:

DEHEFR (&)

EERSAN
S INCES S PV SN
mT

2019 2018

—E-NEF —E-N\F

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FAT

Customer A BEA 708,576 262,417
Customer B! EFB 472,860 737,444
Customer C' R 295,499 N/A? 7~ 3 A2

L Revenue from international trading segment.

2 The corresponding revenue did not contribute over
10% of the total revenue of the Group.

L BERE 552 WA -

? MR FE YA AR AR E AR A10%
AL -
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 # % —F—JUE=H =+ —H L4 &

OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND 7. HBA WEREE
LOSSES
2019 2018
—E-hE —ZE-)\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FHET
Other income H g A
Interest income M EUWA 9,487 8,669
Imputed interest income from FEUCRTF B A RIBRIB 2
amounts due from former & A2 WA
subsidiaries 2,172 1,905
11,659 10,574
Other gains and losses Hih s R BB
Adjustment on carrying amount B — R BEE A 7R IE
of amount due to a related ZEREERE (Hit37)
company (note 37) - 47,780
Gain on disposal of property, LEWE  HE REE 2 W
plant and equipment 273 3
Net foreign exchange (loss) gain  [&E % (&18) Wz (13,992) 11,957
Gain on fair value change of MRERFZITEIAR D
derivative components of Z AV EEH K=
convertible bonds - 121
Gain on fair value change of BAFEFABRZEREE
financial assets at FVTPL AT EEB WS 853 -
Write-off of payables 1 85 < BR 18 8,132 =
Others HA 596 -
(4,138) 59,861
7,521 70,435
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f o e year ended 31 March 2019 # % _Z—JUFE = =+—H L4

8. FINANCE COSTS 8. Bt 7 B AR
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$°000
FHExT FAT
Interest on bank and other RITREME R ZHE
borrowings 100,695 64,193
Effective interest expense on 10.0% Al 2R EH 2 BEF M
10.0% convertible bonds - 10,607
Effective interest expense on 3.0% A R ES 2 BERF B
3.0% convertible bonds 3,328 50,393
Effective interest expense on 9.0%REBEH L ERFEME
9.0% coupon bonds 42,189 26,967
Effective interest expense on T5%REEHEBRRERE
7.5% coupon bonds = 8,312
Effective interest expense on NRO%EBBEHF2ERF B
12.0% coupon bonds 15,486 4,901
Imputed interest expense from FERTBIM B A R BRIE 2
amounts due to former HE R B X
subsidiaries 1,171 1,028
Imputed interest expense from  FEfIBEE QA FIRIE 2
amounts due to related HER B
companies (note 37) (H15£37) 31,656 19,182
Imputed interest expense from 1A 3E 25 AR A% 38 4% H 3R 0 BRAE P
obligation arising from put EAREZGHENSRAX
option to a non-controlling
shareholder 10,696 3,808
Interest on finance leases MEMEF S 34 87
Total finance costs B ISR N 4R 5 205,255 189,478
Less: Amount capitalised in W ERIEEMEL
investment properties BEREER
under construction (5,794) (21,880)
199,461 167,598

PY rs
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 # % —F—JUE=H =+ —H L4 &

FINANCE COSTS (continued) 8.

There was no finance cost capitalised arose on
the general borrowing pool during the year
ended 31 March 2019. Certain finance costs of
HK$4,821,000 capitalised during the year ended 31
March 2018 arose on the general borrowing pool
and was calculated by applying a capitalisation rate

of 11.6% per annum.

B A ()

REBEE=ZFT—AF=A=+—RHLHF
B tERE—REERBEEZER
LB BEA - RBEE_T—/\F=A
=t+—HLEFE BFRE—REER
HE 2 BRI K 784,821,000/ 7T
TEA11.6% 2 FERbLRFE -

IMPAIRMENT LOSSES ON 9. SRWMEEZREEE  {IRERD
FINANCIAL ASSETS, NET OF
REVERSAL
2019 2018
—ZE-hF ZZE-)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FH& T
Impairment losses recognised FETHNESERR (BE) 2
(reversed) on: B
— Trade receivables —EWE FERIA 13 (245)
— Amounts due from former — FEUR AT B A R BR IR
subsidiaries 23,105 -
— Other receivables — H fth fE W BR IR 1,400 =
24,518 (245)
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/ For the year ended 31 March 2019 # % ~F—JUFE=H =+ —H IL4FFEZ i \ -i.

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10. FASHiMxX
2019 2018
—E-AE —T-N\F
HK$'000 HK$°000
FERT FHEIT
Current tax: BIEAT 1A
Hong Kong BB 3,061 2,763
PRC a3 6,202 4,546
9,263 7,309
Overprovision in prior years: BEFERBERE:
Hong Kong BB (83) (141)
PRC + (1.344) (2,996)
(1,427) (3,137)
Deferred tax (note 42) EIERIR (H73t42) 46,596 19,493
54,432 23,665
On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative RZEBE-NF=ZA=+—HB - BHY
Council passed The Inland Revenue (Amendment) FERA_T—EFHE (BF]) (8
(No. 7) Bill 2017 (the “Bill”) which introduces THIEPIEZR ([EFIER]) - 5| AF]
the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The Bill FHERBRE -EOAERR N
was signed into law on 28 March 2018 and was FZRAZ+NAEBERBEE IR
gazetted on the following day. Under the two- FHAB - BREBENEHERRS &&
tiered profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2 million REEETEEE2,000,0008 7T 2 5 F 5
of profits of the qualifying group entity will be 128.25% =t At » i #8 482,000,000/ 7T
taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2 million will 2w M 1R 16.5% 5T B o T A FI 15
be taxed at 16.5%. The profits of group entities not TR MRS 2 BB 2w A s E
qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime R — T E16.5%FTHi o

will continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.

———o L
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10.

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # % —F—JUE=H =+ —H L4 &

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)
Accordingly, starting from the current year, the
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 8.25% on
the first HK$2 million of the estimated assessable
profits and at 16.5% on the estimated assessable
profits above HK$2 million.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income
Tax (the “EIT Law"”) and implementation regulation
of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the Group's PRC
subsidiaries is 25% except that the concessionary
tax rate of 15% is applied to certain subsidiaries
recognised as “Go-west” region development
programme corporate which is entitled to apply the
rate of 15%. The entitlement of this tax benefit is
subject to renewal by respective tax bureau in the

PRC every year.

10.

FreBimx (&)

Eilt - BEXFER  H2,000,000%
TLAb ET R B s F 2 BB G R IR
8.25%%H & T i #2,000,0007% JT
ZARETERBE F 2 B FEHRIK
16.5%=T & -

REFBECEMAEVE(TRERT
BiE]) REEMBREEBE A
SETEMBRAZHER25%  HE
BERRIS%ERNERRLS [ EE
A EEHBERERBCXAERESES
15% 2 B R ZE THEBRAR 1t
HMEEB 2 EMNBRTEBBBRED
FEETES-
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/ For the year ended 31 March 2019 # % ~F—JUFE=H =+ —H IL4FFEZ i \ -i.

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 10. FrSPipxk (&)
The income tax expense for the year can be AEEMERAZMEESERRE
reconciled to the profit (loss) before tax per the KRR AZRERRF (&EE)
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other ZEERWT

comprehensive income as follows:

2019 2018
—ZE-hF ZE-)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER T T
Profit (loss) before tax B AT @ A (E518) 71,588 (5,461)
Tax at the Hong Kong Profits Tax 2% /& FI B Fi 5 K 16.5% 5T 51
rate of 16.5% 11,812 (901)
Tax effect of expenses not ST EERERIBINR 2
deductible for tax purposes DTS- 35,430 35,042
Tax effect of income not taxable WATABR 2 G T E
for tax purposes (980) (11,204)
Tax effect of tax losses not MEBEERER MG ZE
recognised 18,545 13,691
Utilisation of tax losses previously B Z A KR 2 Fii5E 18
not recognised (9,102) (5,580)
Effect of different tax rates of REMBEEEMERELE 2
subsidiaries operating in other  MIBAR Z TR E 2 FE
jurisdictions 339 (4,246)
Income tax on concessionary rate 18 =i K5+ E 2 FiEH (185) =
Overprovision in respect of BT FEBERE
prior year (1,427) (3,137)
Income tax expense for the year ZANFEFTEHFX 54,432 23,665

———o L
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 B % —F —UFE=H =+ — H IL4FFEE

11. PROFIT (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR 1. AFEERA(HE)
2019 2018
—B-nE —T)\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FET
Profit (loss) for the year has AEERF (FEE) SNk
been arrived at after charging (kA TFEH|EA
(crediting):
Auditor’s remuneration % S EM B & 2,919 2,850
Depreciation of property, plant  #% . = R R & IT &
and equipment 4,453 3,308
Amortisation of intangible assets & E# 4 (S ATHE L)
(included in administrative
expenses) - 1,756
Staff costs (including directors’ B IA (BEEEHE)
emoluments)
Salaries and other benefits = K b 18 T 69,714 52,762
Retirement benefit scheme RKTE BT 2 =
contributions 6,747 5,956
Equity-settled share-based IRRESEE AR AR Y
payments (Note) 8% (Hfaz) 237 1,431
76,698 60,149
Cost of inventories recognised as #%:2 A 59 > 17 &5 AL 4c
expenses 1,502,220 1,080,606
Operating lease rentals paid in  HRIEEYE Y
respect of rented properties B AT ST S 11.115 9158
Operating lease rentals paid in BREARASHE Y
respect of office equipment B AR EES 99 56
Gross rental income from b e N L
investment properties (28,145) (27,172)
Less: direct operating expenses g : EA S WA
incurred for investment LR EEL Y
properties that generated —_—
rental income BREERRAX 4,301 4,653
(23,844) (22,519)
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/ For the year ended 31 March 2019 B E —F—UFE=H =+ —H IL4FFE

11. PROFIT (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR 11. XNFERRF (BE) (&)

(continued)

Note: Amount excluded equity-settled share-based B ZRBETREREMEERAERER
payments to consultants of HK$28,000 (2018: AR 75 % B SR 1% I B AT IR it 2 AR
HK$451,000) in connection with the services BmEZEER I N 2RSS
provided by the consultants who solely rendered H AR R EH 2 75028,000%8 7T
services and reported their duties to the Group. (ZZ—/\4F :451,000%7T) - B#
Such services are similar as in nature to those IRIGEAEEESRMH CRBEE
rendered by employees of the Group. Lo

12. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 12. EERETIME

EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the ERNEENTNAE(ZE-NAF N

eight (2018: eight) directors and chief executive ZIEERERTRABEBMNMHS

were as follows: LU

Directors’ emoluments EEMe

Year ended 31 March 2019 HE_Z-NAF=A=+—RHILFE

Retirement Equity-
Salaries benefit settled
Directors’ and other scheme  share-based Total
fees benefits contributions payments 2019
BREREE
FHR REN URGARER @t
- Lok Hir g A AHEMR 2% ZB-RE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TERT TR FET FET
(Note ()
(HiEE()

Executive directors HITEE

Li Weibin FEE - 2,212 18 8 2,298

Siu Wai Yip BEx - 1,1 18 6 1,795

Lam Suk Ling, Shirley Y854 - 1,500 18 6 1,524

Lau Chi Kit B - 409 - 4 413

Non-executive director HHITEZ

Fung Sau Mui 5518 192 - - 2 194

Independent non-executive B HHTEE

directors

Lai Ka Fung, May R5E 180 - - 2 182

Chan Sim Ling, Irene RER 180 = = 2 182

Ho Chung Tai, Raymond ER 720 - - 49 769

Total Bt 1,272 5,952 54 79 1,357
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 # % —F—JUE=H =+ —H L4 &

share options granted to directors of the Company

under a share option scheme adopted by the

Company in 2012. The value of these share

options is measured according to the Group’s

accounting policies for share-based payment

transactions.

Details of share options granted to directors of

the Company and other employees, including the

principal terms and number of options granted,

are set out in note 44.

12. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES'’ 12. EEREIME (&)
EMOLUMENTS (continued)
Year ended 31 March 2018 BE_Z—-)\F=A=+—HLFE
Retirement Equity-
Salaries benefit settled
Directors’ and other scheme share-based Total
fees benefits  contributions payments 2018
RERLEE
Mk BAEF URDAER b
EEHE Hih g SEER ZRE  ZE-N\fF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR T T T THT
(Note ()
(M)
Executive directors HITEF
Li Weibin EXER) - 2,191 18 139 2,348
Siu Wai Yip BEx = 1,708 18 97 1,823
Lam Suk Ling, Shirley HoRE - 1,446 18 97 1,561
Lau Chi Kit ARG - 395 - 64 459
Non-executive director FHTEE
Fung Sau Mui ikt 192 - - 32 224
Independent non-executive B HHTEE
directors
Lai Ka Fung, May B5E 180 - - 32 212
Chan Sim Ling, Irene BiER 180 - - 32 212
Ho Chung Tai, Raymond R 720 - - 130 850
Total Bt 1,272 5,740 54 623 7,689
Note: Wit -
(i) Equity-settled share-based payments represent @ REDEHARN RERZ H5RIE

REARFR T —FRNZE
REHERTFARAEE BB
o S WIE 2 AT REAR
B B AR AR (R 52
R HA

BYARAEEREMEB ZBR
EHBE(BERLBEREZEER
KEREB ) &AM F44 -

Annual Report 2019 % | CHINLINK INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED % [ 1 4 [ B £ )bt 47 Bt 24 )

)
&
.

|

o

235



" Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

| 5 A A R R HE:

- & 1
L s L

/ For the year ended 31 March 2019 # % ~F—JUFE=H =+ —H IL4FFEZ i \ -i.

12. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 12. EERETIME (&)

- e

EMOLUMENTS (continued)

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above
were for their services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and the

Group.

The non-executive director’'s emoluments shown
above were for their services as directors of the

Company or its subsidiaries.

The independent non-executive directors’
emoluments shown above were for their services as

directors of the Company.

Mr. Li is also the chief executive of the Company
and his emoluments disclosure above include those

for services rendered by him as the chief executive.

During both years, no emoluments were paid
or payable by the Group to the directors of the
Company as compensation for loss of office or
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group.
There was no arrangement under which a director
or the chief executive waived or agreed to waive

any emoluments in both years.

X RHTEE BRR RS
AAFRAEEEHIREZ BT S
fi o

EXFARIERTEST ZH MRS
EARBREMNBRARZESRRMZ
AR5 T S A+

ISt ME=Ys £ FE1 b
SREAAD A EBIREZ R T
fit o

FERENBARAZERITHRAE
REPEIRBEZHeRBEEERES
THRABMEHRBZME -

HRER AEBARAARBES
FKEBAMELREIELREE K
MR 51 15 55 0 A AN 5= [ 3 pn A AR £ (B B
M TR - WMFH TEEEXNFK
BITBRABEREXRENEZEAHE
Z 7Yk
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12.

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # % —F—JUE=H =+ —H L4 &

DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

Employees’ emoluments

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments
in the Group, two (2018: two) were directors of the
Company whose emoluments were disclosed above.
The emoluments of the remaining three (2018:
three) highest paid individuals for the year ended
31 March 2019 are as follows:

12.

EERETIMS (4F)

T
AEBREGEaMEZALTHZM
FZ(ZT—N\F:-WME)BARAIZE
E HMEEREXER-B#E=F
—NWEZA=Z+—HALFE #%T=
Z(ZE—N\F:ZR2)RaME AL
ZBenT

2019 2018

—ZE-hE ZE-)N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

THER T T

Salaries and other benefits o & H Ao 48 A 11,364 6,058
Equity-settled share-based BREREEURD AER 2R

payments _ _

Retirement benefit scheme RRAE N ET B 50
contributions 54 23
11,418 6,081

The number of the highest paid employees who
are not the directors of the Company whose
remuneration fall within the following band is as

follows:

MenFTIEE L IFARFES
ZEREBHEMEEABNT

2019 2018

—E-NF —E-N\F

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7T %2,000,0007% 7T 1 2
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7T %2,500,0007 7T - 1
HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000 4,500,001 7T % 5,000,000/ 7T 2 -
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/ For the year ended 31 March 2019 #ZE—F —UFE=H =+ —HIL4FE i \ -i.

12. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 12. EERETIME (&)

- e

EMOLUMENTS (continued)

Employees’ emoluments (continued)

During the years ended 31 March 2019 and 2018,
no emoluments were paid by the Group to any of
the five employees with the highest emoluments as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or
as compensation for loss of office.

TRANSACTION IN WHICH A
DIRECTOR OF THE COMPANY HAS
MATERIAL INTEREST

As detailed in note 45, the Group had acquired a
subsidiary and the related shareholder’s loans due
to Mr. Li and his affiliated companies from a vendor
at a total consideration of HK$312,000,000 during
the year ended 31 March 2018. The vendor is a
company wholly owned by Mr. Li.

DIVIDEND

No dividend was paid or proposed during the year
ended 31 March 2019, nor has any dividend been
proposed since the end of the reporting period
(2018: nil).

EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings
(loss) per share attributable to the owners of the
Company is based on the following data:

Earnings (loss)

BETME (&)
REBEE_FT-NFIr_FT-N\F=H
=+ —BLEFE AEEILEREA
TEEaFMEENME ERR
SIMEMAREEL MAREE R 2
ReABEBEE-

RAREESHREERZ

R5%

AP FHASE A AEEREE =
E-—N\F=ZA=+—HBHLEFER—%
BHRE-—HMNBRARRERTLEE
MEBMBARZBEBBREER  #KR
f€/4312,000,0008 L EF BEFELE
2EBEBEZRA

g =\
HE_Z-NF=A=+—RHILFE
NI EIR N HRFRTRE  BRE
HRARTEZZRMEMRE (=
E-N\F:E)-

BRERN (BE)

ARAEEARIEEREAREER
(B8R HRE THEFE:

a7 (&HE)

2019 2018
—E-hF —ZET-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FAT
Earnings (loss) for the year BAUGTESRERARE TR 2
attributable to owners of RAGEEANEBIERFEERFT
the Company for the (EE)
purposes of basic and
diluted earnings per share 18,887 (77,877)
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15.

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # % —F—JUE=H =+ —H L4 &

EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE 15.

(continued)

Number of shares

BRERN (BE) (&)

[LSuE 2=

‘000 ‘000
TR TR
Weighted average number of RAUNGTEERERNREERT 2
ordinary shares for the T AR I AE T B
purposes of basic and
diluted earnings per share 1,364,689 680,901

March 2019, the

computation of diluted earnings per share does

During the year ended 31

not assume the exercise of the Company’s share
options as the exercise price of these options was
higher than the average market price of shares for
the year and the conversion of the outstanding
3.0% convertible bonds during the period as they
would result in increase in earnings per share.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the
computation of diluted loss per share does not
assume the conversion of the outstanding 10.0%
convertible bonds and 3.0% convertible bonds and
the exercise of share options of the Company as
they would result in decrease in loss per share.

RBEZZT-—NF=ZA=+—HBLF
E AHEERBEERFTERIARD
AIEREETE REARZSERE
ZITEERERAFERMD 2 FHAME
RAHM S AER Z3.0% 2 KE
sEER FARESERERET
b1

RBE-_T-/\F=A=+—RHIF
Bt EESREEHEYERRFR
B 7 10.0% AR IR E 25 [ 3.0% A 2
BEZEESREAREZEBREET
# RARESEHERERRD -
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T—

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # % ~F—JUF=H =+ —H IL4F

" 16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT  16. #1% BER &

Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures
land and Leasehold Computer  and office Motor Construction
buildings improvements equipment  equipment vehicles in progress Total
HETHR HEME BR-EBR
BT % ElRE HAERE RE EREIR a3t

HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
TERT TR TR TR TR TERL TERL

cost KA
At 1 April 2017 R=ZZE—tFMA—H 18,264 3,004 2,324 2,198 7,428 679 33,897
Additions AE - 784 521 1,245 512 - 3,062
Disposals e - - = (78) = = (78)
Acquisition of WERB A E

subsidiaries (note 45)  (fii#45) = 71 300 112 233 = 716
Exchange realignment  [E ¥ % - 137 257 270 389 66 1,119

At 31 March 2018 A\ZE-N\F

ZA=t-8 18,264 3,996 3,402 3,747 8,562 745 38,716

Additions NE - 2,721 135 1,138 400 4,249 8,643
Transfer from investment & & 51 & ¥ %

property (note 17(b)  (Hiit17(b)) 24,831 = = = = = 24,831

Disposals HE - (32) (67) - (1,312) - (1,411)

Exchange realignment  [E J 3% 35 (98) (183) (233) (269) (37) (785)

Reclassification EXboE - - (17) 17 = = =

At 31 March 2019 RZB-RE

=A=t-H 43,130 6,587 3,270 4,669 7,381 4,957 69,994
DEPRECIATION &
At 1 April 2017 RZF—+tFENA—H 2,588 1,277 1,407 654 4,474 = 10,400
Charge for the year ~ AFEIRME 609 754 331 370 1,244 = 3,308
Eliminated on disposals ! & & #i $ - - = (70) = = (70)
Exchange realignment [ 5 3% - 115 169 119 297 - 700

At 31 March 2018 RZZ-N\F

=A=+-A 3,197 2,146 1,907 1,073 6,015 = 14,338
Charge for the year ~ AEERME 894 1,302 310 594 1,353 = 4,453
Eliminated on disposals  {\%& B4 84 - (32) (64) - (1,312) - (1,408)
Exchange realignment [ ¥ % - (78) (119) (52) (204) = (453)
Redlassification EX bk - = (16) 16 = = =

At 31 March 2019 R=B-hE
ZA=+-H 4,091 3,338 2,018 1,631 5,852 = 16,930

CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 March 2019 R-E-NF
=ZA=+-8H 39,039 3,249 1,252 3,038 1,529 4,957 53,064

At 31 March 2018 RZE-N\E
=A=+-A° 15,067 1,850 1,495 2,674 2,547 745 24,378

—o .
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16.

For the year ended 31 March 2019 B % —F —UFE=H =+ — H IL4FFEE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)
The above items of property, plant and equipment,
other than construction in progress, are depreciated
on a straight-line basis at the following rates per
annum:
Leasehold land and Over the shorter of the
buildings terms of the lease,
or 30 years
Leasehold improvements 10% for owned assets
or over the lease terms
for the leased assets
Computer equipment 20%
Furniture, fixtures and 10%
office equipment

Motor vehicles 20%

At 31 March 2019, leasehold land and buildings of
the Group with carrying value of HK$39,039,000
(2018: HK$15,067,000) were pledged with a bank
to secure a loan granted to the Group.

At 31 March 2019, the motor vehicles with carrying
value of HK$150,000 (2018: HK$1,427,000) are

assets held under finance leases.

16.

VIR BENRRKRE (&)

FALME BERREREMS &K
ERTRRI MERENE FIRAZ
FRET:

MELH R RS F sk

BF 30F 2 BEE

HEMEEE BEZEA10%K

RHEAE

Z T EF 5

B R 20%

R EE 10%
MAERE

A 20%

RZE-—NF=ZA=+T—80 F5H
SR & 439,039,000 T (=T — N\
115,067,000 ) < HE T 18
FEERTRIT EABRTAEEE
b i

RZEBE-—NAF=A=+—8 K@
B A150,0008 L (ZF— N\ F:
1,427,000 70) 2 ABE TV AR EMEE
REZEE-
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/ For the year ended 31 March 2019 # % ~F—JUFE=H =+ —H IL4FFEZ i \ -i.

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 17. REWE
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$°000
FHExT FAT
Completed properties held for #H{EHEENZE KD E
rental purpose:
At 1 April REA—H 2,373,049 2,034,090
Transfer from investment ERETREIREDE
property under construction 560,127 -
Net changes in fair value REEERZ AT EEEFRE
recognised in profit or loss 152,716 135,006
Transfer to property, plant and ~ EE =¥ BE &L E
equipment (24,831) -
Exchange realignment PE W 8B (121,999) 203,953
At 31 March (Notes (a) and (b)) H=A=+—H
(Kiat@) R b)) 2,939,062 2,373,049
Leasehold land with MAREERRAZ 2HE T
undetermined future use:
At 1 April REA—H 222,071 222,373
Transfer to investment ERETEREME
properties under construction - (29,607)
Net changes in fair value RIERERZ AT EZEFHE
recognised in profit or loss 24,015 8,646
Exchange realignment R (12,722) 20,659
At 31 March (Notes (a) and (b)) H=A=+—8
(Kii#@ kb)) 233,364 222,071
Sub-total NEE 3,172,426 2,595,120

e o
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 B % —F —UFE=H =+ — H IL4FFEE

b £ A5 WA I

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 17. REWME(4F)
(continued)
2019 2018
—E-hF —E—N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHE T FET
Investment properties under ERIEEYE:
construction:
At 1 April nmA—H 1,276,443 549,723
Additions NE 92,427 127,828
Acquired on an acquisition of U — BB 2 R B U B
a subsidiary (Note (c)) (Hiat(c)) = 452,034
Transfer to completed ERERERA D TRE
properties held for rental (560,127) -
Net changes in fair value RERBERZ AT EEZEFE
recognised in profit or loss 47,815 17,365
Transfer from leasehold land EEAWMAEBETREZHEL I
with undetermined use - 29,607
Exchange realignment PE & B (87,238) 99,886
At 31 March (Notes (b) and (c)) HK=R=+—8 (#z7®b)K()) 769,320 1,276,443
Total Mt 3,941,746 3,871,563
Unrealised gain on properties STARFEERZ
revaluation included in VI ¥ E (ARSI W
profit or loss for the year 224,546 161,017
Notes: Hiat -
(a) The Group owns the shopping mall building (a) AREEBEUNTRKRAEALZS

situated at the east side of Banyin Road, Bagiao
District, Xi'an City, Shaanxi Province, the PRC
(namely, Daminggong Construction Materials
and Furniture Shopping Centre (Dongsanhuan
Branch)) (“Xi‘an Commercial Complex”) and
the undeveloped land parcel adjacent to the Xi'an
Commercial Complex (“Phase 2 of the Xi‘an

Commercial Complex”).

BREYSIBRRAZBEY P LR
F(EIRHAEEMKE e R=]RIE)
(IBEREERR]) MIDIAREE
REZRAE LM ([AREHERE
E-H) -

Annual Report 2019 % | CHINLINK INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED % [ 1 4 [ B £ )bt 47 Bt 24 )

o

243



. Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

| 5 A A R R

-
L

/ For the year ended 31 March 2019 B E —F—UFE=H =+ —H IL4FFE

T 17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 17. REWE (&)
(continued)
Notes: (continued) BiaE: (&
(b) The Group owns another project for the (b) REBHEAMLRTBEIRAEERT

- e

development of logistics park located at Hantai
district, Hanzhong City, Shaanxi Province, the PRC
(“ChinlinkeWorldport”), which also included the
investment properties under construction of the
ChinlinkeWorldport (“Phase 2 of the Chinlinke
Worldport”) and the remaining undeveloped
leasehold land portion of the ChinlinkeWorldport
(“Hanzhong Land”).

During the year, the construction of Chinlinke
Worldport was completed and the property had
been transferred from investment property under
construction to completed investment property
at the fair value of RMB491,900,000 (equivalent
to HK$560,127,000) as determined by Colliers
International (Hong Kong) Ltd. (“Colliers”) at
the transferred date. Out of which, a portion of
ChinlinkeWorldport was self-used by the Group
as office and the amount of RMB21,300,000
(equivalent to HK$24,831,000) was transferred to
property, plant and equipment.

As at 31 March 2019, the fair values of the Phase
2 of the ChinlinkeWorldport and Hanzhong Land
as determined by Vigers Appraisal And Consulting
Limited (“Vigers”) are RMB151,000,000 and
RMB51,900,000 (equivalent to HK$176,278,000
and HK$60,588,000) respectively. As at 31
March 2018, ChinlinkeWorldport and Phase 2 of
the ChinlinkeWorldport were both investment
properties under construction with an aggregate
fair value of RMB595,600,000 and fair value of
Hanzhong land was RMB50,300,000, equivalent
to HK$737,676,000 and HK$62,298,000

respectively.

EaRZMRE ([EEREe R
B zE—EREEE EP5E
REER T RB2EEZREY
F(BERS-WRBE_H|) K
LER Dt B 2B T AMEM
ELasn (EPL]) -

FR - EEPSHRBZER
EXZREZMEEERR HEE
MEBR (EB)ERQA (&
DR ERBHEETZATEE
AR #¥491,900,0007T (48 & R
560,127,000/ 70 ) HEEREME
EREETRREWE -HF - BH
EER St RAB T AAREEAE
BR#HAE ARK21,300,0007T
(HAE 724,831,000/ 7T ) T & =
ME - BRE MR-

R—ZE—-—hAhE=ZA=+—8"
BT EETGEERMARA A
((BEHEETZEEFR ot
ABE_BHRER T ZAF
E» Bl A AR151,000,0007T
N AR #51,900,0007T (B E R
176,278,000 7T }.60,588,0007
L) R_FE—NF=A=+—8"
TEPSeHERBERLEER D
ABE_MHHYACRREME &
AFEAARKE595,600,0007T (17
& R737,676,000 )  MEH £+
2 AF{E A ARS50,300,0007T
(F8E 162,298,000/ 7T ) °
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17.

For the year ended 31 March 2019 B % —F —UFE=H =+ — H IL4FFEE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

(continued)
Notes: (continued)

(0) During the year ended 31 March 2018, the
Group acquired the investment properties
under construction located at Weiyang
District, Xi‘an City, Shaanxi Province (“Zhong
Hui investment property”) through the
acquisition of a subsidiary. The fair value of
Zhong Hui investment property at 31 March
2019 as determined by Vigers is approximately
RMB508,000,000 (equivalent to HK$593,042,000)
(31 March 2018: RMB435,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$538,767,000)).

The Group's investment properties are categorised
into level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. At the
end of each reporting period, the directors of
the Company work closely with the independent
qualified professional valuer to establish and
determine the appropriate valuation techniques and
inputs to be used in determining the fair value of
the investment properties. Discussion of valuation
processes and results are held amongst directors of

the Company at least twice a year.

The fair values of all investment properties at 31
March 2019 were determined by Vigers (31 March
2018: Colliers).

For Xi'an Commercial Complex, the valuation has
been arrived at using the income capitalisation
approach. This valuation method estimates the
value of a property on a market basis by capitalising

rental income on a fully leased basis.

17.

BREW= (&)
Mgt (&

(0) BE_Z—\&=ZA=+—HI#F
[ ASEEBKE KB AR
BB ABR A P L T R RE ZE
BERAEAME([FERENWE]) -
B FETTEREMERT
—NF=ZRA=+T—HBZAFEHY
A AR #508,000,0007T (&R
593,042,000 L) (ZZE—N\F=
A=+—8: AR®435,000,0007C
(¥E M538,767,000/87T) ) °

AEEZERENESBRRFEEBR
ZHEZB-REBERR ARAEF
HBVAEREEMEMTIEE
NI FBERREERENERF
BZEEBELARBAE AR
EXEEFRLYUGHERFRERT S
IR o

MERBEWER_Z-—NF=A
=+ —BZAFEIHBERH (ZF
—N\F=ZA=+—H:®H)EXE-

AZEAEABZHEEDERBKAER
EREB - ZEESTEZEBRTEME
EEEENES WAATISEEMR
AAEEE-
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/ For the year ended 31 March 2019 B E —F—UFE=H =+ —H IL4FFE

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 17. REWX (&)

- e

(continued)

For Phase 2 of the Xi‘an Commercial Complex,
ChinlinkeWorldport and Hanzhong Land, the
valuation has been arrived at using the market
approach by making reference to comparable sale

transactions as available in the relevant markets.

For Phase 2 of the ChinlinkeWorldport and
Zhong Hui investment property which are under
construction, the valuation has been arrived at
using the residual approach by making reference to
recent sales transactions of completed properties
as publicly available to determine the adjusted
unit rate of the completed investment properties,
less estimated costs to completion and expected
developer’s profit margin so as to determine the
value of the proposed development as if these were

completed as at the date of valuation.

Both Vigers and Colliers are independent qualified
professional valuers not connected with the Group
and have appropriate qualification and recent
experience in the valuation of similar projects in

relevant locations.

In estimating the fair value of the investment
properties, the highest and best use of the
properties is their current use.

At 31 March 2019, investment properties of the
Group with fair values of HK$3,138,571,000 (2018:
HK$3,134,628,000) were pledged with certain
banks to secure the loan facilities granted to the

Group.

ALXEHEREE _H] ZEPE R
BRER T AETISLZERETS
ARAELRHEXSEAMGEE
B o

REREEP S HEREBE _HRH
EREMEMS HEDEL2ED T
R FE O RRAIBHER S RA
RprEs UBEETRKREDE
ZIEHBBEMNE R RIGFT B A
RERHAER NBER EMBETR
BERZEBE(BUOZEFVERDNME
BERBTEK)

BUS B Ko & 719 75 LK 52 [ 3 S R 0
ZBIAERBEXMGEM YHEEA
BER RN AR 2B EAE
ETHEIHER-

REFARENEZ ATFER WEZ
RREREREAERAKR ZRAE -

R-BE-—NE=ZA=+—HB K&£H
AF (& A3,138,571,0008 L (==
— )\ :3,134,628,0008 7T ) 2 &% &
MEBRTFETRIT FALEEE
BRZEFBMEZER-
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17.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

(continued)

17.

Set out below is the significant unobservable inputs

used for fair value measurements:

Information about fair value measurements using

significant unobservable inputs

Fair value as at Valuation
31 March 2019 techniques
RIB-NF

ZA=t-HZAYE HER %
HK$

BT

Key unobservable inputs

TETTERBAE

REWE (&)

ATHESARA

ABRBAE:

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # % —F—JUE=H =+ —H L4 &

FEFAEZEART

BREREATABEEGABETA

FEEH AR

Weighted average price

mETHE

Relationship of unobservable
inputs to fair value

FUBRBABRAPEZBE

(1) Completed properties held for rental purpose

BIEHBRBMZERRNE

(i)~ Xi"an Commercial Complex

BRAXAE

HK$2,379,173,000
(RMB2,038,000,000)
2,379,173,0003% 7T
(AR #2,038,000,0007T)

approach

WAEAE

(i) ChinlinkeWorldport
LTERS o RE

HK$559,889,000
(RMB479,600,000) sk
559,889,0003 7T
(AR #479,600,0007T)

Income capitalisation

Market approach

Monthly market rent, taking into
account the differences in
location and individual factors
such as frontage and size
between the comparables and
the property

BATHES BEENEZRR
BEHRARTE B E A
NEZANARSENEZR

Price per square metre of gross
floor area which derived from
the construction area, using
direct market comparables
and taking into account of
adjustments on location, footfall
and development scale factor.

REREEB ABEREL
BEHRER CRBEETS
& BB Rt RAALE
ERRERABRZ A%

Retail portion: RMB2.48
(equivalent to HK$2.90)
/sqm/day

Office portion: RMB1.01
(equivalent to HK$1.18)
/sqm/day

Carpark portion: RMB585
(equivalent to HK$683)
per month per lot

TEFD AEHK248TT
(1HEm2.90% 1)
/¥r%/H

BAERD : ARB1LOIT
(fHgM1.18%T)
/¥r%/H

BEMHH : ARESSST
(% R6s3% L) /A/ @

Retail portion:RMB5,276
(equivalent to HK$6,159)/
sqm

Accommodation/office portion:
RMB3,634 (equivalent to
HK$4,242)/sqm

Warehouse portion: RMB285
(equivalent to HK$333)/sqm

TEHNH: AR5 2767
(1RER6,159%7T) /Fh %

EE/ BREDH ARE
3,6347 (1€ 14,2428 )
SERR

RED : ARB285T
(HER3IBAET) /FAk

The higher the rent, the higher
the fair value

HeHs ATELS

The higher the price, the higher
the fair value
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 # % ~F—JUF=H =+ —H IL4F

17.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 17. REWE (&)
(continued)
Fair value as at Valuation Relationship of unobservable
31 March 2019 techniques Key unobservable inputs Weighted average price inputs to fair value
RZB-nE
ZA=+-HZAYHE HER % TEFTREAAE MEFHE TIRRBAERATEZBE
HKS
BT
(2) Leasehold land with undetermined future use
HAEEARRAEzEELH
(i) Phase 2 of the Xi'an Commercial Complex
ARAFARE_H
HK$172,776,000 Market approach Price per square metre of gross RMB1,506 The higher the price,
(RMB148,000,000) misE floor area which derived from (equivalent to HK$1,758)/ he higher the fair value
172,776,000% 10 the area of land and respective sqm EfRgs A TEER
(AR #%148,000,0007T ) plot ratio, using direct market ~ AK#1,5067C
comparables and taking into (HEM,758%T) /B Ak
account of adjustments on
location,land use right terms and
development scale factor
RETHEBBEREL
BEARERREBARE .
URAERTSTELBYER
A REE  THEREFH
REBRRERZZAE
(i) Hanzhong Land
Eh L
HK$60,588,000 Market approach Price per square metre of gross Commercial land: RMB209 The higher the price, the higher
(RMB51,900,000) sk floor area which derived from (equivalent to HK$244)/sqm the fair value
60,588,000/ 7T the area of land and respective  Residential land: RMB265 BRAS ATEES

(AR%51,900,0007) plot ratio, using direct market
comparables and taking into
account of adjustments on
location, land use right terms
and development scale factor

RETHAR BEERLZ
BYRRBRREBREER
WHRAEETSTELRAER
BARME  tEREFH
RERBERNZZAE

(equivalent to HK$309)/sqm
EERAM: ARB2097T

(HER244ET) /T HK
FER: ARE2657T

(HER309%TT) /Fhk
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 # % ~F—UF=H=1—H LR

REWE (&) N

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 17.
(continued)
Fair value as at Valuation Relationship of unobservable
31 March 2019 techniques Key unobservable inputs Weighted average price inputs to fair value
RZB-nE
ZA=+-HZAYHE HER % TEFTREAAE MEFHE TIRRBAERATEZBE
HKS
BT
3) Investment properties under construction
ERRENZ
fi Phase 2 of the Chinlink®Worldport
LERS o REEH
HK$176,278,000 Residual approach (i) Market price, taking into Retail portion: RMB3,186 The higher the price, the higher
(RMB151,000,000) HnEx account the differences (equivalent to HK$3,719)/ the fair value
176,278,000/ 10 in location, and individual sqm B A TEES

(AR #151,000,0007T) factors, such as frontage ~ Accommodation/office portion:
and building age, between RMB2,154 (equivalent to
the comparables and the HK$2 514)/sqm
property TEHH: AR¥3 1867

() mE BERUEZEREE ($E”W37 9%7T) /FHAR
WRARTELENERY A%/ HAEHH: ARE
#RMBREENRER 215470 (RER2,514% T

/EnK

(i) Expected developer profit 20%
(i) BEBREEEN

The higher the expected
developer profit, the lower
the fair value

BRREERNES
ATEHE
(ili) Construction cost to RMB28,418,000 The higher the cost, the lower
complete AR 28,418,0007T the fair value
(iil) BETHRAA RABE A TERE
(iv) Discount rate 9.5% The higher the discount rate,
(iv) fR% the lower the fair value
FREdS ATELE
(v) Rate of finance cost 9.5% The higher the rate of finance
() BIESARAR % cost, the lower the fair value

HBRANEES A TELE
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
(continued)

Fair value as at Valuation

31 March 2019 techniques

RZB-NE

ZA=t-HZATE HER &

HK$

BT

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # % ~F—JUF=H =+ —H IL4F

17.

Key unobservable inputs

IEFABEBAE

REWE (&)

Weighted average price

mETE

Relationship of unobservable
inputs to fair value

FUBEBABRAPEZBE

(i)~ Zhong Hui investment property

TERENE
HK$593,042,000 Residual approach
(RMB508,000,000) FepE %
593,042,0003 7T
( AR #508,000,0007T)

() Market price, taking into
account the differences
in location, and individual
factors, such as frontage
and building age, between
the comparables and the
property

() mE BERLEZRREE

BAARATE LR ER

NEZRNBRSENRR

(i) Expected developer profit
(i) BEREEER

(iii - Construction cost
to complete
(iii) BETRMA

(iv) Discount rate

(iv) %

(v) Rate of finance cost

) BHRAN®

Retail portion:
RMB14,227 (equivalent to
HK$16,609)/sqm

Office portion:RMB9,991
(equivalent to HK$11,664)/
sqm

Car park portion: RMB3,981
(equivalent to HK$4,648)/
sqm

TEHH: AR¥1427T
(185 116,609%TT)
JERK

MREHH: AR,
(g RM11,6645TT)
JERK

FERH  ARE3 81T
(18ER4,648% ) /FH K

10%

RMB67,626,000
AR#67,626,0007T

7.1%

7.1%

The higher the price, the higher
the fair value.

The higher the expected
developer profit, the lower
the fair value.

RHREEENEE -
ATFEYE

The higher the cost, the lower
the fair value.

RAME A FEEE

The higher the discount rate,
the lower the fair value.

AREME A TELE

The higher the rate of finance
cost, the lower the fair value

MBRANEES A TELE

PY rs
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17.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
(continued)

Fair value as at Valuation
31 March 2018 techniques
RZB-NF

ZA=t-HZATE HER &
HK$

BT

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # % —F—JUE=H =+ —H L4 & I"-L

17.

Key unobservable inputs

IEFABEBAE

|

&

.
|

REWE (&)

Weighted average price

mETE

Relationship of unobservable
inputs to fair value

FUBEBABRAPEZBE

(1) Completed properties held for rental purpose

FELRANZETRYE

Xi'an Commercial Complex

ARAEAR

HK$2,373,049,000 Income capitalisation
(RMB1,916,000,000) approach

2,373,049,000/% 7 WAB KA

(AR #1,916,000,0007T)

Monthly market rent, taking
account the differences in into
location and individual factors
such as frontage and size
between the comparables and
the property

Retail portion: RMB2.35
(equivalent to HK$2.91)

/sqm/day

The higher the rent, the higher
the fair value
Hedn ATEES

Office portion: RMB0.99
(equivalent to HK$1.23)

/sqm/day

FAMSHE SEBNEZER  Car park portion: RMB585
(equivalent to HK$725)
per month per lot

REHRARTEL BN R A
NEZRNRESERRR

TERD  ARB2357T

(HEM2.91%871)
/Ehk/B

MREDH  ARH0.997T

(EmM1.23%71)
/Ehk/B

BEABH  ARKSSST

(HER258T) /B/
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 # % ~F—JUF=H =+ —H IL4F

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
(continued)
Fair value as at Valuation
31 March 2018 techniques
RZB-NF
ZA=t-HZATE HER &
HK$
BT

17.

Key unobservable inputs

IEFABEBAE

REWE (&)

Weighted average price

mETE

Relationship of unobservable
inputs to fair value

FUBEBABRAPEZBE

2) Leasehold land with undetermined future use
HAEEARAEZHELIH

(i) Phase 2 of the Xi'an Commercial Complex

AREEAEE-H

HK$159,773,000
(RMB129,000,000)
159,773,000/ 7T
(AR #129,000,0005T)

HETSE

(i)~ Hanzhong Land
Ehti

HK$62,298,000
(RMB50,300,000)
62,298,000/ 7T
( AR #50,300,0007T)

HETSE

Direct market approach  Price per square metre of gross

floor area which derived
location, and individual factors,
respective plot ratio, using direct
market comparables and taking
into account of adjustments on
location
RENEZREERZBTAK
ERARESAZRREBER
BE YRAEERTSAELR
R RIEH R E 2 HE

Direct market approach Price per square metre of gross

floor area which derived from
the area of land and respective
plot ratio, using direct market
comparables and taking into
account of adjustments on
location, land use right terms
and development scale factor
RELHAB BEEEL
BIFRABREBBARE
YRABRTSIELBAER
B RAAE  DEREFS
RERRERZZHE

RMB1,308 (equivalent to
HK$1,620)/sqm

AR#1,3087T
(1BER1,620%7T) /FHk

Commercial land: RMB204
(equivalent to HK$253)/sqm
Residential land: RMB253
(equivalent to HK$313)/sqm
BEL: ARBE204T
(ER253%T) /Fhk
FELi: ARK253T
(BEMNZHTL) /FhHk

The higher the price, the higher
the fair value

The higher the price, the higher
the fair value
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— 1.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
(continued)

Fair value as at Valuation

31 March 2018 techniques

RZB-NF

ZA=t-HZATE HER &

HK$

BT

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # % —F—JUE=H =+ —H L4 &

Key unobservable inputs

IEFABEBAE

17. BREWE (&)

Relationship of unobservable
Weighted average price inputs to fair value

mETE TTRRBAERATEZBE

(3) Investment properties under construction

ERRENZ

(i) ChinlinksWorldport and Phase 2 of the ChinlinkeWorldport

HEG S REREET S FBEH

HK$737,676,000 Residual approach
(RMB595,600,000) FIrEA
737,676,000 7
( AR #595,600,0007T)

(i)

(i)

(i
(i

(iii) Construction cost to complete  RMB7,000,000

Market price, taking into Retail portion:RMB4,306
account the differences (equivalent to HK$5,333)/
in location, and individual sqm
factors, such as frontage Accommodation/office portion:
and building age, between RMB2,736 (equivalent to
the comparables and the HK$3,389)/sqm
property Warehouse portion:RMB280
mE KERUEZEREE  (equivalent to HK$347)/sqm
WRARAELBRENE, TEHH: ARE43067T
FfgRERIRE (18EM5,333% ) /FHk
EE/ BREHH
AR%2,736T
(18E13,389% ) /F Ak
REHD : AR¥280T
(1ER347ET) /T HK

The higher the price, the higher
the fair value

Expected developer profit 10%
EHREHEN

The higher the expected
developer profit, the lower
the fair value

EHREEENEE
NTEBE

The higher the cost, the lower

(iii) BEFTRHA A& %7,000,00070 the fair value
RABE ATERE
(iv) Discount rate 9.5% The higher the discount rate,
(iv) FRE the lower the fair value
REEE DFESE
(v) Rate of finance cost 9.5% The higher the rate of finance

W BERATE

cost, the lower the fair value

MBRANEES ATELE
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 # % ~F—JUF=H =+ —H IL4F

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 17. REWE (&)
(continued)
Fair value as at Valuation Relationship of unobservable
31 March 2018 techniques Key unobservable inputs Weighted average price inputs to fair value
RZB-NE
ZA=+-HZAYHE HER % TEFTRRBAE MEFHE TIRRBAERATEZBE
HKS
BT
(i) Zhong Hui investment property
FEREWE
HK$538,767,000 Residual approach () Market price, taking into Retail portion: RMB14,572 The higher the price, the higher
(RMB435,000,000) FIrEA account the differences (equivalent to HK$18,048)/ the fair value
538,767,000 7T in location, and individual sqm ERgE ATEER
(AR %435,000,0007T) factors, such as frontage Office portion: RMBS,096
and building age, between (equivalent to HK$10,028)/
the comparables and the sqm
property Car park portion: RMB3,795
() mE BEEMEZER (equivalent to HK$4,700)/
BEBANRATELENE  sqm
Ak ANBREENR TEHH: ARB14572T
3 (FHE 118,048 )
SERR
WAZHH : AEHS 0967
(FH&R10,028% )
SERR
FEMHH : ARE3,7957T
(1% R4,700%7) /F A%
(i) Expected developer profit 10% The higher the expected
(i) FEEREEEN developer profit, the lower
the fair value
RREREERNEE
ATFEHE
(iii) Construction cost to complete  RMB42,531,000 The higher the cost, the lower
(i) BEFTHKA AR%42,531,0007 the fair value
AR AEESE
(iv) Discount rate 7.1% The higher the discount rate,
(iv) #FR= the lower the fair value
FREdR ATELE
(v Rate of finance cost 7.1% The higher the rate of finance
() BBEANE cost, the lower the fair value
BBRAREYE A TELE
° °

254 CHINLINK INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 3% I i 4 [ B £ )it 5 2 4 7] | Annual Report 2019 3§




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements //

18.

For the year ended 31 March 2019 B % —F —UFE=H =+ — H IL4FFEE

£ 47 W s R

GOODWILL 18. B8
HK$'000
FExT
COST DN
At 1 April 2018 & 31 March 2019 RZE—NFENA—HBHX
—E-AF=A=1+—H 42,716
IMPAIRMENT BE
At 1 April 2018 RZZFE-—NFMNA—H -
Impairment loss recognised in the year FAERZBERBE 10,161
At 31 March 2019 RZE—NhhF=ZA=+—H 10,161
CARRYING VALUES EREE
At 31 March 2019 R-_ZE—hh&F=A=+—H 32,555
At 1 April 2018 RZFE-NFMNA—H 42,716

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill
has been allocated to MCM Holdings Limited and
its subsidiaries which represents the provision of
financial advisory services, together as one group of
CGUs, which represents the lowest level within the
Group at which goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes and is not larger than the
operating segment of financial advisory services
that are expected to benefit from the business
combination.

The recoverable amount of the group of CGUs
has been determined based on a value in use
calculation. That calculation uses cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved
by management covering a 5-year period, and a
discount rate of 14% (2018:14%). The growth
rates of the cash flows projections are 12% within
the 5-year period and 7% beyond the 5-year
period. This growth rate is based on the unit's
past performance and management'’s expectations.
Other key assumptions for the value in use
calculations relate to the estimation of cash inflows/
outflows which include budgeted sales and gross
margin, such estimation is based on the unit’s past
performance and management’s expectations for
the market development.

RAEEARTES  BEESE TMCM
Holdings Limited & E B A F] - Hig
HUBERRSET LR A—ERSE
EBAM—HREEEBMLALRSE
EXxrBEERAEmMsERmELT
AR RBEHPERS 2 MR
BRI 48 & 9 B0 2 SRR AR R

ZHEBeEAEMNZAIRE S ENE
RERAEBEFELET -BHTEFE
AREEEEMEBERFEHE 2
BIFETEE R14% (ZE—\E:14%)
MR EBE RS RETEBEDL -
RAFHBERAZAESRERAERE
B12% MiEBBARFEHHANAET% %
HMERDIREBEEMABERBLEERE
EHEBET - ElAFRERAA AT
ZERABEFAE LA EMEARREE
RBREEHEREMNE - B@AGBTHE
RZEBEM BAERBREEEEMS
BERCTER-
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/ For the year ended 31 March 2019 B E —F—UFE=H =+ —H IL4FFE

18. GOODWILL (continued) 18. BE (#)

- e

During the year ended 31 March 2019, as the
actual performance of MCM Holdings Limited and
its subsidiaries was not satisfactory as expected,
the directors of the Company determined
that an impairment of goodwill amounting to
HK$10,161,000 was recognised.

The recoverable amount of the group of CGUs
amounted to HK$33,159,000 as at 31 March 2019.
The impairment loss has been included in profit or

loss in the impairment loss on goodwill line item.

If the discount rate was changed to 16%, while
other parameters remain constant, the recoverable
amount of the group of CGUs would reduce to
HK$29,440,000 and additional impairment of
goodwill of HK$3,719,000 would be recognised.

If the growth rate of revenue were changed to 10%
within the 5-year period and 5% beyond the 5-year
period, while other parameters remain constant,
the recoverable amount of the group of CGUs
would reduce to HK$26,861,000 and additional
impairment of goodwill of HK$6,298,000 would be

recognised.

HE-_Z—NAF=ZA=1+—HLLHF
& BHMRMCM Holdings Limited &
HINBRARIMERKRRETWMER
RARESETERAFTERE
10,161,000/ 7T, ©

R-ZBE—-—AE=ZRA=+—H " %
MBS ELEMN 2 KBS %A
33,159,000/ T BEBEE F AE
mZEEREEEER -

IR EBE RN AE16%MEMBE M
g ZBBREEEBEMN 2 KES
B 15 8 4 229,440,000 7T I 15 7E 72
EHHNEEIF(ES, 719,000/ 7T

WBMAREETRAFHEAERA
10% + K838 1 F B B 2R A5 % im A
MBBERTE ZERSCELEEN
Z A Y el & KR 4 £26,861,0007%8
TOG 6 e SR EE SN R 2RI B 6,298,0008
e
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 # % —F—JUE=H =+ —H L4 &

19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENT 19. AIEERE
2019 2018
—ZE2-hEF —E-)N\F
HK$'000 HK$°000
FERT T T
Unlisted investment: FLEMEE:

— equity securities, at cost —HRESF RKA - 1,239
The unlisted equity investment represents i IE E TR IR B FE R R 00 3 s R
investment in unlisted equity securities issued by R ZFLABREEIT 2 EMERE
a private entity incorporated in Singapore. It was FIRE - HPN & B R A RURE
measured at cost less impairment at the end of the AR REAASGEATEMAHER
reporting period because the range of reasonable R ABARRESZTRR/RFETTEE

fair value estimates was so significant that the
directors of the Company were of the opinion that
the fair value cannot be measured reliably.

The Group reclassified the AFS investment to
financial asset at FVTPL on the date of initial
application of HKFRS 9 at 1 April 2018 as disclosed
in note 2. The fair value gain related to this
investment was adjusted to the financial asset at
FVTPL.

DEDEE

NP 2P EE - AR BN B IRER
FEEMBEHREEMNFISREH(=F
—NFEHA-B)SAHRLEREE
MOBRBEATEFABSEZERE
E-ZREZHEBRAFERSTIARE
ERAFEFABGZEREE-
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20. PAYMENT FOR A LIFE INSURANCE 20. ASKRBREZMNRK

- e

POLICY

During the year ended 31 March 2018, Chinlink
Alpha Limited (“Chinlink Alpha”) which is a
non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, entered
into a life insurance policy with an insurance
company on Mr. Li, a director of the Company.
Under the policy, Chinlink Alpha, being the
beneficiary and policy holder, is required to pay an
upfront payment for the policy. Chinlink Alpha may
request a partial surrender or full surrender of the
policy at any time and receive cash back based on
the value of the policy at the date of withdrawal,
which is determined by the gross premium paid
at inception plus accumulated guaranteed interest
earned and minus insurance premium charged (the
“Cash Value”). If such withdrawal is made at any
time during the first to the fifteenth policy year, as
appropriate, a pre-determined specified surrender
charge would be imposed.

At the inception date, the upfront payment is
separated into deposit placed, prepayment of
life insurance premium and prepaid charges,
amounting to USD1,431,000 (equivalent to
HK$11,228,000), USD92,000 (equivalent to
HK$725,000) and USD17,000 (equivalent to
HK$131,000), respectively, according to the terms
set out in the policy. The prepayment of life
insurance premium is amortised to profit or loss
over the insured period and the deposit placed is
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. The deposit placed for the life insurance
policy carries guaranteed interests at interest rate
of 2.25% per annum plus a premium determined
by the insurance company during the tenures of the
policy. The effective interest rate of 2.79% on initial
recognition was determined by discounting the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected
life of the insurance policy, excluding the financial
effect of surrender charge.

RBEZT—-N\F=A=+—HBLF
B AEBZzHEZEHBARLEPT
BERAR([EFER])GEARQA
EETHRERRB AR IASRRE
RE-BEZRE THREE(XH
ARREFBEAN)ERZREXNE
RHAF 3R X P B A BE R B SR ER D Bk
2ERR URBEZMNDRENRRA
MEENERS EHEEERERHF
IR IR S T B IR B B KB NPT BRER A
R RBFNEBLINBRREBKBES
H([REEE]) MRE—ZF+H
18 1 AR F 1S HA R o B RS R R (203
) BIZBRNTELEE NS ERERK
=,

RIEIR BB BIRZ R EREIENK
BRNFESEAERERS ASR
RREZENRERBNER 95
741,431,000 7T (#HE 711,228,000
#IT) ~ 92,0003 7T (#8E 71 725,000
7 70) % 17,0005 7T (#8& $131,000
BIL) c ASRBRE ZTEMKERE
REBEHEEBERETREUER
FBORIRB AT R - ASRBAR
BIEFREEEF225%2FX5
MRBATNREFHANETZRE
WEERF B - PR ZERF X
2.79% 7535 1A Bh TR AR IR (R B8 78 AR 4F A7
ZEFTARBRSKUFETE  TRER
RERAZHMBEE-
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20.

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # % —F—JUE=H =+ —H L4 &

PAYMENT FOR A LIFE INSURANCE 20.

POLICY (continued)

Particulars of the insurance policy are as follows:

ABRBREZNK (&)
RBIREFEMT :

Guaranteed interest rates

BRAE

Insured sum Upfront payment The first five  Sixth year and
years onwards
RREH SEANENEN BEE ERERHE#Z
USD5,019,000 (equivalent to USD1,540,000 (equivalent to 3.90% per annum 2.25% per annum
HK$39,384,000) HK$12,084,000) F43.90% HF%2.25%
5,019,000 7T 1,540,000% 7T
(8% 739,384,000/ 7T ) (#8&#12,084,000% 7T)

The carrying amounts of deposit placed and
prepayment of life insurance premium at 31 March

2018 are set out as below:

RZZE-NF=A=+—H AR
BREZEFRERENRAZER
BT :

2018
—E-N\F
HK$'000
FTAET

Deposit paid [=ENE A
Prepayment a1 R I8
Prepaid charges EEA

11,387
701
127

12,215

The Group reclassified the payment for a life
insurance policy to financial asset at FVTPL on the
date of initial application of HKFRS 9 at 1 April
2018 as disclosed in note 2. The fair value loss
related to this deposit was adjusted to the financial
asset at FVTPL.

AN 2R - ARER ERER
EEVBRELENFIRAH(=F
—NEFOA-B)BASRRREZ
NREH D BRRAFEF ARG
THMEE - ZREZHBARIAFEER
DHEERAFEAABRZSRE
o
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/ For the year ended 31 March 2019 B E —F—UFE=H =+ —H IL4FFE

21. DEPOSIT PAID FOR LAND AUCTION 21, THREZENRE

- e

The amount represents earnest money of
RMB8,990,000 (equivalent to HK$10,495,000)
paid to the PRC government authority for the
expropriation of land for auction to be held by
the PRC government authority. The purpose for
acquisition of the land is for development of the
ChinlinkeWorldport. The amount was treated as
earnest money that would be used to offset the

land cost upon acquisition of the land.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO FORMER
SUBSIDIARIES
Amounts due from/to former subsidiaries are

unsecured and non-interest bearing.

The amounts due to former subsidiaries with
principal amount of approximately HK$9,536,000
was initially with no fixed repayment term and
repayable on demand. Agreements were entered
with former subsidiaries on 31 March 2016 and
agreed that the amounts due to former subsidiaries
are repayable on 31 March 2019. Accordingly,
such balances were classified as current liabilities
at 31 March 2018 using effective interest rate of
14% per annum. During the year, imputed interest
expense of HK$1,171,000 (2018: HK$1,028,000)
was recognised to profit or loss. At 31 March 2019,
HK$372,000 was offset with amounts due from
former subsidiaries (see below) and the carrying
amount of HK$9,164,000 (2018:HK$8,365,000)
was shown under current liabilities and repayable

on demand.

Z K IE e Bt T I E B (A R B BT ED
Ptz #E £ AR ¥8,990,0007T
(}EE10,495,0005 7T ) LA gL 1
B R A EB P8R 1T 2 0 & U i o
WEZTHEEHBLEFR SR
B RBEWR AN KE &R
FTHELHERAZHES -

FE W, & 15 B B 1B 12 B) BR 7

FEU A< B BT /BB 2 R BRIE R K
&%/%\ °

A& 58499,536,0007%8 T 2 & -] AT B /2B
A A BRIE & A0 R [ 7E B RH R E IR
EREB - ARAR_ZT—<F=A
=+—HEAWNBARZE %
EEMAMBAREREAEANRZZ—NI
FZA=+T—HEEZE-Blt - X=F
—\F=ZA=+—H ZEHERS
F1A%R ERMNESHERBAE-
FARNHEFBEFREZ1,171,0008 7T
—Z—)\4 :1,028,000/ T ) Bz
NER- R_T—hLF=A=+—8"
372,000 Jt B2 f& Y BT Fff B8 & R BR 18
(RT3 R EME9,164,000%
T (=ZF— )\ 4 :8,365,000% 7t ) 5l
ARBHEBERAKREREE-
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22.

For the year ended 31 March 2019 B % —F —UFE=H =+ — H IL4FFEE

AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO FORMER
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Amounts due from former subsidiaries with
principal amount of approximately HK$17,684,000
initially do not have a fixed repayment terms. As
at 31 March 2016, the directors of the Company
reassessed the expected settlement time and
considered the former subsidiaries would be able to
settle the amounts due to the Group on 31 March
2019. Accordingly, such balances (using effective
interest rate of 14.0% per annum) and balance of
HK$5,793,000 with repayable on demand terms
were included under current assets at 31 March
2018. During the year, imputed interest income
of HK$2,172,000 (2018: HK$1,905,000) was

recognised to profit or loss.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
assessed the ECL for amounts due from former
subsidiaries in accordance with HKFRS 9 as
described in note 51. The Group determined that
a full impairment should be made after assessment
and an impairment loss of HK$23,105,000,
representing the balance of amounts due from
former subsidiaries of HK$23,477,000 offset with
amounts due to former subsidiaries of HK$372,000,

was recognised in profit or loss.

22.

FE UL, FE 15 A B B A ] BR 18
(#&)

A& FEH417,684,000/8 JT 2 FE UK Al
B BB 7] AR TH A ¥ NI 4 [ i B SRR o
R-EBE—XNE=ZA=+—H8B K27
EFEMAHERENER YRA
R BARBAIR-_Z—hL&EF=A
=T —HBENEREKAEE 2B
o R—ZE—-NF=ZA=+—8 &%
% (RASF14.0% 2 BB ER) K
5 1k Z SR {E 12 & 3k 2 #5 #25,793,000
BT ARBEE-FRN - HEFE
WA2,172,0008 L (ZF—\F:
1,905,000/ 7T ) M1z N TER °

RIEBMKR  AEBRBE BB R
AR B o5k T FE U BT PR E A FIBR I
ZTEEEEEE (MM 51 AT ) ° A
SEET FHEAEELESERER
SR 1B 5 18.23,105,0005% 7T ( BN & Y Al
B B8 A &) BR1E23,477,000/% JT &2 FE Uk
A B B A 7 BR 18372,00058 7T 1K $# 18
ZER) RN BERNER -
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!/ For the year ended 31 March 2019 # % ~F—JUFE = =+ —H IL4FE _ i\ Ji.

23. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 23. RAFEFABBZEZERNEE ——
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FExT FAET
Unlisted equity investments FEMEREE 3,626 =
Payment for a life insurance ASRBREZMNK
policy (note 20) (B &t20) 12,254 =
15,880 -
24. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES 24, B REHEERE
Certain plant and machinery of the Group are AEBEREREHELHEE THRE K
leased out under finance leases. All interest rates HeE - FMEMHERANEHNMEER
inherent in the leases are fixed at the contract date ZEHBHETE-
over the lease terms.
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E—)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAET
Analysed as: DR
— Current assets —mEEE 103,243 76,531
— Non-current assets —ERBEE 220,640 125,269
323,883 201,800

———o L
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 B % —F —UFE=H =+ — H IL4FFEE

24. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES

(continued)

24,

Minimum lease payments

£ 47 W s R

FEWmEHEENRE (&)

Present value of minimum
lease payments

BEREMR BERERNRZRE
2019 2018 2019 2018
“E-hE 2N\ ZEBE-hFE CZZ-N\%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TAT TER FiET
Finance lease receivables R EREFERE:
comprise:
Within one year —&R 137,754 97,873 103,243 76,531
In more than one year but —EUGRETRERE
not more than two years 200,770 88,214 178,479 77,794
In more than two years but ~ MENBETBBRE
not more than five years 46,684 56,936 42,161 47,475
385,208 243,023 323,883 201,800
Less: unearned finance income Ji : REEER BB U A (61,325) (41,223)  N/ATER N/AT i B
Present value of minimum mERKAENTZRE
lease payment receivables 323,883 201,800
Less: Amount due for B ARNERRNEE
settlement within 12 FEGIARDEE)
months (shown under
current assets) (103,243) (76,531)
Amount due for settlement after/8 #1218 F 14 &5 v 78
12 months 220,640 125,269

Effective interest rates of the above finance leases

range from 10.61% to 25.42% per annum.

Finance lease receivables are secured over the plant

and machinery leased.

Details of impairment assessment of finance lease

receivables are set out in note 51.

LABMEHEZERNEN FEF
10.61%%25.42% ©

KR EREFEDAMEERE &
HeER A o

fE UL A RS 38 v R E A RIS A
RHTEEST o
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/ For the year ended 31 March 2019 #ZE—F —UFE=H =+ —HIL4FE i \ -i.

25. INVENTORIES 25. FEH
2019 2018
—2-n% —T-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHEIT
Finished goods 25K 12,992 872
26. LOAN RECEIVABLES 26. EWER
2019 2018
—2-n% —T-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FHET
Fixed-rate loan receivables [ £ A X el & K 87,067 130,986
Analysed for reporting HEHRAEIELZHONOT

purposes as:

Current ik 87,067 130,986

The amount represents the outstanding loan ZREEBYE=Z A ZHKREER
receivables from independent third parties which WEH ZRBLAEERRIZETEF
are unsecured and carry interest at fixed-rates FENTF11.0%218.0% (=ZF—N
ranged from 11.0% to 18.0% per annum (2018: FEEFMENTF11.0%E18.0% )
fixed-rates ranged from 11.0% to 18.0% per AR EBWERZMEFHERA
annum). The weighted average effective interest KEFF15.08% (ZF — )\F:
rate of the loan receivables is 15.08% (2018: 15.60% ) - R_ZFE—NEFR_ZT—N
15.60%) per annum. The amounts at both 31 FZA=1+—"HZHREHERRNE
March 2019 and 2018 are repayable within 12 HEAHET —HAREERE-
months from the loan advance dates.
The Group's loan receivables balances are not past AEERRERGEHRR _Z—NEF
due at 31 March 2019. There is no accumulated ZA=t+—RYEBH-R=FT— N
impairment losses included in the carrying amount FZRA=+—RH ERERZEAE
of loan receivables as at 31 March 2019 (31 March AT EEZFREEBE (ZZE—N\F=
2018: nil). Details of impairment assessment of loan RA=+—H:#&) BUWERZFHE
receivables are set out in note 51. RIS =YD

—o .
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27.

28.

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # % —F—JUE=H =+ —H L4 &

FACTORING RECEIVABLES

The amount represents the outstanding loan
principals and accrued interest from independent
third parties which are secured by trade receivables
of the counterparties with full recourse and carry
interest at fixed rates ranged from 5.0% to 8.0%
per annum (31 March 2018: nil). The weighted
average effective interest rate of the factoring
receivables is 6.73% (31 March 2018: nil) per
annum. The Group's factoring receivables as at 31
March 2019 are repayable within 12 months from

the loan advance dates and not past due.

Details of the impairment assessment are set out in

note 51.

TRADE RECEIVABLES, OTHER

27.

28.

FE W 3R B K IE

ZHRBNEREBLE=FZKE
BEFASREFAE UXSHF
MEXEHEREZEIKE ZRIEBEER
IR E EFHENF5.0%E8.0%
—E-NEZA=1+—8:8):f
Bo-BRAERBRBBZNELHE
BEFRIEAF6.73% (ZZT— )\F=H
=+—H: &) AEER=_Z—NF
A=+ HAZEKRRERBERR
HEFBHBI2EARNEE BXE

BB RF(h 2 R B R FES 1

BWEZRE HtEYRRE -

RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND BRERFER/RE
PREPAYMENTS
Trade receivables B E 5 BR1E
2019 2018
—2-hA% —T)\F
HK$000 HK$'000
FEx FAET
Trade receivables JEUWE B ERIA
— goods and services —SmkR% 28,003 100,725
— operating lease —REHE 112 119
28,115 100,844
Less: Allowances for credit losses i : 15 & 5 18 B & (2,480) (567)
25,635 100,277
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/ For the year ended 31 March 2019 B E —F—UFE=H =+ —H IL4FFE

TRADE RECEIVABLES, OTHER
RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND
PREPAYMENTS (continued)

Trade receivables (continued)

As at 31 March 2019 and 1 April 2018, the carrying
amounts of trade receivables (net of allowance
for credit losses) from contracts with customers
amounted to HK$25,523,000 and HK$100,158,000
respectively.

The following is an aging analysis of trade
receivables (net of allowance for credit losses)
presented based on the invoice date at the end of
the reporting period:

BWEZRE HtEYRRE-
RERBANRIER(F)

FEWE 5 RE (&)
R-_E-NAF=ZA=Z=+—Br_-Z
—\FEHNA—H BREFEHNES
RIBZREE (MNREEBEERE) D
7l /25,523,000 T &% 100,158,000
BT e

BRERGRENRZEZEHE2TEK
BHRE (HIREEEREE) 2Rk
iR UNE

2019 2018

ZE-NF —E—)N\F

HK$°000 HK$’000

TER FHET

0 - 30 days TE==+H 16,489 86,365
31 - 90 days =+—H=E=N+H 8,744 10,774
> 90 days N+BMUE 402 3,138
25,635 100,277

The Group's credit terms for its major customers of
international trading are usually 7 days to 30 days.
The credit terms granted by the Group to other
trade debtors of international trading are normally
30 days.

Customers related to financial guarantee services
are required to settle either on monthly instalments
in arrear or upon signing of the financial guarantee
services contracts or relevant consultancy services

contracts.

AEBGETHERESZETERFPZ
EEHBERLtAE=1TRH -A%£H
RTERES ZHEMBEREBHAZE
EH-—MKA=1H-

ERREERRBZEFPAZATH
SRR BEERRBEE LA
B8 AR AR 7% & KB ST ff o
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28.

For the year ended 31 March 2019 B % —F —UFE=H =+ — H IL4FFEE

TRADE RECEIVABLES, OTHER
RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND
PREPAYMENTS (continued)

Trade receivables (continued)

The Group's credit terms for its customers related
to logistics services and financial advisory services
are normally 30 days to 90 days.

Before accepting any new customers, the Group
assesses the potential customer’s credit quality
by investigating their historical credit record and
defines credit limits by customers on individual
basis. Recoverability and credit limit of the existing
customers are reviewed by the Group regularly.
Included in the Group’s trade receivable balances
are receivables with aggregate carrying amount
of HK$23,477,000 and HK$83,549,000 as at 31
March 2019 and 2018, respectively, which are
neither past due nor impaired. The directors of the
Company considered that trade receivables which
are neither past due nor impaired are of good
credit quality and there are continuous subsequent
settlements from these customers.

As at 31 March 2018, included in the Group’s trade
receivable balance were debtors with aggregate
carrying amount of HK$16,728,000 which were
past due for which the Group had not provided
for impairment loss. The Group did not hold any
collateral over these trade receivables.

28.

BWEZRE HtEYRRE-
BERANRIER (&)

EWE ZRE (&)

AEEGETHERYRRS XY BB
kB zEPZEER—RRE=1TH
EA+H-

EEXTEMHFEFI AEEeHE
HBXEERBRMAHZEERS
ZEREEZREENEMAER,E
ERF - ASETHRIBER,PZ
BRENREERBE - AEER =T
—NERZFE-NF=ZA=+—HZ
BUREZEEEHDAESHBERE
#23,477,000/% T %.83,549,000/% 7T
ZARBEATIRIBE 2 BRI - A A
AIEERR/ZERBHIITRBELIE
WESREERERRIF BEREP
ERBEREMNK

R-ZZTE—N\FEZA=Z+—H A%£H
JEWE ZRIBLESHAZ EWRIE 2 8
BREE 416,728,000 0 i R EE
160 B % 7N 6% [ 30 R b R (B B 4R 1 B
- AEETARZERKE HIEER
REEMERG-
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/' For the year ended 31 March 2019 # % _Z—JU4FE=H =+—H L4

g 28. TRADE RECEIVABLES, OTHER 28. BWEZIRE HMEWRE- g

RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND BRERBENRE (#F)
PREPAYMENTS (continued)
Aging of trade receivables which are past due but EaEERBECBKE S KRIE 2B
not impaired i
2018
—E-)N\F
HK$'000
T T
0 - 30 days TE=1+H 8,325
31 - 90 days =+—HEA+AH 5,265
91 - 365 days Nt+—HE=BATHH 2,582
> 365 days —BAATHBMRE 556
Total HET 16,728
Movement in the allowance for bad and doubtful RERBEEZS
debts
2018
—E-N\F
HK$'000
FHT
At 1 April 2017 RZZE—+tFMA—H 1,399
Impairment losses recognised BRI EEE 121
Impairment loss reversed B EREEE (366)
Write-off i 84 (587)
At 31 March 2018 RZZE-—N\F=A=+—H 567
— o .
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28.

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # % ~F—JUF=H =+ —H IL4FEZ

TRADE RECEIVABLES, OTHER
RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND
PREPAYMENTS (continued)

Movement in the allowance for bad and doubtful
debts (continued)

At 31 March 2018, allowance for bad and
doubtful debts included individually impaired
trade receivables with an aggregate balance of
HK$567,000 which had been in financial difficulties
or had disputes with the Group.

Details of impairment assessment of trade
receivables are set out in note 51.

Trade receivables from related companies

As at 31 March 2018, trade receivables from related
companies of HK$269,000 were aged within 30
days based on the invoice date at the end of the
reporting period.

Other receivables, deposits and prepayments

28.

BWE S RE HMtEYKIRE-
RERBNAFE (&)

RZZBE-NF=A=+—H RER
REeREYMERENBEAEES
oI BRI E 2 B E 5 Rk IR & &R
#8 %8 5%567,00078 7T ©

FEURE 5 B8R 1E 2 BB 7T 1 5E 15 SR B
5F51 ©

EKEIERR 2 E 5HRA

RZZE-—NF=A=+—H RBKH
E N A28 5RIE269,000% 7T iR B
REEMREZBHRE/S=TH

>

H b EWARIA - R & R AN RIA

2019 2018
—Z-NEF —E-)N\F
HK$000 HK$'000
FiEx FAET
Other receivables H b fE Y AR 18 10,810 23,702
Deposits and prepayments e RIEMRIAE 43,750 17,073
54,560 40,775

Analysed as: DT
Current T ED 33,110 37,647
Non-current JEMR B 21,450 3,128
54,560 40,775

Details of impairment assessment of other
receivables are set out in note 51.

H b U BR 1B 2 R E R A B R M
FE51 °
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/ For the year ended 31 March 2019 B E —F—UFE=H =+ —H IL4FFE

RESTRICTED DEPOSITS

The Group's short term restricted deposits at 31
March 2018 represented deposits placed with the
banks in the PRC. Such deposits were principal
protected, with initial term of 35 days to 91 days
and restricted for obtaining a guaranteed interest

rate return. All deposits were denominated in RMB.

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS

The pledged bank deposits represent deposits
placed with certain banks as securities in return for
the banks to provide loans to the Group's financial
guarantee services customers and banking facilities
for international trading business. These pledged
bank deposits have a maturity of less than a year
as at 31 March 2019 (2018: a maturity of less than

one year).

At 31 March 2019, pledged bank deposits carry
interests at an average rate of 1.20% (2018:

1.20%) per annum.

Details of impairment assessment of pledged bank

deposits are set out in note 51.

3 PR & 17 =K
AEER-_FT-NF=ZA=1t—HZ
RBZREFERIEFRTERTZ
T RFETFRRBRANFR EEH
RE=THAZEAT— B REHNER
RENERRZR -FAEFHHAA
R¥EFE-

EEFRTEMR
EERRITEFREFENE TRITA
ERRERITANEEZ B E EZRR
BEFRHEERLSBERE S EHR
HETREZERAERX - R=2F—A
FZA=1+—"B ZEEBERRTHE
RR—FRIE (ZE-N\F:R—F
WEIH)

R-—ZE—-NhF=A=+—B B2EH
RITERDIIEFEHFE1.20% (=
T—N\F:1.20%):t8 -

EERBBITERZBEFEFBHR
BIEEST o
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31.

32.

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # % —F—JUE=H =+ —H L4 &

BANK BALANCES AND CASH 31. RITEFRERS
At 31 March 2019, the entire bank balances of R-ZZE—NE=A=+—"8 2%
HK$83,138,000 (2018: HK$193,082,000) are $R 17 4 71£83,138,0008 7t (=& — N\
current deposits, carrying interest at market rates £ : 193,082,000 T ) A& BiF 50
ranged from 0.01% to 0.35% (2018: 0.01% to ZNF0.01%20.35% (=T — N\
0.35%) per annum. The bank balances and cash F:0.01%%20.35% ) 2 ™5 F f X
that are denominated in currencies other than TR - BEEBERIEER. LN
functional currency of the relevant group entities L EEGECRTEFRBSHI N
are set out as below: ™~
2019 2018
—2-nE —Z2-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER T T
United States dollars (“USD”) X7t ([%Ex]) 30,917 551
RMB AR 382 206
Macau Pataca (“MOP") EFIT ([RMET]) 7,753 12,608
TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES 32. ENESRE - HEMSKRER

AND ACCRUALS

Trade payables

The following is an aging analysis of trade payables
presented based on the invoice date at the end of
the reporting period:

FESt & A
B E 5 EE

RERBERREZEHEIEMN
BSHRBEZKREDITNT

2019 2018

—E-hF ZE-)N\F

HK$°000 HK$’000

TER FHEIT

0 - 30 days TE=+H 12,855 66,611
31 - 90 days =+t—HZEATH - -
> 90 days N+BMUE 1,977 7,734
14,832 74,345

The credit period on purchases of goods is usually
from 1 month to 3 months.

REGnzGENBER—EAZ=
@A -
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/ For the year ended 31 March 2019 B E —F—UFE=H =+ —H IL4FFE

32. TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES 32. BNEZRE HtESREAR

AND ACCRUALS (continued) EFER (&)
Other payables and accruals HihENRERETTER
2019 2018
—ZE-hE ZE-)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER T T
Other payables H b fE S BRIE 33,684 40,081
Accruals st &M 34,522 36,390
68,206 76,471
33. LOANS FROM STAFF 33. ETER
2019 2018
—ZE-hE —ZT-)N\F
HK$000 HK$'000
THER T T
Loans from staff BETER 23,891 30,857
The amount to the extent of HK$5,091,000 (2018: £ %3E5,091,00008 0 (=& — )\ F:
HK$12,057,000) is loans from staff employed by 12,057,000 Jt.) T /A & A B Bt B A
two PRC subsidiaries. These loans are repayable AMERAZEIER ZFEREAERE
within a year after the date of withdrawal and B —FRNEEEEER BERZ
unsecured and the effective interest rate of the BERFHNEE125% (ZF—)\F:
loans is 12.5% (2018: 12.5%) per annum. The 12.5% ) c % T~ £ 5818,800,000/% 7T
remaining amount of HK$18,800,000 (2018: (ZZ—/\%:18,800,0008 L) h &
HK$18,800,000) is loans from two employees in BIMEBBEIER ZEHBER
Hong Kong which are unsecured, non-interest PR RLBIRERER-

bearing and repayable on demand.

e o
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CONSTRUCTION COSTS ACCRUALS

The amount represented the construction costs

accrued for the Group’s investment properties

under construction.

CONTRACT LIABILITIES

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # % —F—JUE=H =+ —H L4 &

FEET B E R A
ZRREAREZEERRENRESE
ZIREERAN o

31 March 1 April

2019 2018*
—ZE2-hEF —E-)N\F

=H=+—8H MA—RB*
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET AT
International trading RE 5 = 1,139
Logistics services W7 AR 7% 5 127
Property management services ¥ B IR R 36,014 36,236
Financial guarantee services A& E R RS - 4,459
36,019 41,961

Analysed as: DR

Current mE 27,722 27,622
Non-current IER & 8,297 14,339
36,019 41,961

* The amounts in this column are after the AReBETREREAVBRSE

adjustments from the application of HKFRS 15.

Contract liabilities, that are not expected to be
settled within the Group’s normal operating cycle,
are classified as current and non-current based on

the Group’s earliest obligation to transfer goods or

services to the customers.

e 20 &

S

X

AR B ISEAE L AT R -

HreaRAEEERELRH NG
BRAEBENREASEREEE
IRBTEPZEEIBR/RD
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/ For the year ended 31 March 2019 B E —F—UFE=H =+ —H IL4FFE

35. CONTRACT LIABILITIES (continued) 35. EHAE (&)
The following table shows how much of the TRETAFEECHRELBESHNE
revenue recognised in the current year relates to BREBEZBA -

carried-forward contract liabilities.

Financial Property
guarantee International Logistics management
services trading services services
MERR ES
PR 7% B E 5 Y17 R 7% B R
HK$"000 HK$"000 HK$"000 HK$"000
THERT TER TER THERT
Revenue recognised that REVFTAA N B ELEH
was included in the ZBEHERBA
contract liabilities
balance at the
beginning of the year 4,459 1,139 127 21,897

Typical payment terms which impact on the amount
of contract liabilities recognised are as follows:

International trading and logistic services

The Group requires a 15%-50% deposit of the
contract amount on acceptance of orders from
some of the customers. When the Group receives a
deposit before the delivery of products or provision
of services, this will give rise to contract liabilities at
the start of a contract, until the revenue recognised
on the relevant contract exceeds the amount of the
deposit.

Property management services

The Group receives six months to one year property
management fee in advance from certain tenants
of the investment properties at the start of the
property management contract. This gives rise to
the contract liability which will be recognised as

revenue throughout the period of services.

TEODERGNABSEN BRI
R

BB 5 kYR
REBREZPIBFLHGFIEREXK
YN EAEHNESENI5%E50%E S -
2N 68 B R EE R Sk B 4 AR 75 AT U ER
e WREREVFHRELEENE
B EERABAEGORRZBARBL
ReeBERIE-

MEEE RS
AEERMEEESOFIRTE AT ER
REMEETHEHRPANEAZE—FHNY
XERE HWBEEABNEERS D
RAERR/RAZENEE-

- e
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35.

36.

CONTRACT LIABILITIES (continued) 35.

Financial guarantee services

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # % ~F—JUF=H =+ —H IL4FEZ

The Group receives one year financial guarantee

fee in advance from certain customers at the start

of the financial guarantee contract. This gives rise

BHEE (&)
B ERRS

AEBERBE ERE 4 F 1652 51 KR
ETEPHN—FREERE WUBE
ERREBERSEBRARRRKRAZ

to the contract liability which will be recognised as aaE-
revenue throughout the period of services.
RECEIPTS IN ADVANCE 36. FEWMIE
2019 2018
—B-hEF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FHET
Receipts in advances FE R IE
Receipts in advance from: KEFIEEZ
TE W FRIE -
— International trading —BBE S = 8,931
— Logistics services — ¥ AR 75 = 127
— Property investment —MEKRE
— Leasing of properties —MEME 23,311 20,420
— Property management —MEBERE
services - 36,236
— Financial guarantee services — R E ERRE - 4,459
23,311 70,173
Analysed as: DT
Current 7 & 17,057 46,147
Non-current IER B 6,254 24,026
23,311 70,173
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36.

37.

RECEIPTS IN ADVANCE (continued)

Receipts in advances are classified as current and
non-current liabilities based on the timing of
performance of the obligations to transfer goods or
services to the customers. Deposits received from
tenants and customers are classified as current
liabilities based on the Group's earliest obligation to

pay such deposits to the tenants and customers.

The Group reclassified receipts in advance from
customers of international trading, logistics
services, property management services and
financial guarantee services to contract liabilities on
the date of initial application of HKFRS 15 at 1 April

2018 as disclosed in note 2.

AMOUNTS DUE TO RELATED
COMPANIES AND DIRECTORS

Amounts due to related companies

36.

37.

TR FRIE (&)
BUHERBATFEEE MW RS
CEERTEROBARB RIERD
BE-MEFREFPRBRZEERE
AEBREFPEREPXHREREZ
RREEENEARBEE

FANM 2T - N EERERER
EREMBHRELNBISHKBERA(ZF
—N\FOA-RB)KKXEERES ¥
MRS - MEEIRRY K@ & ERR
BEPZAWSFEEHNER/EHEAE

& o

BNREAARESRE

e BAE R R AR IR

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FHET
Carrying amount repayable: FE (B R AR (A -
Within one year —F A 166,431 68,186
More than one year, but not iR —FENEBmRF
exceeding two years 191,953 483,633
More than two years, but not HBAMEENERAF
exceeding five years 82,640 76,908
441,024 628,727
Less: Amount due within 1 year & : —F A EIH 2 B8 (166,431) (68,186)
Amount shown under FRBEEE TR ZRE
non-current liabilities 274,593 560,541

CHINLINK INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 3% I H 4 [ B £ )it 5 it 4 7] | Annual Report 2019 3§




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A% 1 B 055 i R B

)
&
.

37.

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # % —F—JUE=H =+ —H L4 &

AMOUNTS DUE TO RELATED
COMPANIES AND DIRECTORS
(continued)

Amounts due to related companies (continued)

Amounts due to related companies in which the
controlling shareholder of the Company (who is
also a director of the Company) has significant
influence or controlling interest to these related
companies are unsecured and non-interest
bearing. During the year, an imputed interest
of HK$31,656,000 (2018: HK$19,182,000) is

recognised to profit or loss.

Amounts due to directors

Amounts due to directors are unsecured, non-

interest bearing and repayable on demand.

37.

BNBELRARESRE (&)

FEfTRA:E A RIBRIE (&)

FERAER R (RARZIERRFT (I8
BRRARES)RNZEHELRAE
A BN EH#ER)RERERA
RRS N  HEFE31,656,000%8
7T (ZZF—)\4F :19,182,0005 7T ) 1

ENEERA
ENEERALSEER RERAR
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38. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 38. SMITRHMER
2019 2018
—2-hE —T-NE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Bank borrowings, secured RITER BRE 822,100 960,398
Bank borrowing, unsecured IRITE - | 10,741 =
Other borrowing, secured HihEK FEHF 329,628 =
Other borrowings, unsecured H & 5K R 287,714 125,368
Bank overdraft SRITEX 9,988 9,908
1,460,171 1,095,674
Carrying amount repayable* FEEERMAE
Within one year —FR 1,006,983 678,956
More than one year, but not A —FETEREME
exceeding two years 399,600 345,718
More than two years, but not BEMRTETSBERTF
exceeding five years 49,922 54,496
More than five years 838 F - 11,966
1,456,505 1,091,136
Carrying amount of the bank EEREKEEBKRRZ
borrowings that contains a RITEREREE
repayable on demand clause (BTRRRBEEET)
(shown under current liabilities)
— Within one year ——FR 909 914
— More than one year, but not  —BiE—FETBBHF
exceeding two years 942 909
— More than two years, but not —BEMFETBBAF
exceeding five years 1,815 2,715
1,460,171 1,095,674
Less: Amount due within one year i : —F R sk 5B R E K
or contains a repayable EEBERILBTRR
on demand clause shown MBBEEIE T ZRIE
under current liabilities (1,010,649) (683,494)
Amount shown under FRBEEE TR ZERE
non-current liabilities 449,522 412,180
& The amounts due are based on scheduled @ B BIRRTE TH AR IR B R 1 P R (8
repayable dates set out in loan agreements. BI7IEEHHEEES-

—o .
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38.

For the year ended 31 March 2019 B % —F —UFE=H =+ — H IL4FFEE

BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS
(continued)

The banks overdraft carried interest at Hong Kong
Prime Interest Rate (2018: Hong Kong Prime

Interest Rate) per annum.

At 31 March 2019, the Group’s variable-rate
bank borrowings of HK$832,841,000 (2018:
HK$960,398,000) carry interest rate at Hong Kong
Interbank Offer Rate (“HIBOR") plus 2.5%/3.75%
or Hong Kong deposit rate plus 0.5% or London
Interbank Offer Rate (“LIBOR") plus 2%/3.5% or
based rate fixed by People’s Bank of China (“"PBOC
Rate”) plus a premium per annum (2018:HIBOR
plus 2.5%/3.75% or Hong Kong deposit rate plus
0.5% or LIBOR plus 2% or based rate fixed by

PBOC Rate plus a premium per annum).

As at 31 March 2019, other borrowing amounted
to HK$329,628,000 is secured by equity interest
of certain Group’s wholly owned subsidiaries. The
borrowing carries at a fixed-rate of 10% per annum
and is repayable on 3 April 2020.

As at 31 March 2019, the remaining other
borrowings are unsecured, carry interest at a fixed-
rate of 5% to 18% per annum (2018: a fixed-rate
of 12% to 18% per annum) and are repayable at
maturity dates ranged from 2 April 2019 to 3 April
2020 (2018: 20 April 2018 to 21 March 2019).

38.

RITRHEMER (&)

PABXBEREBRTRERNE
(2B N\F BERTRESAE

TR

~—

RZFE—-—hhF=ZA=Z+—8"
AEBZHEENERITERR
832,841,000 L (=T — N\ F:
960,398,000 7T ) Iy B F L BB RT
AEFL(ERBTRAELREM
2.5%/3.75%k & 15 5 F % 510.5%
SMBERTTRAERE ([MBRITEAE
FwE)MN2%/3.5% kA EARIRITE
ELHEERNE ([FEARBITHE])
MeEB(ZE—N\F:5FREBRE
TRIZEFBEMN2.5%/3.75% & EF
FXFIER AN0.5% sk i BUER 7T R S 47 8.0
2% KA BARRITERE 2 EEFEMN

E) 8

R-ZZE—NF=ZA=+—H HEtE
$£329,628,0007% JT Jh LA AR 5 [ 5 T
EEMB AR 2 REEETR -ZEX
ZETEFFRI0%TERAR_Z =
TFMA=ZHEE-

R-ZZE—NF=ZA=+—H & TH
tERAEER SFRETHNE%
218% (ZE—NF:GFEEFME
12%ZFE18% st ERERZE—NF
WMAZHZEZZ-_FTFWMA=H (=
E-NF:ZE-N\FHEA=ZTHZE
—E-AFE=A=-+—8B)ILHER
ZEHEEE-

Annual Report 2019 % | CHINLINK INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED % [ 1 4 [ B £ )bt 47 Bt 24 )

o

279



. Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

| 5 A A R R

-

L

/ For the year ended 31 March 2019 B E —F—UFE=H =+ —H IL4FFE

38. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 38. MITRHMER (&)

- e

(continued)

As at 31 March 2019, unsecured other borrowings
included an amount of HK$144,466,000
(equivalent to RMB120,000,000) which represents
the capital injection in the form of registered
capital and capital reserve into Shaanxi Chinlink
Financial Guarantee Limited (“Chinlink Financial
Guarantee”) by EFMEEZEREEFR A
Al (“Hanzhong Investment”) pursuant to a
cooperation agreement entered into between
Chinlink Financial Guarantee, Hanzhong Investment
and Chinlink Alpha on 17 May 2018. Chinlink
Financial Guarantee was wholly-owned by Chinlink
Alpha before the capital injection and was held as
to 65% by Chinlink Alpha and 35% by Hanzhong
Investment after the capital injection.

According to the cooperation agreement, Chinlink
Financial Guarantee shall distribute profit to
Hanzhong Investment equivalent to 5% per annum
of its capital injected. If the profit distribution of
the year is less than that return, Chinlink Alpha
or its nominated third party shall compensate
the difference in the form to be agreed between
the parties. Other than the 5% per annum profit
distribution to Hanzhong Investment, all profit
and reserves of Chinlink Financial Guarantee shall

belong to the Group.

R-EBE-—NE=ZA=+—H8 EEH
HhERBEETMREERER
ERAG([ERRE])UFMER
REXRFEEZAARERALER S
MEERBERAF([EEPFERE
BRI EZFEEREFVER_Z
—N\FRATERNZAERZR
T IE £ B & FE IR )E B 144,466,000
B (EHERAK®120,000,000
To) o HEH S FE ERN T E A B
ERTEEEERE MR EEEBYT
PREFES%E=ERRERE
35% & ©

REAIEHZ EEFSREER
MEFREDEMNE HEREITE
ZEBFE% MR FR G RN
ZE® EhEEIHEBEREE=F
BAEIINE T HEZHhAMEEZR-
BREEFIRE DR EF5% BN Bl
BREARARZMEMNBEEEREB
REH-

NS

/!
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 B % —F —UFE=H =+ — H IL4FFEE

38. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 38. MITRHMER (&)

(continued)

If there is a change in national policy or material HWEREEHRE DI EEFEHE
adverse change in the business, assets, prospects, ER2EYS BE = ZCELUB
operation or financial condition in Chinlink Financial KR IRERTFE B - sk fw & EWH
Guarantee, or if there is a material breach of FLRBAERBRELBANRI14E
the cooperation agreement which has not been THERXRADRELDLALE  BI&ERZE
rectified within 14 working days after notification, A FRIEREFRREREREE B
the cooperation agreement may be terminated NP ERREZBBETSBBEFRE
and Hanzhong Investment can demand repayment. EERBRMzEAER HEPTE
The total amount payable to Hanzhong Investment HERBEPREBRMZERETENR
shall not exceed the actual total capital contributed BEhEENTETRSREERIER
by Hanzhong Investment, or Chinlink Alpha can 2 35% [ o

acquire the 35% shareholding of the Chinlink
Financial Guarantee held by Hanzhong Investment
based on the total capital contributed by Hanzhong

Investment.
Based on the above, the amount injected by ER bt - ZhREZIERDER
Hanzhong Investment is classified as other MBAEETN 2EMER-

borrowing under current liability.

The ranges of effective interest rates per annum AEERITREMERZERFENX
(which are also equal to contracted interest rates) BE (TMESEREHMERNER)IMT:
on the Group’s bank and other borrowings are as
follows:
2019 2018
—E-hE —ZE-)\F
Effective interest rate: BEEF=X:
Fixed-rate borrowings & & F =B % 5.00%-18.00% 12.00%-18.00%
Variable-rate borrowings FEE M EE 1.47%-7.13%  1.37%-7.13%

° [ —
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38. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 38. MITRHMER (&)

- e

(continued)

At 31 March 2019, the variable-rate bank
borrowings of approximately HK$822,100,000
(2018: HK$960,398,000) are secured by the
Group's property, plant and equipment with
carrying value of HK$39,039,000 (2018:
HK$15,067,000) and investment properties
with fair value of HK$3,138,571,000 (2018:
HK$3,134,628,000).

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period,
the Group has defaulted in repayment of a bank
loan of HK$255,876,000 which was due in June
2019. The Group has been negotiating with the
bank for extension of the bank loans but these
negotiations had not been concluded at the date
of the report. The directors of the Company are
confident that their negotiations with the bank will
ultimately reach a successful conclusion and believe
that adequate alternative sources of finance are
available to repay the bank loan and ensure that
there is no threat to the continuing operations of
the Group should the lenders call for immediate

repayment of the bank loans.

R-ZE-—NE=ZA=+—HB K&
LA BR ®11E39,039,0008 L (=&
— J\%F : 15,067,000/ 7T ) 2 ¥ % * &
B X & E & AFEH3,138,571,000
B (ZZ — /\F :3,134,628,000
BILI)ZREDEERERUARELD
822,100,000 T (=T — N\ F:
960,398,000/ 7T ) 2 FE & 7E F K R1T

RERKRE AEEBEHERER
RZE—NENAEBZRERTER
255,876,000/ 7T ° AN SE B — B BAER1T
MIRTTEFE B ETER 2 EHE
HARBEBBHRHRER - ARAIES
e HERITH T CER KK EIE
BmER TRAVESREZER
BMERFRAEERITERRBRASE
BrHBERETBE@ER ZkUBE
BRTERZBEATIEXIFHE -

s
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39.

For the year ended 31 March 2019 B % —F —UFE=H =+ — H IL4FFEE

CONVERTIBLE BONDS
3.0% Convertible bonds

As detailed in note 45, the Company issued 3.0%
convertible bonds with an aggregate amount of
HK$312,000,000 on 22 May 2017, HK$30,000,000
on 21 July 2017 and HK$28,000,000 on 22
November 2017 (collectively referred as “3.0%
Convertible Bonds"”) respectively as consideration
for acquisition of subsidiaries and the provision
of financing the construction cost of investment
property acquired through the acquisition.

The 3.0% Convertible Bonds were issued at par
and carried an interest rate of 3.0% per annum,
which was payable quarterly in arrear from the date
of issue. The 3.0% Convertible Bonds shall mature
on the date falling on the second anniversary
of the respective date of issue. The holders of
the 3.0% Convertible Bonds have the option to
convert in whole or in part of the outstanding
principal amount of the convertible bonds into the
Company’s ordinary shares at a conversion price
of HK$0.565 per share, subject to conversion price
adjustments, (including share consolidation, share
subdivision, share reclassification, capitalisation
issue and other events which have dilutive effects
on the issued share capital of the Company as set
out in the respective subscription agreements), at
any time during the period commencing from date
of issue of convertible bonds up to and including
the maturity date of the convertible bonds. The
conversion shares shall rank pari passu in all
respects with all other existing shares outstanding
at the date of the conversion.

No early redemption of the 3.0% Convertible
Bonds is allowed by the Company and 100% of
the outstanding principal amount of the convertible
bonds shall be redeemed on the maturity date if not
converted.

39.

AR B 5

3.0% A R E %
aﬁﬁuwt%£45ﬁﬁ§$ii’ZK"‘*" 1=
T—tFRA=Z+=H" —tF
tﬂ:+—5&:;—t¢+—ﬂ
Z+ZH 1T A312,000,00078
JT ~ 30,000,000 7T 528,000,000/
TL23.0% AR ES (55 [3.0% 7
BRES]) ERBKERBERARRE

g

WRESIREMEZZERAN

REREZNE-

3.0% A MREFREEET LIRF
ME3I.0%+E BREITEHESFE

A=

IRF B ©3.0%A IR & 5 1§

RARBETAMEFE _BFEAT
Ho3.0% REFZFHEANRE
JHREREFZEITEHEEEHRRE
FEHA (2HE%B) FHMEREE
HA R ER 2 2B AN REER
TRREBR0.565B T2 BIREERL
ARBZEBE HBREAERFHE

(B

DR
EE)
-

ZH

ERO A6 BRI BRI EH

CBEARMEBRTREBRBWHEN
ARBZEBTRAEREER
Lib =) - BB MEMETE

ﬁiﬁﬁﬁm%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁE?ﬂk

KRB TEBIREELOI.0%A L E
5o WAREER A BRRESFZ 2R

=¥

AReBmEREIHBEERE -
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CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)
3.0% Convertible bonds (continued)
The 3.0% Convertible Bonds contain liability

components and equity components.

On issuance of HK$312,000,000 convertible
bonds, the fair value of liability component of
HK$209,403,000 was recognised and the fair
value of HK$326,403,000, representing equity
element, was recognised and presented in equity
heading “convertible bonds equity reserve” at
initial recognition. The effective interest rate of
the liability component was 23.76% per annum.
Deferred tax liability of HK$16,929,000 was
recognised to the convertible bonds equity reserve

on initial recognition.

On issuance of HK$30,000,000 convertible
bonds, the fair value of liability component of
HK$20,089,000 was recognised and the fair
value of HK$9,911,000, representing equity
element, was recognised and presented in equity
heading “convertible bonds equity reserve” at
initial recognition. The effective interest rate of
the liability component was 23.88% per annum.
Deferred tax liability of HK$1,635,000 was
recognised to the convertible bonds equity reserve

on initial recognition.

On issuance of HK$28,000,000 convertible
bonds, the fair value of liability component of
HK$19,224,000 was recognised and the fair
value of HK$8,776,000, representing equity
element, was recognised and presented in equity
heading “convertible bonds equity reserve” at
initial recognition. The effective interest rate of
the liability component was 22.44% per annum.
Deferred tax liability of HK$1,448,000 was
recognised to the convertible bonds equity reserve

on initial recognition.

BRTREMER (&)
3.0%A[ R ES (£)

3.0% W BB ES B8 S R
B -

B

M E£17312,000,00058 7T 2 A # i &
H0 - BEIHD 2 A FE209,403,000
BILE TR - M F¥{E326,403,000
B (Bl ) B RV R
EEWIW%E‘ FIIE AT AR B 5 4

miEEl BEBSI2EBRFNER
23.76% ° 16,929,000/ Jt 2 iIE T 7
HEBERYV L ERERR AR
EHEERREE-

7 3£ 4730,000,0008 T 2 Al #2 J% &
HE AEI S 22 F(E20,089,000
BILE THR - mAFEE911,000
B (B9 ) B RV R
EEWIW%E‘ FIIE (AT AR B 5 4

miEEl BEBI2EBRFNER
23.88% ° 1,635,000/ Jt 2 i i 7 18
BEERVPERNERRTRRKRE
KR

7 3% 4728,000,000% T 2 Al # J% &
HE AEID 22 FE19,224,000
BILE THER A F(ES 776,000
B (Bl ) B RV R
EEWIW%E‘ FIIE (AT AR (B 5 4

miEEl BEBI2EBRFNER
22.44% ° 1,448,000/ JT 2 i i 7 18
BEERVPERNERRTRRKRE
HRES TS -
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39.

For the year ended 31 March 2019 B % —F —UFE=H =+ — H IL4FFEE

CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)
3.0% Convertible bonds (continued)

The relevant fair value measurement was
carried out by Colliers, an independent qualified

professional valuer not connected to the Group.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, part of
the 3.0% Convertible Bonds were converted into
13,716,814 ordinary shares of the Company with
an aggregate par value of HK$4,286,000. Deferred
tax liability of approximately HK$6,845,000 was
credited to profit or loss during the year with
deferred tax liability of approximately HK$420,000

derecognised upon conversion.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, all
remaining 3.0% Convertible Bonds were converted
into 641,150,442 ordinary shares of the Company
with an aggregate par value of HK$200,360,000.
Deferred tax liability of approximately

HK$12,747,000 was derecognised upon conversion.

During the year ended 31 March 2019,
effective interest was HK$3,328,000 (2018:
HK$50,393,000), of which HK$412,000 (2018:
HK$4,264,000) was capitalised in investment
properties under construction and the remaining

amount was recognised in profit or loss.

39.

RITRHEMER (&)

3.0% AR ES (&)
EHAAFEFERRAEEBERE
ZBUEEREEMBETRABMIT

BHE_Z-N\F=ZA=+—81
FE - HP3.0%TBRKEFHEIR
BN R B THEIES,286,0008 T2
13,716,814/% & @ % - 96,845,000
BT ZELEHBEBIINRE AT AR
% M #9420,0008 T2 BT B B &
ERE R TR -

BHE-Z—NWEF=A=+—HLHF
B8 T3.0% ] RRESFSBRE R
A 7K X B) 42 T {E200,360,000/8 T 2
641,150,442 88 E@A% - #912,747,000
BT BEERBEEED REBRER L

Hz2-_ZT—hF=ZA=+—8H1
FEC-BEWRA B A3,328,0008 T
(=ZZ — J\% :50,393,000/& 7T )

HE /412,000 0 (T — )\ F:
4,264,000 L) RERKREMEER
It MBETSENERZANER -
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9.0% Coupon bonds

Pursuant to the placing agreements dated 30 June
2017 and 27 July 2017 respectively, 9.0% coupon
bonds with principal amount of HK$200,000,000,
HK$100,000,000 and HK$50,000,000 (collectively
referred as the “9.0% Coupon Bonds”) were
issued by the Company at par to the independent
parties on 25 July 2017 (the “Issue Date 1), 4
August 2017 (the “Issue Date 2") and 25 August
2017 (the “Issue Date 3") respectively.

The 9.0% Coupon Bonds are denominated in HK$
and carry interest at 9.0% per annum. Interest is
payable annually in arrears.

The 9.0% Coupon Bonds will mature on the second
anniversary of the Issue Date, which are 24 July
2019 (the “Maturity Date 1), 3 August 2019
(the “Maturity Date 2”) and 24 August 2019 (the
“Maturity Date 3") respectively. The Company
can redeem the 9.0% Coupon Bonds in whole or
in part, at par together with all accrued and unpaid
interest calculated at the rate of 9.0% per annum
accrued thereon from Issue Date 1, Issue Date 2
and Issue Date 3 respectively and up to the date of
redemption less any interest paid by the Company
on it by giving not less than 10 business days’
notice to the holder(s) of the 9.0% Coupon Bonds
at any time from the Issue Date 1 to the Maturity
Date 1 and Issue Date 2 to Maturity Date 2 and
Issue Date 3 to Maturity Date 3, respectively.

40. COUPON BONDS 40. REEEH

9.0%EEEH

BEBBHSR AT —tF A=
Ak —tFtAZt+ttHZRE
EWmE AR =_E—tF L
AZ+HRA(I#THEH1)) =F
—tFNAEAB ([#THEH2)) K=
T—t+tFNAZTHB([RTAH
3EEERBIATERTRASES
200,000,000 7T * 100,000,000 7T
%50,000,000% 7T K99.0% & B &%
(TB9.0%EEEH]) -

9.0%ZBEANBTLE WIRETF
9.0%:t B - FMBEELM—K-

9.0%RBEFKHRINEITHEE
ZE_HEFERA (M -_T—AFtA
—+mA(TafHe1l) —=—h&
NB=ZB (82 ) R =T —hF
NAZ+HmA ([ZEA3]) ) - R
BEITRIERHA I RETAE2EE
HA2ARETARERHAZEAH
o ANARABERERFI.0% R B &
FRHEAABLETLOMI0EEXAMRA
A AEEERIZI.0%FF RERTZ
BEITAE - BTA2RETEES
REZEO A AR RAN
FER AR RIS E T 2 E R F &

2E I EEI.0%EBGE A -
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 B % —F —UFE=H =+ — H IL4FFEE

COUPON BONDS (continued)
9.0% Coupon bonds (continued)

The directors of the Company consider that the
fair values of the redemption options of the 9.0%
Coupon Bonds at 31 March 2019 are insignificant.

Transaction costs relating to the 9.0% Coupon
Bonds of HK$21,000,000 were included in the
carrying amount of the 9.0% Coupon Bonds. The
effective interest rate of the 9.0% Coupon Bonds is
11.90% per annum.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, interest
charged on the 9.0% Coupon Bonds of
HK$42,189,000 (2018: HK$26,967,000) was
recognised in profit or loss.

12.0% Coupon bonds

Pursuant to the subscription agreement dated
1 December 2017, 12.0% coupon bonds with
principal amount of USD15,000,000 (the “12.0%
Coupon Bonds”) were issued by the Company at
par to independent third parties on 1 December
2017 (the “Issue Date 4").

The 12.0% Coupon Bonds are denominated in USD
and carry interest at 12.0% per annum. Interest is

repayable semi-annually in arrears.

The 12.0% Coupon Bonds will mature on the
third anniversary of the Issue Date 4, which is
5 December 2020 (the “Maturity Date 4").

40.

ESES (#&)
9.0%EEEH (&)
ARABEERAE R_ZTE—hLE=A
=+—H'9.0 /oﬁ,m;-ﬁz,ﬁ;%@ﬁﬁ%
ZAFEITEK-
21,000,0005%7%9.0°/m E%EF%

B9.0%E
11.90% -

EEFNEBEBRFENEXS

REBEE-_T-—NAF=A=+—81
FEARN 9.0%EBB/EHENFE L
42,189,000 L (=T — \F:
26,967,000/ 7T ) E R 1E 2= N R

12.0%E B E5H

RIEAA-ZTE—tF+=_A—AHZ
REWRE ARFAR T —tF+=
A—B (%7 H84))KEAME L
=817 E % /15,000,000% T
Z12.0%FEEEH ([12.0% R E &
%))

]
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/ For the year ended 31 March 2019 B E —F—UFE=H =+ —H IL4FFE

COUPON BONDS (continued)
12.0% Coupon bonds (continued)

No early redemption of the 12.0% Coupon Bonds is
allowed by the Company or holder except upon the
occurrence of certain events or circumstances as set

out in the bonds instrument.

Transaction costs relating to the 12.0% Coupon
Bonds of HK$3,515,000 were included in the
carrying amount of the 12.0% Coupon Bonds. The
effective interest rate of the 12.0% Coupon Bonds

is 12.99% per annum.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, interest
charged on the 12.0% Coupon Bonds of
HK$15,486,000 (2018: HK$4,901,000) was
recognised in profit or loss.

OBLIGATION ARISING FROM A PUT
OPTION TO A NON-CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER

On 26 October 2017, two subsidiaries of the
Company, Chinlink Mega Limited (”“Chinlink
Mega”) and Chinlink Finance Lease Company
Limited (“Chinlink Finance Lease”), entered into
a capital increase agreement with A & fR 1% & 12 B%
B A7A (“Zhong Jinlv") in relation to the capital
injection by Zhong Jinlv into Chinlink Finance Lease
and the respective rights and obligations of Chinlink
Mega and Zhong Jinlv in Chinlink Finance Lease
after the capital increase. The maximum capital
injection by Zhong Jinlv is RMB120 million which
will be made in stages. At 31 March 2019, Zhong
Jinlv had injected RMB91.8 million (2018: RMB91.8
million).

ESES (#&)
12.0%RBEH (£&)
BRIEBEBEAXEMB A TEN
HER BRAARATESREEER
120%EEFE5H -

3,515,000 TT12.0% E B &5 A
ZRGKAF A1 0%EEEEFE®E
B 120%REBFNEBRFNER
12.99% °

RBEZZT—hF=A=+—H1
FER 120%ZE8EHFMHFE X
115,486,000 0 (=& — )\ &F :
4,901,000/ 7T ) B R 18 25 A g 3R

RFZERRRER LR EHEE
£ EYE

RZE—tF+AZ+B AQ7

ZMENRE LR ERIKEERA A

([EpkEl) REEFSRERE

BAR ([EERSBMERE]) Ehd
RIEEERER AR ([FHEHE])ET
VIEERE O NAERAPERMTE
FEMEMETERNEEREFRIK
FRPeREEREEFeRERE
ZHEMNREB - FERIREL Z2HEAF
ﬁAEﬁ%nooooooom’W\ﬁ%&a&
T -RZE—NF=A=+—H #F%
maf—cﬁ/\EmLsoo,oooE(:;
—)\& : AR#¥91,800,0007T) °
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41.

For the year ended 31 March 2019 B % —F —UFE=H =+ — H IL4FFEE

OBLIGATION ARISING FROM A PUT
OPTION TO A NON-CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER (continued)

On the same date, the parties also entered into a
put option agreement pursuant to which Zhong
Jinlv shall be granted a right to request Chinlink
Mega or its nominee to acquire its shareholding
interest in Chinlink Finance Lease during the period
of 30 days from the third anniversary of the date
of the first capital contribution by Zhong Jinlv
or upon the occurrence of certain events during
the period from the date of registration with the
relevant PRC industry and commerce authorities
of the first capital contribution by Zhong Jinlv to
the third anniversary of the date of the first capital
contribution by Zhong lJinlv. The consideration for
the repurchase of the relevant shareholding interest
shall be equal to the amount of capital contributed
by Zhong lJinlv in Chinlink Finance Lease, and
payable in cash by Chinlink Mega or its nominee
to Zhong Jinlv within 20 business days from the

receipt of the written notice from Zhong Jinlv.

Chinlink Finance Lease is wholly-owned by Chinlink
Mega. After capital injection, the percentage
shareholding of Chinlink Mega and Zhong Jinlv in
Chinlink Finance Lease became 62.5% and 37.5%
respectively.

At initial recognition, the obligation arising from
the put option to the non-controlling shareholder
represents the present value of the obligation
to deliver the purchase consideration amount
using a discount rate of 14%. This amount has
been recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position with a corresponding debit to the

non-controlling interests.

41.

M) I 2 IR R R % RO SR E
£z EE (H)

FIH 77 IR IA TR B T AL 380h B g ok
B PEKHER TRENERE S
KEHERBARFEREEER
HREE=BFE308BMARzR AP
BHEBIRTHREERESLT IR
BEEIEHBEPEKRENEIEBY
EE=ZBFHEAABLEFESMHEREK
BENEETSREMEZRE T
BEBBREZAESHEERTRKRR
EEFSREMEZTER YAR
BEF DK EMBANE0ELEA
A& IR E KB AR & HRIA
BEeXftfe

TEFeMERERTPIHEERE
BoWEE®R EhkEkPEERNE
EhemERE CREADI LD BIE
£62.5% %37.5% °

WA 2 HE RS [ SRR R R R R R
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/ For the year ended 31 March 2019 B E —F—UFE=H =+ —H IL4FFE

41. OBLIGATION ARISING FROM A PUT 41. PIERBRRARLEZLEARE

OPTION TO A NON-CONTROLLING 2 EYE (F)
SHAREHOLDER (continued)
During the year, an imputed interest expense F Rl E F S 10,696,000 7T
of HK$10,696,000 (2018: HK$3,808,000) was (ZZ—/\%:3,808,000% L) N 1B
recognised in profit and loss. The carrying RAER-R_E-NF=ZA=+—
amount of obligation arising from a put option B RFEERRRR LR EEE
to a non-controlling shareholder amounted 2 A B8R T 8 587,089,000 7T ( =
to HK$87,089,000 at 31 March 2019 (2018: T — )\ 4 : 81,049,000 7T ) °

HK$81,049,000).

42. DEFERRED TAXATION 42. EEBIE
The following are the major deferred tax liabilities R EF E TR 2 BRI IR
recognised and movements thereon during both BEREEHNT :
years:

Tax allowance
Fair value  on financing

gain on guarantee 3.0%
investment contracts convertible
properties recognised bonds Total
BRARME
RENEr EREHZ  3.0%THER
AFERE BHWER &% FoH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT FTAEL FAEL FTAEL
At 1 April 2017 RZZ—+4MA—A 214,620 573 = 215,193
Charge to equity for the year F RN &% - - 19,592 19,592
Charge (credit) to MmirE (Gt A) 5
profit or loss 26,517 (179) (6,845) 19,493
Exchange realignment fE 5 A% 22,186 47 = 22,233
At 31 March 2018 RZZE-\E=ZA=+—H 263,323 441 12,747 276,511
Credit to equity for the year FRFH A - - (12,747) (12,747)
Charge (credit) to MmirE (FA) %
profit or loss 46,600 (4) - 46,596
Exchange realignment [E A% (15,189) (26) = (15,215)
At 31 March 2019 R-Z-NE=R=1+—H 294,734 411 - 295,145
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42.

For the year ended 31 March 2019 B % —F —UFE=H =+ — H IL4FFEE

DEFERRED TAXATION (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
had unused tax losses of HK$491,652,000 (2018:
HK$468,182,000) available for offsetting against
future profits which are subject to the confirmation
from Hong Kong Inland Revenue Department
and the PRC tax bureau. No deferred tax asset
has been recognised due to unpredictability of
future profit streams. As at 31 March 2019,
included in unrecognised tax losses are losses of
HK$222,993,000 which will expire in 5 years from
the year of origination which is ranged from 2020
to 2024, the remaining balances of unrecognised
tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely (2018:
HK$268,659,000 which will expire in 5 years from
the year of origination which is ranged from 2019
to 2023, the remaining balances of unrecognised

tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely).

Under the EIT Law of the PRC, withholding tax is
imposed on dividends declared in respect of profits
earned by the PRC subsidiary from 1 January 2008
onwards. No deferred taxation has been provided
for in the consolidated financial statements in
respect of temporary differences relating to the
undistributed profits of certain PRC subsidiaries
amounting to HK$1,593,290,000 (2018:
HK$1,403,563,000) as the Company controls
the dividend policy of these subsidiaries and it is
probable that the profits will not be distributed in

the foreseeable future.

42.

EERIE (&)

RIBEBMKR AEEBBEREAZHIE
E518491,652,0008 L (= — N\4F:
468,182,000/ 7T ) A] A 2R 88 R 2K
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BRE  AAEE - AR EFIERRK
BEAERETE ORI - AL I A RIE IE L 1B
EE - N-_TE—NFE=ZA=+—H8 X%
TR IE B 18 B 45 B518222,993,000
B EBERBFERAFAD
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RUEBB 2 ARUERRALE (=
T — \4 :268,659,000/ 7T Hi§H
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43. SHARE CAPITAL 43. R
Number Nominal
of shares value
RO A HfE
HK$'000
FET
Ordinary shares of FRAEE03125B T2 L@k :
HK$0.3125 each:
Authorised EE
At 1 April 2017, RZE—+FMA—R"
31 March 2018 “E-NF=ZA=+—-H8k
and 31 March 2019 ZE-NE=A=+—H 2,000,000,000 625,000
Issued and fully paid BRITEAR
At 1 April 2017 RZE—+FMA—H 670,002,436 209,376
Shares issued on REIR3.0% A R REH R ET
conversion of 3.0% 2 (i)
convertible bonds (Note i) 13,716,814 4,286
At 31 March 2018 RZZ-N\F=ZA=+—8H 683,719,250 213,662
Shares issued on REIR3.0% A R REHFFET
conversion of 3.0% Z B (Hiazii)
convertible bonds (Note i) 641,150,442 200,360
Placing of shares (Note i) Fe & M An (A7 2tii) 136,740,000 42,731
At 31 March 2019 RZZE-—NF=A=+—8H 1,461,609,692 456,753
Note i:  During the year ended 31 March 2018, Hiti: RBE-TE—NEF=ZA=+—
13,716,814 ordinary shares of the Company, AIEFE ARAIBREEDLR
with aggregate par value of approximately 4,286,000 7L 213,716,814
HK$4,286,000 were issued upon the partial TR E R #2D HIR3.0% A &
conversion of 3.0% convertible bonds. Details RR B 55 By BE AT o FE IS BRI =E
are set out in note 39. 39-°
Note ji:  During the year ended 31 March 2019, Miitii: RBEZFT-AF=A=+—
641,150,442 ordinary shares of the Company, BIEFE RBAKT3.0%
with aggregate par value of approximately AMBEFRETARRZ
HK$200,360,000, were issued upon the 641,150,442 E@BAY - MEEL
conversion of the remaining 3.0% convertible 200,360,000/ 7T © =1 B MY =E
bonds. Details are set out in note 39. 39-°

———o L
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43.

44.

For the year ended 31 March 2019 B % —F —UFE=H =+ — H IL4FFEE

SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Note jii. At 27 September 2018, the Group issued
136,740,000 ordinary shares to independent
third parties at HK$0.80 per share upon the
completion of the placing of new shares. The
issued shares will rank pari passu in all respects
with all other shares in issue

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company's share option scheme was adopted
pursuant to a resolution passed on 21 September
2012 for the primary purpose of providing
incentives to directors, eligible employee and

consultants (collectively, the “Grantees”).

On 24 April 2013, 93,100,000 share options
(the “Share Options 1"”) were granted to the
Grantees who are entitled to subscribe for a
total of 93,100,000 new shares at an exercise
price of HK$0.58 per share with nominal value of
HK$0.0125 each in the capital of the Company
upon the exercise of the Share Options 1 in full.
Share Options 1 granted are exercisable from 24
April 2014 to 23 April 2023 and are vested in five
tranches given that the Grantees remain in service
with the Group at the beginning of each exercisable
period with (i) 20% shall become exercisable from
24 April 2014 to 23 April 2023; (ii) 20% shall
become exercisable from 24 April 2015 to 23 April
2023; (iii) 20% shall become exercisable from 24
April 2016 to 23 April 2023; (iv) 20% shall become
exercisable from 24 April 2017 to 23 April 2023;
and (v) 20% shall become exercisable from 24 April
2018 to 23 April 2023.

43.

44,

R (&)

Btaii: RZFT—NFhLA=Z++tH &
SENTREETRORBIZE
B%0.80/8 LM B B = H 1T
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MERMAB S EEMRE e %
TR ZBRSEHA
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44. SHARE OPTION SCHEME 44. BRESTE (F)

- e

(continued)

On 29 November 2013, 15,000,000 share options
(the “Share Options 2”) were granted to the
Grantees who are entitled to subscribe for a
total of 15,000,000 new shares at an exercise
price of HK$0.70 per share with nominal value of
HK$0.0125 each in the capital of the Company
upon the exercise of the Share Options 2 in full.
Share Options 2 granted are exercisable from
29 November 2014 to 28 November 2023 and are
vested in five tranches given that the Grantees
remain in service with the Group at the beginning
of each exercisable period with (i) 20% shall
become exercisable from 29 November 2014 to 28
November 2023; (ii) 20% shall become exercisable
from 29 November 2015 to 28 November 2023;
(iii) 20% shall become exercisable from 29
November 2016 to 28 November 2023; (iv) 20%
shall become exercisable from 29 November
2017 to 28 November 2023 and (v) 20% shall
become exercisable from 29 November 2018 to 28
November 2023.

RZE—=%+—HA=+hB"
15,000,0001n B Rz i ([EE AR 2] ) B
ETEARAN REBRENRBBRITERE
B2 RITE BT R0.708 TR
RARIRARFHREMEO0.0125%8 T2
4 #£15,000,0000% 1 % 17 BT % H B8
BE2R—_ZT—NF+— A=+ NA
BT =F+—HA=Z+N\BAAT
THEIRERARSTITEROD
BRERAEE AR TS AIER
HAP(R20%BEAIR_T—NOF+— A
—thBEZZ-_=ZF+—A=+AN
BT (i)20% AR T —hF
+—BA=-t+thAhBE-_T=-=%F+—A8
ZHNHATE: (i)20% B AR ZF
—R"NEFE+—AZt+NhBEEZ=ZZ==
F+—AZ+TNBTE: (iv)20%#
AR—_ZE—+tF+—HA=Zt+NABZE
—E-_=F+—AZ+NBH1TfE:
RV20% AR —N\NF+—A
ZTNABEZZE_=F+—H=Z+AN
AT
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44,

For the year ended 31 March 2019 B % —F —UFE=H =+ — H IL4FFEE

SHARE OPTION SCHEME
(continued)

On 17 December 2013, 4,000,000 share options
(the “Share Options 3”) were granted to the
Grantee who is entitled to subscribe for a total
of 4,000,000 new shares at an exercise price
of HK$0.68 per share with nominal value of
HK$0.0125 each in the capital of the Company
upon the exercise of the Share Options 3 in full.
Share Options 3 granted are exercisable from
17 December 2014 to 16 December 2023 and are
vested in five tranches given that the Grantees
remain in service with the Group at the beginning
of each exercisable period with (i) 20% shall
become exercisable from 17 December 2014 to 16
December 2023; (ii) 20% shall become exercisable
from 17 December 2015 to 16 December 2023;
(iii) 20% shall become exercisable from 17
December 2016 to 16 December 2023; (iv) 20%
shall become exercisable from 17 December
2017 to 16 December 2023; and (v) 20% shall
become exercisable from 17 December 2018 to 16
December 2023.

44,

BRERE (A)

RZE—-—=%+ZZHA+tA8"
4,000,000t B Ik ([ R AE3 ) B
BTEBRAN BREERNBEITEE
W3R IR TEEFR0.68 B TRBA
NAIRAFRGREME0.0125F T ZE
$4,000 OOOHﬁ%ﬁWﬁ o BT % ﬁ%ﬁﬂié
SRZE—WMFEF+_A+ERZE

::¢+:H+ﬂ5ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬂm%
BARSITERINBRBERAER
ZHARTHAMEE  HH(1)20%#
TEA:%*E¢+*H+J:E§* S
—=F+-A+AHTE: O%Hﬂ‘
AR-_ZE—AF+= HthEi

Z=F+ZA+RAMTE: |||ZO%H#
AAR-_E—RF+_A+tHE_ZFT
__¢+ BT7NB7E : (iv)20%#
AR-_ZT—+tF+-_A+tHE=ZF
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 B E —F—UFE=H =+ —H IL4FFE

¢ 44. SHARE OPTION SCHEME 44. FERRESTEl (&) —
(continued)
The table below discloses movement of the TRBEERRARFANZIE R ES
Company’s share options during the year: B :

Number of share options

BREHE
Lapsed
Exercise price Outstanding during Outstanding
Type of participants Option type per share at 1.4.2018 the year at 31.3.2019
R-B-N\f RZB-h#
B A-H £  =A=t+-H
SREER BRESR TEE i A7 6% BEAN i RAT
HK$
BT
Director Share Options 1
S Bk 6.4100 2,768,300 - 2,768,300
Share Options 3
B3 7.5175 361,869 - 361,869
Employees Share Options 1
B8 Bk 6.4100 2,352,148 - 2,352,148
Share Options 2
FERiE 7.7375 1,085,608 (361,869) 723,739
Other eligible participants Share Options 1
HthaBiR2aE R 6.4100 2,533,085 (90,467) 2,442,618
Total
FoR 9,101,010 (452,336) 8,648,674
Exercisable at end of the year
RERAITH 8,648,674

———o L
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44,

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

(continued)

The table below discloses movement of the

Company’s share options during the prior year:

44.

B ESTE (&)

TEHBEARAREE 2 BRES

& :

Number of share options

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # % —F—JUE=H =+ —H L4 &

BREHE
Lapsed
Exercise price Outstanding during Outstanding
Type of participants Option type per share at 1.4.2017 the year at 31.3.2018
R=Z-t% R-ZZ-N\%
B A-H £ BET=
SREER BRESR TEE i A7 6% BEAN i RAT
HK$
BT
Director Share Options 1
S Bk 6.4100 2,768,300 - 2,768,300
Share Options 3
B3 7.5175 361,869 - 361,869
Employees Share Options 1
B8 Bk 6.4100 2,352,148 - 2,352,148
Share Options 2
B E2 7.7375 1,176,075 (90,467) 1,085,608
Other eligible participants Share Options 1
HthaBiR2aE R 6.4100 2,533,085 - 2,533,085
Total
@5t 9,191,477 (90,467) 9,101,010
Exercisable at end of the year
RERAITH 7,280,808

Note i Share options were forfeited due to the
termination of service of certain staff during the

year.

Hrizic AARFEERTEITRIEREMER

B AEBOR UL
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44. SHARE OPTION SCHEME 44. BRRESTE (F)
(continued)
The following table discloses movement of and TREBARAIZAI{TEERE
weighted average exercise prices of the Company's B) R inwE T ITEE -

exercisable share option:

2019 2018
“Z-h% —E-N\F
Weighted Number Weighted Number
average of exercisable average  of exercisable
exercise price options  exercise price options
ML AT METH A7
THE  BREHE TRE  BREHE
HKS HK$
per share per share
BRET BRAETT
Exercisable at the beginning B R EF 1T
of the year 6.6124 7,280,808 6.6235 5,514,886
Share option become RENT T 2 AR
exercisable during the year - 1,765,922 - 1,820,202
Share option forfeited PR 2 B R
during the year - (398,056) - (54,280)
Exercisable at the end ARERTRE
of the year 6.5674 8,648,674 6.6124 7,280,808
The consultants provided services related to the ZEREERUEEED ARG ES R
development of logistics services business and BMEERREEFER ZRE -FH
financial guarantee services business. Such services REERNEEESRMH 2 RFULEER
are similar as in nature to those rendered by Lo

employees of the Group.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 B % —F —UFE=H =+ — H IL4FFEE

45. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(a)

On 22 May 2017, the Group completed the
acquisition of (i) the entire issued capital of
Zhong Hui Global Limited (“Sale Share")
and (ii) the shareholder’s loans due by
Zhong Hui Global Limited and its subsidiaries
(“Zhong Hui Group”) (“Sale Loan”) to
Mr. Li, Chairman of the Company and his
affiliated companies at a total consideration
of HK$312,000,000.

Zhong Hui Global Limited (“Zhong Hui")
is a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands (“BVI”) in January 2013 with
limited liability and was then wholly owned
by Bestwin International Investment Limited
(the “Vendor”).

owned by Mr. Li. Zhong Hui is an investment

The Vendor is wholly

holding company and its principal asset is
its investment in Real King International
Holdings Limited (“Real King”), a company
incorporated in Hong Kong with limited
liability. Real King wholly owns [ = BB (78
Z)ERMRERAR ("ERER (BR) ")
which was established in the PRC and owns
a 100% interest in the investment property
under construction located at the junction of
Fengcheng Tenth Road and Wenjing Road,
Weiyang District, Xi'an, Shaanxi Province, the
PRC.

45,

WESH B 2 A

(a)

RZE—tFRA=-F+=8"
REBETRWEGNTEREE
RARIZ2EDFHTRA ([F
EREG) : KRR ERERE R
AR RENBAG (FFE[H
BEEE|)AXRARFERE
EEREBBEARZERE
H(IHEER]) BREAR
312,000,000 7T °

PERKRBRAA ([FE])
R—ER-_ZT—=F—A&R
BHEBIES ((ABEBMR
BEDAMAZOHBERAF
HemamBRERKRERRAA
(BB DN2EHB-BEhMmZF
EERERB -FER/KREE
BRr EXREERKREE
SEREEERAE ([ER])
(—HREBEIMEAILZBER
nAE)  ERZERAERBRK
(AR)EEHMEERLQR ([E
SEB(BER) ERXHEX
M) UHEBMR P ERES
[ PN e e
RRZERBRENF 2280

S o

Bl
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/ For the year ended 31 March 2019 B E —F—UFE=H =+ —H IL4FFE

45. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 45, WHEMEB LT (&)
(continued)
(@)  (continued) (a) (#&)

- e

Pursuant to the acquisition agreement and
the loan purchase and financing agreement
signed on 2 February 2017 and their
supplemental deeds on 13 March 2017, the
consideration of Sale Share and Sale Loan
shall be satisfied by the Company issuing the
convertible bonds of HK$96 million (“Share
Consideration Bonds”) and HK$216
million (“Loan Consideration Bonds”) to
the Vendor and Mr. Li or their nominee(s)
respectively. In addition, Mr. Li agreed
to provide financing to the Group in the
amount of HK$58 million after completion
of the acquisition to fund the construction
costs of the investment property by means
of issuing another convertible bonds of
HK$58 million (“Financing Bonds"”) of the
Company in two tranches to Mr. Li. All Share
Consideration Bonds, Loan Consideration
Bonds and Financing Bonds carry interest at
3% per annum and shall mature on the date
falling on the second anniversary of the date

of issue.

Real King was renamed as Chinlink Glory
Limited in July 2017.

The primary asset acquired from the
acquisition is the investment property under
construction and hence the acquisition has

been accounted for as assets acquisition.

BEBBARER =T —+
FZRA+=-AZWHRRE &
ERNDERBEEERZRER
BRARFDBMEARE
FEIERBABRTESER
96,000,000 7T ([ RBAREE
%) %216,000,000/8 ¢ ([ &
RREEF)HITRRES
FTUEFoltsn - FTEERE
RKEEETHKE MAEER
R & £58,000,000/% T - /A
LA 18 & W) 5 WO SR SR B AN 1R 4
B ARNAIMEAZTEE
% 1758,000,0005% 7T B9 7K 2 7
FS—aaumkEs ((MEMSR
%)) mBERNMREESR B
FREEHERBEESFZRFH
E3%HT S WA BT A HI R
FEZAFE AR

ESR-_ZT—tFLtAESRR
EREEERRAA-

RWBEREUBZIRZEER
ERRENFE RWEFED
BREEWBAR-
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 # % —F—JUE=H =+ —H L4 &

)
&
.

e 1) DCRE D) N

45. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 45,
(continued)
(@)  (continued) (a) (#&)
Consideration transferred BEEAE
HK$'000
TFAET
Fair value of Share Consideration BOREEFMERREESRZ
Bonds and Loan Consideration ~NE
Bonds 535,806

Assets acquired and liabilities recognised by
the Group at the date of acquisition are as

follows:

AEERKBEERREZEE
MR BEMT :

HK$'000
FAET
Property, plant and equipment Y- WE REE 12
Investment properties WEME 452,034
Bank balances and cash SRTHEEFERR® 108,163
Construction cost accruals FERTIEEK A (64,402)
Amounts due to related companies [EfTRE Q7 BRIE (192,562)
Amount due to a director B —REEKRE (85,093)
218,152
Sale Loan HEB N 216,000
Total consideration transferred EEZEARE (535,806)
Loss arising from acquisition W P EE £ R B 1R (101,654)
Net cash inflow from acquisition WHEFRES 2B ESRAEE
Bank balance and cash acquired BUWEBIRTETRIRES 108,163
Consideration paid in cash IR & IR RE -
108,163

o
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45. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 45. WHEMEBAT (&)
(continued)
(@)  (continued) (a) (#&)

- e

The significant loss arising from acquisition
was mainly due to the valuation of Share
Consideration Bonds and Loan Consideration
Bonds conducted by an independent
qualified professional valuer as consideration
of acquisition in excess of the fair value of
the identified assets and liabilities acquired.

On 11 June 2017, the Company, Trillion
Up Limited (“Trillion Up”, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company), Instant Karma
Global Holdings Limited (“IK Global”),
an independent third party and two
independent individuals entered into an
agreement (“Agreement”) in relation to (i)
the subscription of new shares in Alpha Yield
Limited (“Alpha Yield”, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Trillion Up) by IK Global with a
consideration to be satisfied by the transfer
of the entire issued capital of MCM Holdings
Limited by IK Global to Alpha Yield; and
(ii) subscription of additional new shares in
Alpha Yield by Trillion Up in the amount of
USD4 million (equivalent to HK$31,221,000)
in cash.

MCM Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries
("MCM Group”) are principally engaged
in the securities, options and futures
brokerage, capital raising, advisory and
equity research business in Hong Kong.

All conditions precedent under the
Agreement were satisfied and the
completion took place on 6 November 2017.
After completion, MCM Group became
wholly-owned subsidiaries of Alpha Yield
and Alpha Yield remained as a 51%-owned
subsidiary of the Company.

WREMELNEREBRIITE
HIMERKEZTHRZRE B
VEBRBEXEMGEMEKRNO K
BEFEERREESFET
ZEE BHAESHNE &R
BENRBERAFEMAZR

RZFE—tFA~A+—H K
NAE ERERAR([LEE])
(ARRZz2EMBRA) -
Instant Karma Global Holdings
Limited ([IK Global |) + —%
ﬁi’%‘ﬁéﬂﬁﬁ%ﬁifl)\
Rt ([ZimE])
NAAB)K GlobalREE &
ERAG([BE]) (EEZ
2EMBARMIKRS K
B %% BIK Global&EMCM
Holdings Limitedz & &8 B %
TRATEEEE: ki) L&
LAIR £4,000,000% 7t (HHE K
31,221,000/ 7T ) R BB E &
N R AD -

\

MCM Holdings Limited 5 £ B
BRA (i IMCMER]) =
EEEAENEES HERH
Bk &8 BRERRERT
E X

ZBBETHRA EREHE
RZTE—+tF+—ANBERK
R - RTHK % MCME E
HKAESENEZEWNB AR LRT
BINARRAREBS1%REL
RN
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 # % ~F—UF=H=1—H AR

45. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 45, WHEMEB LT (&)
(continued)
(b)  (continued) by (#&)
Consideration transferred B#EEAE
HK$'000
FAT
Fair value of 49% of Alpha Yield BEREWEQA49%ME 2
and its subsidiaries ~NEE 35,432

Assets acquired and liabilities recognised by
the Group at the date of acquisition of MCM
Group are as follows:

AREBRWEMCME B B 2
BrEBENERZAGEDT

HK$'000
FAET
Property, plant and equipment e 704
Other receivables H {th jE U BR 18 2,777
Available-for-sale investment AEHERE 1,239
Bank balances and cash RITHEENRRS 3,287
Trade receivables EWE FiRA 8,146
Amounts due from related companies & U B 3& A 78R 18 52
Other payables and accruals HMENRERESER (3,622)
Amount due to immediate R E SR A RRE
holding company (7,821)
Loans from staff ETITEX (18,800)
Obligations under finance lease A S RE (215)
Amount due to a director B —REEKRE (29)
(14,282)
Goodwill arising on acquisition: WHEEAS 2 HE:
Consideration transferred BEERE 35,432
Plus: non-controlling interests N SEFE IR R AR
(49% in MCM Group) (RMCMEE 249%#x ) (6,998)
Plus: net liabilities acquired m:FrkiE z B EFRE 14,282
Goodwill arising on acquisition WEEEZHE 42,716
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45. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 45, WHEMEB LT (&)
(continued)
(b)  (continued) by (#&)

- e

The gross contractual amounts of trade
receivables, other receivables and amounts
due from related companies acquired and
their fair values at the date of acquisition
amounted to HK$8,146,000, HK$2,777,000,
HK$52,000 respectively.

Acquisition-related costs were insignificant
and had been excluded from the cost of
acquisition and recognised as an expense
within the “administrative expenses” line
item in the consolidation statement of profit

or loss and other comprehensive income.

Goodwill arose in the acquisition because
the consideration paid for the combination
effectively included amounts in relation to
the benefit of expected synergies, revenue
growth and future development as the
Group can leverage the financial services
expertise of the MCM Group with the local
presence and strong network of the Group
in Shaanxi Province, the PRC to create a
dynamic investment and asset management
group that bridges the needs and
opportunities of Shaanxi enterprises with

international capital markets and investors.

RUEE B BT 2 RIRE 5
AR I8 - H fth FE U BR 18 K% FE Uk R
EARRBZENRERAER
&5 Bl A&8,146,0007% JT »
2,777,000/ 7T ]2 52,000/ 7T ©

WERBKAL TEABRE A
WA TR&EEERE
REMEEKERZ [1THA
X]HBRNER R

HREHFINOREERERE
B T8 B 1hp [B) A B - W ABE R K
ARBERBBEOFE WEE
BREEL REASKNEERE
MAMCME B O S RREE R
Ko 75 &2 B o B RS 4 O AN 3
EE R R REEE AT 3E — (@
ARNREREEEESE"
P R RBFRE AT H K
REENFRRBBHER
o
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 # % —F—JUE=H =+ —H L4 &

45. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 45. WHEKEB AR (&)
(continued)
(b)  (continued) (b) (%)
Net cash inflow on acquisition of MCM WHEMCMEE 238 &% A JF58
Group
HK$'000
T T
Cash consideration paid ENRERE -
Less: cash and cash equivalent BTl s Re RS EEE &%
balance acquired (3,287)
3,287

Included in loss for the year ended 31
March 2018 is HK$8,831,000 attributable
to the additional business generated by
MCM Group. Revenue for the year included
HK$5,690,000 generated from MCM Group.

Had the acquisition been completed on 1
April 2017, total group revenue for the year
ended 31 March 2018 would have been
HK$1,268,413,000 and loss for the year
ended 31 March 2018 would have been
HK$35,056,000. The pro forma information
is for illustrative purposes only and is not
necessarily an indication of revenue and
results of operations of the Group that
actually would have been achieved had the
acquisition been completed on 1 April 2017,
nor is it intended to be a projection of future
results.

HE-_Z—NF=ZA=+—
HIEFEZBEBEBEEMCME
B g EBELE 2 ELEE
8,831,000/ 7T » FF AW A B35
MCM% B ZE 4 25,690,000/
=

WKEEBEENR T —+tFN
A—BZK A REEREZE
—E-N\F=ZA=t+—HLHF
B2 BB AR A1,268,413,000
BT mMREZ_ZE—N\F=
A=+—BLEFEZEERA
35,056,000/ 7T - 5 = & £ &
ESRBAR S M —E XTI
WEEBEER - —+tFWMA
—HEX ANEEEREAE
MW AREBEBEE DT#H
TERREE 2 TEA -
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/ For the year ended 31 March 2019 B E —F—UFE=H =+ —H IL4FFE VoL

46. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 46. HRAME

Corporate guarantee NEER
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FHEIT
Guarantee given to banks in HETIEFREZ
respect of financial guarantee A& PR AR 75 M 1A
services provided to: RITVE 2 1R
— Independent third parties —-BYE=H 465,211 411,816
— Related parties —BEAL 5,837 30,963
471,048 442,779
Details about the management of credit risk by the AEBBZEREEREEREERR
Group regarding these financial guarantees are set L IBHE NS o
out in note 51.
As at 31 March 2019, financial guarantee contracts R-ZE—NF=ZA=+—H @m&EE
of HK$4,409,000 (2018: HK$3,180,000) represent RE 494,409,000/ (=T — N5
the fair values of the financial guarantee contracts 3,180,000/ 7T ) I8 V) F MR B & IR
initially recognised less cumulative amortisation at AR AFERN®ERRZ R5t#

the end of the reporting period. B o

———o L
306 CHINLINK INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED % [t v 4 [ B 3% i 45 iR 24 5] | Annual Report 2019 F 3§




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements //

47.

For the year ended 31 March 2019 B % —F —UFE=H =+ — H IL4FFEE

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong.
The assets of the scheme are held separately from
those of the Group, in funds under the control of
trustees. The Group contributes 5% of the relevant
payroll costs or capped at HK$1,500 (based on the
choice of employees) to the Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme in Hong Kong, which contribution is
matched by employees.

The employees of the Company’s subsidiaries in the
PRC are members of retirement benefit schemes
operated by the PRC government. The relevant PRC
subsidiaries were required to contribute certain
percentages of the monthly salaries of their current
employees to fund the benefits. The employees
were entitled to retirement pension calculated
with reference to their basic salaries on retirement
and their length of service in accordance with
the relevant government regulations. The PRC
government was responsible for the pension liability
to the retired staff.

The employer’s contributions to the retirement
benefit scheme charged to profit or loss in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income amounted to HK$6,747,000
for the year ended 31 March 2019 (2018:

HK$5,956,000).

47.

£ 47 W s R

BB R E
AEEZRBFARGMEAESFTE ®ET
BEERZBAREBLH -GTEEE
HALEEEESHAZHE UUESH
AEZTAEE - ASEKEET <
AN 2 5%8K A1,50058 7T & E R (%
RBEEB)ABBAFNELRES TS
AR - B{E B REEAER -

ARRAPEMBARZETTHEK
FFFTEEREREFTEIMKE - BRE
TENBARARREETIAFHZAE
TEORHK BEZEARETEIA -
REABRMEN BIRZH 2R
R TR LRI 2 A FH & MRS

FEFE -PEBRTERIKE TAE
BRAEHEME-
REBE_T-NF=ZA=+—HLF

=
T EERBREFEZHRERE
BakHEME2EKERBEPNRZ
FKIEB6,747,0008 T (ZF — \4F:
5,956,000/ 7T ) °
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 B E —F—UFE=H =+ —H IL4FFE

48. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 48. REHERIE
At the end of the reporting period, the Group RMERAR NEER T RBELE
had future minimum lease payments under non- MEZARKEHEEN KA B A
cancellable operating leases which fall due as N
follows:
As lessee ERFMEA
2019 2018
ZE-NF —T-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FHET
Within one year —FR 9,189 11,962
In the second to fifth year FE_EFRF
inclusive (BREEEMEEAN) 3,639 11,769
12,828 23,731

Operating lease payments represent rental payable

by the Group for its office premises and equipment.

Leases are negotiated for a term ranging from one

to three years and rentals are fixed for the lease

period.

REHENFEARBERINERF
BRhERENES -

BELEMNF—E2=F HEHA
e B E -
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48.

49.

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # % —F—JUE=H =+ —H L4 &

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 48. KEHERIE (£F)
(continued)
As lessor ER/EHEA
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Within one year —F RN 16,855 3,543
Operating lease income represents rental receivable REHEWAEAEERHEERLTE
by the Group for its leasing of retail shop, offices B CMAEREEMMERZHES -
and car park.
CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 49. EREIE
2019 2018
—E—-hEF —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Capital expenditure contracted HELEZEEEVMHEFRE 2
for but not provided in BEETAEI RN GRE B m&k
the consolidated financial ERBE 2 ERRX
statements in connection with
the investment properties
under construction 127,376 176,786
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/ For the year ended 31 March 2019 B E —F—UFE=H =+ —H IL4FFE

50. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 50. EXERERE

- e

The Group manages its capital to ensure that
entities in the Group will be able to continue as
a going concern while maximising the return to
shareholders through the optimisation of the debt
and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy

remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of
net debts, which includes the amounts due to
related companies and directors, bank and other
borrowings and 9%/12% coupon bonds’ net of
cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable
to owners of the Company, comprising issued share
capital and reserves. The directors of the Company
monitor current and expected liquidity requirement
as well as the summary compliance report on loan
covenants regularly. The directors of the Company
review the capital structure on a continuous basis.
As part of this review, the directors of the Company
consider the cost of capital and the risks associated
with capital. Based on recommendations of the
directors of the Company, the Group will balance
its overall capital structure through the payment
of dividends and issuance of new shares as well as
raising of new bank/other borrowings or advances
from related parties and the repayment of existing
bank/other borrowings or repayment to related

companies.

AEBEEAEES UBRAEERN
CERBEBREAUKELETALE
[F] B 71 5 48 i BB A5 B i an 2 TR AR 1
ZFEMRRRFRERALD R NE
B BEREEEFHLRFIE

AEBZEAGEEREER F8E
EPEREENBEA AR RESRE.
RITREMEREI%/12%E BEFH
(MBRReFRLEFMEEE RAARE
BEAEGER (BREEBITRARE
#)) ARFEETHERRKELE
HRHELEBEURBETERZLHD
WoARREFHERTERNEHE - E
ARz o ARAREZEEA
RZEAREERBE 2R ER
ARREFZHEER A5EKE
BYMRE RBETHRMD U KRESEH
WIT/HMERAKREBES 22K
REERART /HMERKEEA
ERANIEN T EHEREERER-
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 # % —F—JUE=H =+ —H L4 &

51. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 51. €I A

51a. Categories of financial instruments 5la. @MILANHE
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
HK$000 HK$'000
FEx FET
Financial assets EREE
Financial asset at FVTPL I AFEFABGZZEREE 15,880 =
Financial assets at BREBHEKXNAVEREZEMEE
amortised cost 784,495 -
Loans and receivables B K EWERIR
(including cash (BRERe;REEEEE)
and cash equivalents) - 1,003,202
AFS investment A HERE - 1,239
800,375 1,004,441
Financial liabilities EHEaE
Amortised cost B 58 B AR 2,763,065 2,942,598
Financial guarantee BEERE L
contracts 4,409 3,180
2,767,474 2,945,778

° [ —
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51. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 51. @ T H (&)
(continued)

- e

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments
include trade receivables, loan receivables,
other receivables and deposits, payment for
a life insurance policy, factoring receivables,
amounts due from/to former subsidiaries,
amounts due to related companies, amounts
due to directors, pledged bank deposits,
restricted deposits, bank balances and cash,
trade payables, construction cost accruals,
other payables and accruals, loans from
staff, deposit received from tenants and
customers, bank and other borrowings,
3.0% convertible bonds, 9.0%/12.0%
coupon bonds, obligation arising from a put
option to a non-controlling shareholder and
financial guarantee contracts. Details of the
financial instruments are disclosed in the
respective notes. The risks associated with
these financial instruments include market
risk (currency risk, interest rate risk and
other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.
The policies on how to mitigate these risks
are set out below. Management manages
and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a

timely and effective manner.

AR E R B R RBR

AEEZEESHTABIEE
WE ZRIE  BIKRE K - HAbfE
WERBEEkZ:S ASRBRE
2 EREERERE
%%/%HWW%QE$E~
ENBEARKE BNES
RIE  EERRITER R
FR-RITEFRES ENE
SR B EERAN  HAib
ENERERESFER BEIE
FoRELPREFWR RS
HRITREME K 3.0% 0] AR
5 9.0%/12.0%ZEEH
M) FF 122 AR A% 51 4% 1 3R O B 4 BT
EEZERERMEEREN
ZESBMIAFBRSWTE
?oﬁ%%%@lﬂﬁ%Z@

BiEmERR (% ERE.
ﬂTH e R EMERRR) - F
Rk RTEE SRR TK
o EKZE R 2 BUR
@F”E&?hmiﬂﬁlx
BREEAEBIMREGES 2B
M °
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)
&
]

51. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 51. @I & (&)
(continued)
51b. Financial risk management objectives and S51b. MBEREREBFEREEEK
policies (continued) (%)
Market risk 7% 12
Currency risk Bm g
Several subsidiaries of the Company have KA RHTH B R RA AINE
foreign currency sales, which expose the AEZHEE S ALEBE®EERIN
Group to foreign currency risk. In addition, BB o AN BRE R EE E
certain trade receivables, bank balances and ZhEEEBIN ETRERKE S
trade payables are denominated in foreign RIE - RTEERENESE
currencies other than the functional currency H LASNE B -
of the respective group entities.
The Group currently does not have a 7N £ B 3R B O AR HN S OR IR
foreign currency hedging policy. However, KA EREGERINER
management monitors foreign exchange p T EREFEZERHFEX
exposure and will consider hedging HNES [ B
significant foreign currency exposure should
the need arise.
The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign NN EC AN EBEEREE
currency denominated monetary assets and REBAENRKRERBH KRR
monetary liabilities at the reporting date are BT
as follows:
Assets Liabilities
8E 8%
2019 2018 2019 2018
“B-hnE —T-\f ZB-NE C—T-)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FHET TR TR
usD E 82,606 123,461 823,913 452,122
RMB ARE 382 206 - -
MOP BT 7,753 12,608 - -
90,741 136,275 823,913 452,122

o
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51. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 51. @I A (&)
(continued)
51b. Financial risk management objectives and 51b. WMBEREREBFEREEER

- e

policies (continued)
Market risk (continued)

Currency risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

For certain group entities whose functional
currency is either HK$ or MOP, the change
in exchange rate of its functional currency
against MOP or USD or HK$ respectively
has not been considered in the sensitivity
analysis below as HK$ is pegged to USD and
MOP is always stabilised with unchanged
value to HK$. In the opinion of the directors
of the Company, the Group does not expect
any significant movements between the
exchange rate of relevant functional currency
against USD, MOP or HKS$.

In the opinion of the directors of the
Company, the exposure to foreign currency
risk in relation to RMB is minimal taking into
account the insignificant carrying amounts of
the Group’s assets denominated in RMB at
the end of the reporting period. Accordingly,
no sensitivity analysis on foreign currency

risk is presented.

(%)

TS E R (&)

Bk (&)

HREE DT

LA T B TTSORFI T BT BE
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R ASEERRABNEREE
MY XTI RBFITHETZME
MEXTEREMENEY-

B RAEERBREMRAR
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51.

For the year ended 31 March 2019 B % —F —UFE=H =+ — H IL4FFEE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

51b.

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)
Market risk (continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk in relation to the impact of interest
rate changes on variable-rate bank and other
borrowings, variable-rate bank overdraft,
pledged bank deposits and bank balances.

The Group is also exposed to fair value
interest rate risk in relation to the impact of
interest rate changes on obligations under
finance leases, factoring receivables, fixed-
rate loan receivables, fixed-rate bank and
other borrowings, fixed-rate loans from staff,
fixed-rate finance lease receivables, fixed-
rate restricted deposit, obligation arising
from a put option to a non-controlling
shareholder, 9.0%/12.0% coupon bonds and

3.0% convertible bonds.

The Group’s exposure to interest rates on
financial liabilities is detailed in the liquidity
risk management section in this note. The
Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of the
HIBOR, LIBOR and PBOC Rate arising from
the Group’s HK$ and RMB denominated

borrowings.

The Group currently does not have interest
rate hedging policy. However, management
monitors interest rate exposure and will
consider hedging significant interest rate

exposure should the need arise.

51.

E®TITHE (#&)
51b. FHEEREIEBZNBEXR

(4)

AR (&)

A 5 [ 5 ) R 2 By 9T B GR 1T
REMER TRBTEY B
HERBRITERRBITEFNY
EMERRSREREmRM -

REENHFEEHHPER
EEE - BUEERERIE T
BEEWER TLRITREAM
ER TEBEIER TEEK
MERERE TEXRHIF
B M IEIEAR AR R AR M RR A HA
BEEZEYE-9.0%/12.0%ZE
BEHFK30% A BRESHNF
EMEBEAFEMNERRR-

AEEMHEENE B A BN X
REFEHIN AR TR E
TERERE - AEBEMNRA
EREMNEEREEETER
AEBANBTRARKFE
MERELENFTBRITRAER
B fmBERITRERE Rk E
ARRITH R ZE
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/ For the year ended 31 March 2019 B E —F—UFE=H =+ —H IL4FFE AL |

51. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 51. €M IR (#&) N

(continued)
51b. Financial risk management objectives and 51b. WMBEREREBFEREEER
policies (continued) (%)
Market risk (continued) misEE (&)
Interest rate risk (continued) FIE & ()
For the variable-rate bank balances at RRZZB-NER=-ZZF-NEF
31 March 2019 and 2018, the directors —A=+T—BZ2ERERTER
consider the Group's exposure to future cash il = - A5 &5 R A &)
flow interest rate risk is minimal taking into RE) EFRRAERZRK
account the minimal fluctuation on market ReREMNERBMTEE -
interest rate. Accordingly, no sensitivity WO A 2 515 B A R R 2 B
analysis on interest rate risk is presented. RRE DA o
Total interest revenue/income from financial RBEKAFTECEMEELZ
assets that are measured at amortised cost is MBUWA S WABELNT
as follows:
Year ended
31 March
2019
BZE
—E-NF
=g=+-8
IHFE
HK$'000
FERx
Interest revenue A B U A
Financial assets at amortised cost REBHEKAS Rz eRMEE 19,002
Other income Hab A
Financial assets at amortised cost REBHEKAI Rz eRMEE 11,659
Total interest income FEWA B 30,661
- °
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51.

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # % —F—JUE=H =+ —H L4 & I"-L

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

51b. Financial risk management objectives and

51. SR TA (&)

51b. BIBREKREE BZRKXK

policies (continued) (%)
Market risk (continued) SRR (&)
Interest rate risk (continued) FIE Rz ()
Year ended
31 March
2018
HZE
—T-N\F
=A=+—H
IEFE
HK$'000
FH T
Interest revenue FEWA
Loans and receivables (including bank BER R ERRE
balances and cash) (BREBTEFRRE) 16,538
Other income Hab g A
Loans and receivables (including bank B ERERTE
balances and cash) (BEFETEFEERS) 10,574
Total interest income FEW A BEE 27,112

o
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/ For the year ended 31 March 2019 #ZE—F —UFE=H =+ —HIL4FE i \ -i.

51. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 51. €@ T H (#&)
(continued)
51b. Financial risk management objectives and 51b. WMBEREREBFEREEER
policies (continued) (%)
Market risk (continued) misEE (&)
Interest rate risk (continued) FIE & ()

- e

Interest expense on financial liabilities not

measured at fair value through profit or loss:

WA FEFABRTELZ
TREEZMEMAX:

Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2019 2018
B=E BHE
ZE-NEF —E-)N\F
=ZA=+—B =A=+—H
LEE IEFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER TFHET
Financial liabilities at RIS R
amortised cost 199,427 167,511
Sensitivity analysis BB 5T

The sensitivity analyses below were
determined based on the exposure to
interest rates for the variable-rate bank
and other borrowings, variable-rate bank
overdraft and pledged bank deposits at the
end of the reporting period. The analysis was
prepared assuming the amount of liability
and asset outstanding at the end of the
reporting period was outstanding for the
whole year. A 25 basis points (2018: 25 basis
points) increase or decrease represented
management’s assessment of the reasonably

possible change in interest rates.

T BREE DT IRTE R RS
HRFERITREMER ¥
BRTEX R ERBITER
Z MR R o % DT R R
EHRRZHAREERABREE
SEREEFE WA EE M
Rl 25EEH (ZF— N\F:
25EER) EARTHRAKRE
BEMNFEESEBRATMEZ
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51.

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # % —F—JUE=H =+ —H L4 &

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

51b.

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)
Market risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

If interest rates had been 25 basis points
(2018: 25 basis points) higher/lower and
all other variables were held constant,
the Group’s profit for the year ended 31
March 2019 would decrease/increase by
HK$777,000 (2018: loss for the year would
increase/decrease by HK$686,000).

In the opinion of the directors of the
Company, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent interest
rate risk as the end of the reporting period
exposure does not reflect the exposure
during the year.

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk
through its investments in unlisted equity
instruments measured at FVTPL (2018:
available-for-sale investments). The Group
currently does not have the risk hedging
policy. However, management monitors the
risk exposure and will consider hedging
significant price risk exposure should the

need arise.

51.

E®TITHE (#&)
51b. FHEEREIEBZNBEXR

(#)

mE e (&)
HEE W ()

e B & E AT B25E & &
(ZZT—/)\F : 25 E20) M AT
EEMEHEFTE KAEEH
HE-_ZT—NWF=ZA=+—
BItFEzwMeRm i
M777,0008 Tt (=ZF— N
FAFEBBEGEMN RS
686,000/ 7T) °

ARRIEFRA UBERED
ot B A 2 F & @ g 3 T AR
ZME-AARBERREEL
R\ B 3 S S BR 4 R 2 L B o

A B 157 R
REBERERKRENRDFETA
BREFAEZHFLMERZTAR
(ZE-NF AHEERE)
A S B A (B 1S R o AR 5 E
B AT 30 4 [ B A B o AT
EEEERERIENERE
BERE T EAEBRER -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # % ~F—JUF=H =+ —H IL4F

51. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(continued)

51b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)
Other price risk (continued)
Sensitivity analysis
In the opinion of the directors of the
Company, the exposure to equity price risk
in relation to unlisted equity instruments
measured at FVTPL is minimal taking into
account their carrying amounts at the end
of the reporting period. Accordingly, no
sensitivity analysis on other price risk is

presented.

51.

ERTITH (#)
51b. BIBREKREE B Z KKK

(%)

H b EEE R ()
ARABEZTRR K5 kAR
NFEFABSFEZIFLT
BETARBRSHRZER
B BRARRFE ARG
BZFETRETEABZIK
AEERE M- Bt I &
2 HMERRR ZHERED
A o
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51.

For the year ended 31 March 2019 B % —F —UFE=H =+ — H IL4FFEE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

51b.

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment

As at 31 March 2019, the Group's
maximum exposure to credit risk which
will cause a financial loss to the Group
due to failure to discharge an obligation
by the counterparties is arising from the
carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position and the
amount of contingent liabilities in relation
to financial guarantees provided by the
Group as disclosed in note 46. The Group
does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements to cover its credit risks
associated with its financial assets, except
that the credit risks associated with finance
lease receivables, factoring receivables and
financial guarantee contracts is mitigated
because they are secured over the plant
and equipment leased, trade receivables of
counterparties and upfront deposit received

in financial guarantee contracts.

51.

b £ A5 WA I

E®TITHE (#&)
51b. FHEEREIEBZNBEXR

(#&)

15 B /7 B2 K Jdl (B 5T 1
RZZE—NF=R=+—8"
AEBRER G HRERBITE
EMEZMBRIzESREE
Bk TR B iRE BRI R
FEFERERREMEE
BRI E & M sT46 T B A B A
SEFMREEOREER KA
BESE - AEETEFEE
o] #5980 dm 5 EL i 38 15 18 1 DA
EHHSBEERBZIEER
R MR EKF A HERIE
JIE Uk 7 B AR IR FNE B B R R
ERNEBZEERRTIA R
H FREARKEDUEHEZ
BEREE RHIHFZEK
BHRBERMEBRREANZE
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51. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 51. €M IR (#&) N

(continued)
51b. Financial risk management objectives and 51b. WMBEREREBFEREEER

policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

(continued)

Trade receivables arising from contracts with
customers

In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group has delegated a
team responsible for determination of credit
limits and credit approvals. Other monitoring
procedures are in place to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. In addition, the Group performs
impairment assessment under ECL model

upon application of HKFRS 9 (2018: incurred

(%)
=B R ERF G (&)

EFPERELZBENEZHKE

AREEREEERR A&E
EEECZKEBAEETER
ERBELEERM -HEMmEE
¥6 b6 Ty DA 37 DA T 4R ERER R
U O B B A IE - S AN
SERERBEMBHRELEL
FORKREFHE S EBRIAR
BREEEETHRNEEBE
B (- N\F EELBE

B=X) BT RRETE Rt A
based on provision matrix. In this regard, the H ARAEERRAEEN
directors of the Company consider that the FEERBEERD -

loss model) on trade balances individually or

Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

———o L
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51.

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # % ~F—JUF=H =+ —H IL4FEZ

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

51b.

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

(continued)

Other receivables and deposits/loan
receivables/financial lease receivables/
factoring receivables/amounts due from
former subsidiaries/bank balances/pledged
bank deposits/financial guarantee contracts
In order to minimise the credit risks of the
loan receivable, only referral customers and
short term borrowing requests are accepted.
Besides, the credit department is responsible
for formulating appropriate credit policies.
It also conducts background and credit
searches and carries out credit assessment
and submits proposal to executive directors
of the Company for further consideration.
Then the executive directors of the Company
take reference of this information and
assess the financial position of each referral
customer to consider if the loan is approved.
Subsequently, the credit department
performs subsequent loan review regularly
to assess if any outstanding loan requires
attention to its collectability. In this regard,
the directors of the Company consider
that the Group’s credit risk is significantly
reduced.

51.

ERIE (&)

B ¥ LB B 38 B AR R
(%)
=B R ERF G (&)

HERERR 2T JENE
K IEW A T B IR e
B R (REE IR, JE Y BT BT 86 2
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TR BEEREH
REERKERZEERR:
AEEERXEN TP LAY
fERFBER - WO EERPIEE
HEBENEERE  HET
BERMEEREUARNTEE
AHERAARFRITESREM
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/ For the year ended 31 March 2019 # % ~F—JUFE=H =+ —H IL4FFEZ i \ -i.

51. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 51. €®I A (&)
(continued)
51b. Financial risk management objectives and 51b. HIBEAREREBFEREE

- e

policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

Other receivables and deposits/loan
receivables/financial lease receivables/
factoring receivables/amounts due from
former subsidiaries/bank balances/pledged
bank deposits/financial guarantee contracts
(continued)

In relation to the Group's provision of
guarantees to secure obligations of
customers for repayment of their bank
borrowings, if there is a default in
repayment by these customers, the Group
is responsible for repaying the outstanding
bank borrowings together with any accrued
interests and penalties owed by the
customers to banks. Such guarantees will be
released by banks upon the repayment of
the underlying loans. In order to minimise
the credit risks of these loans, only referral
customers are accepted and short term
guarantees are granted. Besides, the credit
department conduct background and credit
searches and submit to executive directors
of the Company for further consideration.
Then the executive directors of the Company
take reference of this information and
assess the financial position of each referral
customer before the guarantee is granted.
Upfront deposit will also be received at the
start of the financial guarantee contracts.
In addition, the credit department performs
site visit and loan review regularly to
ensure follow up action is taken to recover
overdue debts, if any. Further, certain
portion of these loans had been settled by
the customers to banks subsequently. In
this regard, the directors of the Company
consider that the Group's credit risk on such

guarantees is significantly reduced.

(%)
=B R EF L (&)

HitERRERZE,TERE
KIER AT E IR TEK
B R (REE IR, JE Y BT T 8B 22
AIRRIE RiTHE TR E B R
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EHRBERRARITHEE B
REZFEFNEERR &
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HYELR - AN EEEFIETE
EREEFRERAARNRBART
EFERENHE—F2E-R
BRARBNTEZZ2EZEHR
RERBERAFGEEREN
BEP W MM - AN 2 5
RN EEERA & 718 WEL-
N EERFEHETEN
ZRERER®A  EARREKRR
ETBREBBRER (WF) -
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51.

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # % —F—JUE=H =+ —H L4 &

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

51b.

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

(continued)

Other receivables and deposits/loan
receivables/financial lease receivables/
factoring receivables/amounts due from
former subsidiaries/bank balances/pledged
bank deposits/financial guarantee contracts
(continued)

For finance lease receivables and factoring
receivables, they are secured by the plant
and equipment leased and the trade
receivables of the counterparties. Besides,
the Group monitors financial position of
debtors of other receivables and amounts
due from former subsidiaries closely and
follow-up action will be taken to recover
overdue debts. In this regard, the directors of
the Company consider the Group's credit risk
is significantly reduced.

The credit risks on bank balances and
pledged bank deposits are limited because
such amounts are placed with banks with

high credit ratings.

51.

ERIE (&)

B ¥ LB B 38 B AR R
(%)
=B R ERF G (&)

HERERR 2T JENE
K IEW A T B IR e
B R (REE IR, JE Y BT BT 86 2
AIRRIERiThE 7 E IR
TN BEEREH (E)

AEKEEREREREYRRE
XEREFREME BKETNUE
MEZBEREBRZXZEF
Z W E ZIRIAEEA - Lo -
REE T B R E b W ARIA
Ko W B Y 8 1 B BR IR & B WK
BRIA 2 R0 - 3 A BR B R
#ETTE) W3 B B A o B UL T
FARREFERARAEEN
EERREREREE-

$R1TRETF R B E R BITERD
EEARER RERABK
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51. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 51. €M IR (#&) N

(continued)
51b. Financial risk management objectives and 51b. WMBEREREBFEREEER

- e

policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

(continued)

Other receivables and deposits/loan
receivables/financial lease receivables/
factoring receivables/amounts due from
former subsidiaries/bank balances/pledged
bank deposits/financial guarantee contracts
(continued)

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by
geographical location is in Hong Kong and
Macau, which accounts for 98.4% (2018:
93.9%) of the trade receivables and 60%
(2018: 67%) of the loan receivables.

Other than the concentration of credit
risk on bank balances and pledged bank
deposits which are placed with several banks
of high credit ratings, the Group does not
have any other significant concentration of
credit risk except for the loan receivables.
As at 31 March 2019, 60% (2018:51%)
of the loan receivables are due from two
(2018: two) individual borrowers. The Group
has assigned a team to closely follow up
the debts due regularly. Accordingly, the
directors of the Company consider the risk

has been properly addressed.

(%)
=B R ERF G (&)

HERERR 2T JENE
K IEW A T B IR e
B R (REE IR, JE Y BT BT 86 2
AIFRIERiThE T E R
TN BEEREH (E)

AEBZEPEERBRIZM
BUEBE S DURE B KRR
Pl BRAME D BME ERE 5
BRIB298.4% (ZZE— N5
93.9% ) R EWE K 260%
(ZE—NF:67%)

BRERRERESEETR R
TZRITEGFREERRITE
RZEFREERBRIIN AEE
WHEEARNAMEREREE
E ke (EBRE XK R
T-NF=ZA=Z+—H" 60%
—E—N\F:51%)EBREXK
TEMRE(ZZE—NFE: M
Z)ERERAZER - AEE
B 15K B BX E HA 25 1) BR 3 21| 2R
BE-BHt ARREZEERA"
[RbREZ BB IE o
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 # % —F—JUE=H =+ —H L4 &

51. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

51b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

The Group’s internal credit risk grading
assessment comprises the following

categories:

Internal

51. €@ I8 (&) -

51b. A&

(%)

pEE B R RBER

=B R ERF G (&)

AEBRFEER

PR Fl:l: i& ﬂ$ {E

BREATER :

Other financial assets/

credit rating ~ Description Trade receivables other items
ABEEFR HA EWE SRR HttemEE HiER
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default Lifetime ECL 12-month ECL
and does not have any past-due amounts - not credit-impaired
EER REZUFERBENARRIEEMAE L2HRHCESR REARSEEER
(E:S —-ALREERE
Watch list Debtor frequently repays after due dates but  Lifetime ECL 12-month ECL
usually settle after due date - not credit-impaired
B EBARERIARERERERIHE 2HEHEEER REARSEEER
B - ALREERE
Doubtful There have been significant increases in Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
credit risk since initial recognition through - not credit-impaired - not credit-impaired
information developed internally or
external resources
A&t %LW%%’E%%%%%E’%EW%% PHRBCEEBR PHRBEERR
BAREEREEBEEM - ALREERE - AEREERE
Loss There is evidence indicating the asset is Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
credit-impaired - credit-impaired - credit-impaired
E#B BRBRHLZEECHREERE PHRBCEEBR PHRBEERR
—HREEHE — R EERE
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor ~ Amount is written off Amount is written off
is in severe financial difficulty and the
Group has no realistic prospect of
recovery
A BEERHNEHEABABRENBREZEEAE EHHSE EMHe R
[ 3 42 M [ SR 7R 0 BB T
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 # % ~F—JUF=H =+ —H IL4F

51. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 51. @ T H (&) o
(continued)
51b. Financial risk management objectives and 51b. WMBEREREBFEREEER
policies (continued) (%)
Credit risk and impairment assessment 1EEERE R ES (&)
(continued)
The tables below detail the credit risk TRFMAEEBETEBE
exposures of the Group's financial assets, EFEBETHzemEE BK
trade receivables-operating leases, finance ESHRE—KEHE  ERR
lease receivables and financial guarantee & %ﬁ‘%—f?ﬁ(lﬁ KEEREREDZ
contracts, which are subject to ECL FEE
assessment:
Gross
Internal 12-month carrying
External credit or amounts at
Notes credit rating  rating lifetime ECL 31 March 2019
RZB-h%F
RABEE  128A52H ZA=t-Hz
2019 —Z-NEF Kz HNBEETR AR BHEEER BEREE
HK$'000
FAT
Financial assets at REBHERASIE2EREE
amortised cost
Loan receivables BRI E R 26 N/A Low risk! 12-month ECL
TEA ivEN -4 12f8 A B
FEER 87,067
Amounts due from former FEM AT B A R IE 2 N/A Loss' Credit-impaired
subsidiaries NEfA B HEEERE 23,105
Factoring receivables (A EEL SRS 27 N/A Low risk' ~ 12-month ECL
NER KRR 128 ATEH
=EBR 106,520
Pledged bank deposits BERRTER 30 AAA or AA+  N/A 12-month ECL
AAASAAHR  TNEA 12f8 ATEH
FEBR 470,519
Bank balances RITHET 31 AAA or AA+  N/A 12-month ECL
AAASAAHR  NER 128 A B4
=EER 82,733

———o L
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51.

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # % —F—JUE=H =+ —H L4 & I"-L

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

51. @I A (#&)

51b. Financial risk management objectives and 51b. HM#EERE R B RRBR
policies (continued) (#&)
Credit risk and impairment assessment 1EEERE R ES (&)
(continued)
Gross
Internal 12-month carrying
External credit or amounts at
Notes credit rating  rating lifetime ECL 31 March 2019
RZZ-N%F
RHEE  12M@AR2H ZA=t-Bz2
2019 “Z-NF Vi3 HNBEEFR TR BHEEBSR BEEE
HK$'000
T
Other receivables and deposits ~ E it fE U R I8 [ i2 & 28 N/A Low risk'  12-month ECL
TR igey 1218 A 785
EEER 11,728
Loss' Credit-impaired
EE EREERE 1,400
13,128
Trade receivables EKE 5 RE 28 N/A Note? Lifetime ECL
- goods and services -Bm kR TER B 22 (provision
matrix)
2HEAEEER
(BEmE) 6,818
Low risk’ Lifetime ECL
ERR PHEAEERR 18,705
Loss' Credit-impaired
BE HREERE 2,480
28,003

Annual Report 2019 % | CHINLINK INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED % [ 1 4 [ B £ )bt 47 Bt 24 )

|
&
.

|

o

329



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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[ —y

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #% —~F—JUE = =+ —H L4 &

51. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 51. @I A (&)
(continued)
51b. Financial risk management objectives and 51b. HM#EERE R B RRBR
policies (continued) (%)
Credit risk and impairment assessment 1EEERE R ES (&)
(continued)
Gross
Internal 12-month carrying
External credit or amounts at
Notes credit rating  rating lifetime ECL 31 March 2019
RZZ-NE
RBEE  1NERR2E =ZR=t-Hz
2019 —Z-NF Mz HBEEFR TR BHEEER BEEE
HK$'000
FHET
Other items HitER
Trade receivables EKE 5 RE 28 N/A Note? Lifetime ECL
- operating lease —REHE TEA Pt 2 (provision
matrix)
2HEHEEFR
(BEER) 112
Financial guarantee contracts ~ BEERAH 46 N/A Low risk®  12-month ECL
TEA BERR 128 A 18 5
FEER 471,048
Finance lease receivables EHmERERR 24 N/A Low risk'2  Lifetime ECL
TEm ERR2  2HEREEER 323,883
. o
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51.

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # % ~F—JUF=H =+ —H IL4FEZ

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

51b.

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

(continued)

Notes:

For the purposes of internal credit risk
management, the Group uses internal
credit rating information to assess whether
credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition.

For trade receivables — goods and services,
trade receivables — operating lease and
finance lease receivables, the Group has
applied the simplified approach in HKFRS
9 to measure the loss allowance at lifetime
ECL. Except for debtors with significant
outstanding balances or credit-impaired,
the Group determines the expected credit
losses on these items by using a provision
matrix, grouped by aging.

For financial guarantee contracts,
the gross carrying amount represents
the maximum amount the Group has
guaranteed under the respective contracts.

51.

ERIE (&)

51b.

AR E R B R RBUR

(%)

=B R ERF G (&)

Byt

HRABEERREREMNS
AEBERAABEEFRE
HEHE(EERR B VTR
AR ZBEREEE M-

MENE ZRE - Em kR
B EEESERAE-KEHE
ERENBEMREREAM
5 AREEREEVBER
SRR FE ML T AR
E2HRBEREBEAEEE
BE-RAESAKRBEER
H B EEREZ ERREA
Sh REBEBRABEE
M EERREDANZE
BREZHEMEREER-

AREERAOME  #ER
EEEAEERZERAL
BEERzESEHE-
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| 5 A A R R HEZ

- & 1
L s L

/ For the year ended 31 March 2019 # % ~F—JUFE=H =+ —H IL4FFEZ i \ -i.

51. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 51. @I A (&)
(continued)
51b. Financial risk management objectives and 51b. WMBEREREBFEREEER

- e

policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

(continued)

As part of the Group's credit risk
management, the Group uses debtors’ aging
to assess the impairment for its customers
in relation to its trade customers because
these customers consist of a large number
of small customers with common risk
characteristics that are representative of the
customers’ abilities to pay all amounts due
in accordance with the contractual terms.
The following table provides information
about the exposure to credit risk for trade
receivables — goods and services and trade
receivables — operating lease which are
assessed based on provision matrix as at
31 March 2019 within lifetime ECL (not
credit impaired). Debtors with significant
outstanding balances or credit impaired with
gross carrying amounts of HK$21,185,000 as

at 31 March 2019 were assessed individually.

(%)
=B R ERF G (&)

EAREEEERREE 2 —
By - 2N 5 B DA pE 4 AR TE BR B
REESEFIGERTRP 2R
B HTTHRZETEPEER
HRE BRBREFEEAR /N
EP - MZzERRBARAREPIR
BE HIER AT A B B8
ZEEN - TREHBEEAR_-Z
—NFE=ZA=1+—BIREEE
EEFEE2HEMREEBENRN
(EHREERE) CEWE
S HRIE— 5 o &R DA I FE Uk
B5ERBA-RKEHEZEFEER
G2 ER - R-_T—HhhE=A
—t+—HAEAREELETHL
HREEREZEREEE
M 821,185,000 JT Jh 8 75 #
1TREAl -
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51.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(continued)
51b. Financial risk management objectives and S51b. MBEREREBFEREEEK
policies (continued) (%)
Credit risk and impairment assessment 1EEERE R ES (&)
(continued)
Trade receivables — goods and services EWREZRE-ERRER®
Gross Impairment
carrying Average loss
amount loss rate allowance
WIEE 18
BIREE TR =E BB
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHERT
Current (not past due) BDEf (K#mE) 6,818 0.01% =
Trade receivables — operating lease EREZRE-KEHE
Gross Impairment
carrying Average loss
amount loss rate allowance
WAE & 18
BIREE FHEBEE BE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FET
Current (not past due) BDEj (K#m ) 112 0.01% =

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # % —F—JUE=H =+ —H L4 &

51. €@ T A (#)
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/ For the year ended 31 March 2019 #ZE—F —UFE=H =+ —HIL4FE i \ -i.

51. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 51. @I A (&)
(continued)
51b. Financial risk management objectives and 51b. WMBEREREBFEREEER

- e

policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

(continued)

The estimated loss rates are estimated based
on historical observed default rates over
the expected life of the debtors and are
adjusted for forward-looking information
that is available without undue cost or
effort. The grouping is regularly reviewed by
management to ensure relevant information

about specific debtors is updated.

During the year ended 31 March 2019,
an impairment allowance of HK$192,000
was made on credit impaired debtors and
an impairment loss of HK$179,000 was

reversed.

The following table shows the movement
in lifetime ECL that has been recognised for
trade receivables — goods and services under
the simplified approach.

(%)
=B R ERF G (&)

Rt BEE I ERBEERER
BHEHAZELBRENL
REE WREHBLE T
B AL N AR IS Z AR
HEHELAR - EEESE
HE B o 07 S AR TE (B
BAZHEBERSUAESR-

HE-_Z—hhF=A=+—H
HFE - SREREEREBEZE
W 8% I8 E R B 5 #%192,000
7 7T R B Bl R 1B E5 $8179,000
BT e

TRETRREBEBEAERE
FHEBE-EmMREERZE
HEREEBERES-
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51.

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # % ~F—JUF=H =+ —H IL4FEZ

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

51. @I E (&)

(continued)
51b. Financial risk management objectives and 51b. WK EREREBERER
policies (continued) (#&)
Credit risk and impairment assessment EEREBEBEFG ()
(continued)
Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
(not credit- (credit- Total
impaired) impaired) amount
2HRH 2HRH
FEER FEE#R
(REB (R
FERHE) FEHE) Bm
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TERT TERT
As at 31 March 2018 R-B-NF
under HKAS 39 =Z=A=+-H
REEBEHER
£39% - 567 567
Adjustment upon REREHE
application of I REER
HKFRS 9 FIRIR 2 HE 1,900 - 1,900
As at 1 April 2018 R=ZZB-N\EWMA—-H
- As restated -RES| 1,900 567 2,467
Changes due to financial ~ EREA—A
instruments recognised BR EMIA
as at 1 April: 2%
— Transfer to credit-impaired —E&Z HR
EERE (1,721) 1,721 -
— Impairment losses -BRAREBRE
recognised - 192 192
— Impairment losses reversed — 2 % [l 5 & 55 18 (179) = (179)
As at 31 March 2019 RZZ—NE
=R=+—H - 2,480 2,480
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| B A BB R R W

-
L

f o e year ended 31 March 2019 # % _Z—JUFE = =+—H L4

51. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 51. €@ T H (#&)
(continued)
51b. Financial risk management objectives and 51b. WMBEREREBFEREEER
policies (continued) (%)
Credit risk and impairment assessment EEER R ET G (&)
(continued)
Changes in the loss allowance for trade BKRESERBEEREESD
receivables are mainly due to: FEHRWOTRA:
31/03/2019
Increase/(decrease) in
lifetime ECL

—E-h&E=A=+—H
ZHEHEEERE N GED)

Not credit- Credit-
impaired impaired
REE HER
FEERE EERE
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FET
Trade debtors with gross R=ZZ—HALF=A=+—H
carrying amount of EHRTHERERELREERE
HK$1,721,000 defaulted 2~ #RRME 1,721,000/ 7T 2
and transferred to credit- JEURERIA
impaired as at
31 March 2019 (1,721) 1,721
Trade debtors with gross B #R I HREEREZ
carrying amount of 4 BRI 1E192,00078 7T 2
HK$192,000 defaulted JE W AR 1R
and credit impaired - 192
Settlement in full of trade EHEERIRMEE179,000% T
debtors with gross 2 FEW BRI
carrying amount
of HK$179,000 (179) -

———o L
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 # % —F—JUE=H =+ —H L4 &

51. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 51.
(continued)

51b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

The following tables show reconciliation of
loss allowances that has been recognised
for other receivables and amounts due from

former subsidiaries:

Other receivables

E®TITHE (#&)
51b. BIBREKREE BZRKXK

(%)
=B R ERF G (&)

TR L H U R IR RE AR

ZEEREREKAMEQR
BRIB 8K

B A E W RR

Lifetime
ECL (credit-
impaired)
= HITEHA
EEEE
(HEREE
E)
HK$'000
T T
As at 31 March 2018 R=ZEB-NF=R=+—H
under HKAS 39 REE B S ERE3955 -
Adjustment upon application of RERBEMBEREERENRE 2
HKFRS 9 EEE: -
As at 1 April 2018 — As restated R-ZFE—/\FNA-—H-KEF7| -
Changes due to financial instruments E AP0 A — B #2
recognised as at 1 April: SRMITAEZ#
- Impairment loss recognised —EERREEER 1,400
As at 31 March 2019 R-ZE-NAF=A=+—H 1,400
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/' For the year ended 31 March 2019 # % _Z—JUFE = =+—H L4

e 51. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 51. €@ T H (#&) —
(continued)
51b. Financial risk management objectives and 51b. WMBEREREBFEREEER
policies (continued) (%)
Credit risk and impairment assessment 1EEERE R ES (&)
(continued)
Other receivables (continued) Ht e ERIE (&)
Change in the loss allowance for other HihfEWERIE v BEBEE D)
receivables is mainly due to: FEHRWOTRE:
31/3/2019
Increase in
lifetime ECL
(credit-
impaired)
—E-NF
=A=+—H
Z HiTE HA
EEEE
(B®RE
B E) 1
HK$'000
FH& T
One other debtor with a gross BERAEHREEREZ
carrying amount of HK$1,400,000 #2BRE {E1,400,000/8 7.2
defaulted and credit impaired F—EUERIA 1,400
- °
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 # % —F—JUE=H =+ —H L4 &

51. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 51. €M I A (#&) S

(continued)
51b. Financial risk management objectives and S51b. MBEREREBFEREEEK
policies (continued) (%)
Credit risk and impairment assessment 1EEERE R ES (&)
(continued)
Amounts due from former subsidiaries JEU BT B A 5] BRI
Lifetime
ECL (credit-
impaired)
2 #3785 &
EEEE
(HREE
VERED,
HK$'000
FH T
As at 31 March 2018 R-FB-NF=A=+-—H
under HKAS 39 RIBEEBSTTERE3N -
Adjustment upon application of RIERB B HREEREIR IR
HKFRS 9 ZBE -
As at 1 April 2018 - As restated R=-FT—N\FHA—-—H-KEZ -
Changes due to financial instruments AN A —BER &M T A2 &
recognised as at 1 April:
— Impairment loss recognised —EERREESE 23,105
As at 31 March 2019 R-—ZFE—hFE=A=+—H 23,105

° *~—————————
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #% —~F—JUE = =+ —H L4 &

" 51. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 51. SRMTA (&)

(continued)
51b. Financial risk management objectives and 51b. WMBEREREBFEREEER
policies (continued) (%)
Credit risk and impairment assessment 1EEERE R ES (&)
(continued)
Amounts due from former subsidiaries JEWFTNTE - Al AR E (48)
(continued)
Change in the loss allowance for amounts FE U A BT BB A B AR 18 2 B 18 B
due to former subsidiaries is mainly due to: HEHETEHROTRA :
31/3/2019
Increase in
lifetime ECL
(credit-
impaired)
—E—NF
=A=+—H
= HITEHA
EEEE
(HEREE
VERIEDRDI
HK$'000
T T
Debtors with gross carrying BEHEAREREEREBEZ
amount of HK$23,105,000 4R ER M {H23,105,0008 7T 2
defaulted and credit impaired FE U BR 18 23,105
- °
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51.

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # % ~F—JUF=H =+ —H IL4FEZ

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

51b.

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

(continued)

Loans receivables, factoring receivables,
pledged bank deposits, bank balances and
financial guarantee contracts

The Group has assessed the financial
position of the debtors of loans receivables
and factoring receivables at the end of the
reporting period using internal credit rating
and concluded that there has been no
significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition. The Group also considered
the credit risk on pledged bank deposits
and bank balances is limited since they are
placed with banks with high credit ratings.
Accordingly, no loss allowance is made
for loan receivables, factoring receivables,

pledged bank deposits and bank balances.

51.

ERIE (&)

B ¥ LB B 38 B AR R
(%)
=B R ERF G (&)

FEWRE L  JEW B R IRIEHIE
BEARITFEA  RITAFRE
BEEREH

RBEHR AEEERAR
MEEFRE RUKE R EK
BEREFRAFRKIREZ M
BRAETHE RAEER
i B 1) 2 HE 7R LA R S 8 7 2 4
e REETFRR  SEMRT
FRERTEFZEERRE
R -FEEARRENEFEENRAR
EEFMRZIRIT - Hitt - BEEFL
R E T - B R RIEFRIA
EEFRTERRRITEFIE
B R o
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 # % ~F—JUF=H =+ —H IL4F

¢ 51. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 51. @I H (&) —

(continued)

51b. Financial risk management objectives and 51b. WMBEREREBFEREEER
policies (continued) (%)
Credit risk and impairment assessment 1EEERE R ES (&)
(continued)
Loans receivables, factoring receivables, JEWE L - FE B S (RIEFIH
pledged bank deposits, bank balances and BRI T IRITA 7R
financial guarantee contracts (continued) EERE# (&)
For financial guarantee contracts, the Group ARMEEREGOMS &
has performed impairment assessment at the B RS AR E TR E T
end of the reporting period and concluded REEERBREVLSHERRBRE
that there has been no significant increase FERE ) DA SR I /8 BB 2& 38 4N o
in credit risk since initial recognition of the gb - ANE B AT E B E R
financial guarantee contracts. Accordingly, EREEBETRBEZEMN2
the loss allowance for financial guarantee BAEREEBRE 2Bt
contracts issued by the Group is measured EMBERERARIAEE
at an amount equal to 12m ECL and no loss R o

allowance was recognised in the profit or

loss.

—o .
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51.

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # % —F—JUE=H =+ —H L4 &

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

51b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the
Group monitors and maintains a level of
cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate
by management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of
fluctuations in cash flows. The management
monitors the utilisation of bank and other

borrowings.

The Group relied on bank and other
borrowings as a significant source of
liquidity. The Group monitored and reviewed
periodically the conditions of loan covenants
of the existing banking facilities and tried all
efforts to comply with the loan covenants.
In case of any breach of the loan covenants
noted, the Group would communicate with
the respective bank to discuss the possibility
of revising the relevant loan covenants
and arranging for waiver of immediate

repayment.

51.

E®TITHE (#&)
51b. FHEEREIEBZNBEXR

(%)

REEDE R
REBRBESER S E &
SEERERARRASRRESF
BEEAREEEBRASRASAN
SEZREXBRHES KR
ERESRERBTEZKF-
EEEERRTMEMERZ
ERER-

AEBABRITEEMERS
IERPETHKR-AKEE
ZNEHMENRERTREDN
ERZHONARREAEZTNE
SERZHN - EMBFREME
REFRZOWBERT AEE
MG ARBRTIWER AR
BREH R 2 BE# % A& 5K
ZAIRENE °
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/ For the year ended 31 March 2019 B E —F—UFE=H =+ —H IL4FFE

51. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 51. @I A (&)

(continued)

51b. Financial risk management objectives and 51b. WMBEREREBFEREEER
policies (continued) (%)
Liquidity risk (continued) B ERERE (&)
The directors of the Company have RABERLT R TIEER
performed an assessment of the Group's HAEBRRRBHESRE S
future liquidity and cash flows, taking into mE TR

account the following matters:

0) the expected availability of (i)
credit facilities of approximately
HK$575,000,000 pursuant to a
term sheet entered into by the
Company, Mr. Li and a financial
institution subsequent to the end
of the reporting period which is
not legally binding on the parties
thereto. The relevant loan facility is
currently undergoing the internal
approval procedures of the financial
institution which, based on the best
estimation of the directors of the
Company, the approval for the loan
agreement will be obtained from the
financial institution in the near future.
Part of the credit facilities will be
utilised to repay the defaulted loan as

mentioned above;

BEARA-ZEER
— [ & B R i Y
NERMFTI L HEFTHNA
W SRR LR I 25K
EEHAESZEER
& #9575,000,0007 7T °
HEAERRE B ATET
DR E RN E R
Fr iZBARARESH
sEMF AR FHER
TAKKRKZ S BEE
B 15 B 5K 19 3 B0 BE O o
HoEEmEBRRE
BLABRER:
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51.

For the year ended 31 March 2019 B % —F —UFE=H =+ — H IL4FFEE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

51b.

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

the expected extension of HK$100,000,000
9.0% coupon bonds due on 25 July 2019
for a period of one year and the issuance of
a new 9.0% coupon bonds of maximum
amount of HK$300,000,000 in August
2019 pursuant to a term sheet entered into
by the Company, Mr. Li (as guarantor) and a
placing agent subsequent to the end of the
reporting period which is not legally binding

on the parties thereto;

the written consent obtained from a
lender for not demanding immediate
repayment of the outstanding loan of
HK$329,628,000; and

Mr. Li has provided facilities of
HK$450,000,000 to the Group to
enable the Group to meet its financial
obligations as and when they fall
due for the foreseeable future, and
agreed not to demand any of the
amounts due to him by the Group
in the next twelve months from the
date of approval for issue of these
consolidated financial statements
subsequent to the end of the

reporting period.

51.

b £ A5 WA I

E®TITHE (#&)
51b. FHEEREIEBZNBEXR

(%)

REBEDEE ()

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

BIEARRNT - FhAE (1F
RERANR—BEE
RIEBRI|E RS TET
VA SN b P
RN ZIERE R
- NFtA=Z+HH
Z| 8§ 2100,000,0007%
JL9.0% R B & % 18 H
EH—FERZZT—AN
FENRETEERSR
300,000,000/ Jt Z %1
9.0%ZEEESH

BE—REFRENEKR
VEAEEMAEEER
329,628,000/ 7T 2 [A

BE R

THREBMAEEIRE
#h & % 1£450,000,000
BT A EAREB R A
8RR BT H B BBt
BEMA YRAEBRS
HA R 18 B0 B 2 F 4R
BB E 2 BRI
TZEAARTEERAK
SEEEENEZEM

KA
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BB e =

/ For the year ended 31 March 2019 # % ~F—JUFE=H =+ —H IL4FFEZ i \ -i.

51. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 51. @ T H (&)
(continued)

- e

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)

the directors of the Company consider
that the Group will have sufficient working
capital to finance its operations and to meet
its financial obligations as and when they fall
due for the foreseeable future. On this basis,
the consolidated financial statements have

been prepared on a going concern basis.

The following table details the Group's
remaining contractual maturity for its
financial liabilities. The table has been drawn
up based on the undiscounted cash flows
of financial liabilities based on the earliest
date on which the Group can be required
to pay. Specifically, bank borrowings with a
repayment on demand clause are included
in the earliest time band regardless of the
probability of the banks choosing to exercise
their rights. The maturity dates for financial
liabilities are based on the agreed repayment

dates.

The table includes both interest and principal
cash flows. To the extent that interest flows
are floating rate, the undiscounted amount
is derived from interest rate at the end of the

reporting period.

VB RRERBZERBUR
(#&)
//mséiéiﬂ (,{?}

ARRIEFRR AEEKHE
BRAREEBSMRERHM
&M EITE R A B R R 2 H
ZHBEE - REBUIBER  &£E
MBHRRIDVIBFBREEER
o

TRFINAEEZEHABREZ
BTAENEEBE TRIIIER
EHABENAEEAIEAER
ZF?EIHEZ*aEfﬁfﬁi/ﬁ

R BE8Mm ﬁﬁ»ﬁﬁg/\
Eﬁf%?ﬂ,ZfE A TyEF A&
FEERER ﬁ‘ﬁ?\im&ﬁﬁﬁk?ﬁ
HENzZAgEME -2/ A
FEANBECERAR

3i
)
;,mrr”

T?E EANERAERER
o fidl FLB R AE B - BIRBEIR
%%EA$ETF#&%/J%3EZ7YIJ+J

st
= o
ZAr
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51.

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # % —F—JUE=H =+ —H L4 &

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 51. €®I A (&)
(continued)
51b. Financial risk management objectives and S51b. MBEREREBFEREEEK
policies (continued) (#&)
Liquidity risk (continued) B ERERE (&
Liquidity tables TEE 2 2F
Total
Weighted carrying
average  On demand 3 months Total  amounts at
effective  or less than to 1-2 Over undiscounted 31 March
interest rate 3 months 1 year years 2 years cash flows 2019
RZE-0§
mEFH RERT =fiA AEERE =A=1-B
ERAZE  OR=ER 2-F -EmfF RAWF REAE ZAREE
% per annum HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
SEHNEY TER TER ThER FEx ThET FEx
31 March 2019 “2-AEZA=1-R
Trade payables ERE55KE - 14,832 - - - 14,832 14,832
Other payables and accruals Eth R RERE R - 68,206 - - - 68,206 68,206
Deposits received from tenants AAFREFKMZ EE
and customers - 24,559 - - - 24,559 24,559
Construction cost accruals B BERA - 139,970 - - - 139,970 139,970
Amounts due to directors ERESHE - 7,182 - - - 7,182 7,182
Amounts due to related companies  E(F BB A AIKIE 14.00 166,431 - 222,116 135,077 523,624 441,024
Amounts due to former subsidiaries & AP & 2 FIRE - 9,164 - - - 9,164 9,164
Loans from staff BTER 12.50 19,390 4,382 - - 24,272 23,891
Other borrowings - fixed rate EER-T& 9.86 159,057 141,658 365,395 - 666,110 617,342
Bank borrowings - variable rate  $R{TEH—ZE 4.81 660,576 59,227 79,979 59,961 859,743 832,841
Bank overdraft - variable rate BABX-28 412 9,988 - - - 9,988 9,988
9.0% coupon bonds - fixed rate ~ 9.0%ZEEH-F 8 11.90 - 381,500 - - 381,500 366,656
12.0% coupon bonds 120%ZEEH-E8
- fixed rate 12.99 120,321 - - - 120,321 120,321
Obligation under financial lease: ~ BAM AL 6.50 16 47 63 31 157 144
Obligation arising from a put option  [AIFF¥ kR B i
to a non-controlling shareholder  Ff HIEE 4 2 AdE 14.00 - - 107,168 - 107,168 87,089
Financial guarantee BRNUBEARREN
contracts issued
- Maximum amount -BRBER (Hitwe)
quarantee (note 46) - 471,048 - - - 471,048 4,409
1,870,740 587,314 774721 195,069 3,427,844 2,767,618
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #% ~F—JUF=H =+ —H ILFZ

51. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 51. @RI A (&) ol
(continued)
51b. Financial risk management objectives and 51b. WMBEREREBFEREEER
policies (continued) (&
Liquidity risk (continued) TEETRER (&
Liquidity tables (continued) TEBE L x (E)
Total
Weighted carrying
average On demand 3 months Total amounts at
effective o less than to 1-2 Over  undiscounted 31 March
interest rate 3 months 1 year years 2 years cash flows 2018
RZ2-\F
MEFH BREXS =R KERRE =ZA=t-H
ERMZE  DR=@ERA i3 —EZME BRRE nELE HKEE
% per annum HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEMEY FiEL ThL T ThL T FL
31 March 2018 Z2-N\F=R=1-H
Trade payables ERESEE - 74,345 - - - 74,345 74,345
Other payables and accruals Eth R RERE R - 76,471 - - - 76,471 76,471
Deposits received from tenants ARPREFUDR &S
and customers - 19,623 - - - 19,623 19,623
Construction cost accruals B BERA - 164,576 - - - 164,576 164,576
Amount due to a director ER-%E3KE - 43 - - - 43 43
Amounts due to related companies  E(F BB A AIKIE 14.00 68,186 - - 683,313 751,499 628,727
Amounts due to former subsidiaries & AP & 2 FIRE 14.00 - 9,536 - - 9,536 8,365
Loans from staff BIEH 12.50 20,670 11,144 - - 31,814 30,857
Other borrowings - fixed rate EER-T& 14.41 31,961 97,416 62 - 129,439 125,368
Bank borrowings - variable rate  $R{TEH—ZE 4.67 385,157 163,896 356,721 81,784 987,558 960,398
Bank overdraft - variable rate BABX-28 5.25 9,908 - - - 9,908 9,908
9.0% coupon bonds - fixed rate ~ 9.0%ZEEH-E 8 11.90 - 31,500 381,500 - 413,000 355,967
12.0% coupon bonds - fixed rate EHF-E8 12.99 7,140 7,180 14,321 132,065 160,706 119,099
3.0% convertible bonds 3.0% AR ES 24.94 - 362,250 - - 362,250 287,802
Obligation under finance leases ~ BAAMEAME 357 736 47 63 94 940 893
Obligation arising from a put option M3FERBER
to a non-controlling shareholder 0 HIEE 4 2 AdE 14.00 = = = 108,201 108,201 81,049
Financial guarantee BELBE
contracts issued EREH
- Maximum amount -BRBER (Hitwe)
quarantee (note 46) - 442,779 - - - 442,779 3,180
1,301,595 682,969 752,667 1,005,457 3,742,688 2,946,671

—o .
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51.

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # % ~F—JUF=H =+ —H IL4FEZ

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

51b.

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)

The amount included above for financial
guarantee contracts is the maximum amount
the Group could be required to settle under
the arrangement for the full guaranteed
amount if that amount is claimed by the
counterparty to the guarantee. Based on
expectations at the end of the reporting
period, the directors of the Company
consider that it is more likely than not
that no amount will be payable under
the arrangement. However, this estimate
is subject to change depending on the
probability of the counterparty claiming
under the guarantee which is a function of
the likelihood that the financial receivables
held by the counterparty which are

guaranteed suffer credit losses.

51.

E®TITHE (#&)
51b. FHEEREIEBZNBEXR

(%)

REBEDEE ()
ERFIIBEEREOESES
AEBEERRZ D RERR
BERBERSBELAIEARS
EHNES B - REREHR
MIEH  ARAREERR &L
BEEARARBRIESM-
Am- ZEFFAERER S AR
BYERIE E RE A AT BEIE T 3
ERE MZAEERERZH
Fr B B JE P2 0R B 755 18 M SR TR
XEERRNAIGEHETE-
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/ For the year ended 31 March 2019 B E —F—UFE=H =+ —H IL4FFE

51. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 51. @ T H (&)
(continued)

- e

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)
As at 31 March 2019 and 2018, the bank

borrowings with a repayment on demand
clause was included in the “on demand
or less than 3 months” time band in the
above maturity analysis. The aggregate
carrying amounts of these bank borrowings
amounted to HK$3,666,000 (2018:
HK$4,538,000). Taking into account the
Group's financial position, the directors of
the Company did not believe that it was
probable that the bank would exercise its
discretionary rights to demand immediate
repayment. The directors of the Company
believe that such bank borrowings would
be repaid from one to four years (2018:
one to five years) after the reporting date in
accordance with the scheduled repayment
dates set out in the loan agreement. At
that time, the aggregate principal and
interest cash outflows would amount to
HK$3,926,000 (HK$1,024,000 repayable
within 1 year, HK$1,024,000 repayable 1 to
2 years, and HK$1,878,000 repayable 2 to 5
years) (2018: HK$4,928,000 (HK$1,020,000
repayable within 1 year, HK$1,020,000
repayable 1 to 2 years, and HK$2,888,000
repayable 2 to 5 years)).

FERREEBZRBR
(#&)

B ERERE (&)
RZE—NER_T—N\F=
A=+—HB #&B8EHEKREXE
BERZIBITERIDE LRE
AR ATRERSK DR
@Al ZHEAN - ZFRT
E R 4R B 53,666,000/
7T (ZZF — /\4 :4,538,000/%
TC) o K E RN & B #) B 7k
oA RREEFMEEFERITTIA
ATREITREEMBEREZ KERE
R ARARAIEEMEZFRIT
ERxeR@mERBE —=NF
(ZE—NF:—Z2HF)AR
BERBZEMLETEER B 5
BE-ERN A EFBHEER
i 48 %8 15 /53,926,000/8 7T (—
FNFEEET,024,000% 7T
—ZMFANEEE,024,000
BELTEAMEAFTAEMES
1,878,000 L) (ZZE—N
% :4,928,0008 T (—F A fE
81,020,000/ 70 —EMF
N FEE 3£ 1,020,000/ 7T &
ERFANE(EE2,888,000%8
JT) ) e

CHINLINK INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 3% I H 4 [ B £ )it 5 it 4 7] | Annual Report 2019 3§



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Bk 13 B B e A M R

51.

For the year ended 31 March 2019 B % —F —UFE=H =+ — H IL4FFEE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

51c.

Fair value measurements of financial

instruments

This note provides information about how
the Group determines fair value of various
financial assets and financial liabilities.

In estimating the fair value, the Group uses
market-observable data to the extent it
is available. Where Level 1 inputs are not
available, the Group engages third party
qualified valuers to perform the valuation.
The valuation committee works closely with
the qualified external valuers to establish the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs
to the model. The accounting officer reports
the findings of the valuation to the board of
directors of the Company every half year to
explain the cause of fluctuations in the fair

value.

(i) Fair value of the Group’s financial
assets that are measured at fair value

on a recurring basis

Some of the Group's financial assets
are measured at fair value at the
end of each reporting period. The
following table gives information
about how the fair values of these
financial assets are determined (in
particular, the valuation technique(s)
and inputs used), as well as the
level of the fair value hierarchy into
which the fair value measurements
are categorised (Levels 1 to 3) based
on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements is

observable.

51.

ERIE (&)

51c.

EMIAZAFEMNE

AMFRHEEBASEEES
HeMEERERABRTE
) T3 R B B FL o

REETAFER  AEEEA
AEGZMBAEBERER#RE &
BEXRSE —RBAER K
SEZBEE=ZSTAERMGE
BhETHE-REZESES
BB SNER B 1) & 1 - A
B EEBETERE A
B @i EEBFFRAARF
EFEenEhmESAR UHH
DNFERSZREA -

() KGR RN
AFEAE2 2 MAE
AFME
AREZETORAE
REREMAEATE
R TRERANE
EREEBAEATE
25k (R R H R A
2 fH{E TR R A E) 1A
REZBAT EEEHA
EZABRREEES A
FlEE 2 AT EER
(F—E=R)BAH -
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 B E —F—UFE=H =+ —H IL4FFE

5. SWTA (&) Y

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 51.

(continued)

51c.  Fair value measurements of financial S51c. @MIEZRAFEFE (&)
instruments (continued)

(i) Fair value of the Group’s financial () N [B] ST AR M LY
assets that are measured at fair value RFEFES & HEE
on a recurring basis (continued) nFE(E)

Fair value as at
RUTBEHZAFE Fair value  Valuation technique Significant
Financial assets 31 March 2019 31 March 2018 hierarchy and key inputs unobservable inputs
ZEB-NF —E-N\E
SREE =A=t-H =A=t-H ATEER HESERTIEGAE EXTUBRRGAE
Unlisted equity ~ Unlisted equity N/A Level 3 Income approach - in Long-term revenue growth
instruments instruments in a iR E=5 this approach, the rates, taking into
at FVTPL (31 company engaged discounted cash flow account management's
March 2018: in IT services method was used to experience and
classified as ("Taiger”) - capture the present knowledge of market
AFS) HK$1,266,000 value of the expected conditions of the specific
BRATERA and a company future economic benefits  industries, steadily at 3.0
Bz LM engaged in money to be derived from the per cent. (Note 1)
B#TE(=  lending agency ownership of these RABABRERFE
Z-N\E= ("Lending Home") investees. 3.0% EFFREREZ
A=+—-8: - HK$1,067,000 WANE-—RAFES FH EREEHEETETR
AEARTHE —RRETRER HAREMEEFHESR 2 TH- (Wit1)
&) Al ([Taiger ) 2 BEAERRET L BER
FrmEnIa- BEEZAREERNTZZ Long-term pre-tax
1,266,000 7T [ g operating margin
—RHREEER taking into account
1224 ([Lending management’s
Home | ) 2 3¢ experience and
iR IA- knowledge of market
1,067,000 7T ° conditions of the specific
industries, ranging from
17.3 t0 20.9 per cent.
(Note 2)
REBALERHENT
17.3%%20.9% " & &t
REBBBRRALHE
ETEMRLT B
(Hit2)
Weighted average cost
of capital ("WACC"),
ranging from 13.1 to
16.9 per cent. (Note 3)
IETHEARRKA ([ AEF
BERRAE]) N F13.1%
£16.9% ° (H1i3)
. o
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51.

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # % —F—JUE=H =+ —H L4 &

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)
51c. Fair value measurements of financial

instruments (continued)

(i) Fair value of the Group’s financial

51. @I E (&)

51c. @MTAZAFEF=Z (£)

()  ARERETEEEL

assets that are measured at fair value RFEFES & HEE
on a recurring basis (continued) nFE(E)
Fair value as at
RUTHHZALE Fair value Valuation technique Significant
Financial assets 31 March 2019 31 March 2018 hierarchy and key inputs unobservable inputs
—E-NE —E-N\F
SREE =A=t-H =A=t-H ATEER HESERTIEGAE EXTUBRRGAE
Discount for lack of
marketability, determined
by reference to the share
price of listed entities in
similar industries, ranging
from 13.9 to 18.8 per
cent. (Note 4)
B mmnRtEN T
13.9%Z18.8% 2%
BTSSP ETERZKR
BET - (Hiz4)
Unlisted equity ~ Unlisted equity N/A Level 2 Cost approach - based on ~ N/A
instruments at  instruments in a iR E-R the replacement cost of i
FVTPL company engaged identical or similar asset
BATEAR i financial on the market.
WZIELTHE  advisory services - A — BN WS EER K
#®IA HK$1,293,000. ANEEZERRHE
— R 9 B R
BRAZ M
@I A—1,293,000
Be
Payment fora  Asset - N/A Level 3 Discounted cash flow Discount rate ranging from
life insurance HK$12,254,000 TER E=R method was used to 3.1 to 3.8 per cent.
policy BE- capture the present value (Note 5)
ABRBREZ  12,254,000% T of the expected future  BEBENF3.1%%E3.8% °
BftRé economic benefits that (H13t5)

will flow into the Group.

ERMRREREEFHA
HERAREE 2 RRE
B RE
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 # % ~F —JUF = =+ —H L4 VL

f 51. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 51. €@ T A (&) N

- e

of the shares of Taiger and
Lending Home by HK$106,000
and HK$96,000 respectively.

A slight decrease in the long-
term pre-tax operating margin
used in isolation would result
in a slight decrease in the fair
value measurement of the
unlisted equity instruments,
and vice versa. A 2% decrease
in the long-term pre-tax
operating margin holding all
other variables constant would
decrease the carrying amount
of the shares of Taiger and
Lending Home by HK$89,000
and HK$61,000 respectively.

(continued)
51c. Fair value measurements of financial 51c. @BMITAEZAFEFE (&)
instruments (continued)

(i) Fair value of the Group’s financial (i) K E B AT M EE L
assets that are measured at fair value NFEFTEZZHEE
on a recurring basis (continued) nFE(E)

Note 1: A slight decrease in the long- i1 BEREROHK
term revenue growth rates B A R
used in isolation would result B QN
in a slight decrease in the fair BHE L
value measurement of the mILEBHQF
unlisted equity instruments, B E28M®T
and vice versa. A 2% decrease B RZINR e
in the long-term revenue A HMmE
growth rates holding all other ETEHNER
variables constant would TR EBKA
decrease the carrying amount BERETE2%

1 # Taiger &
Lending Home
B R BR |
B 7 5l w2
106,000/ 7T &
96,000/ 7T, ©

BEEEMANHK
OB OA K
MOHREHT
PE A% B Bk I
mE=T AR
NFEFAEER
WMTE R2
TR -EMRA
Hih @81 #
mERT K
HY % AT AL & A
BERTE2%
#5E Taiger &
Lending Home
0O 2 BR |
B 5 5w &
89,000/ 7T &
61,000 7T °
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51.

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # % ~F—JUF=H =+ —H IL4FEZ

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

51c.

Fair value measurements of financial

instruments (continued)

(1)

Fair value of the Group’s financial

assets that are measured at fair value

on a recurring basis (continued)

Note 3.

Note 4.

A slight increase in WACC
used in isolation would result
in a slight decrease in the fair
value measurement of the
unlisted equity instruments,
and vice versa. A 2% increase
in WACC holding all other
variables constant would
decrease the carrying amount
of the shares of Taiger and
Lending Home by HK$153,000
and HK$142,000 respectively.

A slight increase in the
discount for lack of
marketability used in isolation
would result in a slight
decrease in the fair value
measurement of the unlisted
equity instruments, and
vice versa. A 2% increase
in the discount for lack of
marketability holding all other
variables constant would
decrease the carrying amount
of the shares of Taiger and
Lending Home by HK$37,000
and HK$27,000 respectively.

51.

ERIE (&)

51c.

EMTAZAVEE (&

()  ARERETEEEL

RNFEFAEZTHBEE
AFE (&)

W3 -

Kiata -

B E B M
19 E A K
RE B A
B TR
mILEBHQF
EFfE8MT
B R Z IR~
PR H A&
ETEHNER
T kT E
KA EFH2%
1 # Taiger &
Lending Home
R fm R @
&2 5w 4
153,000/ 7T &
142,000/ 7T ©

B8 A 8
zZ M5 R B
MR b
T EEIE L
mE=T AR
NFEFAEER
WMTE R2
TR -EMRA
Hih @81 #
BE R T o B
= % & 1t
& LEHA2%
#5E Taiger &
Lending Home
0O 2 BR |
B 5 5w &
37,000% T &
27,000 7T °
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/ For the year ended 31 March 2019 B E —F—UFE=H =+ —H IL4FFE

51. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 51. €@ T H (4#&)
(continued)
51c. Fair value measurements of financial 51c. @MITAZAFEF=Z (£)

instruments (continued)

(i) Fair value of the Group’s financial () N [B] ST AR M LY

- e

assets that are measured at fair value
on a recurring basis (continued)

Note 5: A slight increase in the
discount rate used in isolation
would result in a significant
decrease in the fair value
measurement of the payment
for a life insurance policy and
vice versa. A 0.25% increase
in the discount rate holding
all other variables constant
would decrease the carrying
amount of the payment for
a life insurance policy by
HK$891,000.

As detailed in note 23, the Group's
unlisted equity investments and
payment for a life insurance policy
were reclassified as financial assets
at FVTPL at 1 April 2018 upon
initial application of HKFRS 9. These
financial assets are measured at fair
value at each reporting date. The
fair values are measured using the
valuation techniques with significant
unobservable inputs and hence are
classified as Level 3 of the fair value

hierarchy.

There were no transfers between
different levels of fair value hierarchy

in the current year.

RNFEFAEZTHBEE

AFE (&)

HiEs . BEEE AR
R T
B HASRK
B iR B 2
MR EE
RIETRE R2Z
TN FEFTA E

BT - B3R X
EFH0.25%#
F AERBR
BIZNREE
B, 4891,000
HIT e

AN Mt FE23FF R A R
BXEABBYBHRE
ERESRE AEEZ
FEMERBEERAS
RBREZNRR=ZF
—N\FMNA—BEHH»
HARAFETABRE
LERMEE-ZELR
BERSREAHER
FEFE-RAFEDE
BEERTAERG A
BzHEREFTE W
PEAANTFEERE=

RAFE  TRAFE
R A O R O
%O
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 # % —F—JUE=H =+ —H L4 &

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

)
&
.

51. @I E (&)

Fair value measurements of financial 51c. @MIEZAFHEE (&
instruments (continued)
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value (i) FE=RLFEFAEZ
measurements R
31 March 2019 —E-hE=A=+—H
Payment
Unlisted for a life
equity insurance
investments policy Total
LT ASRBRE
BRRE PACES @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TET THT
At 31 March 2018 RZE-N\¥
=R=+—8H - - -
Reclassified into Level BRERES
3 measurement at 1 sl
April 2018 upon initial LTSN
application of HKFRS 9 —Z-)\F
MA—A
ENHEZE
F-HEE 1,241 11,425 12,666
Fair value gain recognised in R BZ WAL
profit or loss AP ERE 28 825 853
Purchase during FNEE
the year 1,068 - 1,068
Exchange realignment BHAE (&) 4 _
At 31 March 2019 RZZ-IF
=B=+-—H 2,333 12,254 14,587
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/ For the year ended 31 March 2019 # % ~F—JUFE=H =+ —H IL4FFEZ i \ -i.

51. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 51. €@ T H (4#&)
(continued)
51c. Fair value measurements of financial 51c. @MITAZAFEF=Z (£)

instruments (continued)

(i) Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value (i)  EB=RAIFEITEZ

- e

measurements (continued)

31 March 2019 (continued)

Of the total gains or losses for
the year included in profit or loss,
HK$853,000 relates to financial
assets at FVTPL held at the end of the
reporting period. Fair value gains or
losses on financial assets at FVTPL are
included in ‘other income, gains and
losses’.

Fair value of the Group’s financial
assets and financial liabilities that are
not measured at fair value (but fair

value disclosures are required)

The fair values of other financial
assets and financial liabilities have
been determined in accordance
with generally accepted pricing
models based on a discounted
cash flow analysis, with the most
significant inputs being the discount
rate that reflects the credit risk of

counterparties.

The directors of the Company
consider that the carrying amounts of
financial assets and financial liabilities
recorded at amortised cost in the
consolidated financial statements

approximate their fair values.

#Ac (&)

—2-h&#=A=t+—8H
(%)

FRFTAEBZRZ 8K
2k [E518 9 » 853,000/5 7T
TERREBRMFE
BRAFEFABZZE
BMEEREB -ZATE
AAEBRZEMEEL
AN EY SE-PEET
A TEMUA - Uz &S
Bl

AEE I FlETE
ZEMEEREHEAE
RFE(ERKELF
1g)

HiteRMEERTHMA
B2 FERERMR
BEREDMZIARTE
BRIUBE ABNE
REABSRRR 54
FEERBRBIRE-

ARBEZRR NE
CRRE ks 101
AANRZEBEERS
BMABZEREAEEAR
FEMEE-
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 # % —F—JUE=H =+ —H L4 &

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES 5. MMEEEBELCEBEHKR
ARISING FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
The table below details changes in the Group's TRAMAESERETHEECERE
liabilities arising from financing activities, including 2 (BERERIFREY) ME
both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising EHEACZABRRBEEREEHRK
from financing activities are those for which cash ReRnEKNEEHERERIER
flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified MEEHELEZReREZAE
in the consolidated statement of cash flows as cash
flows from financing activities.
Financing Conversion
cash flows 3.0%
1 April other than  Convertible Accrual Interest Exchange 31 March
2019 ZB-NE 2018 interest Bonds interest paid Others  realignment 2019
HE [ 1:
—B-NF REhE 3.0% ZE-AEF
mA-A (FHERM) TRRES A ERES 4 EX®% =A=t-H
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HKS 000 HKS 1000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS 1000
TEx TAL FHL FAL TEx TEL THL TET
Bank and other borrowings BORELER 1,095,674 362,016 - 98,527 (83,644) = (12,402) 1,460,171
Loans from staff BIER 30,857 (5,725) = 2,168 (2,707) = (702) 23,81
Amounts due to related companies T EEDARE 628,727 (183,026) - 31,656 - = (36,333) 441,024
Amounts due to directors ERERHE 4 7,139 - - - - - 7,182
Amounts due to former subsidiaries ERAMBARRE 8,365 - - 117 - (372)0 = 9,164
3.0% convertible bonds 30%TRRES 287,802 = (287,907) 338 (3.223) = = =
9.0% coupon bonds 9.0%F 5 B4 355,967 - - 42,189 (31,500) - - 366,656
12.0% coupon bonds 120%Z8 55 119,099 = = 15,486 (14,298) = e 120321
Obligations under finance leases BAREAE 893 (749) = 34 (34) = = 144
Obligation arising from a put optionto W3R R R 1k 18
a non-controlling shareholder EEZAR 81,049 - - 10,696 - - (4,656) 87,089
Total @3t 2,608,476 179,655 (287,907) 205,255 (135,406) (3n) (54059) 2,515,642
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #% ~F—JUF=H =+ —H ILFZ

52. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES 52. MEEBELCEEYHR N

ARISING FROM FINANCING ()

ACTIVITIES (continued)

Financing

cash flows
1 April other than Acquisition Accrual Interest Exchange 31 March
2018 ZI-)\% 2017 interest  of subsidiary interest paid Others  realignment 2018

A
Tt ReRg W 2 )\F
MA-H (MER5) WEAR RIS BRHE £ Ef#E =A=1-8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET TAL TAL FET TAL TAL TAL
Bank and other borrowings BIRABER 1,076,846 35,946 = 63,519 (59,065) (45,308) 23,736 1,095,674
Loans from staff BIER 5155 5861 18,800 674 (430) - 797 30,857
Amounts due to related companies EREEAREE 203,912 359,788 69,476 19,182 = (64,407) 40,776 628,727
Amount due to a director ER-2EEHE 1,000 (986) 29 - - - - e}
Amount due to ultimate holding company ~ ER &R EBRAAKE 844 (844) - - - - -
Amounts due to former subsidiaries ERAHBARRE 7337 - - 1,028 - - = 8,365
10.0% convertible bonds 10.0%8 &R E% 76,723 (77,0M1) = 10,607 (10,607) - 348 -
7.5% coupon bonds 15%E8E5 206,688 (206,688) = 8312 (8312) = = =
3.0% convertible bonds 3.0% A 2R EF = 58,000 209,403 50,393 (6,104) (23,890)" - 287,802
9.0% coupon bonds 9.0%REEH - 329,000 26,967 - - - 355,967
12.0% coupon bonds 122.0%E 8 E% = 113,661 4,901 = = 537 119,099
Obligations under finance leases BANEAE 1,481 (803) 215 87 87) = = 393

Obligation arising from a put option to ~ FFFIRRRER LB EMEE L

a non-controlling shareholder ES - - - 3,808 - 73,756 3,485 81,049
Total i 1,579,986 615,864 297,923 189,478 (84,605) (59,849) 69,679 2,608,476

———o L
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52.

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # % —F—JUE=H =+ —H L4 &

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES
ARISING FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES (continued)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

HK$372,000 was offset with amounts due from
former subsidiaries.

The amount represents the borrowings related to
bills discounted with recourse derecognised upon
maturity.

The amount represents the adjustments on
carrying amount of amounts due to related
companies.

The amount represents the equity components of
HK$30,000,000 and HK$28,000,000 convertible
bonds recognised and the amount of convertible
bonds converted into ordinary shares of the
Company.

The amount represents the present value of the
obligation arising from a put option to a non-
controlling shareholder initially recognised.

METHEEZABHEK

(#&

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

372,000 T £2 & Yz A1 B 8 2 &) BR
TE K §Y o

& BR 5 B 0 B HA B 4% | RERR 2 MY
EREZCHREBREHZE

ot Ny
it [

o

K>

SRERNBEEARKRELZRE

B o

=13
X
@ S

O]

& BB #32,230,000,0007% 7T
128,000,000 7T AT #2 f% & % 7 4
HED A REIRARNA L EBR Y
ARRESFSRE-

R BRIV ER 2 AR AR R
RHORAMEEE 2 A ZRE-
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/ For the year ended 31 March 2019 # % ~F—JUFE=H =+ —H IL4FFEZ Uh 1

53. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 53, MEALTRS

Transactions with related parties BHEEALT 2R S

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group REBEZE-ZZT-NF=RA=1+—RHIL#F
provided financial guarantee services to the related ER AEERBELAREREE
companies which also constituted as continuing RARTS - MARIE LT AR A1 - B RS I8
connected transactions under the Listing Rules and BRBEERER S ©BEWATERFR
the amounts as listed in the table below: N

Revenue from financial

guarantee services

& i8R R WA
2019 2018
—ZE-NEF —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FAET
Related Companies (Note) RaEN A (HaE) 469 2,024

Revenue from finance

lease services

MEHERBHRA
2019 2018
—E-h#EF —T-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Related Companies (Note) RAERNT (HaF) 408 1,326

———o L
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 # % —F—JUE=H =+ —H L4 &

53. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)
Transactions with related parties (continued)

53.

BMEATRS (&) NN
HEEANLT 2R G (#&)

Rental expenses

HEMX
2019 2018
—E-hEF —T-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Related Companies (Note) RAERNT (MiE) 1,071 1,006

Note: Companies in which the controlling shareholder
of the Company (who is also a director of the
Company) or the relatives of this controlling
shareholder has significant influence to these
companies (“Related Companies”).

Wiz AREERBRER (RITARARE
B)AREEBERZEBERAAA
EARENIz2ZERA ([REA
Al) e

o
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/ For the year ended 31 March 2019 B E —F—UFE=H =+ —H IL4FFE

53. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 53. BEAXLRS (&)

- e

(continued)
Transactions with related parties (continued)

Apart from the transactions as listed in the table
above, the amount of financial guarantee provided
to the Related Companies at 31 March 2019 was
RMB5,000,000 (2018: RMB25,000,000) (equivalent
to HK$5,837,000 (2018: HK$30,963,000)). Details
of the guarantee amount are set out in note 46.

Balances with Related Companies

Details of the balance with Related Companies
which is trade in nature and non-trade in nature as
at 31 March 2019 and 2018 are set out in note 28
and note 37, respectively.

Compensation of key management personnel

MEAEATZRS (£&)

B REAIN 2R G R ZF
—hWF=ZA=+—H mBEEQFIE
HrmEEREREAAREKS,000,000
T (ZZE—N\F: AR%25,000,000
t) (& M5,837,0008 L (=&
— \£E:30,963,000/8 7T) ) « ERE
B IBEH NI 7E46 o

1G8E N A Z AR
—E-NERZZE-NF=ZA
=t—B BEER[RZER (D55
BEHUHERFEHEE)FBDRIH
PP EE28 K MY 537 o

\|

X

ITBEEABZME

2019 2018

—E-NEF —E-)N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

TERT FET

Salaries and other benefits FekEMETR 23,430 17,672

Post-employment benefits EREEN 216 183
Equity-settled share-based EESEEURD AER 2R

payments 87 752

23,733 18,607

All the directors are considered as key management
of the Group. During both years, certain managerial
employee have been authorised to plan, direct
and control activities of the Group. Accordingly,
compensation to those managerial employee has
been included as part of compensation of key
management personnel.

The remuneration of key management is
determined by the Company’'s nomination and
remuneration committee having regard to the
performance of individuals and market trends.

MTEESHERAREZEEER
RMEFEER ETEEERER
ERESE ERMERAKEZE
2EP-Ril ZEEEEREZME
EERTEEBABZMEe 2 — %9
A e

TEEBABZHFMBEARBZIRA
kFMEE@REBARREMSE

BEE-
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 # % ~F—JUF=H =+ —H IL4FEZ

ol PG e NN
UWTFTAEARATIR _E—HLhEE -
—N\NE=A=+t—Hz2HBRAZ

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 54.

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries at 31 March
2019 and 2018 are as follows:

Place of
incorporation/
establishment

Issued
share capital/
paid up registered

G

Proportion of
ownership interest

Name of company and operations capital held by the Company Principal activity
TEMRL KK BRTRE/ ARAEE
ARER EEBE BAEMER BEEER LA TEEH
2019 2018
“2-7F  -F&
Acelin Investments Limited BVI 4 shares of USD1 100% 100%  Investment holding
KRABRER each REZK
JRBRHEREE
(E
Acme Power Holdings Limited BVI 1 share of USD1 100% 100%  Investment holding
ERERERAR KBABRES each REZR
R SR EE
1%7T
Alpha Yield Limited BVI 100 shares of USD1 51% 51%  Investment holding
BREERRF KBABRER each REZK
100/ B R EE
(EH
Alphamount Limited BVI 1 share of USD1 100% 100%  Investment holding
TREBRAF HBERRES each RERR
R SR EE
1%7T
Blessing China Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of 100% 100%  Property holding
HERRAT EB HK$1 each MERE
REBRER
EEIET
Brave Plan Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of 100% 100%  Investment holding
BEARAA 0 HK$1 each RERR
REBRER
EEIET
Chinlink Alpha Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of 51% 51%  Investment holding
ERBEERAT B HK$1 each REAZK
REBRER
EEIET
Chinlink Capital Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of 100% 100%  Investment holding
LENEERBRAA 0 HK$1 each RERR
REBRER
EEIET
Chinlink E-commerce (Xi'an) PRC Nil 100% 100% E-commerce
Company Limited F z BEFEB
LEGECEFHK
(BR)ERRA
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54. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)

Place of
incorporation/
establishment

Issued
share capital/
paid up registered

WE A SRS () e

Proportion of
ownership interest

Name of company and operations capital held by the Company Principal activity
SRR IR BRITRE/ NG e ]
DRERE EELE EREMER BEERER LA TEXR
2019 2018
ZE-nF —Z-)\F
Chinlink Finance Lease PRC RMB244,800,000 62.5% 62.5% Finance lease
Company Limited F AR #244,800,0007T BEHE
EETCREREARAA
Chinlink Glory Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of 100% 100%  Investment holding
LhEeER A A% HK$1 each RERR
&30
BREBIET
Chinlink Group Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of 100% 100%  Inactive
EETFEERERERAA Eh HK$1 each TEex
1REER
BREEIET
Chinlink Hanzhong Logistics Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited A% HK$1 each RERR
EEDSERRARAA &30
BREBIET
Chinlink International Trade PRC RMB277,800,000 100% 100% Property investment
Centre (Hanzhong) F AR#277,800,0007T NERE
Company Limited
EERCEERZH 0
(EF)ERRA
Chinlink Hong Kong Company Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited ) HK$1 each REEK
EETE (FE)ERRA 1REER
BREEIET
Chinlink Management PRC Nil 100% 100%  Consulting
Consulting (Xi'an) F z i
Company Limited
LEREERAA
(BR)ERAA
Chinlink Mega Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of 100% 100%  Investment holding
Lk ER AT A% HK$1 each RERR
&30
BREBIET
Chinlink Property Management PRC Nil 100% 100%  Inactive
(Shaanxi) Company Limited e =z TmEE

EETENEER
(RAE) BRAR
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54.

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)

Place of
incorporation/
establishment

Issued
share capital/
paid up registered

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # % ~F—JUF=H =+ —H IL4FEZ

MEQRAFS (&)

Proportion of
ownership interest

Name of company and operations capital held by the Company Principal activity
SRR IR BRITRE,/ NG eS|
DRERE EELE EREMER BEERER LA TEXR
2019 2018
ZE-nF —T-N\F
Chinlink Supreme Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of 100% 100%  Investment holding
EETEEHERAA EiE HK$1 each REZR
&30
BREEIET
Chinlink Supply Chain Services PRC UsD4,000,000 100% 100%  Provision of logistics
(Shaanxi) Company Limited T 4,000,000% 7T services
EEMEHERER REDRRE
(RRAE)ERAA
Chinlink Strategic Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of 100% 100%  Investment holding
EEFERBAERRA 0 HK$1 each RERR
&30
BREEIET
Chinlink Tian Hui Company Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of 100% 100%  Trading of electronic
EhREFRAA BB HK$1 each products
g ER EFERES
BREEIET
CLI Design (HK) Limited Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares of 100% 100%  Trading of furniture and
ERR (BB)BERDA 0 HK$1 each fixtures
MR E B BRNEEES
BREBIET
CLI Design (Macau) Limited Macau 2 ordinary shares of 100% 100% Interior decoration work
B (R BERAR A MOP 15,000 each EREMHIRE
REBRER
E1E15,0002 7T
CLI Design Limited Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares of 100% 100% Interior decoration work
ERRERAA 0 HK$1 each EREMHTRE
2R EEAR
BREBIET
Dawn Brightness Global Limited BVI 1 share of 100% 100%  Investment holding
BRARRARLA RBERRES USD1 each REAZK
1R (7 & R E
(EH
E-Innovation Limited BVI 1 share of 100% 100%  Investment holding
fREIERAH KBRBRES USD1 each REZR
R B REE
(E
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54. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)

Place of
incorporation/
establishment

Issued
share capital/

paid up registered

WE A SRS () e

Proportion of
ownership interest

Name of company and operations capital held by the Company Principal activity
EMEL HILR BRITRE/ NG e ]
DRERE EELE BHEMER BEERER LA TEEH
2019 2018
ZE-NF —Z-)\F
Esteemed Zone Limited BVI 1 share of 100% 100%  Investment holding
BHARDA (NEBU KBRBRES USD1 each RERR
[EmAEBRAA] 22 1Rk EREE
ETER) (E
Fair Fortune Group Limited BVI 1 share of 100% 100%  Investment holding
RBEERRLF RBERRES USD1 each REER
1R (7 & R E
1%
Galactic Power Limited BVI 1 share of 100% 100%  Financial services
RRARAR (REBN  KEEEARES USD1 each S BBH
[HBEERERAF ] 24 1Rk EREE
ETER) (E
Giant Success International Limited ~ BVI 1 share of 100% 100%  Investment holding
ERERERRAA RBERRES USD1 each REER
1BRGEREE
1%
Glorious Harvest Limited BVI 1 share of 100% 100%  Investment holding
MEBERDA KBRBRER USD1 each REZR
R B REE
(E
Goal Achiever Investments Limited ~ BVI 1 share of 100% 100%  Investment holding
FEREARLA RBERRES USD1 each REER
1R (7 & R E
1%
High Express International Limited ~ Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of 100% 100%  Investment holding
aHERERDF A% HK$1 each RERR
&30
BREBIET
MCM Asia Limited Hong Kong HK$60,000,000 51% 51%  Financial advisory
) 60,000,0007 7T services
B SR R R
MCM Holdings Limited Cayman Islands UsD4,000,000 51% 51%  Investment holding
HERE 4,000,000% T REER
MCM Investment Partners Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$5,000,000 48% 48%  Financial advisory
(Note) (Ff5E) &k 5,000,000/ 7T services
B RE R R
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 # % ~F—JUF=H =+ —H IL4FEZ

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)

Place of
incorporation/
establishment

Issued
share capital/
paid up registered

MEQRAFS (&)

Proportion of
ownership interest

Name of company and operations capital held by the Company Principal activity
SRR IR BRITRE/ NG eS|
DRERE EELE BHEMER BEERER LA TEXR
2019 2018
ZE-NF —Z-)\F
AREECEBEEREMRAR  PRC RMB300,000 48% N/ATER  Financial advisory
(Note) (FfE) H AR #300,0007C services
75 R R PR
RELHSEEEERERDA  PRC NIL 48% N/ATER  Financial advisory
(Note) (Ff7E) H z services
B RE R R
MCM Partners Europe Limited United Kingdom GBP9,000 51% 51%  Financial advisory
A 9,000 & services
B RE R R
Mega Zone Investments Limited BVI 1 share of 100% 100%  Investment holding
HBERRES USD1 each RERR
R B REE
(E
Real King International (Xi'an) PRC RMB132,016,768 100% 100% Property investment
Information Technology F AR#¥132,016,7687C NERE
Company Limited
ERER (AR)EEREK
BBRAF
Shaanxi Chinlink Financial PRC USD30,000,000 33% 51% Provision of financial
Guarantee Limited (Note) T 30,000,000% 7T guarantee services
REZERSREERERAF RERERRRS
53
Shaanxi Chinlink Factoring PRC RMB90,000,000 33% N/ATE R Factoring services
Company Limited (Note) F A& #90,000,0007T HERERS
REEEREHRREERAF
(Bzt)
EETEHFELEE (AR) PRC NIL 100% NATER  Inactive
BRAR f z TEex
Sino Yield Enterprise Limited BVI 1 share of 100% 100%  Investment holding
HREEBRAR KBRBRES USD1 each REZR
R B REE
(E
Tian Hui Global Limited BVI 1 share of 100% 100%  Investment holding
AERRBRLF RBERRES USD1 each REER
1R (7 & R E
1%

Annual Report 2019 % | CHINLINK INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED % [ 1 4 [ B £ )bt 47 Bt 24 )

o

369



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

| 5 A A R R

-
L

/ For the year ended 31 March 2019 B E —F—UFE=H =+ —H IL4FFE

54. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 54. MIBARFIE (&)
(continued)
Place of Issued
incorporation/ share capital/ Proportion of
establishment paid up registered ownership interest
Name of company and operations capital held by the Company Principal activity
EMEL HILR BRITRE/ ARRFEE
ARER EELE BHEMER BEERER LA TEEH
2019 2018
“B-NE =Z )\
Trillion Up Limited BVI 1 share of 100% 100%  Investment holding
TRERRA HBERRES USD1 each RERR
R B REE
(E
Xi'an Chinlink Commercial PRC RMB1,000,000 100% 100% Investment holding
Operation Management FE AR#1,000,0007T REER
Company Limited
ARENHRELER
=N
Xi'an Da Ming Gong Ba Qiao PRC RMB80,000,000 100% 100%  Property investment
Furniture and Fixture Limited F AR #80,000,0007C MERE
("Ba Qiao”)
ERAATBEENR
EERAR ([HE])
Xi'an Tang Rong Real Estate PRC RMB320,000,000 100% 100%  Property investment
Limited (“Tang Rong") FE AR #320,000,0007T NERE
AREREXERAA ([EE])
Zhong Hui Global Limited BVI 1 share of 100% 100%  Investment holding
FREREERAA EERBRES USD1 each REER
RRAEREEIZT
Note: These companies are indirectly held and controlled Mizt: ZEATBAAEEIFZEMBAF
by a non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group. M A Rzl -
All the subsidiaries are owned indirectly by the B Acelin Investments Limited F{8H&
Company except for Acelin Investments Limited, RAE -EEFRS(BEB)ARAGF
Trillion Up Limited, Chinlink Hong Kong Company FRMEERAR SEREBERA
Limited, Sino Yield Enterprise Limited, Goal A2 ARAR ERIRKERA
Achiever Investments Limited, Esteemed Zone ARMEERARBARAEERER
Limited, Dawn Brightness Global Limited and iR PNGI b= NN I 3
Glorious Harvest Limited which are owned directly Be
by the Company.
All PRC subsidiaries are legal entities with limited FIEREMB AR AEGEZEREME
liability. 208 o
None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt NARFEAIR_ZE-—NFRZZ
securities during the year or at 31 March 2019 and —NF=A=1+—HB WBARLE
2018. BITEREBES -
o o
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 B % —F —UFE=H =+ — H IL4FFEE

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 54. MIBARFIE (&)
(continued)

The table below shows details of non-wholly owned TRINTAEE 2B ENIETRE
subsidiaries of the Group that have material non- mZIEEWNB AR ZFHIF:

controlling interests:

Place of Proportion of
establishment ownership interests and
and principal voting rights held by Profit attributable to Accumulated
Name of subsidiary place of business  non-controlling interests non-controlling interests non-controlling interests
BRIt R FEREGHEZ
WEARERE TEEXNE BEREERREE2LA FERERES2ER Rtk ERER
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018

ZE-nf T\ ZB-AE T\ ZB-Rf _—T-)\fF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TERL TR

Tang Rong and Ba Qiao (note) ~ PRC

BRREE (W) h - - - 48,004 - -

Alpha Yield and its subsidiaries ~ Hong Kong

BERENBAF B 49.00% 49.00% (4,660) 326 26,029 40,588

Chinlink Finance Lease PRC

EETRANS e 37.50% 37.50% 2,929 41 37,711 36,897

(1,731) 48,751 63,740 717,485

Note: During year ended 31 March 2018, the Group Mz RBE-_ZT—N\F=ZA=+—H
acquired the equity interests held by non- WEFE RNEBWERIFZERERR
controlling shareholders in Tang Rong and REREBERRBR 2 RE BRE
Ba Qiao with an aggregate consideration B AR #295,942,0007T (HE R
of RMB295,942,000 (equivalent to 366,536,000 7T) © & &R RBER R
HK$366,536,000). Tang Rong and Ba Qiao KEERKARRAZEZEMBR
became the wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Al e

company after the acquisition.

Summarised financial information in respect of BERAAREE 7 REAE NIEEE#EZ
each of the Group’s subsidiaries that has material 2B AR 2B E R EH Y
non-controlling interests is set out below. The T-UATHBERBEREEERNR A
summarised financial information below represents BEE I

amounts before intragroup eliminations.
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" 54. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 54. WEARHE (&)

(continued)
Tang Rong and Ba Qiao B 8 KR
2018
—F-N\F
HK$'000
FHET
Current assets BN & E =
Non-current assets EMBEE =
Current liabilities mEBEE =
Non-current liabilities EREBEE =
Equity attributable to owners of the ZN/NSIEZ S DN X (ol
Company =
Non-controlling interests 1R -
Revenue A 80,422
Gain on fair value change of investment &M 2 A FEEHH U
properties 134,897
Expenses X (35,021)
Profit for the year KEE i F 180,298
Profit attributable to owners of the Company 7N 2 &) B A &1 2 % F 132,294
Profit attributable to the non-controlling ~ JE 4% i # 25 JE 1l 2 3% F
interests 48,004
Profit for the year KEE & F 180,298
o
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54.

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # % —F—JUE=H =+ —H L4 &

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 54. MEQRFIE (&)

(continued)
Tang Rong and Ba Qiao (continued)

BR KRG (&)

2018
—E—N\F
HK$'000
FHET
Other comprehensive income attributable to KR G #EHE A (L 2 E 2 E WA
owners of the Company 113,207
Other comprehensive income attributable to FEFEIRHEZSFE (L 2 b 2 EURA
the non-controlling interests 41,152
Other comprehensive income for the year ZAFEEEME2MEUA 154,359
Total comprehensive income attributable to ZNA R A AL 2 2 E UKL A L5
owners of the Company 245,501
Total comprehensive income attributable to FEIF A% #E 5 B 2 2 E U A 4B 58
the non-controlling interests 89,156
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ AREE 2 EW A 4258 334,657
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests  [&] FF 22 A% 4 25 37 1~ A% = -
Net cash inflow from operating activities — &&EEBKS 2R EHAFRE 21,111
Net cash outflow from investing activities REEBHMBZEE R FEE (1,283)
Net cash outflow from financing activities RMEEKMBZRE R FHE (56,163)
Net cash outflow RenmLFE (36,335)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

| &k B B 55 R W RE

Tm——

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # % ~F—JUF=H =+ —H IL4F

54. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 54, ME R EIFIE (&
(continued)
Alpha Yield and its subsidiaries AR R EKHE A A
2019 2018
—ZE-hE ZE-)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER T T
Current assets ENE E 215,518 111,172
Non-current assets FRBEE 25,811 24,173
Current liabilities mE B E (177,409) (39,960)
Non-current liabilities EMBEE (10,800) (12,552)
Equity attributable to owners of AR R A ARG Z S
the Company (27,091) (42,245)
Non-controlling interests PR M A (26,029) (40,588)
Revenue A 52,318 27,755
Expenses % (72,022) (9,497)
(Loss) profit for the year NEE (B8R (19,704) 18,258
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 # % —F—JUE=H =+ —H L4 &

54. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 54. MiB D BFFE (&)
(continued)
Alpha Yield and its subsidiaries (continued) BERENBAR (£)
2019 2018
—ZE-NF —E-)N\F
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
(Loss) profit attributable to NATIER ARG (EBE) &
owners of the Company (15,044) 17,932
(Loss) profit attributable to the — JFIEAR#E =BG 2 (BB ) & A
non-controlling interests (4,660) 326
(Loss) profit for the year AEE (BEE) R (19,704) 18,258
Other comprehensive (expense) ZANAEHA ARG 2 Ef2H
income attributable to owners (B2 ) A
of the Company (9,110) 7,909
Other comprehensive (expense)  FEIEAR#E 2= &G < Hfth 2 H
income attributable to the non- (FAsZ) YA
controlling interests (8,632) 7,599
Other comprehensive (expense) ANFEEM2E (Fx) WA
income for the year (17,742) 15,508
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fk 1 T 5 R AR B

T—

For the year ended 31 March 2019 B E —F—UFE=H =+ —H IL4FFE

54. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 54, ME R AEIFTE (&)
(continued)
Alpha Yield and its subsidiaries (continued)

BEEEWMBAR (&)

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-)N\F
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FHE T FETT
Total comprehensive (expense) AR Bl#HAE ABRZ2ME
income attributable to owners (FAX) WA B
of the Company (24,154) 25,841
Total comprehensive (expense)  FEIERE=E(L 22
income attributable to the (FAX) WALz
non-controlling interests (13,292) 7,925
Total comprehensive (expense)  AFE2M (F) WAL
income for the year (37.446) 33,766
Net cash outflow from KEEKMEBZEES R FE
operating activities (84,105) (3,374)
Net cash outflow from REEBKHSZEERE FE
investing activities (15,073) (14,355)
Net cash inflow from BMEEBMBZRERAFE
financing activities 77,006 35,495
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54.

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # % —F—JUE=H =+ —H L4 &

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 54, MBS (&)
(continued)
Chinlink Finance Lease TEFSHENRE
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HKS$'000 HK$'000
THER FAT
Current assets MBEE 90,914 182,695
Non-current assets EMEEE 222,803 126,292
Current liabilities mE B & (8,268) (4,618)
Non-current liabilities EMBEE (97.829) (81,049)
Equity attributable to owners of AR R A ARG Z S
the Company (169,909) (186,423)
Non-controlling interests PRI A (37,711) (36,897)
Revenue A 32,568 8,829
Expenses =3 (35,452) (7,706)
(Loss) profit for the year NEE (B8R (2,884) 1,123
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| &k B B 55 R W RE

——i

/' For the year ended 31 March 2019 #ZE _F —JUFE=H =+ —HILFE

T 54. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 54. WEARHE (&)
(continued)
Chinlink Finance Lease (continued) LEFEMERE (&)
2019 2018
—E—-hEF —E-NF
HKS$'000 HK$'000
THER FAT
(Loss) profit attributable to NATIER ARG (EBE) &
owners of the Company (5,813) 702
Profit attributable to the non- FE 128 iR 2 FE A 2 Vi A
controlling interests 2,929 421
(Loss) profit for the year AEE (FBE) & (2,884) 1,123
Other comprehensive (expense) ZANAEHA ARG 2 Ef2H
income attributable to owners  (Bsx) W A
of the Company (10,701) 10,289
Other comprehensive (expense)  FEIEARE = B < Hfth 2 H
income attributable to the non-  (BI3%) W A
controlling interests (2,115) 5,517
Other comprehensive (expense) AFEE M2 (FxZ) WA
income for the year (12,816) 15,806

—o .
378  CHINLINK INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 3% I 1 4 | B ¢ )i 45 W2 4 7] | Annual Report 2019 3§



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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54.

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # % —F—JUE=H =+ —H L4 &

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 54, MBS (&)
(continued)
Chinlink Finance Lease (continued) LEFEMEREE (&)
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Total comprehensive (expense)  ARFHEA ARG ZE2E (FZ)
income attributable to owners YR A 42%E
of the Company (16,514) 10,991
Total comprehensive income EEREREG 2 2EBRALRE
attributable to the non-
controlling interests 814 5,938
Total comprehensive (expense)  AFE2mE (F) WA R
income for the year (15,700) 16,929
Net cash outflow from operating & & £ IEH1B 2R & 0 H F5E
activities (122,032) (183,523)
Net cash outflow from investing % & X115 2 3H 2 H/F5E
activities (6) (1,073)
Net cash inflow from financing BIEXFAE 2R ERAFRE
activities 22,966 283,649
Net cash (outflow) inflow Be Ond)mRAFRE (99,072) 99,053
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fk 1 T 5 R AR B

T—

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # % ~F—JUF=H =+ —H IL4F

55. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 55. ARQBZHBRRRRGEE
POSITION AND RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E—)N\F
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FHxT FET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investment in subsidiaries RETB AR ZRE 371,375 66,120
Property, plant and equipment  ¥1% - 5B K& & 681 1,314
Rental deposits ek = 1,359
Amounts due from subsidiaries  FEUHI B A 7 BRIE 2,192,003 1,806,805
2,564,059 1,875,598
Current assets MEEE
Other receivables, deposits H b ERTE - e K
and prepayments FE FRIB 1,973 1,397
Amounts due from subsidiaries  FEY B A T BRIE 132,155 112,636
Amounts due from JE U B B B A R BR 1B
former subsidiaries - 701
Bank balances and cash RITEGFRIRS 14,141 1,282
148,269 116,016
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 # % —F—JUE=H =+ —H L4 &

55. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 55.
POSITION AND RESERVES OF THE

COMPANY (continued)

RARZMBRRAKRE FHE

(#&)

2019 2018
—E-NEF —T— )N\
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAET
Current liabilities mBAE

Amounts due to directors ENEERE 7,151 43
Other payables and accruals HiENERERETER 5,158 7,314
Bank and other borrowings RITREMER 78,776 68,542
9.0% coupon bonds 9.0%E B EH 366,656 =

Amounts due to former FET RIS B A RIBRIE
subsidiaries 9,164 8,365
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERHBT B A R BRIE 455,893 =
922,798 84,264
Net current (liabilities) assets nE (BB EEFE (774,529) 31,752
Total assets less current liabilities E&ER TS & & 1,789,530 1,907,350
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

T—

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # % ~F—JUF=H =+ —H IL4F

55. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
POSITION AND RESERVES OF THE

COMPANY (continued)

55.

RARZMBRRAKRE FHE

(#&)

2019 2018
—E-NEF —T— )N\
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FHET

Non-current liabilities FEREBEE
3.0% convertible bonds 3.0% A IR ESH - 287,802
9.0% coupon bonds 9.0%E B EH - 355,967
12.0% coupon bonds 12.0%R B EH 120,321 119,099
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIE A G - 12,748
Other borrowing HMER 329,628 =
449,949 775,616
1,339,581 1,131,734

Capital and reserves BEARRHE
Share capital % A 456,753 213,662
Reserves fEH 882,828 918,072

Equity attributable to RACIHER ARG 2w

owners of the Company 1,339,581 1,131,734
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55.

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # % —F—JUE=H =+ —H L4 &

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 55. AR ZHBMRRRRFAEE
POSITION AND RESERVES OF THE (%)
COMPANY (continued)
Movement in the Company’s reserves RRRIEEES
Convertible
Share bonds
Share options equity Accumulated Total
premium reserve reserve losses equity
BRE TRRES
B4 &E e BEfE EH BneE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TER TER TER TER
At 1 April 2017 R-F—+tFWA—AH 982,175 35,835 - (305,656) 712,354
Loss for the year AEEEE - - = (122,578) (122,578)
Recognition of BREEREEARR A
equity-settled LA
share-based payments - 1,882 - - 1,882
Forfeiture of share options R W B = (387) = 387 =
Recognition of HRAARES 2
equity component of Exn#n
convertible bonds - - 345,090 - 345,090
Recognition of RET3.0% A RREH K
deferred tax liabilities on RELERIEEE
issuance of
3.0% convertible bonds - - (20,012) - (20,012)
Issue of shares upon REEH3 0% ] LR EHE
conversion of BIIRH
3.0% convertible bonds 9,023 - (8,107) - 916
Derecognition of RER3.0% A RREH K
deferred tax liabilities on HIERAELERERE
conversion of
3.0% convertible bonds - - 420 - 420
At 31 March 2018 R-E-\E=A=+—H 991,198 37,330 317,391 (427,847) 918,072
Loss for the year AEEER - - - (199,184) (199,184)
Recognition of BREEEEEARR A
equity-settled AR
share-based payments - 265 - - 265
Forfeiture of share options R W e = (2,090) = 2,090 =
Placing of shares i & R fn 66,661 - - - 66,661
Expenses on issue of shares — FRIDEITHE (3,280) - - - (3,280)
Issue of shares upon REIR3.0% A R EHE
conversion of BIRG
3.0% convertible bonds 417,685 - (330,138) - 87,547
Derecognition of PREEH3.0% A IR B 5 B
deferred tax liabilities on BIFEREEHIEAR
conversion of
3.0% convertible bonds - - 12,747 - 12,747
At 31 March 2019 RZE-NF=A=+-R 1,472,264 35,505 - (624,941) 882,828
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\ Group Properties

A W

MAJOR PROPERTIES HELD FOR FEREZETEYF
INVESTMENT
Location Lot number Existing use Term of lease
vE b B 4R 5% BERAR FHE
Junction of Jinger Road and 61070200900G- Under development Medium
Weiyi Road, Baohe S00285 for commercial use
Logistic Park, Hantai District,
Hanzhong City,
Shaanxi Province, The PRC
TERARERTESRE AR 61070200900G- ERT 5
BERA&REE —RIER S00285 ((FE e
Junction of Jinger Road and 61070200900G- Under development Long
Weiyi Road, Baohe S00286 for residential use
Logistic Park, Hantai District,
Hanzhong City,
Shaanxi Province, The PRC
TERARERTERRBRE AR 61070200900G- R =375
BERA& KB RIER 500286 HEEERS
The eastern side of Ban Yin Road, BQ3-4-11 Commercial Complex Medium
Ba Qiao District, Xi'an City, held for rental purpose
Shaanxi Province, The PRC
PERAEER T BEEFSIERA BQ3-4-11 FIELHEAGRZEERE TH
Junction of Fengcheng Tenth Road WY12-42-9 Under development for Medium
and Wenjing Road, commercial use
Weiyang District, Xi'an City,
Shaanxi Province, The PRC
RERFEE AL mAREBINTKE WY12-42-9 BERPERERRE R

NRERIER
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